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| NGE

NGE
(a société par actions simplifiée incorporated in France)

€35,000,000 3.200 per cent. Sustainability-Linked Notes due 8 December 2028
Issue Price: 100 per cent.

and

€115,000,000 3.400 per cent. Sustainability-Linked Notes due 8 December 2029
Issue Price: 100 per cent.

The €35,000,000 3.200 per cent. Sustainability-Linked Notes due 8 December 2028 (the "2028 Notes") and the €115,000,000 3.400 per cent.
Sustainability-Linked Notes due 8 December 2029 (the "2029 Notes" and, together with the 2028 Notes, the "Sustainability-Linked Notes" or the
"Notes") of NGE ("NGE" or the "Issuer") will be issued on 8 December 2021 (the "Issue Date").

Subject to the potential interest rate adjustment described below, interest on the 2028 Notes will accrue from, and including, the Issue Date at the rate
of 3.200 per cent. per annum, payable annually in arrear on 8 December in each year, and for the first time on 8 December 2022 for the period from,
and including, the Issue Date to, but excluding, 8 December 2022.

Subject to the potential interest rate adjustment described below, interest on the 2029 Notes will accrue from, and including, the Issue Date at the rate
of 3.400 per cent. per annum, payable annually in arrear on 8 December in each year, and for the first time on 8 December 2022 for the period from,
and including, the Issue Date to, but excluding, 8 December 2022.

The interest rate adjustment in respect of the Notes depends on the achievement by the Issuer of three (3) Sustainable Performance Targets based on
the Group's carbon emissions, Accident Frequency Rate and number of women hired among building site managers (see "Terms and Conditions of the
2028 Notes — Rate of Interest” and "Terms and Conditions of the 2029 Notes — Rate of Interest").

Unless previously redeemed or purchased and cancelled, the 2028 Notes will be redeemed at their Principal Amount on their maturity date in accordance
with the terms and conditions of the 2028 Notes. The 2028 Notes may, and in certain circumstances shall, be redeemed before their maturity date, in
whole but not in part, at their Principal Amount, together with any accrued and unpaid interest, in the event that certain French taxes are imposed (see
"Terms and Conditions of the 2028 Notes — Redemption and purchase — Redemption for taxation reasons"). The 2028 Notes may also be redeemed, in
whole but not in part, (i) at any time prior to 8 December 2024 (excluded), on the Make Whole Redemption Date, at their Make Whole Redemption
Amount (see "Terms and Conditions of the 2028 Notes — Redemption and purchase — Redemption at the option of the Issuer — Early redemption at the
Make Whole Redemption Amount"); (ii) at any time from 8 December 2024 to 7 December 2027 (both dates inclusive), at their Principal Amount,
together with any accrued and unpaid interest and a flat fee (see “Terms and Conditions of the 2028 Notes — Redemption and purchase — Redemption
at the option of the Issuer — Early redemption with a flat fee"); and (iii) on any date from 8 December 2027 (included), at their Principal Amount,
together with any accrued and unpaid interest (see "Terms and Conditions of the 2028 Notes — Redemption and purchase — Redemption at the option
of the Issuer — Residual maturity call option"). In addition, each holder of 2028 Notes will have the option, in the event of a Change of Control, to
require the Issuer to redeem, or, at the Issuer's option, to procure the purchase of, all or part of the 2028 Notes held by such holder, at their Principal
Amount together with (or, where purchased, together with an amount equal to) any accrued and unpaid interest (see "Terms and Conditions of the 2028
Notes — Redemption and purchase — Redemption at the option of the Noteholders").

Unless previously redeemed or purchased and cancelled, the 2029 Notes will be redeemed at their Principal Amount on their maturity date in accordance
with the terms and conditions of the 2029 Notes. The 2029 Notes may, and in certain circumstances shall, be redeemed before their maturity date, in
whole but not in part, at their Principal Amount, together with any accrued and unpaid interest, in the event that certain French taxes are imposed (see
"Terms and Conditions of the 2029 Notes — Redemption and purchase — Redemption for taxation reasons"). The 2029 Notes may also be redeemed, in
whole but not in part, (i) at any time prior to 8 December 2025 (excluded), on the Make Whole Redemption Date, at their Make Whole Redemption
Amount (see "Terms and Conditions of the 2029 Notes — Redemption and purchase — Redemption at the option of the Issuer — Early redemption at the
Make Whole Redemption Amount"); (ii) at any time from 8 December 2025 to 7 December 2028 (both dates inclusive), at their Principal Amount,
together with any accrued and unpaid interest and a flat fee (see "Terms and Conditions of the 2029 Notes — Redemption and purchase — Redemption
at the option of the Issuer — Early redemption with a flat fee"); and (iii) on any date from 8 December 2028 (included), at their Principal Amount,
together with any accrued and unpaid interest (see "Terms and Conditions of the 2029 Notes — Redemption and purchase — Redemption at the option
of the Issuer — Residual maturity call option"). In addition, each holder of 2029 Notes will have the option, in the event of a Change of Control, to
require the Issuer to redeem, or, at the Issuer's option, to procure the purchase of, all or part of the 2029 Notes held by such holder, at their Principal
Amount together with (or, where purchased, together with an amount equal to) any accrued and unpaid interest (see "Terms and Conditions of the 2029
Notes — Redemption and purchase — Redemption at the option of the Noteholders™).

The Notes will benefit from first ranking pledges over the financial securities accounts (nantissements de comptes-titres de premier rang) opened in the
name of the Issuer in the books of certain subsidiaries of the Issuer (the “"Shares Pledges") (see "Terms and Conditions of the 2028 Notes — Shares
Pledges" and "Terms and Conditions of the 2029 Notes — Shares Pledges"). Pursuant to an intercreditor agreement (convention intercréanciers), a pro-
rata distribution of the proceeds on a pari passu basis with the other beneficiaries of the Shares Pledges will be made in case of enforcement of the
Shares Pledges (see "Terms and Conditions of the 2028 Notes — Intercreditor Agreement™ and "Terms and Conditions of the 2029 Notes — Intercreditor
Agreement"). A subordination agreement (convention de subordination) will define the terms and conditions under which the payment of amounts due
by the Issuer to the holders of the Simple Bonds, the holders of the Bonds Redeemable in Shares and the holders of any Other Subordinated Debt will
be subordinated to the payment of amounts due under the Notes and the Facilities Agreement (see "Terms and Conditions of the 2028 Notes —
Surbordination Agreement” and "Terms and Conditions of the 2029 Notes — Surbordination Agreement™).

The Notes will be issued in dematerialised bearer form (dématérialisés au porteur) in the denomination of €100,000 each. Title to the Notes will be
evidenced in accordance with Articles L.211-3 et seq. and R.211-1 et seq. of the French Code monétaire et financier by book entries (inscription en
compte). No physical document of title (including certificats représentatifs pursuant to Article R.211-7 of the French Code monétaire et financier) will
be issued in respect of the Notes.



The Notes will, upon issue, be inscribed in the books of Euroclear France ("Euroclear France") which shall credit the accounts of the Account Holders.
"Account Holders" shall mean any intermediary institution entitled to hold, directly or indirectly, accounts on behalf of its customers with Euroclear
France, and includes Euroclear Bank SA/NV ("Euroclear") and the depositary bank for Clearstream Banking, S.A. ("Clearstream").

This document constitutes a prospectus (the "Prospectus") for the purposes of Article 6 of Regulation (EU) 2017/1129 of the European Parliament and
of the council of 14 June 2017 on the prospectus to be published when securities are offered to the public or admitted to trading on a regulated market,
as amended (the "Prospectus Regulation").

This Prospectus has been approved by the Autorité des marchés financiers (the "AMF") in its capacity as competent authority in France pursuant to the
Prospectus Regulation. The AMF only approves this Prospectus as meeting the standards of completeness, comprehensibility and consistency imposed
by the Prospectus Regulation. Such approval should not be considered as an endorsement of either the Issuer or the quality of the Notes that are the
subject of this Prospectus. Investors should make their own assessment as to the suitability of investing in the Notes.

Application has been made for the Notes to be admitted to trading on the regulated market of Euronext Paris ("Euronext Paris") as of the Issue Date.
Euronext Paris is a regulated market within the meaning of Directive 2014/65/EU of the European Parliament and of the Council of 15 May 2014 on
markets in financial instruments, as amended, appearing on the list of regulated markets issued by the European Securities and Markets Authority.
Neither the Notes nor the long-term debt of the Issuer have been rated or are expected to be rated.

Copies of this Prospectus will be available on the websites of the AMF (www.amf-france.org) and of the Issuer (www.nge.fr).

An investment in the Notes involves certain risks. See ""Risk Factors™ for a description of certain factors which should be considered by
potential investors prior to any investment in the Notes.

Joint Lead Managers

LCL SOCIETE GENERALE CORPORATE & INVESTMENT
BANKING


http://www.amf-france.org/
http://www.nge.fr/

This Prospectus constitutes a prospectus for the purposes of Article 6 of the Prospectus Regulation and has
been prepared for the purpose of giving information with regard to the Issuer and the Issuer and its
consolidated subsidiaries taken as a whole (the "Group") as well as the Notes which is material to an investor
for making an informed assessment of the assets and liabilities, profits and losses, financial position and
prospects of the Issuer, of the rights attaching to the Notes, and the reasons for the issuance and its impact on
the Issuer.

The Joint Lead Managers (as defined in "Subscription and Sale” below) have not separately verified the
information contained in this Prospectus. Accordingly, the Joint Lead Managers do not make any
representation, express or implied, or accept any responsibility, with respect to the accuracy or completeness
of any of the information contained in this Prospectus. Neither this Prospectus nor any other information
supplied in connection with the offering of the Notes is intended to provide the basis of any credit or other
evaluation and should not be considered as a recommendation by, or on behalf of, any of the Issuer or the
Joint Lead Managers that any recipient of this Prospectus or any other information should purchase the Notes.

No person is or has been authorised to give any information or to make any representation related to the issue,
offering or sale of the Notes not contained in this Prospectus. Any information or representation not so
contained herein must not be relied upon as having been authorised by, or on behalf of, the Issuer or the Joint
Lead Managers. The delivery of this Prospectus or any offering or sale of Notes at any time does not imply
that (i) there has been no change in the affairs of the Issuer or the Group, since the date hereof or the date
upon which this Prospectus has been most recently amended or supplemented, (ii) there has been no adverse
change in the financial position of the Issuer since the date hereof or the date upon which this Prospectus has
been most recently amended or supplemented or (ii) the information contained in it or any other information
supplied in connection with the Notes is correct as at any time subsequent to the date on which it is supplied
or, if different, the date indicated in the document containing the same. The Joint Lead Managers do not
undertake to review the financial condition or affairs of the Issuer during the life of the arrangements
contemplated by this Prospectus nor to advise any investor or potential investor in the Notes of any information
coming to their attention.

The Prospectus and any other information relating to the Issuer or the Notes should not be considered as an
offer, an invitation, a recommendation by any of the Issuer or the Joint Lead Managers to subscribe or
purchase the Notes. Each potential investor of Notes should determine for itself the relevance of the
information contained in this Prospectus and its purchase of Notes should be based upon such investigation
as it deems necessary. Investors should in particular conduct their own analysis and evaluation of risks
relating to the Issuer, the Group, their business, their financial condition and the Notes and consult their own
financial and legal advisers about risks associated with an investment in the Notes and the suitability of
investing in the Notes in light of their particular circumstances. Potential investors should read carefully the
section entitled "Risk Factors" set out in this Prospectus before making a decision to invest in the Notes.

The distribution of this Prospectus and the offering or the sale of the Notes in certain jurisdictions may be
restricted by law or regulation. The Issuer and the Joint Lead Managers do not represent that this Prospectus
may be lawfully distributed, or that any Notes may be lawfully offered or sold, in compliance with any
applicable registration or other requirements in any such jurisdiction, or pursuant to an exemption available
thereunder, or assume any responsibility for facilitating any such distribution, offering or sale. In particular,
no action has been taken by the Issuer or the Joint Lead Managers which is intended to permit a public offering
of any Notes or distribution of this Prospectus in any jurisdiction where action for that purpose is required.
Accordingly, no Note may be offered or sold, directly or indirectly, and neither this Prospectus nor any offering
material may be distributed or published in any jurisdiction, except under circumstances that will result in
compliance with any applicable laws and regulations. Persons into whose possession this Prospectus comes
are required by the Issuer and the Joint Lead Managers to inform themselves about and to observe any such
restrictions. For a further description of certain restrictions on offers and sales of Notes and distribution of
this Prospectus and of any other offering material relating to the Notes, see "Subscription and Sale™ below.

The Notes have not been and will not be registered under the U.S. Securities Act of 1933, as amended
(the "Securities Act"). The Notes may not be offered, sold or delivered within the United States or to U.S.
persons (as defined in Regulation S under the Securities Act) except pursuant to an exemption from, or in a
transaction not subject to the registration requirements of the Securities Act.

MiIFID Il product governance / Professional investors and ECPs only target market - Solely for the purposes
of each manufacturer's product approval process, the target market assessment in respect of the Notes, taking



into account the five (5) categories referred to in item 18 of the Guidelines published by the European
Securities and Markets Authority ("ESMA™) on 5 February 2018, has led to the conclusion that: (i) the target
market for the Notes is eligible counterparties and professional clients only, each as defined in Directive
2014/65/EU of the European Parliament and of the Council of 15 May 2014 on markets in financial
instruments, as amended ("MIFID I1'"); and (ii) all channels for distribution of the Notes to eligible
counterparties and professional clients are appropriate. Any person subsequently offering, selling or
recommending the Notes (a "distributor™) should take into consideration the manufacturers' target market
assessment; however, a distributor subject to MiFID Il is responsible for undertaking its own target market
assessment in respect of the Notes (by either adopting or refining the manufacturers' target market assessment)
and determining appropriate distribution channels.

EU PRIIPs Regulation / Prohibition of sales to EEA retail investors - The Notes are not intended to be
offered, sold or otherwise made available to and should not be offered, sold or otherwise made available to
any retail investor in the European Economic Area ("EEA"). For these purposes, a retail investor means a
person who is one (or more) of: (i) a retail client as defined in point (11) of Article 4(1) of MiFID II; (ii) a
customer within the meaning of Directive 2016/97/EU of the European Parliament and of the Council of 20
January 2016 on insurance distribution, as amended (the "Insurance Distribution Directive™), where that
customer would not qualify as a professional client as defined in point (10) of Article 4(1) of MiFID II; or (iii)
not a qualified investor as defined in Article 2 of the Prospectus Regulation. Consequently, no key information
document required by Regulation (EU) No 1286/2014 of the European Parliament and of the Council of
26 November 2014 on key information documents for packaged retail and insurance-based investment
products, as amended (the "EU PRIIPs Regulation™) for offering or selling the Notes or otherwise making
them available to retail investors in the EEA has been prepared and therefore offering or selling the Notes or
otherwise making them available to any retail investor in the EEA may be unlawful under the EU PRIIPs
Regulation.

UK PRIIPs Regulation / Prohibition of sales to UK retail investors - The Notes are not intended to be offered,
sold or otherwise made available to and should not be offered, sold or otherwise made available to any retail
investor in the United Kingdom ("UK"). For these purposes, a retail investor means a person who is one (or
more) of: (i) a retail client, as defined in point (8) of Article 2 of Regulation (EU) No 2017/565 as it forms part
of domestic law by virtue of the European Union (Withdrawal) Act 2018 ("EUWA™); (ii) a customer within
the meaning of the provisions of the Financial Services and Markets Act, as amended ("FSMA") and any rules
or regulations made under the FSMA to implement the Insurance Distribution Directive, where that customer
would not qualify as a professional client, as defined in point (8) of Article 2(1) of Regulation (EU) No
600/2014 as it forms part of domestic law by virtue of the EUWA; or (iii) not a qualified investor as defined
in Article 2 of the Prospectus Regulation as it forms part of domestic law by virtue of the EUWA. Consequently,
no key information document required by the EU PRIIPs Regulation as it forms part of UK domestic law by
virtue of the EUWA (the "UK PRIIPs Regulation") for offering or selling the Notes or otherwise making them
available to retail investors in the UK has been prepared and therefore offering or selling the Notes or
otherwise making them available to any retail investor in the UK may be unlawful under the UK PRIIPs
Regulation.

The Notes may not be a suitable investment for all investors

Each potential investor in the Notes must determine the suitability of that investment in light of its own
circumstances. In particular, each potential investor should:

(i)  have sufficient knowledge and experience to make a meaningful evaluation of the Notes, the merits and
risks of investing in the Notes and the information contained in this Prospectus or any applicable
supplement;

(i)  have access to, and knowledge of, appropriate analytical tools to evaluate, in the context of its particular
financial situation, an investment in the Notes and the impact such investment will have on its overall
investment portfolio;

(iii)  have sufficient financial resources and liquidity to bear all of the risks of an investment in the Notes,
including where the currency for principal or interest payments is different from the potential investor's
currency;

(iv) understand thoroughly the terms of the Notes and be familiar with the behaviour of financial markets;



(v) beableto evaluate (either alone or with the help of a financial adviser) possible scenarios for economic,
interest rate and other factors that may affect its investment and its ability to bear the relevant risks;
and

(vi) consult their legal advisers in relation to possible legal or fiscal risks that may be associated with any
investment in the Notes.

Legal investment considerations may restrict certain investments. The investment activities of certain investors
are subject to legal investment laws and regulations, or review or regulation by certain authorities. Each
potential investor should consult their legal counsel in order to determine whether and to what extent (i) Notes
are legal investments for it, (ii) Notes can be used as collateral for various types of borrowing and (ii) other
restrictions apply to its purchase or pledge of any Notes. Financial institutions should consult their legal
counsel or the appropriate regulators to determine the appropriate treatment of the Notes under any
applicable risk-based capital or similar rules.

Taxation

The tax legislation of the country of incorporation of the investors and of the Issuer may have an impact on
the income received from the Notes.

Potential purchasers and sellers of the Notes should be aware that they may be required to pay taxes or
documentary charges or duties in accordance with the laws and practices of the jurisdiction where the Notes
are transferred or other jurisdictions. Payments of interest and other amounts under the Notes may also be
subject to taxation. In some jurisdictions, no official statements of the tax authorities or court decisions may
be available for the tax treatment of innovative financial notes such as the Notes. The tax impact on an
individual Noteholder may differ from the situation for Noteholders generally. Potential investors are advised
to ask for their own tax adviser's advice on their individual taxation with respect to the acquisition, holding,
disposal and redemption of the Notes. Only these advisers are in a position to duly consider the specific
situation of the potential investor.

Absence of Rating

Neither the Notes nor the long-term debt of the Issuer are rated. One or more independent credit rating
agencies may assign credit ratings to the Notes on an unsolicited basis. The ratings may not reflect the
potential impact of all risks related to structure, market, additional factors discussed below, and other factors
that may affect the market value of the Notes. A rating or the absence of a rating is not a recommendation to
buy, sell or hold securities.

Change of law

The Terms and Conditions of the 2028 Notes and the Terms and Conditions of the 2029 Notes are based on
French law in effect as at the date of this Prospectus. No assurance can be given as to the impact of any
possible judicial or administrative decision or change to French law, regulation or administrative practice
(or to the interpretation thereto) after the date of this Prospectus.
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RISK FACTORS

The Issuer believes that the risk factors described below are specific to the Issuer and the Notes, important in
making an investment decision in the Notes and/or may affect its ability to fulfill its obligations imposed by the
Notes with regard to holders of such Notes, as corroborated by the content of this Prospectus.

The following paragraphs set forth the main risk factors relating to the Issuer and the Notes that the Issuer
considers significant for the Notes as of the date of this Prospectus. These risk factors are however not
exhaustive. Additional risks not known to the Issuer or not material at this particular time may have a
significant impact on an investment in the Notes. In each category below the Issuer sets out first the most
material risk, in its assessment, taking into account their residual criticality, obtained by crossing the expected
magnitude of their negative impact and the probability of their occurrence. The risks described below may be
combined and interrelated.

Prior to any decision to invest in the Notes, potential investors should consider carefully all the information
contained in this Prospectus, especially the risk factors detailed below. In particular, potential investors,
underwriters and Noteholders must make their own analysis and their own assessment of all considerations of
an investment in the Notes and risks relating to the Issuer, its business, its financial position, the Group and
the Notes. They are also recommended to consult their own financial or legal advisors as to the risks of an
investment in the Notes and as to the suitability of such an investment in light of their own particular
circumstances.

Terms defined in "Terms and Conditions of the 2028 Notes" and "Terms and Conditions of the 2029 Notes"
will have the same meaning when used below. References to "Conditions" in this section are to either an article
of the Terms and Conditions of the 2028 Notes or an article of the Terms and Conditions of the 2029 Notes,
as applicable.

1. Risks relating to the Issuer and/or the Group
11 Risks arising from the operations and activities of the Group
Risk associated with major projects

In addition to its main business, which consists of fulfilling several thousands of small contracts of
low unit value, the Group also carries out projects considered major by virtue of their value,
complexity, implementation difficulty, duration or financing method (notably concessions and PPP
(partenariat public-privé) projects). These major projects carry greater risks in terms of design,
constraints (geological, archaeological, etc.), availability of construction land, cost estimates, resource
shortages (human resources, raw materials, etc.), delivery deadlines, payment terms, and so on. An
example of a major project is the Ferrocarril Central project in Uruguay, a funded project for the
conception, construction and maintenance of a railway line.

Such projects are managed since 2014 through NGE Contracting, which works alongside local
subsidiaries and is dedicated to studying, designing and implementing major projects.

The activities, financial results and prospects of the Group would be negatively impacted if such risks
were to occur.

This risk may thus be categorised as high.

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk associated with the possibility that the Group may have insufficient net
financial resources to meet its obligations and its operating expenses.



As at 31 December 2020, the shareholder's equity of the Group amounts to €281,329,000.

As at 31 December 2020, the main items of the Group's debt are as follows (see note 8.13 to the annual
consolidated financial statements of the Issuer for the fiscal year ended 31 December 2020):

Non-current
In thousands of euros Current Total
1-5years > 5 years

State-Guaranteed loan | 206,221 206,221
Convertible loan 71,180 71,180
Bank borrowings 68,801 218,746 20,739 308,285
Lease debt 40,381 58,736 4,493 103,610
Other borrowings 170 1,745 - 1,915
Gross debt 386,753 279,227 25,232 691,211
Net cash 462,883
Net debt 228,328

The Group has launched a securitisation program of commercial debts (€250 million trade receivables
securitisation program), renewed in 2019 for a term of six years, and can also rely on credit facilities
(the Group has a €100 million revolving credit facility and a €150 million Negotiate European
Commercial Paper Program, both unused as at 31 December 2020).

The Issuer entered into a syndicated loan facility of €321 million in December 2017 with a pool of
banks (the "2017 Syndicated Loan"), not fully drawn as at the date of this Prospectus. The principal
amount was €163.655 million as at 31 December 2020, no additional drawdown being available. The
2017 Syndicated Loan (excepted the revolving credit facility) is amortised on a semi-annual basis for
60% of its amount and 40% bullet and will mature on 20 December 2023.

As part of the 2017 Syndicated Loan, the Group is committed to maintain certain financial covenants
that are tested once a year, non-compliance of which may result in early redemption. In response to
the Covid-19 pandemic, NGE has strengthened its liquidity line with a €200 million state-guaranteed
loan issued on 30 June 2020, subscribed through its usual banking pool and fully repaid in June 2021
(the "State-Guaranteed Loan"). Such State-Guaranteed Loan resulted in a breach of one of the above-
mentioned financial covenants by the Issuer. The Group obtained, on 17 December 2020, the
agreement of the lenders to waive the event of default for non-compliance with the gross debt ratio
and, consequently, to waive the early repayment of the sum due.

As at 31 December 2020, the following financial covenants were complied with by the Issuer:
- net leverage ratio: less than 2,5; and
- net cash: at least equal to €60 million.

The Group will enter into a new syndicated loan of €350 million on 8 December 2021 (the "2021
Syndicated Loan") with a pool of banks. It is composed of a €150 million refinancing line of the 2017
Syndicated Loan, a 50 million euros capex line available for draw down during 3 years and a €150
million revolving credit line. The 2021 Syndicated Loan will be amortised on a semi-annual basis for



60% of its amount and 40% bullet and will mature on 8 December 2027. By exception, the revolving
credit line will mature in 6 years (with a one-year extension option), is not amortisable and comprises
a clean-down period. The revolving credit line may be drawn down until 1 month before the final
maturity date. The Group secured formal approval for this new syndicated loan from banks credit
committees up to 100% of the total amount.

The covenants contained in the Terms and Conditions of the 2028 Notes, the Terms and Conditions of
the 2029 Notes (both as more fully described in the risk factor entitled "The Notes include certain
restrictive covenants” below), the 2017 Syndicated Loan and the 2021 Syndicated Loan could affect
the Group's ability to conduct its business and limit its ability to react to market conditions or to take
advantage of opportunities that may arise. In addition, the Group's ability to comply with these
covenants could be affected by events beyond its control, such as economic, financial and industry
conditions. A failure by the Group to comply with these covenants could constitute an event of default
under the Terms and Conditions of the 2028 Notes, the Terms and Conditions of the 2029 Notes, the
2017 Syndicated Loan or the 2021 Syndicated Loan (as applicable).

In addition, the Issuer will issue, on 8 December 2021, (i) bonds redeemable in shares (obligations
remboursables en actions) up to an aggregate nominal amount of €43,092,421.65 due on
8 December 2031, bearing full capitalised interest at an annual rate of (a) 2% per annum up to and
including 8 December 2022 and (b) 6% per annum from 9 December 2022, with a maturity of ten (10)
years and to be fully subscribed by the founders and the managers by way of set-off against the portion
of the shareholder's loan held by the founders and the managers and (ii) ordinary subordinated bonds
(obligations simples subordonnées) up to an aggregate nominal amount of €36,376,955 bearing full
capitalised interest with a maturity of two (2) years (redeemable or callable up to a maximum of
€21,376,955 on 8 December 2022 and up to a maximum of €15,000,000 on 8 December 2023) and to
be fully subscribed by Crédit Mutuel Equity SCR by way of set-off against the portion of the
shareholder loan held by Crédit Mutuel Equity SCR (the "Simple Bonds"). In the event the Simple
Bonds are not redeemed or purchased up to €21,376,955 on 8 December 2022 and up to €15,000,000
on 8 December 2023 with the proceeds received from any Concession Transfer, the Issuer and its
shareholders undertook to redeem or purchase the Simple Bonds from Crédit Mutuel Equity SCR up
to the required amount by way of a share capital increase subscribed by the shareholders of the Issuer.

In a crisis context, the Group may not be able to obtain the financing or refinancing necessary to
implement its investment plan or to obtain such financing or refinancing on acceptable terms.

The occurrence of such risk could have an adverse effect on the Group's business, results of operations
and financial condition and could significantly increase the credit risk of the Issuer (as described in the
risk factor entitled "Credit risk" below).

This risk may thus be categorised as significant.
Risk associated with changing regions and markets
The Group's business activities and results are notably exposed to the following risks:

- changes in the macroeconomic environment in the main regions in which the Group has a
longstanding presence (France, Europe, Africa, Middle East and Central and South America):
adverse changes may have an impact on business volumes, competitive pressures and market
prices; and

- changes in public sector procurement, since a significant proportion of the Group's business
involves public sector customers (especially local and regional authorities in France); the main
risk is that of public sector customers not having the capacity to finance their maintenance and
investment expenditures. Rising budget deficits, the state of public finances in many countries,
the resulting austerity measures and, in France, the drop in state contributions to local
governments, all compound this risk. Furthermore, administrative and political considerations
(e.g. difficulties agreeing on budgets, elections, plans to combine local authorities, and changes
in local leadership) can also adversely affect the volume of public sector business. There is
therefore a risk that infrastructure construction and maintenance projects, whether under
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1.3

consideration or already approved, may be called into question or delayed.

Failure to anticipate and/or respond to such changes may cause a Group company to be out of step
with its market (resulting in poor positioning, reduced competitiveness and agility as a result of an
overly cumbersome structure, or loss of market share or business opportunities), resulting in lower
profitability.

However, the large proportion of Group business deriving from infrastructure maintenance, which is
vital to the economy as a whole, the broad geographical distribution of its operating units, the wide
range of business activities pursued by the Group and the large number of projects undertaken help the
Group to manage such exposures.

This risk may thus be categorised as significant.
Risk associated with volatility in raw material prices

The Group is exposed to price increases of the equipment, supplies, raw materials (notably petroleum
products such as asphalt or fuel) and materials it purchases. Such price increases, and their impact on
the price of works or services, can also reduce the volume of orders from clients.

To alleviate such exposures, (i) the quarries service of the Group develops quarries at which all
subsidiaries, as well as third parties, can buy, (ii) the Group's purchasing department seeks to anticipate
these changes by negotiating master agreements to streamline these costs, (iii) the internal engineering
services negotiate, for each significant business, agreements with suppliers to obtain firm prices or
ones that are reasonably indexed for a particular duration and (iv) works contracts may contain revision
and price indexation clauses.

This risk may thus be categorised as significant.
Legal, regulatory and ethical risks
Compliance risks

As of 31 December 2020, almost 70% of the Group's revenue is with public sector customers in France
and abroad. Legislation in most countries prohibits operators from bidding for public sector contracts
if they have not complied with public procurement rules.

More generally, the high proportion of the Group's revenue deriving from the public sector (or from
major structured groups such as highway operators, railway operators, mining companies, etc.) means
the Group is also exposed to the risk of anti-competitive practices or corruption, particularly in
countries where such practices are still widespread.

For the past several years, steps have been taken to avoid non-compliant practices: compliance
programs have been introduced (focusing in particular on corruption prevention and competition),
procedures have been disseminated more widely and training has been made available for all
potentially exposed Group employees. Moreover, the Group always penalises hon-compliant behavior
and notifies the relevant judicial authorities. In spite of these measures, the Group remains exposed to
these risks, though their financial and/or legal impact remains difficult to assess.

This risk may thus be categorised as high.
Social and environmental risks
Risk associated with natural phenomena and the effects of climate change

The Group's operations may be at risk from natural phenomena, especially weather. In addition, the
Group's activity structurally slows down during winter.

Adverse conditions (bad weather, rain, lightning, snow, ice, etc.) can lead to project site or activity
stoppages or the accidental destruction of structures under construction, resulting in a failure to cover
fixed costs. They may also result in increased costs in the execution of projects, as construction may
have to be completed within a reduced time frame.

The most exposed geographical areas in which the Group operates include France and Cameroon. If
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this risk should materialise, operations could be disrupted at production sites located in the affected
areas (e.g. interruption of the construction due to water flow), or the seasonal period during which
activities can be carried out could be shortened (e.g. longer rain season in Cameroon). Adverse
conditions could affect the level of activity, the financial results and the financial situation of the
Group.

The Group anticipates that such natural phenomena could worsen or increase in humber in the future
as a result of climate change. In addition to its efforts to offer techniques and materials to protect
existing infrastructure and equip new infrastructure to withstand more extreme climate variation, the
Group is launching awareness actions on the impacts of climate change (regulatory intelligence, low-
carbon training) and integrates climate change consequences in offerings (R&D for resilient solutions
as well as low-carbon and resilient demonstrators and pilot projects)

This risk may thus be categorised as medium.
Risk of environmental damage

Group companies might be subject to risks related to the potential contamination of natural
environments in the projects and regions where they operate.

The need to safeguard against the risk of environmental damage is taken into account in the Group's
operational activities. Environmentally certified sites are subject to environmental analysis in addition
to budgeted preventive action plans. The Group uses this information during management reviews to
analyse and limit the impact of the Group's operations and improve environmental performance, and
it is also examined as part of a standard budget monitoring procedure. Operating licenses for
environmentally sensitive facilities subject to special administrative processes ("ICPE" or "ISDI"
facilities in France) generally require strict compliance with environmental requirements, irrespective
of the country in question. 1SO 14001 certification and the use of checklist-based self-assessments
give the Group a certain degree of assurance that it will meet these requirements.

The risk of environmental damage goes beyond economic aspects and extend to the Issuer's image and
reputation, as operations can suffer long-term consequences if a risk event occurs. Taking a longer-
term view, regulatory changes, as well as the development of the market and certain technologies, can
constitute ecological transition risk factors.

This risk may thus be categorised as medium.
Risks relating to human resources
Risk associated with employee health and safety

The Group is exposed to two main types of occupational hazards: (i) the operation of construction
machinery and industrial equipment and (ii) traffic accidents in which employees may be directly
involved and those that may occur when hauling a wide load (e.g. transport of construction machinery
and industrial equipment, etc.). In spite of safety measures in place, the risk of gross negligence in
connection with a workplace accident involving an employee or temporary staff member is the greatest
risk in financial terms, as the social contribution rate of the Group applied to total wages and salaries
is directly impacted by the Accident Frequency Rate (number of accidents with sick leave multiplied
by one million (1,000,000) and divided by the number of worked hours). The Group has long pursued
a proactive policy of prevention, safety training for new personnel, and research (e.g. "security bubble™
for moving machinery). Nevertheless, even if the Accident Frequency Rate has been increasing for
many years, such increase is not linear. The Accident Frequency Rate increased from 15,06 in 2018 to
16,41 in 2019, showing that this risk is still very contemporary.

As regards workplace health, the Group has identified six specific areas of risk, which could be linked
to a death (all of these areas of risk having been responsible for deaths among the Group's workforce
in the previous years):

- Seat belt not fastened in all types of plant, machinery and vehicles;

- Handled loads drop;
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- Machinery and vehicules blind spots;

- Not wearing collective or personal protection equipment when working at height;

- Working in excavations or trenches that are not lined or have not battered sloping walls; and
- None stabilised formwork panels and prefabricated components before removing slings.

In the event of a death on a construction site, the construction could be stopped for a short or long
period of time, which could lead to penalties due by the Group if its responsibility or negligence was
engaged. Besides, a strong impact on its reputation could reduce contracts awards in the future, thus
jeopardising the achievement of the Group's objectives.

Beyond these six areas of risk, the Group also takes into account its duty of care with respect to anxiety
associated with activities involving the use of potentially toxic substances.

This risk may thus be categorised as medium.
Risk of loss of expertise and talent

Public works are traditionally a less attractive business sector than others that therefore faces
difficulties hiring staff regardless of the job on offer and the skills required. Furthermore, the
development in some areas of ambitious infrastructure programs with tight deadlines (e.g. Le Grand
Paris projects in the Greater Paris region) and the highly seasonal nature of activities in some
geographical regions (notably North America) further increases labor market competition in certain
highly sought-after categories of employees. The unavailability or lack of adequate resources and the
loss of key skills and expertise pose a risk to the Group's day-to-day business and its ability to
successfully complete the major projects entrusted to it.

In light of this situation, the Group places the emphasis on retaining employees and developing their
skills and expertise. In addition to day-to-day activities undertaken by Human Resources teams, the
Group regularly surveys its global workforce so as to better understand and manage the risks associated
with labor relations, employee turnover, workplace well-being (psychosocial issues), skills
management and hiring.

The Group's strategy also includes working hard to make the Group more attractive and diversify its
sources of hiring (developing its employer brand and social media presence, forming and/or
maintaining partnerships with educational institutions around the world, developing the role of
apprenticeships, etc.) so as to attract and hire new talent that reflects social diversity (in terms of
culture, ethnicity, age, gender, formal education, etc.).

In the short run, this risk could lead to delays on projects, increased defect rate or reduced construction
quality, which would ultimately lead to increased construction costs, delays, and would possibly impair
the Group's reputation. In the long run, this risk could also prevent our business plan from being
achieved. For example, the Group recently withdrawn from a major tender on a Grand Paris Express
project as management was not able to staff the tender team (engineers) as required for this type of
project, leading to a loss of significant bidding costs and a loss of future turnover.

This risk may thus be categorised as medium.
Risk to personal security

In the course of its business, the Group may operate in areas of the world that are politically unstable
or considered dangerous (e.g. Cameroon, Ivory Coast, Egypt), thus posing a risk to personal security
(for employees on assignment or employed locally, expatriates and their families, etc.).

The Group therefore has a dedicated structure in place, and in 2018 implemented a specific procedure
for assessing country risk to support employees traveling to and working in areas considered at risk
(including definition and observance of strict rules, application of internal and/or external safety
measures, etc.). Furthermore, security is always taken into account when giving consideration to new
locations (Country Committee) or projects (Market Committee). Lastly, the Group has a crisis
management unit that is equipped to deal with any security incidents that may arise.
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1.6

This risk may thus be categorised as medium.
Cyber risks

Protecting the Group's informational capital is of major strategic importance, for reasons of
competitiveness, trust in the company and data protection. As the Group steps up the digital
transformation of its businesses and professional practices, it also continues to strengthen the
resources it employs to ensure the security of its information systems and thereby preserve its
operating performance.

Cyberattacks

New collaborative practices have made it possible to work together in a more fluid and efficient
manner. But in today's hyper-connected world, those same technologies have become a source of
vulnerability, because they are both essential to the Group's operational efficiency and exposed to
cyberattacks. These attacks can be very diverse and have become increasingly sophisticated.
International groups are frequently subject to sometimes massive cyberattacks as well as fraud
attempts. This trend picked up considerable speed in 2020, in particular during the widespread
lockdowns. These large-scale attacks aim to compromise data integrity or information quality and
include attacks on systems, loss or disclosure of data, eavesdropping or theft of confidential data. Such
risks could damage the Group's reputation, or cause financial loss, information system unavailability
or non-compliance.

In order to address such threats, in 2020, the Group stepped up the rollout of its overall IT security
policy, which defines the roles and responsibilities of all participating individuals:

- Several information system security directives were issued, which specify the mandatory security
rules for each subsystem.

- CyberSecPlan 2020, the multi-year strategic transformation plan, was rolled out; it will be
renewed in partnership with the heads of IT security and the business line representatives.

- Aworkstation security uniformisation standard was launched and user authentication mechanisms
were strengthened.

This risk has been ranked number one among the risks faced by the Group.

This risk may thus be categorised as high.

Fraud

Fraud consists in an intentional act by an employee or a third party aimed at embezzling Group assets.

The systems of a group as decentralised and diversified as the Group are exposed to the risk of both
internal and external fraud, especially as regards payment systems. Attempts at fraud generally target
the individuals involved in external payment processes and could lead to financial loss; and damage
to the Group's reputation.

In order address such threats, the Group has established the following risk management procedures:

- External fraud prevention involves several Finance Department and Information Systems
Department units.

- The Group's Finance Department, in conjunction with the Information Systems Department, has
developed a set of fraud prevention measures available on the Group's intranet.

- Internal fraud prevention is based on the Code of Ethics and Professional Conduct of the World
Health Organization, as well as on specific training or awareness initiatives.

Recent developpements in new countries do not allow to systematically implement proper separation
of duties (purchase order issuance, approval of invoice, cash management performed by a single
person) eventually increasing significantly the risk of fraud. For example, the Group has been recently
the subject of frauds (more than €1,000,000 at stake) in Morocco (2018) and Senegal (2020). Indeed,
the Group operates in countries where cash is commonly used for payroll and suppliers payments as
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local banking systems are less developed than in France. NGE local managers face difficulties to
securely manage cash flows. NGE international turnover increased from €37 million in 2012 to
€260 million in 2020, increasing significantly the risk of fraud as described above.

This risk may thus be categorised as high.

Risks relating to the Notes

Risks for Noteholders as creditors of the Issuer
Credit risk

Credit risk refers to the risk that the Issuer may be unable to meet its financial obligations under the
Notes. As contemplated in Condition 2, the obligations of the Issuer under the Notes in respect of
principal, interest and other amounts constitute direct, general, unconditional, unsubordinated and
secured obligations of the Issuer. However, Noteholders are exposed to the credit risk of the Issuer,
which should be assessed in particular in the light of the Issuer's current debt and liquidity risk (as
more fully described in the risk factor entitled "Liquidity risk" above). If the creditworthiness of the
Issuer deteriorates, and notwithstanding (i) the Shares Pledges granted by the Issuer for the benefit of
the Masse of the holders of the 2028 Notes and the Masse of the holders of the 2029 Notes, as more
fully described in Condition 4, and (ii) Condition 12 which enables the Representatives of each of the
Masse of the holders of the 2028 Notes and the Masse of the holders of the 2029 Notes to cause all,
but not some only, of the 2028 Notes and the 2029 Notes, as applicable, to become immediately due
and payable if any Event of Default occurs, the Issuer may not be able to fulfil all or part of its payment
obligations under the Notes, which could materially and negatively impact the Noteholders which may
lose all or part of their investment.

French Insolvency Law

As a société par actions simplifiée incorporated in France, French insolvency laws shall apply to the
Issuer.

Pursuant to Ordonnance No 2021-1193 of 15 September 2021, which transposes Directive (EU)
2019/1023 of the European Parliament and of the Council of 20 June 2019, in the context of the
opening in France of a safeguard (procédure de sauvegarde), an accelerated safeguard (procédure de
sauvegarde accélérée) or a judicial reorganisation procedure (procédure de redressement judiciaire)
with respect to the Issuer, the affected parties (parties affectées) (i.e. creditors, including the
Noteholders) are grouped into distinct classes in order to adopt a restructuring plan. The administrator
(administrateur judiciaire) splits, on the basis of verifiable objective criteria, the affected parties
between classes comprising claims or interests with rights that reflect a sufficient commonality of
interest, following certain conditions. As a minimum, the secured and unsecured receivables must be
treated in distinct classes in order to adopt a restructuring plan.

The decision of each class is taken by a two-third (2/3) majority of the voting rights of the
participating members, no quorum being required.

If the restructuring plan is not approved by all classes of affected parties, it can still be ratified by the
court at the request of the Issuer or the receiver with the Issuer's consent and be imposed on dissenting
classes through a cross-class cram down, under certain conditions.

For the avoidance of doubt, the provisions relating to the Masse described in Condition 14 will not be
applicable to the extent they are not in compliance with compulsory insolvency law provisions that
apply in these circumstances.

The procedures, as described above or as they will or may be amended, could have a material and
adverse impact on the Noteholders seeking repayment in the event that the Issuer or its subsidiaries
were to be subject to French insolvency proceedings. In addition, the commencement of insolvency
proceedings against the Issuer could have a material adverse effect on the market value of Notes issued
by the Issuer. Any decisions taken by a class of affected parties could negatively and significantly
impact the Noteholders and cause them to lose all or part of their investment in the Notes, should they
not be able to recover all or part of the amounts due to them from the Issuer.
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2.2

The Notes include certain restrictive covenants

The Terms and Conditions of the 2028 Notes and the Terms and Conditions of the 2029 Notes only
contain (i) Financial Covenants, which notably prohibit the Issuer from having (a) a Net Leverage
Ratio superior or equal to 2.50x, (b) a Gross Leverage Ratio superior or equal to 5.00x (it being
specified that each of the above mentioned Financial Covenants may be exceeded a maximum of two
(2) times before the stated maturity date of the Notes) (as further described in Condition 8.1) and (c)
Consolidated Net Cash in excess of (x) €60,000,000 as at the first Testing Date (i.e. being
31 December 2021), (y) €80,000,000 as at the second Testing Date (i.e. being 31 December 2022) and
(z) €100,000,000 as at each following Testing Date, it being specified that such Financial Covenants
have not been tested by the Issuer since 31 December 2020, (ii) a limitation on acquisitions covenant,
which prohibitis the Issuer and its Subsidiaries from acquiring the shares of a company or a business
or an undertaking other than a Permitted Acquisition (as further described in Condition 8.2), (iii) a
limitation on distributions of dividends covenant, which prohibits the Issuer from making any
distribution of dividends, interim dividends or reserves in any form whatsoever to its shareholders
other than as permitted under Condition 8.5, (iv) a limitation on Financial Indebtedness covenant,
which prohibits the Issuer and its Subsidiaries from incurring and maintaining any Financial
Indebtedness other than a Permitted Financial Indebtedness (as further described in Condition 8.6) and
(v) a negative pledge undertaking that prohibits the Issuer and its Subsidiaries from creating security
over assets without securing equally and rateably the Notes, in certain circumstances and subject to
certain exceptions (as further described in Condition 3).

Subject to these covenants and negative pledge undertakings, the Issuer and its Subsidiaries may incur
additional debt such as Permitted Financial Indebtedness that could be considered before or rank
equally with the Notes. Accordingly, if the Issuer incurs additional debt such as Permitted Financial
Indebtedness ranking equally with the Notes, it will increase the number of claims that would be
entitled to share rateably with Noteholders in any proceeds distributed in connection with an
insolvency, bankruptcy or similar proceeding.

These covenants and negative pledge undertakings may not provide sufficient protection for
Noteholders. If the Issuer's financial condition were to deteriorate, the Noteholders could suffer direct
and materially adverse consequences, including loss of interest and, if the Issuer were liquidated
(whether voluntarily or not), may lose all or part of their investment.

Intercreditor Agreement

Pursuant to an intercreditor agreement (convention intercréanciers) to be entered into on the Issue
Date between the Security Agent, the Facility Agent, the Lenders, the Representative of the holders of
the 2028 Notes (acting on behalf of the Masse of the holders of the 2028 Notes, as beneficiary of the
Shares Pledges) and the Representative of the holders of the 2029 Notes (acting on behalf of the Masse
of the holders of the 2029 Notes, as beneficiary of the Shares Pledges) (the "Intercreditor
Agreement"), a pro-rata distribution of the proceeds on a pari passu basis between the beneficiaries
of the Shares Pledges (including the Lenders) will be made in case of enforcement of the Shares
Pledges.

In addition, the Intercreditor Agreement provides that the Shares Pledges will be enforced according
to a majority of the beneficiaries of the Shares Pledges (including the Lenders). Accordingly, a
Noteholder will not be able individually to enforce the Shares Pledges and the choice of the majority
will bind all Noteholders.

As a consequence of the above, Noteholders may lose all or part of their investment.
Risks related to the particular structure of the Notes
The Notes may be redeemed prior to their stated maturity

In the event that the Issuer would be obliged to pay Additional Amounts in respect of any Notes due
to any deduction or withholding as provided in Condition 11.2, the Issuer may and, in certain
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circumstances shall, redeem all, but not some only, of the Notes then outstanding in accordance with
Condition 9.3.

In addition, the Issuer may, at its option, redeem the 2028 Notes, in whole but not in part, (a) at any
time prior to 8 December 2024 (excluded), on the Make Whole Redemption Date, at their Make Whole
Redemption Amount (see Condition 9.2(a)), (ii) at any time from 8 December 2024 to
7 December 2027 (both dates inclusive), at their Principal Amount, together with any accrued and
unpaid interest and a flat fee (see Condition 9.2(b)) and (iii) on any date from 8 December 2027
(included), at their Principal Amount, together with any accrued and unpaid interest (see Condition
9.2(c)). Similarly, the Issuer may, at its option, redeem the 2029 Notes, in whole but not in part, (a) at
any time prior to 8 December 2025 (excluded), on the Make Whole Redemption Date, at their Make
Whole Redemption Amount (see Condition 9.2(a)), (ii) at any time from 8 December 2025 to
7 December 2028 (both dates inclusive), at their Principal Amount, together with any accrued and
unpaid interest and a flat fee (see Condition 9.2(b)) and (iii) on any date from 8 December 2028
(included), at their Principal Amount, together with any accrued and unpaid interest (see Condition
9.2(c)).

The early redemption at the Make Whole Redemption Amount will only be exercisable (i) with respect
to the 2028 Notes, prior to 8 December 2024 and (ii) with respect to the 2029 Notes, prior to
8 December 2025. After such dates falling respectively three (3) years after the Issue Date of the 2028
Notes and four (4) years after the Issue Date of the 2029 Notes, the Notes shall no longer be early
redeemed at the Make Whole Redemption Amount.

The residual maturity call option will be exercisable on any date (i) with respect to the 2028 Notes,
from 8 December 2027 and (ii) with respect to the 2029 Notes, from 8 December 2028. From such
dates falling one (1) year before the stated maturity dates of the 2028 Notes and 2029 Notes,
respectively, the Notes may be early redeemed without any premium.

The early redemption at the option of the Issuer may negatively affect the market value of the Notes.

The Issuer may choose to redeem the Notes at times when prevailing interest rates may be relatively
low. During a period when the Issuer may elect, or has elected, to redeem Notes, such Notes may
feature a market value not substantially above the price at which they can be redeemed. In such
circumstances an investor may not be able to reinvest the redemption proceeds in a comparable
security at an effective interest rate as high as that of the Notes.

All of the above may cause the investment in the Notes to be less profitable than expected for
Noteholders. In such case, Noteholders carry no risk of capital loss, but a decrease in the gain that the
Notes could have brought them.

Early redemption at the option of the Noteholders

In the event of a Change of Control (as more fully described in Condition 9.4), each Noteholder will
have the option to require the Issuer to redeem or, at the Issuer's option, to procure the purchase of all
or part of its Notes at their Principal Amount together with (or, where purchased, together with an
amount equal to) any accrued and unpaid interest.

In such case, depending on the number of Notes in respect of which such put option is exercised, any
trading market in respect of those Notes in respect of which such redemption right is not exercised
may become illiquid. In addition, Noteholders having exercised their put option may not be able to
reinvest the moneys they receive upon such early redemption in securities with the same yield as the
redeemed Notes. Should the above risks ever materialise, Noteholders could lose a significant part of
their investment in the Notes.

Purchases by the Issuer in the open market or otherwise (including by way of tender offer or exchange
offer) in respect of certain Notes may affect the liquidity of the Notes which have not been so purchased

Depending on the number of Notes purchased by the Issuer as provided in Condition 9.5, any trading
market in respect of the 2028 Notes or the 2029 Notes, respectively, that have not been so purchased
may become illiquid. As a result, investors still holding the Notes after such purchase(s) may not be
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able to sell their Notes on the market or may not be able to sell their Notes without incurring a
significant discount from the nominal value of the Notes.

Modification of the Terms and Conditions of the 2028 Notes, the Terms and Conditions of the 2029
Notes and waiver

The Terms and Conditions of the 2028 Notes and the Terms and Conditions of the 2029 Notes contain
provisions for Noteholders to consider matters affecting their interests generally to be adopted either
through a General Meeting or a Written Unanimous Decision, in respect of the 2028 Notes and the
2029 Notes, respectively (as more fully described in Condition 14). These provisions permit in certain
cases defined majorities to bind all holders of 2028 Notes or holders of 2029 Notes, as applicable,
including holders of 2028 Notes or holders of 2029 Notes, as applicable, who did not attend and vote
at the relevant General Meeting, or holders of 2028 Notes or holders of 2029 Notes, as applicable, who
voted in a manner contrary to the majority. General Meetings may deliberate on any proposal relating
to the modification of the Terms and Conditions of the 2028 Notes or the Terms and Conditions of the
2029 Notes, as applicable, including any proposal, whether for arbitration or settlement, relating to
rights in controversy or which was the subject of judicial decisions. As a consequence, the rights of
the Noteholders may be adversely and materially affected as they may be bound by changes to which
they have not agreed, and the market value of the Notes may be adversely affected. In both cases,
Noteholders could lose a significant part of their investment in the Notes.

By exception to the above provisions, Condition 14 provides that the provisions of Article L.228-65 I.
1°, 3° and 4° of the French Code de commerce (respectively providing for a prior approval of the
General Meeting of the Noteholders on (i) any change in corporate purpose or form of the Issuer, (ii)
any proposal to merge or demerge the Issuer in the cases referred to in Articles L.236-13 and L.236-
18 of the French Code de commerce and (iii) any issue of bonds by the Issuer benefiting from a security
interest (sOreté réelle) which does not benefit to the Masse) and the related provisions of the French
Code de commerce shall not apply to the Notes. As a result of these exclusions, prior approval of the
Noteholders will not have to be obtained on any such matters which may affect their interests
generally.

Interest rate risks

As provided in Condition 7, the Notes bearing interest at a fixed rate, investment in the Notes involves
the risk that subsequent changes in market interest rates may adversely affect the market value of the
Notes. While the nominal interest rate of a fixed interest rate note is determined during the term of
such note or within a given period of time, the market interest rate (the "Market Interest Rate™)
typically varies on a daily basis. As the Market Interest Rate changes, the price of the note varies in
the opposite direction. If the Market Interest Rate increases, the price of the note typically decreases,
until the yield of the note equals approximately the Market Interest Rate. If the Market Interest Rate
decreases, the price of a fixed rate note typically increases, until the yield of the note equals
approximately the Market Interest Rate.

Therefore, movements of the Market Interest Rate can adversely affect the purchase price of the Notes
and can lead to losses for Noteholders if they sell Notes during the period in which the Market Interest
Rate exceeds the fixed rate of the Notes.

Sustainable Performance Targets

Although the Notes will be issued as sustainability-linked notes with the interest rate relating to the
Notes being subject to an upward adjustment in the event the Issuer fails to comply with all of the
Sustainable Performance Targets, as more fully described in Condition 7.2, the Notes may not satisfy
an investor's requirements or any future legal, quasi legal or other standards for investment in assets
with sustainability characteristics. In particular, the Notes are not being marketed as “green bonds",
"social bonds™ or "sustainability bonds™ as the net proceeds of the issue of the Notes will be used for
(i) general corporate purposes, including for the financing of possible external growth operations, and
(ii) refinancing part of the existing financial indebtedness of the Group, including the €70,000,000
4.375 per cent. notes issued by the Issuer on 31 July 2014. The Issuer does not undertake to (i) allocate
the net proceeds specifically to projects or business activities meeting sustainability criteria or (ii) be
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subject to any other limitations or requirements that may be associated with green bonds, social bonds
or sustainability bonds in any particular market. In this context, there may be adverse environmental,
social and/or other impacts resulting from the use of the net proceeds from the offering of the Notes.

In addition, any interest rate adjustment in respect of the Notes as contemplated by Condition 7.2 will
depend on the Issuer complying, or not complying, with the Sustainable Performance Targets, which
may be inconsistent with or insufficient to satisfy investor requirements or expectations. The Issuer's
Sustainable Performance Targets are aimed at (i) reducing the Issuer's Accident Frequency Rate
against the 2020 baseline, (ii) reducing the Issuer's carbon emissions against the 2019 baseline and
(iii) increasing the number of women hired by the Issuer among building site managers and are based
solely on certain estimates and assumptions made by the Issuer. The Issuer's Sustainable Performance
Targets are therefore uniquely tailored to the Issuer's business, operations and capabilities, and they
do not easily lend themselves to benchmarking against similar sustainable performance targets, and
the related performance, of other issuers.

Adverse environmental or social impacts may occur during the design, construction and operation of
any investments the Issuer makes in furtherance of these targets or such investments may become
controversial or criticised by activist groups or other stakeholders. Lastly, no Event of Default shall
occur under the Notes, nor will the Issuer be required to repurchase or redeem such Notes, if the Issuer
fails to comply with its Sustainable Performance Targets. If the Sustainable Performance Targets are
not complied with, this may have an adverse effect on the market value and/or the liquidity of the
Notes.

Complying with the Sustainable Performance Targets will require the Issuer to expend significant
resources, while (i) meeting any such targets would result in decreased interest payments and (ii) not
meeting any such targets would result in increased interest payments and could expose the Issuer to
reputational risks

As described in Condition 8.4, complying with the Sustainable Performance Targets will require the
Issuer to (i) reduce its Accident Frequency Rate against the 2020 baseline by six per cent. (6%) each
year, (ii) reduce its carbon emissions against the 2019 baseline by four per cent. (4%) each year and
(iii) raise the number of women hired by the Issuer to at least (x) three hundred and eighty (380) by
31 December 2027, under the 2028 Notes, and (y) four hundred and thirty (430) by 31 December 2028,
under the 2029 Notes. As a result, compliance with the Sustainable Performance Targets will require
the Issuer to expend significant resources.

If the Issuer complied with all of the Sustainable Performance Targets, the Notes would bear interest
at the Initial Interest Rate minus 20 basis points. If the Issuer failed to comply with one (1) of the
Sustainable Performance Targets, the Notes would bear interest at the Initial Interest Rate minus 10
basis points. If the Issuer failed to comply with two (2) of the Sustainable Performance Targets, the
Notes would bear interest at the Initial Interest Rate. In the above-mentioned cases (even if the Issuer
fails to comply with one (1) or two (2) of the Sustainable Performance Targets), the Noteholders may
receive less interest than what they expect, which could, in each case, have an adverse effect on the
market value of the Notes.

If the Issuer failed to comply with all of its Sustainable Performance Targets, if the Statutory Auditors
were not in a position to provide their External Verification Report or if the Issuer was not in a position
to provide the Sustainable Performance Report or to include the valuation made by it of the KPIs
against the Sustainable Performance Targets in its annual report or CSR (corporate and responsability)
report (rapport RSE (responsabilité sociale d'entreprise)), the Notes would bear interest at the Initial
Interest Rate plus 10 basis points. In such cases, that would not only result in increased interest
payments under the Notes, but could also harm the Issuer's reputation, the consequences of which
could, in each case, have an adverse effect on the market value of the Notes.

Furthermore, the non-calculation or the non-delivery of the External Verification Report or
Sustainable Performance Report, with respect to one (1) of the Sustainable Performance Targets,
would only cause such Sustainable Performance Target to be unmet, which, in the event where both
other Sustainable Performance Targets were met, would still cause the Initial Interest Rate to be
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2.3

diminished by 10 basis points. In such cases, the Noteholders may receive less interest than what they
expect, which could have an adverse effect on the market value of the Notes.

Change in standards and guidelines and recalculation

(A) Carbon emissions are calculated in accordance with the GHG Protocol, the EU Environmental
Obijective 1 — Climate Change Mitigation and United Nations Sustainable Development Goals n°13,
and a well-below 2°C scenario, (B) the Accident Frequency Rate is calculated in accordance with the
United Nations Sustainable Development Goals n°3 and (C) the number of women hired among
building site managers is calculated in accordance with the United Nations Sustainable Development
Goals n°5.

The standards and guidelines mentioned above may change over time and investors should be aware
that the way in which the Issuer calculates KPI 1, KPI 2 and/or KPI 3 may also change over time. In
particular, such change (notably in the calculation methods) could lead to an increase or decrease of
the performance level of the KPIs while still being able to comply with the Sustainable Performance
Targets and avoid an upward adjustment of the interest rate of the Notes. As a consequence, this may
not be in line with investors' expectations.

In addition, in the event of any change (i) to the calculation methodology of any of the KPIs or (ii) in
data due to better data accessibility and/or (iii) as a result of any Significant Change in the Group's
Perimeter, which, individually or in aggregate, has a significant impact on the levels of any of the
Sustainable Performance Targets and/or the level of any of the KPI baselines, the Sustainable
Performance Targets and/or the KPI baselines may be recalculated in good faith by the Issuer (and, in
respect of any event referred to in (iii) above, on the basis of proforma financial statements taking into
account the impact of such event) to reflect such change. Any such recalculation may be made without
the prior consultation of the Noteholders to the extent it does not have any adverse effect on the
interests of the Noteholders, as further specified in Condition 8.4.

However, such changes may have a negative effect on the market value of the Notes.
Risks related to the market of the Notes
Market value and trading market of the Notes

Application has been made to Euronext Paris for the Notes to be admitted to trading on Euronext Paris
as from the Issue Date. The market value of the Notes depends on a number of interrelated factors,
including the creditworthiness of the Issuer, economic, financial and political events in France or
elsewhere, including factors affecting capital markets generally and the stock exchanges on which the
Notes are admitted to trading.

The price at which a Noteholder will be able to sell such Notes prior to maturity may be at a discount,
which could be substantial, from the issue price or the purchase price paid by such purchaser.
Accordingly, all or part of the capital invested by the Noteholder may be lost upon any disposal of the
Notes, so that the Noteholder in such case would receive significantly less than the total amount of
capital invested.

Events in France, Europe or elsewhere may also cause market volatility and such volatility may
adversely affect the price of the Notes and such economic and market conditions may have other
adverse effect. For example, any negative change in the creditworthiness of the Issuer could negatively
affect the trading price for the Notes and hence Noteholders may lose part of their investment.

No active secondary market for the Notes

Application has been made to Euronext Paris for the Notes to be admitted to trading on Euronext Paris
as from the Issue Date. Although this Prospectus has been approved by the Autorité des marchés
financiers in France and application has been made for the Notes to be admitted to trading on Euronext
Paris, such admission to trading may not occur. The Notes may have no established trading market
when issued, and one may never develop. If a market does develop, it may not be very liquid. The
absence of liquidity may have a significant material adverse effect on the market value of the Notes.
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In addition, investors may not be able to sell their Notes in the secondary market in which case the
market or trading price and liquidity may be adversely affected or at prices that will provide them with
a yield comparable to similar investments that have a developed secondary market. The degree of
liquidity of the Notes may negatively impact the price at which an investor can dispose of the Notes
where the investor is seeking to achieve a sale within a short timeframe. In such circumstances, the
impact of this risk on the Noteholder would be high because the Notes would likely have to be resold
at a discount to the nominal value of the Notes. Furthermore, if additional and competing products are
introduced in the markets, this may adversely affect the market value of the Notes in a significant
manner.

Exchange rate risks and exchange controls

The Issuer will pay principal and interest on the Notes in Euro. This presents certain risks relating to
currency conversions if an investor's financial activities are denominated principally in a currency or
currency unit (the "Investor's Currency") other than Euro. These include the risk that exchange rates
may significantly change (including changes due to devaluation of Euro or revaluation of the Investor's
Currency) and the risk that authorities with jurisdiction over the Investor's Currency may impose or
modify exchange controls. An appreciation in the value of the Investor's Currency relative to the Euro
would decrease (i) the Investor's Currency-equivalent yield on the Notes, (ii) the Investor's
Currency-equivalent value of the principal payable on the Notes and (iii) the Investor's Currency-
equivalent market value of the Notes, all of which could have an adverse effect on the return on the
investment of the Noteholders.

Government and monetary authorities may impose (as some have done in the past) exchange controls
that could adversely affect an applicable exchange rate. As a result, Noteholders whose financial
activities are carried out or dependent principally in a currency other than Euro may receive less
interest or principal than expected, or no interest or principal.
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TERMS AND CONDITIONS OF THE 2028 NOTES

The Terms and Conditions of the 2028 Notes (the 2028 Conditions™) will be as follows:

The issue of the €35,000,000 3.200 per cent. Sustainability-Linked Notes due 8 December 2028 (the "Maturity
Date™) (the "2028 Notes™) by NGE (the "lIssuer™) was decided by the President (Président) of the Issuer on
24 November 2021, upon prior unanimous decision of the shareholders of the Issuer dated 8 November 2021.

The Issuer (i) will enter into a fiscal agency agreement to be dated 6 December 2021 (the "Fiscal Agency
Agreement") with Banque Internationale a Luxembourg, société anonyme as fiscal agent and paying agent
(the "Fiscal Agent" and the "Paying Agent" which expressions shall, where the context so admits, include
any successor for the time being as fiscal agent or paying agent, as the case may be) and (ii) has entered into a
calculation agency agreement dated 2 November 2021 (the "Calculation Agency Agreement") with Aether
Financial Services as calculation agent (the "Calculation Agent" which expression shall, where the context
so admits, include any successor for the time being as calculation agent).

Copies of the Fiscal Agency Agreement, the Calculation Agency Agreement, the Pledge Agreement (as
defined below), the Intercreditor Agreement (as defined below) and the Subordination Agreement (as defined
below) and these 2028 Conditions are obtainable in electronic form free of charge from the Fiscal Agent or the
Calculation Agent, as the case may be, upon request of the 2028 Noteholders and available free of charge for
inspection and copy by the 2028 Noteholders during normal business hours at the specified offices of the Fiscal
Agent, the Calculation Agent and the Issuer. Certain statements in these 2028 Conditions are summaries of,
and are subject to, the detailed provisions of the Fiscal Agency Agreement, the Calculation Agency Agreement,
the Pledge Agreement, the Intercreditor Agreement and/or the Subordination Agreement.

References below to (i) the "2028 Noteholders" are to the person whose name appears in the account of the
relevant Account Holder (as defined below) as being entitled to such 2028 Notes and (ii) the "Conditions" are
to the numbered paragraphs below.

1. FORM, DENOMINATION AND TITLE

The 2028 Notes will be issued on 8 December 2021 (the "Issue Date") in dematerialised bearer form
(dématerialisés au porteur) in the denomination of €100,000 each. Title to the 2028 Notes will be
evidenced in accordance with Articles L.211-3 et seq. and R.211-1 et seq. of the French Code monétaire
et financier by book entries (inscription en compte). No physical document of title (including certificats
représentatifs pursuant to Article R.211-7 of the French Code monétaire et financier) will be issued in
respect of the 2028 Notes.

The 2028 Notes will, upon issue, be inscribed in book entry form in the books of Euroclear France
("Euroclear France"), which shall credit the accounts of the Account Holders. For the purpose of these
2028 Conditions, "Account Holders" shall mean any intermediary institution entitled to hold, directly
or indirectly, accounts on behalf of its customers with Euroclear France, and includes Euroclear Bank
SA/NV ("Euroclear™) and the depositary bank for Clearstream Banking, S.A. ("Clearstream”).

Title to the 2028 Notes shall be evidenced by entries in the books of Account Holders and will pass
upon, and transfer of 2028 Notes may only be effected through, registration of the transfer in such books,
and only in the denomination of €100,000.

2. STATUS

The obligations of the Issuer under the 2028 Notes in respect of principal, interest and other amounts
constitute direct, general, unconditional, unsubordinated and secured (subject to, and, in accordance
with Conditions 4 and 5) obligations of the Issuer and rank, and will at all times rank, pari passu without
any preference among themselves and (subject to such exceptions as are from time to time mandatory
under French law) at least equally and rateably with all other present or future unsubordinated and
unsecured payment obligations of the Issuer.
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NEGATIVE PLEDGE

So long as any of the 2028 Notes remains outstanding (as defined below), the Issuer undertakes that it
will not, and will procure that none of its Subsidiaries will, grant or permit to subsist any Security Interest
other than Permitted Security Interest upon the whole or any part of the Issuer's or any of its Subsidiaries'
business (fonds de commerce), assets, rights or revenues, present or future, to secure any Financial
Indebtedness incurred or guaranteed by the Issuer or any of its Subsidiaries, unless, at the same time or
prior thereto, the Issuer's obligations under the 2028 Notes are equally and rateably secured therewith.

For the purposes of these 2028 Conditions:
"Financial Indebtedness" means any indebtedness for or in respect of:
(@  moneys borrowed and debit balances at banks or other financial institutions;

(b) any note purchase facility or the issue of bonds, notes, debentures, loan stock or any similar
instrument or of bills of exchange, promissory notes, bons de caisse or any similar instrument;

(c) any amount raised by acceptance under any acceptance credit or bill discounting facility,
receivables sold or discounted (other than any receivables to the extent they are sold on a non-
recourse basis and meet any requirements for de-recognition under the accounting principles
applicable to the consolidated financial statements of the Issuer);

(d) the amount of any liability in respect of any lease (including any crédit-bail or lease-back) or hire
purchase contract which would, in accordance with the accounting principles applicable to the
Issuer, be treated as a finance lease;

(e) anyamount raised under any other transaction (including any forward sale or purchase agreement)
having the commercial effect of a borrowing in accordance with the accounting principles
applicable to the Issuer;

() any derivative transaction entered into in connection with protection against or benefit from
fluctuation in any rate or price (and, when calculating the value of any derivative transaction, only
the marked to market value or, if any actual amount is due as a result of the termination or close-
out of that transaction, that amount, shall be taken into account);

() any counter-indemnity obligation in respect of a guarantee, indemnity, bond, standby or
documentary letter of credit or any other instrument issued by a bank or financial institution; and

()  the amount of any personal liability for any of the items referred to in paragraphs (a) to (g) above.

"outstanding" means all the 2028 Notes issued other than (i) those which have been redeemed on their
due date or otherwise in accordance with the 2028 Conditions, (ii) those in respect of which claims have
been prescribed under Condition 13 below and (iii) those which have been purchased and cancelled in
accordance with the 2028 Conditions.

"Permitted Security Interest™ means in respect of the Issuer and any of its Subsidiaries:

(@) the Shares Pledges and any other Security Interest granted to the Lenders (as defined below) in
accordance with the Facilities Agreement;

(b) any Security Interest existing on the Issue Date;

(c) any Security Interest granted in the ordinary course of business by a Subsidiary of the Issuer and
securing an asset required for the operations of the relevant Subsidiary, provided that such
Security Interest relates only to the asset acquired by the relevant Subsidiary and is created in
order to secure the financing of the acquisition of such asset;

(d) any Security Interest in relation to a trade receivables securitisation programme;
(e) any Security Interest arising by operation of law;

(f)  any Security Interest or lien arising in respect of taxes or imposed by law or state authorities,
which are being contested in good faith by the relevant member(s) of the Group;
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(9) any Security Interest granted by the members of the Group in the ordinary course of business, in
the form of retention of title, right of retention or other security interest having similar effect in
respect of goods and commodities and granted to suppliers as security of payment of their price,
provided that such Security Interest is not granted as a result of a default by the relevant member
of the Group in the due performance of their respective contractual obligations;

(n) any Security Interest granted in the form of a cash collateral in connection with a lease agreement,
to the extent such lease agreement is entered into by the relevant member of the Group on arm's
length basis (or more favourable terms to the Group);

(i)  any Security Interest (other than any Security Interest over financial securities and capital rights,
intellectual property rights, goodwill or real estate assets) over or affecting any asset of a company
which becomes a Subsidiary of the Issuer after the Issue Date in relation to a Permitted
Acquisition (as defined below in Condition 8.2), provided that (X) such Security Interest was
existing at the time such company became a Subsidiary of the Issuer and was not granted by a
member of the Group to secure the financing or refinancing of the acquisition of the shares of
such company, (y) the amount secured by such Security Interest does not exceed the acquisition
price of such asset and has not been increased for the purpose of, or since, the acquisition of the
shares of the relevant company and (z) if such Security Interest is not a Permitted Security Interest
under any other paragraph of this definition, a release of such Security Interest is granted within
6 months following the acquisition of the shares of the relevant company;

(1)  any escrow (or equivalent arrangement) granted in connection with a disposal of assets to secure
the rights of the purchaser of such assets under a guarantee or indemnity undertaking, provided
that (x) the escrowed amount under such escrow does not exceed one hundred per cent. (100%)
of the disposal price of such assets and (y) such escrow does not exceed three (3) years or, for any
amount escrowed to secure a tax risk, the duration of the relevant tax statute of limitation;

(k) any escrow (or equivalent arrangement) granted in connection with a Permitted Acquisition
(including in respect of any earn-out and put option); and

()  any Security Interest, other than those permitted under paragraphs (a) to (k) above, securing
Financial Indebtedness and granted over assets which aggregate book value does not exceed at
any time five per cent. (5%) of the Group's consolidated gross assets (actif brut consolidé) as
referred to in the most recent audited annual consolidated financial statements of the Issuer.

"Security Interest" means any mortgage, lien, charge, pledge, privilege, delegation or other form of
security interest (sGreté réelle) including any other encumbrance, or transfer of ownership for security
purposes, over one or more present or future assets.

"Shares Pledges" has the meaning given to it in Condition 4.

"Subsidiary™ means, in relation to any entity at any time, any other person or entity controlled directly
or indirectly by such person or entity within the meaning of Articles L.233-1 and L.233-3 of the French
Code de commerce.

SHARES PLEDGES

Pursuant to a share pledge agreement (contrat de nantissement de comptes de titres financiers) in the
French language to be entered into between the Issuer, the Lenders, the Facility Agent, the
Representative (acting on behalf of the Masse (as defined below) as beneficiary), the representative of
the masse of the holders of 2029 Notes (acting on behalf of the masse of the holders of 2029 Notes (as
defined below) as beneficiary) and the Security Agent on the Issue Date (the "Pledge Agreement"), the
Issuer grants a first ranking pledge over the financial securities accounts (nantissement de comptes-titres
de premier rang) opened in the name of the Issuer in the books of EHTP, Cardinal Edifice, NGE
Fondations, Guintoli, NGE Génie Civil, NGE Infranet and TSO, for the benefit of the Lenders, the
Facility Agent, the Hedging Banks, the Masse and the masse of the holders of 2029 Notes in accordance
with article L.228-77 of the French Code de commerce (the "Shares Pledges™), as more fully described
in the Pledge Agreement.
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Pursuant to the Pledge Agreement and the Intercreditor Agreement (as defined below), the Security
Agent is appointed as agent of the Masse in order to create, manage and enforce the Shares Pledges for
and on behalf of the Masse, it being specified that articles 2488-6 to 2488-12 of the French Code civil
will not apply to the Security Agent.

Subject to the terms of the Intercreditor Agreement (as defined below), the Shares Pledges may only be
enforced in the event of default by the Issuer to pay any amount due under the 2028 Notes.

By acquiring and holding the 2028 Notes, the 2028 Noteholders will be deemed to (i) appoint the
Security Agent in accordance with the Pledge Agreement, (ii) have notice of the provisions of the Pledge
Agreement and (iii) authorise Crédit Lyonnais to execute the Pledge Agreement as Security Agent.

For the purposes of these 2028 Conditions:

"2029 Notes" means the €115,000,000 3.400 per cent. notes due 8 December 2029 issued by the Issuer
on 8 December 2021.

"Cardinal Edifice" means the société par actions simplifiée registered with the Registre du commerce
et des sociétés of Rennes under number 950 033 555.

"EHTP" means the société par actions simplifiée registered with the Registre du commerce et des
sociétés of Tarascon under number 439 987 405.

"Facilities Agreement" means the facilities agreement (contrat de crédits) dated 8 December 2021
entered into between inter alia the Issuer as borrower, Crédit Lyonnais as Facility Agent and the
Lenders.

"Facility Agent" means, as at 8 December 2021, Crédit Lyonnais acting as agent for the Lenders in
accordance with the provisions of the Facilities Agreement.

"Guintoli" means the société par actions simplifiée registered with the Registre du commerce et des
sociétés of Tarascon under number 447 754 086.

"Hedging Banks" means the hedging banks parties to the hedging agreements to be entered into by the
Issuer pursuant to the Facilities Agreement.

"Lenders" means the financial institutions parties to the Facilities Agreement as lenders.

"NGE Fondations" means the société par actions simplifiée registered with the Registre du commerce
et des sociétés of Lyon under number 348 099 987.

"NGE Génie Civil" means the société par actions simplifiée registered with the Registre du commerce
et des sociétés of Tarascon under number 487 469 330.

"NGE Infranet" means the société par actions simplifiée registered with the Registre du commerce et
des sociétés of Tarascon under number 501 241 624.

"Security Agent" means, as at 8 December 2021, Crédit Lyonnais, acting as agent for the beneficiaries
of the Shares Pledges in accordance with the provisions of the Intercreditor Agreement (as defined in
Condition 5).

"TSO™" means the société par actions simplifiée registered with the Registre du commerce et des sociétés
of Meaux under number 747 252 120.

INTERCREDITOR AGREEMENT

Pursuant to an intercreditor agreement (convention intercréanciers) in the French language to be entered
into between the Security Agent, the Facility Agent, the Lenders, the Representative (acting on behalf
of the Masse, as beneficiary of the Shares Pledges) and the representative of the masse of the holders of
2029 Notes (acting on behalf of the masse of the holders of 2029 Notes, as beneficiary of the Shares
Pledges) on the Issue Date (the "Intercreditor Agreement") a pro-rata distribution of the proceeds on
a pari passu basis will be made between the beneficiaries of the Shares Pledges in case of enforcement
of the Shares Pledges.
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Pursuant to the Intercreditor Agreement and as more fully described therein, in the event of (i) the
Facility Agent (acting on behalf of the Lenders and the Hedging Banks), (ii) the Representative (acting
on behalf of the Masse (the decision of the Masse to enforce or not to enforce the Shares Pledges binding
all 2028 Noteholders, including those who did not attend and vote at the relevant General Meeting or
those who voted in a manner contrary to the majority)) or (iii) the representative of the masse of the
holders of 2029 Notes (acting on behalf of the masse of the holders of 2029 Notes (the decision of the
masse of the holders of 2029 Notes to enforce or not to enforce the Shares Pledges binding all holders
of 2029 Notes, including those who did not attend and vote at the relevant General Meeting or those
who voted in a manner contrary to the majority)) request the enforcement of the Shares Pledges, such
enforcement will have to be made by the Security Agent provided that the beneficiaries of the Shares
Pledges requesting such enforcement represents a majority of fifty-one per cent. (51%) of all said
beneficiaries.

In the event the beneficiaries of the Shares Pledges requesting such enforcement represents less than
fifty-one per cent. (51%) of all beneficiaries, the Security Agent will consult the other beneficiaries to
determine whether they wish to accept or refuse the enforcement.

The aforesaid majority of beneficiaries is calculated based on the outstanding amount due by the Issuer
to the Facility Agent and the Lenders under the Facilities Agreement, to the 2028 Noteholders under the
2028 Notes and to the holders of 2029 Notes under the 2029 Notes (the outstanding amount of the
Hedging Banks being excluded).

By acquiring and holding the 2028 Notes, the 2028 Noteholders will be deemed to (i) appoint the
Security Agent in accordance with the Intercreditor Agreement, (ii) have notice of the provisions of the
Intercreditor Agreement and (iii) authorise Crédit Lyonnais to execute the Intercreditor Agreement as
Security Agent.

SUBORDINATION AGREEMENT

A subordination agreement (convention de subordination) in the French language will be entered into
on the Issue Date between inter alia the Issuer, the Lenders, the Representative (acting on behalf of the
Masse), the representative of the masse of the holders of 2029 Notes (acting on behalf of the masse of
the holders of 2029 Notes), the holder of the Simple Bonds and the representative of the masse of the
holders of the Bonds Redeemable in Shares (the "Subordination Agreement"), for the purpose of
defining the terms and conditions under which the payment of amounts due by the Issuer under the
Simple Bonds, the Bonds Redeemable in Shares and any Other Subordinated Debt will be subordinated
to the payment of any amount due under the 2028 Notes, the 2029 Notes and the Facilities Agreement.

Notably and as more fully described therein, the Subordination Agreement provides for (i) the early
redemption or purchase of the Simple Bonds and of the Bonds Redeemable in Shares with the proceeds
received from any Concession Transfer (as defined in Condition 9.4(a)) and (ii) in the event the Simple
Bonds are not redeemed or purchased up to €21,376,955 on 8 December 2022 and up to €15,000,000
on 8 December 2023 with the proceeds received from any Concession Transfer, the redemption or
purchase by the Issuer of the Simple Bonds by CME up to the required amount by way of a share capital
increase subscribed by the shareholders of the Issuer (the "Simple Bonds Put Option™).

By acquiring and holding the 2028 Notes, the 2028 Noteholders will be deemed to have notice of the
provisions of the Subordination Agreement.

"Bonds Redeemable in Shares" means the bonds redeemable in shares (obligations remboursables en
actions) to be issued by the Issuer on 8 December 2021 up to an aggregate nominal amount of
€43,092,421.65 due on 8 December 2031, bearing full capitalised interest at an annual rate of (i) 2% per
annum up to and including 8 December 2022 and (ii) 6% per annum from 9 December 2022, with a
maturity of ten (10) years and to be fully subscribed by FSA, FSB and NGE Management by way of
set-off against the portion of the shareholder's loan held by FSA, FSB and NGE Management.

"CME" means Crédit Mutuel Equity SCR, a société par actions simplifiée registered with the Registre
du commerce et des sociétés of Paris under number 317 586 220.
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7.2
(@)

"FSA" means Financiere Saint Anne, société par actions simplifiée registered with the Registre du
commerce et des sociétés of Paris under number 503 859 241.

"FSB" means Financiére Saint Bénezet, the société par actions simplifiée registered with the Registre
du commerce et des sociétés of Paris under number 529 992 505.

"NGE Management" means the société en commandite par actions registered with the Registre du
commerce et des sociétés of Avignon under number 504 409 657.

"Simple Bonds" means the ordinary subordinated bonds (obligations simples subordonnées) to be
issued by the Issuer on 8 December 2021 up to an aggregate nominal amount of €36,376,955 bearing
full capitalised interest with a maturity of two (2) years (redeemable or callable up to a maximum of
€21,376,955 on 8 December 2022 and up to a maximum of €15,000,000 on 8 December 2023) and to
be fully subscribed by CME by way of set-off against the portion of the shareholder loan held by CME.

"Other Subordinated Debt" means any issue by the Issuer after the Issue Date of debt securities
(including any issue of simple bonds or bonds giving access to capital) or any shareholder loans and/or
advances in shareholder's current account granted to the Issuer after the Issue Date, provided that such
debt securities, shareholder loans and advances in shareholder's current account (x) are fully
subordinated (in principal, interest or any amount related thereto) to the Facilities Agreement, the 2029
Notes and the 2028 Notes under the terms and conditions of the Subordination Agreement, (y) have a
maturity date falling twelve (12) months after the later of (i) the final maturity date of the Facilities
Agreement, (ii) the final maturity date of the 2029 Notes and (iii) the Maturity Date and (z) are
unsecured.

RATE OF INTEREST
Interest Payment Dates

The 2028 Notes will bear interest from, and including, the Issue Date to, but excluding,
8 December 2028 (the "Maturity Date") at a fixed rate of 3.200 per cent. per annum (the "Initial
Interest Rate") (adjusted, as the case may be, pursuant to Condition 7.2 below), payable annually in
arrear on 8 December in each year up to and including the Maturity Date (each an "Interest Payment
Date"). The first Interest Payment Date will be on 8 December 2022 for the period from, and including,
the Issue Date up to, but excluding, 8 December 2022.

Adjustment and Sustainable Compensation Amount
Interest rate adjustment

The Initial Interest Rate applicable to the 2028 Notes will be adjusted as follows in respect of the first
Interest Payment Date following each Valuation Date (as defined in Condition 8.4 below), based on the
information contained in the most recent Sustainable Performance Report (as defined in Condition 8.4
below) delivered by the Issuer as provided in Condition 8.3(c)(ii) below:

(i)  ifthe Issuer has complied with all of the Sustainable Performance Targets (as defined in Condition
8.4 below), then the 2028 Notes will bear interest at the Initial Interest Rate minus 20 basis points;

(if)  if the Issuer has complied with two (2) of the Sustainable Performance Targets, then the 2028
Notes will bear interest at the Initial Interest Rate minus 10 basis points;

(iii)  if the Issuer has complied with one (1) of the Sustainable Performance Targets, then the 2028
Notes will bear interest at the Initial Interest Rate; and

(iv) if the Issuer has not complied with any of the Sustainable Performance Targets, then the 2028
Notes will bear interest at the Initial Interest Rate plus 10 basis points.

For the avoidance of doubt, in case of the occurrence of any of the events referred to in subparagraphs
(1), (ii) or (iv) above, the adjustment of the Initial Interest Rate will be applicable to the 2028 Notes from
the first day of the Interest Period in which such event has occurred and for each successive Interest
Period until the next Interest Payment Date where an adjustment pursuant to this Condition 7.2 will
occur. The Calculation Agent shall notify to the Issuer the adjusted interest rate and the resulting amount
of interest due for the relevant Interest Period no later than seven (7) Business Days prior to the Interest
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(b)

Payment Date, it being specified that no adjustment shall be made pursuant to this Condition 7.2(a) for
compliance with the Sustainable Performance Targets prior to the Interest Payment Date falling on
8 December 2023.

If for any reason (x) the performance level against the Sustainable Performance Target 1 and/or the
Sustainable Performance Target 2 and/or the Sustainable Performance Target 3 cannot be calculated, (y)
the Statutory Auditors are not in a position to provide their External Verification Report or (z) the Issuer
is not in a position to provide the Sustainable Performance Report or to include the information required
under Condition 8.4(iv) in its annual report or CSR (corporate and responsability) report (rapport RSE
(responsabilité sociale d'entreprise)):

- in respect of (x) above, the Initial Interest Rate applicable to the 2028 Notes will be adjusted (if
applicable) in accordance with the provisions of sub-paragraphs (ii) to (iv) above of this Condition
7.2(a), as if the Issuer had not complied with one (1), two (2) or three (3) (as applicable) of the
Sustainable Performance Targets;

- in respect of (y) and (z) above, the Initial Interest Rate applicable to the 2028 Notes will be
adjusted (if applicable) in accordance with the provisions of sub-paragraph (iv) above of this
Condition 7.2(a), as if the Issuer had not complied with any of the three (3) Sustainable
Performance Targets; and

- if applicable, the Issuer will pay a Sustainable Compensation Amount as defined and provided
under Condition 7.2(b) below, as if the Issuer had not complied with any of the three (3)
Sustainable Performance Targets.

No adjustment under subparagraphs (i) or (ii) above shall take place as long as an Event of Default has
occurred and is continuing.

For the purposes of these 2028 Conditions:

"Interest Period" means the period from (and including) the Issue Date to (but excluding) the first
Interest Payment Date and each successive period from (and including) an Interest Payment Date to (but
excluding) the next succeeding Interest Payment Date.

Sustainable Compensation Amount

A Sustainable Compensation Amount (as defined below) shall be paid by the Issuer to one or several
Eligible Foundations (as defined below) on the Interest Payment Date immediately succeeding the
determination of such Sustainable Compensation Amount (the "Sustainable Compensation Measure")
if, based on the information contained in the most recent Sustainable Performance Report (as defined in
Condition 8.4 below) delivered by the Issuer as provided in Condition 8.3(c)(ii) below, the Issuer has
not complied with any of the Sustainable Performance Targets.

Where relevant, the 2028 Noteholders will be notified, in accordance with Condition 15, of the
Sustainable Compensation Measure to be implemented or which have been implemented by the Issuer
upon communication of the Sustainable Performance Report.

For the avoidance of doubt, (i) such Sustainable Compensation Amount shall be paid in addition to any
interest rate adjustment in accordance with Condition 7.2(a) above but shall not be added to the amount
of interest payable annually under the 2028 Notes, (ii) no determination of such Sustainable
Compensation Amount shall be made pursuant to this Condition 7.2(b) prior to the Valuation Date
falling on 31 December 2022 and (iii) no payment of such Sustainable Compensation Amount shall be
made pursuant to this Condition 7.2(b) prior to the Interest Payment Date falling on 8 December 2023.

For the purposes of these 2028 Conditions:

"Eligible Foundation" means LADAPT (https://www.ladapt.net/soutenir) and/or Prévention Routiére
(https://www.preventionroutiere.asso.fr/) and/or Biocenys (https://www.biocenys.fr/) and/or CAPTE
(https://www.capte.io/projets/) and/or ONF (https://www.onf.fr/onf), and/or Association des Femmes
Ingénieurs (https:/ivww.femmes-ingenieures.org/) and/or OPE
(https://www.objectifpouremploi.fr/orientation/mixite/) and/or any other similar foundation, non-
governmental organisation or association, (i) enjoying local credibility, (ii) whose field of activity falls
in whole or in part within the environmental, social, and governance themes to which the Issuer's KPIs
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pertain, (iii) which, to the best of the Issuer's knowledge, are not subject to sanctions and are not engaged
in an activity or have not committed an act violating any law or regulation seeking the prevention or the
sanctioning of corruption, money laundering and/or terrorist financing and (iv) in respect of which there
is nor will be no conflict of interest with the Group or the Issuer.

"Sustainable Compensation Amount" means an amount equal to 0.10% per annum of the outstanding
principal amount of the 2028 Notes.

Interest payments

Each Note will cease to bear interest from the due date for redemption, unless the Issuer defaults in
payment for its redemption on said date. In such event, interest on such Note shall continue to accrue at
the Initial Interest Rate (adjusted, as the case may be, pursuant to Condition 7.2 above) (both before and
after judgment) until the calendar day (included) on which all sums due in respect of such Note up to
that calendar day are received by or on behalf of the relevant Noteholder.

Interest will be calculated on an Actual/Actual (ICMA) basis. Where interest is to be calculated in
respect of a period of less than one year, it shall be calculated on the basis of the number of days elapsed
in the relevant period, from and including the date from which interest begins to accrue to but excluding
the date on which it falls due, divided by the number of days in such period in which the relevant period
falls (including the first but excluding the last day of such period) i.e. divided by 365 (or by 366 if a
February 29 is included in such period). Where interest is to be calculated in respect of a period which
is more than one year, such interest shall be the aggregate of the interest payable in respect of a full year
plus the interest payable in respect of the remaining period calculated in the manner as aforesaid.

COVENANTS

So long as any of the 2028 Notes is outstanding, the Issuer shall comply with the covenants referred to
in this Condition 8.

Financial Covenants
The Issuer shall procure that as at each Testing Date:
(@  the Net Leverage Ratio is less than 2.50X,

it being specified that the Net Leverage Ratio may be exceeded a maximum of two (2) times
before the Maturity Date,

it being further specified that the Net Leverage Ratio shall never be (i) higher than 3.00x nor (ii)
exceeded in respect of two (2) consecutive Testing Dates,

(b)  the Gross Leverage Ratio is less than 5.00x,

it being specified that the Gross Leverage Ratio may be exceeded a maximum of two (2) times
before the Maturity Date,

it being further specified that the Gross Leverage Ratio shall never be (i) higher than 5.50x nor
(ii) exceeded in respect of two (2) consecutive Testing Dates,

(c)  the Consolidated Net Cash is higher than (i) €60,000,000 as at the first Testing Date (i.e. being
31 December 2021), (ii) €80,000,000 as at the second Testing Date (i.e. being 31 December 2022)
and (iii) €100,000,000 as at each following Testing Date,

(together, the "Financial Covenants").

The Financial Covenants shall be calculated in accordance with the accounting principles applicable to
the annual consolidated financial statements of the Issuer taking into account IFRS (International
Financial Reporting Standards) rules (including, for the avoidance of doubt, IFRS 16 rule) applicable
as of the Issue Date and tested by reference to the relevant annual consolidated financial statements of
the Issuer.

The Gross Leverage Ratio and the Net Leverage Ratio in respect of a Relevant Period shall be adjusted
on a pro forma basis to include or restate (on a twelve month basis) the EBITDA of any company
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acquired pursuant to a Permitted Acquisition (as defined below in Condition 8.2) during that Relevant
Period (as if it had been a member of the Group since the beginning of the Relevant Period) or the
EBITDA of any member of the Group disposed during that Relevant Period (as if it had ceased to be a
member of the Group since the beginning of the Relevant Period).

For the purposes of these 2028 Conditions:

"Consolidated EBIT" means the " consolidated "current operating income (Résultat opérationnel
courant)" item (or equivalent item) referred to in the most recent audited annual consolidated financial
statements of the Issuer; provided that, with respect to the new entities which shall become part of the
Group, the relevant amounts to be taken into account shall be computed on the basis of the Relevant
Period, whatever the date of their integration.

"Consolidated EBITDA™" means the Consolidated EBIT increased by the "Amortization, depreciation
and provisions net (Dotations nettes aux amortissements et provisions" item and the "Net book value of
disposals of non-current assets (Valeur nette comptable des éléments d'actifs cédés)" item (or equivalent
items), all as referred to in the most recent audited annual consolidated financial statements of the Issuer;
provided that, with respect to the new entities which shall become part of the Group, the relevant
amounts to be taken into account shall be computed on the basis of the Relevant Period, whatever the
date of their integration.

"Consolidated Gross Debt" means (A) the sum of (i) the "Long-term borrowings and loans (Emprunts
et dettes financiéres diverses a long terme)" item, (ii) the "Current Borrowings and loans (Emprunts et
dettes financiéeres courants)" item, (iii) the "Bank overdrafts (Découverts bancaires)" item (including
any securitisation, whether deconsolidating or not), (iv) the "Non-current lease liabilities (Dettes de
location non courantes)" item and (v) the "Current lease liabilities (Dettes de location courantes)" item
(or equivalent items), all as referred to in the most recent audited annual consolidated financial
statements of the Issuer, minus (B) the Subordinated Debts.

"Consolidated Gross Cash" means the "Cash and cash equivalents (Trésorerie et équivalents de
trésorerie)" item referred to in the most recent audited annual consolidated financial statements of the
Issuer.

"Consolidated Net Cash" means the Consolidated Gross Cash minus the "Bank overdrafts (Découverts
bancaires)" item referred to in the most recent audited annual consolidated financial statements of the
Issuer (including any securitisation, whether deconsolidating or not).

"Consolidated Net Debt" means the Consolidated Gross Debt minus the Consolidated Gross Cash.

"Gross Leverage Ratio" means, in respect of any Relevant Period, the ratio of the Consolidated Gross
Debt divided by the Consolidated EBITDA.

"Net Leverage Ratio" means, in respect of any Relevant Period, the ratio of the Consolidated Net Debt
divided by the Consolidated EBITDA.

"Relevant Period" means a period of twelve (12) months ending on or about a Testing Date.

"Subordinated Debts" means the Simple Bonds, the Bonds Redeemable in Shares and, if applicable,
any Other Subordinated Debt.

"Testing Date" means 31 December in each year, the first Testing Date being 31 December 2021.
Limitation on acquisition covenant

The Issuer undertakes that it will not, and will ensure that none of its Subsidiaries will, acquire the shares
of a company or a business or an undertaking other than a Permitted Acquisition.

For the purposes of these 2028 Conditions:

"Line of Business" means any activity in the sector of building and public works, both in France and
internationally.
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"Permitted Acquisition” means the acquisition of the shares of a company or the acquisition of a
business or of an undertaking (or, in each case, any interest in any of them) that complies with the
following criteria:

(i)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

the enterprise value (valeur d'entreprise) of the acquisition does not exceed €30,000,000
individually (it being specified that completion of any such acquisition for an enterprise value
(valeur d'entreprise) in excess of €30,000,000 shall be subject to the prior approval of the Masse)
or €60,000,000 in aggregate (when aggregated with enterprise values (valeurs d'entreprise) of
any Permitted Acquisition made within a same financial year);

no Event of Default (as defined in Condition 12 below) is on-going or would result from such
acquisition;

the level of the Financial Covenants, determined on a pro forma basis taking into account the
contemplated acquisition (i) were complied with as at the last Testing Date immediately preceding
the date of completion of such acquisition, should such acquisition be completed on or before 30
June or (ii) will be complied with as at the next Testing Date immediately following the date of
completion of such acquisition, should such acquisition be completed after 30 June;

if the acquisition is over the shares of a company:

(@) the liability of the shareholders of the company (due to its corporate form) is limited to
their capital contribution;

(b) upon completion of the Permitted Acquisition, either (a) the Issuer or the relevant
Subsidiary holds the control (direct or indirect), within the meaning of Article L.233-3 | of
the French Code de commerce, of such company or (b) the Issuer or the relevant Subsidiary
holds an initial interest in such company together with a call option, allowing the Issuer or
the relevant Subsidiary to gain the control (direct or indirect), within the meaning of Article
L.233-3 | of the French Code de commerce, of the said company should the call option be
exercised; and

(c) the EBITDA of the company (if applicable, on a consolidated basis or aggregated with its
Subsidiaries) calculated over the last twelve (12) months (or, if such information is not
available, on the basis of the latest available annual accounts (if applicable, consolidated
according to the group's consolidation standards)) (the "Target EBITDA"):

(x) s positive for the last financial year immediately preceding the relevant Permitted
Acquisition; or

(y) if negative, does not exceed (1) an individual amount of -€2,000,000 (or its
equivalent in any other currency) and (2) an amount, aggregated with the sum of the
negative EBITDA (calculated over the last twelve (12) months (or, if such
information is not available, on the basis of the last available annual accounts (if
applicable consolidated according to the group's consolidation standards)) of all
Permitted Acquisitions over the shares of companies completed since the Issue Date
and whose EBITDA were negative at the date of their acquisition, of -€5,000,000 (or
its equivalent in any other currency);

the company, the business or the undertaking is engaged in activities that are within, similar or
related to the Line of Business; and

the company, the business or the undertaking is located (or registered in the case of a company)
in a country that is not a Sanctioned Country.

"Sanctioned Country" means any country or territory that is, or whose government is, subject to a
Sanctions regime prohibiting or restricting relations with that country, territory or government.

"Sanctions" means any laws, regulations or other restrictive measures of a mandatory nature enacting
economic, financial or trade sanctions (including, for the avoidance of doubt, any sanctions or measures
relating to any embargo or freeze on funds and economic resources, restrictions on dealings with persons
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or on goods or territories) issued, administered or enforced by the United States of America (including,
without limitation, measures enacted by the Office of Foreign Assets Control of the U.S. Department of
the Treasury (OFAC), the Department of Commerce and the U.S. Department of State), and/or the
United Nations (including the United Nations Security Council), and/or the European Union and/or the
Republic of France and/or the United Kingdom or any other competent authority, including other states,
having the power to impose such sanctions.

Information undertakings

The Issuer shall supply to the Fiscal Agent (copy to the Representative) who will make available to the
2028 Noteholders, in accordance with any applicable law (in particular Regulation (EU) No 596/2014
of the European Parliament and of the Council of 16 April 2014 on market abuse):

(@) assoon as they are available but in any event within one hundred and eighty (180) calendar days
after the end of each financial year of the Issuer, or as applicable, each Principal Subsidiary:

(i)  certified true copies of the audited annual consolidated financial statements of the Issuer
for such financial year;

(if)  certified true copies of the audited annual non-consolidated financial statements of the
Issuer and each Principal Subsidiary for such financial year; and

(iii)  the audit reports with respect thereto (except the Principal Subsidiaries for which a statutory
auditor or an auditor is not required by applicable regulations).

(b) assoon as they are available but in any event within one hundred and twenty (120) calendar days
after the end of the first six-month period of each financial year of the Issuer:

(i)  certified true copies of the unaudited and uncertified semi-annual consolidated financial
statements of the Issuer for such six-month period, and

(i)  certified true copies of the unaudited and uncertified semi-annual non-consolidated
financial statements of the Issuer for such six-month period.

(c) assoon as possible but in any event within one hundred and eighty (180) calendar days after the
end of each financial year of the Issuer:

(i) a compliance certificate, signed by its legal representative and by its auditors, stating
whether or not the Issuer complies with its Financial Covenants and setting out, on a
consolidated basis as of 31 December of the relevant financial year, computations of its
Financial Covenants;

(i)  the Sustainable Performance Report, together with the External Verification Report
referred to in Condition 8.4 below, and for the first time in respect of the Valuation Date
falling on 31 December 2022;

(iii) a compliance certificate, signed by its legal representative and by its auditors, stating any
and all Security Interests over or affecting the shares of any of the Issuer's Subsidiaries;

(iv) if applicable, a compliance certificate, signed by its legal representative, listing the
Principal Subsidiaries detailing their contribution to the total gross consolidated revenues
of the Issuer and the Consolidated EBITDA, each as calculated from the most recent
audited annual consolidated financial statements of the Issuer; and

(v) a compliance certificate, signed by its legal representative, stating whether or not all
acquisitions of shares of companies, businesses and undertakings made during this
financial year, met the criteria of Permitted Acquisition.

Upon receipt of any compliance certificate from the Issuer, the Fiscal Agent shall provide the 2028
Noteholders with such compliance certificate in accordance with Condition 15.
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The Fiscal Agent shall have no obligation to read or analyse any information or report delivered to it
under this Condition 8.3 and shall have no obligation to determine whether any such information or
report complies with the provision of this Condition 8.3 and shall not be deemed to have notice of
anything disclosed therein and shall incur no liability by reason thereof.

For the purposes of these 2028 Conditions:
"Principal Subsidiary" means:

(@) any other Subsidiary of the Issuer whose (i) gross revenues represent more than three per cent.
(3%) of the total gross consolidated revenues of the Group and (ii) EBITDA represents more than
five per cent. (5%) of Consolidated EBITDA, as calculated from the most recent audited annual
consolidated financial statements of the Issuer; and

(b) inthe event that the aggregate amount of gross revenues of all Subsidiaries of the Issuer referred
to in paragraph (a) above represents less than seventy per cent. (70%) of the total gross
consolidated revenues of the Group, all other Subsidiaries of the Issuer taken in descending order
of gross revenues until the aggregate amount of gross revenues of the companies referred to in
paragraphs (a) and (b) represents at least seventy per cent. (70%) of the total gross consolidated
revenues of the Group, as calculated from the most recent audited annual consolidated financial
statements of the Issuer.

A list of the Principal Subsidiaries as at the Issue Date is set out in Schedule 1 to these 2028 Conditions.
Sustainable Performance Targets
The Issuer will, in respect of each Valuation Date:

(i) evaluate in good faith the performance level of KPI 1 against the Sustainable Performance
Targets 1 as at each Valuation Date;

(i)  evaluate in good faith the performance level of KPI 2 against the Sustainable Performance
Targets 2 as at each Valuation Date;

(iii) evaluate in good faith the performance level of KPI 3 against the Sustainable Performance
Targets 3 as at each Valuation Date;

(iv) include in a dedicated section of its annual report or CSR (corporate and responsability) report
(rapport RSE (responsabilité sociale d'entreprise)), as applicable, the valuation made by the
Issuer of the KPIs against the Sustainable Performance Targets;

(v) prepare a report that will include (x) the valuation made by the Issuer of the KPIs against the
Sustainable Performance Targets, (y) the related impact (including timing of such impact) on the
2028 Notes in terms of adjustment to the Initial Interest Rate and, if applicable, payment of the
Sustainable Compensation Amount and (z) if applicable, the accurate payment of the Sustainable
Compensation Amount due with respect to the relevant previous Interest Payment Date (it being
specified that such payment shall be in addition to any donations otherwise made by the Issuer to
such Eligible Foundation and detailed for each Eligible Foundation) (the "Sustainable
Performance Report");

(vi) ensure that the Statutory Auditors prepare a verification report confirming the contents of the
Sustainable Performance Report (the "External Verification Report™); and

(vii) deliver the Sustainable Performance Report, together with the External Verification Report, in
accordance with Condition 8.3(c)(ii) to the 2028 Noteholders.

In the event of any change (i) to the calculation methodology of any of the KPIs, (ii) in data due to better
data accessibility and/or (iii) as a result of any Significant Change in the Group's Perimeter, which,
individually or in aggregate, has a significant impact on the levels of any of the Sustainable Performance
Targets and/or the level of any of the KPI baselines, the Sustainable Performance Targets and/or the
KPI baselines may be recalculated in good faith by the Issuer (and, in respect of any event referred to in
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(iii) above, on the basis of proforma financial statements taking into account the impact of such event)
to reflect such change, provided that:

(@)  such change has no adverse effect on the interests of the 2028 Noteholders; and

(b) an independent and well-recognised expert on the relevant KPI has been appointed by the Issuer
(e.g. EcoAct for Green House Gas emissions reduction) and has independently confirmed that the
proposed revision (x) is consistent with the Issuer's strategy and (y) is in line with the initial level
of ambition of the relevant Sustainable Performance Target(s),

as described in "The Group's Sustainable Performance Targets" in this Prospectus.

Any such change will be communicated as soon as reasonably practicable by the Issuer to the Fiscal
Agent (copy to the Representative) who will notify the same to the 2028 Noteholders in accordance with
Condition 15.

Any other changes will be made with the prior approval of the 2028 Noteholders.
For the purposes of these 2028 Conditions:

"Accident Frequency Rate" means the number of accidents with sick leave multiplied by one million
(1,000,000) and divided by the number of worked hours, it being specified that (i) "worked hours" means
the number of full-time equivalent staff excluding temporary staff multiplied by the number of working
hours made every year by a full-time person and (ii) "accidents with sick leave" means the accidents
resulting in a sick leave of at least twenty-four (24) hours, declared and recognised by any competent
authority.

"EcoAct" means the société par actions simplifiée registered with the Registre du commerce et des
sociétés of Paris under number 492 029 475, being an international environmental consultant.

"GHG Protocol Corporate Standard" means the document entitled "The Greenhouse Gas Protocol, A
Corporate Accounting and Reporting Standard (Revised Edition)" published by the World Business
Council for Sustainable Development and the World Resources Institute (as amended and updated as at
the Issue Date).

"Group" means at any time the Issuer and its Subsidiaries.
"KPIs" means, together, the KPI 1, the KPI 2 and the KPI 3.

"KPI 1" means the first key performance indicator relating to the reduction of the Accident Frequency
Rate on a worldwide scope, in line with the United Nations Sustainable Development Goals n°3, on
which the Sustainable Performance Targets 1 are based.

"KPI 2" means the second key performance indicator relating to the total GreenHouse Gas emissions
(i.e. absolute GreenHouse Gas emissions) in respect of Scope 1 and Scope 2, on a worldwide scope,
expressed in tons of CO2 equivalent (tCO2eq), calculated by the Issuer, in line with the GHG Protocol,
the EU Environmental Objective 1 — Climate Change Mitigation and United Nations Sustainable
Development Goals n°13 and a well-below 2°C scenario, on which the Sustainable Performance Targets
2 are based.

"KPI 3" means the third key performance indicator relating to the number of women among building
site managers on a worldwide scope, in line with the United Nations Sustainable Development Goals
n°5, on which the Sustainable Performance Targets 3 are based.

"Scope 1" means direct greenhouse gas emissions from sources owned or controlled by the Group, as
defined in the GHG Protocol Corporate Standard, expressed in tons of carbon dioxide equivalent
(tCO2eq).

"Scope 2" means indirect greenhouse gas emissions from the generation of electricity, steam and
heating/cooling purchased from third parties and consumed in the Group's owned or controlled
equipment or operations, as defined in the GHG Protocol Corporate Standard, expressed in tons of
carbon dioxide equivalent (tCO2eq).

"Significant Change in the Group's Perimeter" means any significant external growth, acquisition or
disposal in excess of ten per cent. (10%) of the total revenue of the Group.
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"Statutory Auditors" means the statutory auditors of the Issuer, being as at the Issue Date Groupe IFEC
and TALENZ ARES AUDIT (formerly AREs X-PERT AUDIT).

"Sustainable Performance Targets" means, together, the Sustainable Performance Targets 1, the
Sustainable Performance Targets 2 and the Sustainable Performance Targets 3.

"Sustainable Performance Targets 1" means the objectives at the Group's level (including any
significant external growth, acquisition and/or disposal other than a Significant Change in the Group's
Perimeter completed as at the relevant Valuation Date) relating to KPI 1 to be complied with on each
Valuation Date, in line with the United Nations Sustainable Development Goals n°3, being a cumulative
annual reduction against the 2020 baseline of six per cent. (6%) and corresponding:

(i)  onthe Valuation Date falling on 31 December 2022, to an Accident Frequency Rate less than or
equal to 12.06%;

(i) on the Valuation Date falling on 31 December 2023, to an Accident Frequency Rate less than or
equal to 11.34%;

(iii)  on the Valuation Date falling on 31 December 2024, to an Accident Frequency Rate less than or
equal to 10.66%;

(iv) on the Valuation Date falling on 31 December 2025, to an Accident Frequency Rate less than or
equal to 10.02%;

(v) onthe Valuation Date falling on 31 December 2026, to an Accident Frequency Rate less than or
equal to 9.42%; and

(vi) on the Valuation Date falling on 31 December 2027, to an Accident Frequency Rate less than or
equal to 8.85%.

"Sustainable Performance Targets 2" means the objectives at the Group's level (including any
significant external growth, acquisition and/or disposal other than a Significant Change in the Group's
Perimeter completed as at the relevant Valuation Date) relating to KPI 2 to be complied with on each
Valuation Date, being a cumulative annual reduction of the quantity of tons of carbon dioxide equivalent
(tCO2eq) against 2019 baseline of four per cent. (4%), as calculated by the Issuer on the basis of the
methodology in line with the GHG Protocol, the EU Environmental Objective 1 — Climate Change
Mitigation and United Nations Sustainable Development Goals n°13 and a well-below 2°C scenario and
corresponding:

(i)  on the Valuation Date falling on 31 December 2022, to GreenHouse Gas emissions less than or
equal to 162,226 tCO2eq;

(if)  on the Valuation Date falling on 31 December 2023, to GreenHouse Gas emissions less than or
equal to 155,737 tCO2eq;

(iii)  on the Valuation Date falling on 31 December 2024, to GreenHouse Gas emissions less than or
equal to 149,507 tCO2eq;

(iv) on the Valuation Date falling on 31 December 2025, to GreenHouse Gas emissions less than or
equal to 143,527 tCO2eq;

(v) on the Valuation Date falling on 31 December 2026, to GreenHouse Gas emissions less than or
equal to 137,786 tCO2eq; and

(vi) on the Valuation Date falling on 31 December 2027, to GreenHouse Gas emissions less than or
equal to 132,274 tCO2eq.

"Sustainable Performance Targets 3" means the objectives at the Group's level (including any
significant external growth, acquisition and/or disposal other than a Significant Change in the Group's
Perimeter completed as at the relevant Valuation Date) relating to KPI 3 to be complied with on each
Valuation Date, in line with the United Nations Sustainable Development Goals n°5, being:

(i)  on the Valuation Date falling on 31 December 2022, at least two hundred (200) women hired
among building site managers;

34



8.5

8.6

(i) on the Valuation Date falling on 31 December 2023, at least two hundred and twenty-five (225)
women hired among building site managers;

(iii)  on the Valuation Date falling on 31 December 2024, at least two hundred and sixty (260) women
hired among building site managers;

(iv) onthe Valuation Date falling on 31 December 2025, at least two hundred and ninety (290) women
hired among building site managers;

(v) onthe Valuation Date falling on 31 December 2026, at least three hundred and thirty (330) women
hired among building site managers;

(vi) on the Valuation Date falling on 31 December 2027, at least three hundred and eighty (380)
women hired among building site managers.

"Valuation Date" means 31 December of each year until 31 December 2027 (included), the first
Valuation Date being 31 December 2022.

Limitation on distributions of dividends covenant

The Issuer undertakes that its corporate bodies will not make any distribution of dividends, interim
dividends or reserves in any form whatsoever, and that no distribution of dividends, interim dividends,
reserves or premiums in any form whatsoever will be made or paid, except for any such distribution to
all shareholders of the Issuer, in each financial year as from the financial year beginning on 1 January
2022 (inclusive), of dividends from the distributable income of the preceding financial year, subject to
compliance with the following conditions:

(i)  the total cumulative amount of distributions in respect of each financial year does not exceed fifty
per cent. (50%) of the consolidated profit attributable to the Group of the previous financial year;

(i)  no Event of Default is on-going or results from the distribution or payment of such dividends;

(iii)  the Fiscal Agent has received for the preceding financial year the compliance certificate referred
to under Condition 8.3(c)(i) and the annual consolidated financial statements of the Issuer referred
to under Condition 8.3(a)(i); and

(iv) the Issuer has supplied to the Fiscal Agent a compliance certificate stating that the level of the
Financial Covenants (determined on a pro forma basis taking into account the contemplated
distribution and any other distribution already made during the relevant financial year) on the
immediately preceding Testing Date is complied with.

Limitation on Financial Indebtedness covenant

The Issuer undertakes that it will not, and shall ensure that none of its Subsidiaries will, incur and
maintain any Financial Indebtedness other than a Permitted Financial Indebtedness.

For the purposes of these 2028 Conditions, "Permitted Financial Indebtedness" means:
(i) any Financial Indebtedness existing as at the Issue Date;

(i)  the Financial Indebtedness under the Facilities Agreement;

(iii)  the 2028 Notes and the 2029 Notes;

(iv) the Subordinated Debts;

(v) any additional medium or long-term Financial Indebtedness (including under any crédit-bail or
lease-back or finance lease), incurred by members of the Group (or maintained following a
Permitted Acquisition) up to a maximum cumulative annual amount not exceeding six point fifty
per cent. (6.50%) of the Group's consolidated revenues (excluding taxes) for the previous
financial year;

(vi) any additional short-term Financial Indebtedness within the meaning of IFRS (International
Financial Reporting Standards) rules, in the ordinary course of business and on customary terms,
for the purpose of financing their respective working capital requirements, provided that:
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(@)

(@) the total outstanding short-term Financial Indebtedness within the meaning of IFRS
(International Financial Reporting Standards) rules (including the outstanding short-term
Financial Indebtedness existing as at the Issue Date and the uses of the NEU CP
programme, but excluding the uses of the securitisation programme of the Issuer and the
portion at less than one year of medium and long-term Financial Indebtedness) (the "Short-
Term Financial Indebtedness™) does not exceed, at any time, a cumulative amount at
Group level of €150,000,000 (or its equivalent in any other currency); and

(b)  the Short-Term Financial Indebtedness is not secured by any security interest, personal
guarantee or other off-balance sheet commitment;

(vii) any additional Financial Indebtedness under the securitisation programme of the Issuer and/or
any other trade receivables securitisation programme, up to a maximum aggregate principal
amount of Financial Indebtedness (excluding interest accrued or to be accrued in respect of such
Financial Indebtedness) of €250,000,000 (increased to €280,000,000 during the period from 1
May to 31 October of each year in accordance with the provisions of the securitisation programme
of the Issuer) (or any equivalent amount in any other currency) at any time;

(viii) any additional Financial Indebtedness in respect of a vendor loan (crédit-vendeur) or any deferred
payment obligation incurred in connection with the acquisition of an asset or the completion of a
Permitted Acquisition;

(ix) any off-balance sheet commitment; and

(x) any Financial Indebtedness in respect of any loan or credit in any form whatsoever entered into
in the ordinary course of business and on customary terms between members of the Group and
consistent with the corporate interest of the entities concerned.

REDEMPTION AND PURCHASE

The 2028 Notes may not be redeemed otherwise than in accordance with this Condition 9 or with
Conditions 11 and 12 below.

Redemption at maturity

Unless previously redeemed or purchased and cancelled, the 2028 Notes will be redeemed by the Issuer
in full at their Principal Amount (as defined below) on the Maturity Date.

For the purposes of these 2028 Conditions, "Principal Amount™" means €100,000 per Note.
Redemption at the option of the Issuer
Early redemption at the Make Whole Redemption Amount

The Issuer will, subject to compliance by the Issuer with all relevant laws, regulations and directives
and having given not less than thirty (30) nor more than forty-five (45) calendar days' notice in
accordance with Condition 15 to the 2028 Noteholders, the Fiscal Agent and the Calculation Agent
(which notice shall be irrevocable), have the option to redeem the 2028 Notes, in whole but not in part,
at any time prior to 8 December 2024 (excluded) (the "Make Whole Redemption Date"), at their Make
Whole Redemption Amount (as defined below).

On the Calculation Date, the Calculation Agent will determine the Make Whole Redemption Rate
applicable on the Make Whole Redemption Date, calculate the Make Whole Redemption Amount and,
as soon as possible and no later than the Business Day immediately following the Calculation Date,
deliver a notice to that effect to the Issuer, the Fiscal Agent and the Representative for transmission to
the 2028 Noteholders in accordance with Condition 15.

For the purposes of these 2028 Conditions:

"Make Whole Redemption Amount" means, with respect to each Note, an amount in Euro equal to
the greater of (i) one hundred per cent. (100%) of the Principal Amount of the 2028 Notes so redeemed
and (ii) as determined by the Calculation Agent (rounded to the nearest cent (half a cent being rounded
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upwards)), the sum of the then present values on the Make Whole Redemption Date of the Remaining
Scheduled Payments discounted to the Make Whole Redemption Date on an annual basis (Actual /
Actual ICMA) at the Make Whole Redemption Rate plus the Make Whole Redemption Margin,
increased in both cases (i) and (ii) by accrued interest on the Principal Amount of the Note since the last
Interest Payment Date (or, as the case may be, the Issue Date) (included) to, but excluding, the Make
Whole Redemption Date and any Additional Amounts (as defined in Condition 11.2).

"Make Whole Redemption Margin" means +0.50 per cent. per annum.

"Make Whole Redemption Rate" means the rate per annum equal to the average of the four (4)
guotations given by the Reference Dealers of the mid-market annual yield to maturity of the Reference
Benchmark Security on the fourth (4™) Business Day preceding the Make Whole Redemption Date at
11.00 a.m. (Central European time (CET)).

If the Reference Benchmark Security is no longer outstanding, a Similar Security will be chosen by the
Calculation Agent after prior consultation with the Issuer if practicable under the circumstances, at 11.00
a.m. (Central European time (CET)) on the fourth (4") Business Day preceding the Make Whole
Redemption Date, quoted in writing by the Calculation Agent to the Issuer.

"Reference Benchmark Security" means the French government bond (Obligation Assimilable du
Trésor — "OAT") bearing interest at a rate of 0.75 per cent. per annum and maturing on
25 November 2028 with ISIN FR0013341682.

"Reference Dealers" means each of the four (4) banks (that may include Crédit Lyonnais and/or Société
Générale) selected by the Calculation Agent which are primary European government security dealers,
and their respective successors, or market makers in pricing corporate bond issues.

"Remaining Scheduled Payments" means, with respect to each Note, the remaining scheduled
payments of principal and interest relating to the 2028 Notes (except accrued interest on such 2028
Notes since the last Interest Payment Date (included) to, but excluding, the Make Whole Redemption
Date) that would be due from the Make Whole Redemption Date to 8 December 2027, if the Issuer's
option for the redemption at the Make Whole Redemption Amount were not exercised.

"Similar Security" means one or more OAT issued by the French government having an actual or
interpolated maturity comparable with the remaining term of the 2028 Notes that would be utilised, at
the time of selection and in accordance with customary financial practice, in pricing new issues of
corporate debt securities of comparable maturity to the remaining term of the 2028 Notes chosen by the
Calculation Agent.

Early redemption with a flat fee

The Issuer will, subject to compliance by the Issuer with all relevant laws, regulations and directives
and having given not less than thirty (30) nor more than forty-five (45) calendar days' notice in
accordance with Condition 15 to the 2028 Noteholders and the Fiscal Agent (which notice shall be
irrevocable), have the option to redeem the 2028 Notes, in whole but not in part, at any time from
8 December 2024 to 7 December 2027 (both dates inclusive), each at their Principal Amount together
with (i) any accrued and unpaid interest up to the date fixed for redemption (excluded), (ii) any
Additional Amounts (as defined in Condition 11.2) and (iii) a flat fee of:

(i) 3% of the Principal Amount of the Note for any redemption occurring from 8 December 2024 to
7 December 2025 (both dates inclusive);

(ii) 2% of the Principal Amount of the Note for any redemption occurring from 8 December 2025 to
7 December 2026 (both dates inclusive); or

(iii) 1% of the Principal Amount of the Note for any redemption occurring from 8 December 2026 to
7 December 2027 (both dates inclusive).

Residual maturity call option

The Issuer will, subject to compliance by the Issuer with all relevant laws, regulations and directives
and having given not less than thirty (30) nor more than forty-five (45) calendar days' notice in
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accordance with Condition 15 to the 2028 Noteholders and the Fiscal Agent (which notice shall be
irrevocable), have the option to redeem the 2028 Notes, in whole but not in part, on any date from
8 December 2027 (included), at their Principal Amount together with any accrued and unpaid interest
up to their effective redemption date (excluded) and any Additional Amounts (as defined in Condition
11.2).

Redemption for taxation reasons

If, by reason of a change in French law or regulation, or any change in the official application or
interpretation of such law, becoming effective after the Issue Date, the Issuer would, on the occasion of
the next payment of principal or interest due in respect of the 2028 Notes, not be able to make such
payment without having to pay additional amounts as specified in Condition 11, the Issuer may at any
time, subject to having given not more than forty-five (45) nor less than thirty (30) calendar days' prior
notice to the Fiscal Agent and to the 2028 Noteholders in accordance with Condition 15 (which notice
shall be irrevocable), redeem all, but not some only, of the 2028 Notes outstanding at their Principal
Amount, together with all interest accrued to the date fixed for redemption, provided that the due date
for redemption of which notice hereunder may be given shall be no earlier than the latest practicable
date on which the Issuer could make payment of principal and/or interest without withholding for French
taxes.

If the Issuer would on the occasion of the next payment of principal or interest in respect of the 2028
Notes be prevented by French law from making payment to the 2028 Noteholders of the full amount
then due and payable, notwithstanding the undertaking to pay additional amounts contained in Condition
11, then the Issuer shall forthwith give notice of such fact to the Fiscal Agent and the Issuer shall, subject
to having given not less than seven (7) calendar days' prior notice to the 2028 Noteholders in accordance
with Condition 15 (which notice shall be irrevocable), redeem all, but not some only, of the 2028 Notes
at their Principal Amount, together with all interest accrued to the date fixed for redemption of which
notice hereunder may be given, provided that the due date for redemption shall be no earlier than the
latest practicable date on which the Issuer could make payment of the full amount of principal and/or
interest payable in respect of the 2028 Notes or, if such date has passed, as soon as practicable thereafter.

Redemption at the option of the 2028 Noteholders following a Change of Control

If at any time while any of the 2028 Notes is outstanding there occurs a Change of Control, each
Noteholder will have the option (a "put option™) to require the Issuer to redeem or, at the Issuer's option,
to procure the purchase of all or part of the 2028 Notes held by such Noteholder(s) on the Optional
Redemption Date (as defined below) at their Principal Amount, together with (or, where purchased,
together with an amount equal to) accrued interest to, but excluding, the Optional Redemption Date (as
defined below).

Promptly upon becoming aware that a Change of Control has occurred, the Issuer shall give notice (a
"Change of Control Notice") to the Fiscal Agent and the 2028 Noteholders in accordance with
Condition 15, specifying the nature of the event and the procedure for exercising the put option.

To exercise a put option, a Noteholder must give notice to the relevant Account Holder, with a copy to
the Fiscal Agent duly completed and signed on its behalf (the "Put Notice™), on any Business Day falling
within the period of forty-five (45) calendar days after a Change of Control Notice is given (the "Put
Period"). The Put Notice shall include instructions for the transfer of such 2028 Notes to the specified
account of the Fiscal Agent for the redemption or purchase of such 2028 Notes.

The form of the Put Notice shall be available from the Fiscal Agent. A Put Notice once given shall be
irrevocable without the consent of the Issuer.

Payment in respect of such 2028 Notes will be made on the Optional Redemption Date by transfer to
the bank account specified in the Put Notice and opened with a bank in a city in which banks use the
TARGET System (as defined below). The Issuer shall redeem or, at its option, procure the purchase of
the relevant 2028 Notes in respect of which the Put Option has been validly exercised as provided above,
and subject to the transfer of such 2028 Notes to the account of the Fiscal Agent for the account of the
Issuer as described above, on the Optional Redemption Date unless previously redeemed or purchased.
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For the purposes of these 2028 Conditions:
A "Change of Control" shall be deemed to have occurred if:

(i)  less than fifty point one per cent. (50.01%) of the share capital or voting rights of the Issuer is
held, directly or indirectly, by FSA, FSB, Orion and NGE Management together; or

(i)  less than eighty per cent. (80%) of the share capital or voting rights of FSA, FSB and/or Orion is
held, directly or indirectly, by the Operational Managers together (except in the event of the death
or exit of a Operational Manager and the sale or transfer of its securities to one or more other
Operational Managers), for any reason whatsoever; or

(iii)  the Issuer ceases to hold directly or indirectly, for any reason whatsoever, at least (x) ninety-five
per cent. (95%) of the share capital and/or voting rights of any of the Principal Subsidiaries
existing as at the Issue Date and (y) with respect to any Subsidiary of the Issuer which becomes a
Principal Subsidiary after the Issue Date, a percentage of the share capital and/or voting rights of
such Principal Subsidiary at least equal to the percentage held by the Issuer on the date when such
Subsidiary became a Principal Subsidiary (except as a result of any Concession Transfer); or

(iv) all or part of the share capital of the Issuer or of any member of the Group is offered to the public
and listed on any French or foreign regulated market or stock exchange; or

(v) all or a substantial part of the Group's fixed assets (actifs immobilisés) is transferred to a third-
party (in one or several transactions), it being specified that this sub-paragraph (v) will not apply
to any Concession Transfer.

"Concession Transfer" means the transfer by NGE Concession, to one or several third parties to the
Group, of all or part of the shares of its subsidiaries carrying concession projects.

"NGE Concession" means the société par actions simplifiée registered with the Registre du commerce
et des sociétés of Tarascon under number 789 270 360.

"Operational Managers" means Alain Joél Rousseau, Gilbert Roux, Francis Chatelain, Antoine
Metzger, Michel Lavedrine, Joél Perelle, Michel Pavoine, Jean Bernadet, Jean-Sébastien Leoni,
Stéphane Pérez-Morillas, Martin Fontaine, Jean-Baptiste Gonnet, Orso Vesperini, Bruno Parent and
Laurent Amar.

"Optional Redemption Date" is the fifth (51") Business Day following the expiration of the Put Period.

"Orion" means the société par actions simplifiée registered with the Registre du commerce et des
sociétés of Aix-en-Provence under number 842 076 184.

Purchases

The Issuer may at any time purchase 2028 Notes (together with rights to interest relating thereto) in the
open market or otherwise (including by way of tender or exchange offer) at any price and on any
condition, subject to compliance with any applicable laws. All 2028 Notes purchased by, or for the
account of, the Issuer may, at its sole discretion, be held or cancelled in accordance with and subject to
any applicable laws and regulations.

Cancellation

All 2028 Notes which are redeemed or purchased for cancellation by the Issuer pursuant to this
Condition 9 will forthwith be cancelled and accordingly may not be reissued or resold.

PAYMENTS
Method of Payment

Payments of principal, interest and other amounts in respect of the 2028 Notes will be made in euro, by
credit or transfer to an account denominated in euro (or any other account to which euro may be credited
or transferred) specified by the beneficiary with a bank in a city in which banks use the TARGET System
(as defined in Condition 10.2 below). Such payments shall be made for the benefit of the 2028
Noteholders to the Account Holders and all payments made to such Account Holders in favour of 2028
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Noteholders will be an effective discharge of the Issuer and the Fiscal Agent, as the case may be, in
respect of such payment.

Payments of principal and interest in respect of the 2028 Notes will be subject in all cases to any tax or
other laws and regulations applicable thereto, but without prejudice to the provisions of Condition 11
below. No commission or expenses shall be charged to the 2028 Noteholders in respect of such
payments.

Payments on Business Days

If any due date for payment of principal, interest or any other amount in respect of any Note is not a
Business Day (as defined below), then the Noteholder shall not be entitled to payment of the amount
due until the next following calendar day which is a Business Day and the Noteholder shall not be
entitled to any interest or other additional sums in respect of such postponed payment.

For the purposes of these 2028 Conditions, "Business Day" means any day, not being a Saturday or a
Sunday, (i) on which foreign exchange markets and commercial banks are open for business in Paris (ii)
on which Euroclear France is operating and (iii) on which the Trans-European Automated Real Time
Gross Settlement Express Transfer (known as TARGET2) system (the "TARGET System") or any
successor thereto is operating.

Fiscal Agent and Paying Agent
The name and specified office of the initial Fiscal Agent and initial Paying Agent are as follows:

Banque Internationale a Luxembourg, société anonyme
69, route d'Esch
L-2953 Luxembourg
Grand Duchy of Luxembourg

The Issuer reserves the right at any time to vary or terminate the appointment of the Fiscal Agent or the
Paying Agent and/or appoint a substitute Fiscal Agent and additional or other Paying Agents or approve
any change in the office through which the Fiscal Agent or Paying Agent acts, provided that, so long as
any of the 2028 Notes is outstanding, there will at all times be a Fiscal Agent and a Paying Agent having
a specified office in a major European city. Any termination or appointment shall only take effect (other
than in the case of insolvency, when it shall be of immediate effect) after not more than forty-five (45)
nor less than thirty (30) calendar days' notice thereof shall have been given to the 2028 Noteholders by
the Issuer in accordance with Condition 15.

Calculation Agent
The name and specified office of the initial Calculation Agent are as follows:

Aether Financial Services
36, rue de Monceau
75008 Paris
France
agency@aetherfs.com

The Issuer reserves the right at any time to vary or terminate the appointment of the Calculation Agent
and/or appoint a substitute Calculation Agent or approve any change in the office through which the
Calculation Agent acts, provided that, so long as any of the 2028 Notes is outstanding, there will at all
times be a Calculation Agent having a specified office in a major European city. Any termination or
appointment shall only take effect (other than in the case of insolvency, when it shall be of immediate
effect) after not more than forty-five (45) nor less than thirty (30) calendar days' notice thereof shall
have been given to the 2028 Noteholders by the Issuer in accordance with Condition 15.

The determination of any rate or amount, the obtaining of each quotation and the making of each
determination or calculation by the Calculation Agent shall (in the absence of manifest error) be final
and binding upon all parties. The Calculation Agent shall act as an independent expert for each
guotation, determination or calculation.
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TAXATION
Withholding tax

All payments of principal, interest and other revenues by or on behalf of the Issuer in respect of the 2028
Notes shall be made free and clear of, and without withholding or deduction for, any taxes, duties,
assessments or governmental charges of whatever nature (the "Taxes") imposed, levied, collected,
withheld or assessed by or within any jurisdiction, unless such withholding or deduction is required by
law.

Additional Amounts

If, pursuant to French laws or regulations, any payment in respect of any Note become subject to
deduction or withholding in respect of any present or future Taxes imposed by or on behalf of France or
any authority therein or thereof having power to tax, the Issuer shall, to the fullest extent then permitted
by law, pay such additional amounts (the "Additional Amounts™) as may be necessary in order that the
holder of each Note, after such deduction or withholding, will receive the full amount then due and
payable thereon in the absence of such withholding; provided, however, that the Issuer shall not be liable
to pay any such Additional Amounts in respect of any Note to a holder (or beneficial owner (ayant
droit)) who is liable to such Taxes in respect of such Note by reason of his having some connection with
France other than the mere holding of such Note.

Any reference in these 2028 Conditions to principal and/or interest shall be deemed to include any
Additional Amounts which may be payable under this Condition 11.

EVENTS OF DEFAULT

The Representative shall, by notice in writing to the Issuer (copy to the Fiscal Agent), if so instructed
by a Collective Decision, before all continuing event of defaults shall have been cured, cause all, but not
some only, of the 2028 Notes held by the 2028 Noteholders to become immediately due and payable, at
their Principal Amount together with any accrued interest thereon until their actual redemption date if
any of the following events (each an "Event of Default") shall have occurred and be continuing:

(@) default by the Issuer in the payment of principal or interest (including any Additional Amounts)
on any of the 2028 Notes, if such default shall not have been cured within fifteen (15) calendar
days thereafter; or

(b)  default by the Issuer in the due performance of any provision of the 2028 Notes other than as
referred in (a) above, if such default shall not have been cured within thirty (30) calendar days
after receipt by the Issuer of written notice of such default; or

(c) (i) any other present or future Financial Indebtedness (other than the Simple Bonds) of the Issuer
or any of its Principal Subsidiaries in excess of €5,000,000 (or its equivalent in any other
currency), whether individually or in the aggregate, becomes (or becomes capable of being
declared), following, where applicable, the expiry of any originally applicable grace period, due
and payable prior to its stated maturity as a result of a default thereunder, or (ii) any such present
or future Financial Indebtedness (other than the Simple Bonds) shall not be paid when due or, as
the case may be, within any originally applicable grace period therefor; or

(d) the Simple Bonds are not redeemed on their due date in accordance with the provisions of the
terms and conditions of the Simple Bonds, it being agreed that no Event of Default shall occur
under this paragraph during the period from the date of occurrence of a payment default under the
Simple Bonds on the first or second anniversary of the issue date of the Simple Bonds until the
earlier of the following two dates: (i) one hundred and eighty (180) calendar days from the said
default (in case of non-exercise of the Simple Bonds Put Option (as defined in Condition 6) and
(ii) twelve (12) Business Days following the notification of the exercise of the Simple Bonds Put
Option by CME in accordance with the provisions of the Simple Bonds Put Option;

(e)  merger, demerger, transfer or cessation of all or substantial part of its business, liquidation or
dissolution of the Issuer, except in the case in which all of or substantially all of the Issuer's assets
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are transferred to a legal entity which simultaneously assumes all of the Issuer's debt and liabilities
(including the 2028 Notes) and whose main purpose is the continuation of, and which effectively
continues, the Issuer's activities; or

(f)  to the extent permitted by law, the Issuer or any of its Principal Subsidiaries (i) makes any
proposal for a general moratorium in relation to its debt, or (ii) a resolution is passed or a judgment
is issued for the voluntary liquidation (liquidation amiable), winding-up, dissolution
(dissolution), the judicial liquidation (liquidation judiciaire) or for a judicial transfer of the whole
of the business (cession totale de I'entreprise) of the Issuer, or (iii) the Issuer or any of its Principal
Subsidiaries is subject to any other insolvency or bankruptcy proceedings under any applicable
laws, or (iv) the Issuer or any of its Principal Subsidiaries makes any conveyance, assignment or
other similar arrangement for the benefit of its creditors or enters into a composition with its
creditors; or

(g) the Pledge Agreement or the Intercreditor Agreement not being executed at the Issue Date; or

(h)  the Shares Pledges (as defined in Condition 4) are enforced by their beneficiaries as a result of a
default of the Issuer under the Facilities Agreement (as defined in Condition 4); or

(i)  illegality or unenforceability of the Shares Pledges (as defined in Condition 4); or
()  illegality or unenforceability of the Intercreditor Agreement (as defined in Condition 5); or

(k)  occurrence of any action, legal proceedings or other procedure with any competent court or
authority with respect to the Issuer or any of its Subsidiary which could reasonably be expected
to give rise to a payment of money exceeding individually or in aggregate €15,000,000; default
by the Issuer or any of its Subsidiary in the due performance of any final judgment, arbitral award
or transaction for the payment of money exceeding individually or in aggregate €100,000; or

() the Issuer or any Principal Subsidiary ceases to carry a substantial part of its business (voluntarily
or not) for more than thirty (30) calendar days; or

(m) the Issuer transfers its head office outside France.

For the avoidance of doubt, (i) the occurrence of a Change of Control (as defined and in accordance
with Condition 9.4) will not constitute an Event of Default but a put option as more fully described in
Condition 9.4 and (ii) non-compliance with, or non-calculation of, any of the Sustainable Performance
Targets, non-delivery of the External Verification Report or Sustainable Performance Report and non-
inclusion by the Issuer of the information required under Condition 8.4(iv) in its annual report or CSR
(corporate and responsability) report (rapport RSE (responsabilité sociale d'entreprise)) will not
constitute an Event of Default but will trigger an adjustment of the Initial Interest Rate for the relevant
Sustainable Performance Target, pursuant to the provisions of sub-paragraphs (i), (ii) and (iv) of
Condition 7.2(a) above and if applicable, the payment by the Issuer of a Sustainable Compensation
Amount pursuant to the provisions of Condition 7.2(b) above.

PRESCRIPTION

Claims against the Issuer for the payment of principal and interest in respect of the 2028 Notes shall
become prescribed ten (10) years (in the case of principal) and five (5) years (in the case of interest)
from the due date for payment thereof.
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REPRESENTATION OF THE 2028 NOTEHOLDERS

The 2028 Noteholders will be grouped automatically for the defence of their common interests in a
masse (hereinafter referred to as the "Masse™). The Masse will be governed by the provisions of articles
L.228-46 et seq. of the French Code de commerce, with the exception of Articles L.228-65 1. 1°, 3° and
4° and R.228-69 of the French Code de commerce and the related provisions of the French Code de
commerce, as amended by this Condition.

The Masse will be a separate legal entity and will act in part through a representative (the
"Representative”) and in part through collective decisions of the 2028 Noteholders (the "Collective
Decisions").

The Masse alone, to the exclusion of all individual 2028 Noteholders, shall exercise the common rights,
actions and benefits which may accrue with respect to the 2028 Notes, without prejudice to the rights
that 2028 Noteholders may exercise individually in accordance with, and subject to, the provisions of
these 2028 Conditions.

Representative
The initial Representative shall be:

Aether Financial Services
36, rue de Monceau

75008 Paris

France
agency@aetherfs.com

Represented by its Chairman

The Issuer shall pay to the Representative an amount equal to four hundred euros (€400) (excluding
VVAT) per annum for its services.

All 2028 Noteholders may at all times obtain the names and addresses of the Representative at the
principal office of the Issuer and the specified office of the Paying Agent.

Collective Decisions

Collective Decisions are adopted either in a general meeting (the "General Meeting™) or by unanimous
consent following a written consultation (the "Written Unanimous Decision").

In accordance with Article R.228-71 of the French Code de commerce, the right of each Noteholder to
participate in Collective Decisions will be evidenced by the entries in the books of the relevant Account
Holder of the name of such Noteholder as of 0:00, Paris time, on the second (2") Business Day preceding
the date set for the relevant Collective Decision.

The Issuer shall hold a register of the Collective Decisions and shall make it available, upon request, to
any Noteholder.

(@  General Meeting

In accordance with the provisions of Articles L.228-51 and R.228-67 first paragraph of the French
Code de commerce, notice of the date, time, place, agenda and required quorum of any General
Meeting will be published in accordance with Condition 15, not less than ten (10) calendar days
prior to the date of the general meeting on first convocation and not less than five (5) calendar
days prior to the date of the General Meeting on second convocation.

General Meetings may deliberate validly on first convocation only if the 2028 Noteholders present
or represented hold at least one-fifth (1/5) of the principal amount of the 2028 Notes then
outstanding. On second convocation, no quorum shall be required. The decisions of the General
Meeting shall be taken by a two-third (2/3) majority of votes held by the 2028 Noteholders
attending such General Meeting or represented thereat.

In accordance with Article L.228-61 of the French Code de commerce, each Noteholder has the
right to participate in General Meetings in person, by proxy, by correspondence, by
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videoconference, or by any other means of telecommunication allowing the identification of
participating 2028 Noteholders.

Each Noteholder or representative thereof will have the right to consult or make a copy of the text
of the resolutions which will be proposed and of the reports, if any, which will be presented at the
General Meeting, all of which will be available for inspection by the relevant 2028 Noteholders
at the registered office of the Issuer and at any other place specified in the notice of the General
Meeting, during the ten (10) calendar day period preceding the holding of the General Meeting
on first convocation, or during the five (5) calendar day period preceding the holding of the
General Meeting on second convocation.

(b)  Written Unanimous Decision

In accordance with Article L.228-46-1 of the French Code de commerce, Collective Decisions
may also be taken by a Written Unanimous Decision, at the initiative of the Issuer or the
Representative.

Such Written Unanimous Decision shall be signed by or on behalf of all the 2028 Noteholders
without having to comply with formalities and time limits referred to in Condition 14.2(a). Any
Written Unanimous Decision shall, for all purposes, have the same effect as a resolution passed
at a General Meeting of such 2028 Noteholders. Subject to the following sentence, a Written
Unanimous Decision may be contained in one document or in several documents in like form,
each signed by or on behalf of one or more of such 2028 Noteholders. Approval of a Written
Unanimous Resolution may also be given by way of electronic communication allowing the
identification of 2028 Noteholders.

14.3 Notices

15.

16.

17.

Any notice to be given to 2028 Noteholders in accordance with this Condition 14 shall be given in
accordance with Condition 15.

NOTICES

Any notice to the 2028 Noteholders will be duly given if (i) delivered to Euroclear France for so long
as the 2028 Notes are cleared through such clearing system and (ii) published on the website of the
Issuer (www.nge.fr) and so long as the 2028 Notes are admitted to trading on Euronext Paris and the
rules of Euronext Paris so require, on the website of Euronext Paris (www.euronext.fr).

Any notice to the 2028 Noteholders shall be deemed to have been given on the date of such publication
or if published on different dates, on the date of the first publication.

FURTHER ISSUES AND ASSIMILATION

The Issuer may from time to time, without the consent of the 2028 Noteholders, issue further notes to
be assimilated (assimilables) with the 2028 Notes as regards their financial service, provided that such
further notes and the 2028 Notes shall carry identical rights in all respects (or in all respects except for
the issue price and the first payment of interest thereon) and that the terms of such further notes shall
provide for such assimilation.

In the event of such an assimilation, the 2028 Noteholders and the holders of such further notes and will
be grouped together in a single masse for the defence of their common interests. References in these
2028 Conditions to the 2028 Notes include any other notes issued pursuant to this Condition and
assimilated with the 2028 Notes.

GOVERNING LAW AND JURISDICTION
The 2028 Notes are governed by, and shall be construed in accordance with, the laws of France.

Any dispute arising out of or in connection with the 2028 Notes will be submitted to the competent
courts within the jurisdiction of the Court of Appeal of Paris, subject to any applicable mandatory rules
pertaining to the territorial jurisdiction of French courts.
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Schedule 1 to the Terms and Conditions of the 2028 Notes

List of Principal Subsidiaries as at the Issue Date

Agilis (société par actions simplifiée registered with the Registre du commerce et des sociétés of
Avignon under number 443 222 328).

Cardinal Edifice (société par actions simplifiée registered with the Registre du commerce et des sociétés
of Rennes under number 950 033 555).

EHTP (société par actions simplifiée registered with the Registre du commerce et des sociétés of
Tarascon under number 439 987 405).

Guintoli (société par actions simplifiée registered with the Registre du commerce et des sociétés of
Tarascon under number 447 754 086).

NGE Fondations (société par actions simplifiée registered with the Registre du commerce et des sociétés
of Lyon under number 348 099 987).

NGE Infranet (société par actions simplifiée registered with the Registre du commerce et des sociétés
of Tarascon under number 501 241 624).

NGE Génie Civil (société par actions simplifiée registered with the Registre du commerce et des sociétés
of Tarascon under number 487 469 330).

Siorat (société par actions simplifiée registered with the Registre du commerce et des sociétés of
Tarascon under number 676 820 137).

TSO (société par actions simplifiée registered with the Registre du commerce et des sociétés of Meaux
under number 747 252 120).

TSO Caténaires (société par actions simplifiée registered with the Registre du commerce et des sociétés
of Meaux under number 432 455 764).
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TERMS AND CONDITIONS OF THE 2029 NOTES

The Terms and Conditions of the 2029 Notes (the 2029 Conditions™) will be as follows:

The issue of the €115,000,000 3.400 per cent. Sustainability-Linked Notes due 8 December 2029 (the
"Maturity Date") (the "2029 Notes") by NGE (the "Issuer™) was decided by the President (Président) of the
Issuer on 24 November 2021, upon prior unanimous decision of the shareholders of the Issuer dated 8
November 2021.

The Issuer (i) will enter into a fiscal agency agreement to be dated 6 December 2021 (the "Fiscal Agency
Agreement") with Banque Internationale a Luxembourg, société anonyme as fiscal agent and paying agent
(the "Fiscal Agent" and the "Paying Agent" which expressions shall, where the context so admits, include
any successor for the time being as fiscal agent or paying agent, as the case may be) and (ii) has entered into a
calculation agency agreement dated 2 November 2021 (the "Calculation Agency Agreement") with Aether
Financial Services as calculation agent (the "Calculation Agent" which expression shall, where the context
so admits, include any successor for the time being as calculation agent).

Copies of the Fiscal Agency Agreement, the Calculation Agency Agreement, the Pledge Agreement (as
defined below), the Intercreditor Agreement (as defined below) and the Subordination Agreement (as defined
below) and these 2029 Conditions are obtainable in electronic form free of charge from the Fiscal Agent or the
Calculation Agent, as the case may be, upon request of the 2029 Noteholders and available free of charge for
inspection and copy by the 2029 Noteholders during normal business hours at the specified offices of the Fiscal
Agent, the Calculation Agent and the Issuer. Certain statements in these 2029 Conditions are summaries of,
and are subject to, the detailed provisions of the Fiscal Agency Agreement, the Calculation Agency Agreement,
the Pledge Agreement, the Intercreditor Agreement and/or the Subordination Agreement.

References below to (i) the "2029 Noteholders" are to the person whose name appears in the account of the
relevant Account Holder (as defined below) as being entitled to such 2029 Notes and (ii) the "Conditions" are
to the numbered paragraphs below.

1. FORM, DENOMINATION AND TITLE

The 2029 Notes will be issued on 8 December 2021 (the "Issue Date") in dematerialised bearer form
(dématerialisés au porteur) in the denomination of €100,000 each. Title to the 2029 Notes will be
evidenced in accordance with Articles L.211-3 et seq. and R.211-1 et seq. of the French Code monétaire
et financier by book entries (inscription en compte). No physical document of title (including certificats
représentatifs pursuant to Article R.211-7 of the French Code monétaire et financier) will be issued in
respect of the 2029 Notes.

The 2029 Notes will, upon issue, be inscribed in book entry form in the books of Euroclear France
("Euroclear France"), which shall credit the accounts of the Account Holders. For the purpose of these
2029 Conditions, "Account Holders" shall mean any intermediary institution entitled to hold, directly
or indirectly, accounts on behalf of its customers with Euroclear France, and includes Euroclear Bank
SA/NV ("Euroclear™) and the depositary bank for Clearstream Banking, S.A. ("Clearstream”).

Title to the 2029 Notes shall be evidenced by entries in the books of Account Holders and will pass
upon, and transfer of 2029 Notes may only be effected through, registration of the transfer in such books,
and only in the denomination of €100,000.

2. STATUS

The obligations of the Issuer under the 2029 Notes in respect of principal, interest and other amounts
constitute direct, general, unconditional, unsubordinated and secured (subject to, and, in accordance
with Conditions 4 and 5) obligations of the Issuer and rank, and will at all times rank, pari passu without
any preference among themselves and (subject to such exceptions as are from time to time mandatory
under French law) at least equally and rateably with all other present or future unsubordinated and
unsecured payment obligations of the Issuer.
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NEGATIVE PLEDGE

So long as any of the 2029 Notes remains outstanding (as defined below), the Issuer undertakes that it
will not, and will procure that none of its Subsidiaries will, grant or permit to subsist any Security Interest
other than Permitted Security Interest upon the whole or any part of the Issuer's or any of its Subsidiaries'
business (fonds de commerce), assets, rights or revenues, present or future, to secure any Financial
Indebtedness incurred or guaranteed by the Issuer or any of its Subsidiaries, unless, at the same time or
prior thereto, the Issuer's obligations under the 2029 Notes are equally and rateably secured therewith.

For the purposes of these 2029 Conditions:
"Financial Indebtedness" means any indebtedness for or in respect of:
(@  moneys borrowed and debit balances at banks or other financial institutions;

(b) any note purchase facility or the issue of bonds, notes, debentures, loan stock or any similar
instrument or of bills of exchange, promissory notes, bons de caisse or any similar instrument;

(c) any amount raised by acceptance under any acceptance credit or bill discounting facility,
receivables sold or discounted (other than any receivables to the extent they are sold on a non-
recourse basis and meet any requirements for de-recognition under the accounting principles
applicable to the consolidated financial statements of the Issuer);

(d) the amount of any liability in respect of any lease (including any crédit-bail or lease-back) or hire
purchase contract which would, in accordance with the accounting principles applicable to the
Issuer, be treated as a finance lease;

(e) anyamount raised under any other transaction (including any forward sale or purchase agreement)
having the commercial effect of a borrowing in accordance with the accounting principles
applicable to the Issuer;

() any derivative transaction entered into in connection with protection against or benefit from
fluctuation in any rate or price (and, when calculating the value of any derivative transaction, only
the marked to market value or, if any actual amount is due as a result of the termination or close-
out of that transaction, that amount, shall be taken into account);

() any counter-indemnity obligation in respect of a guarantee, indemnity, bond, standby or
documentary letter of credit or any other instrument issued by a bank or financial institution; and

()  the amount of any personal liability for any of the items referred to in paragraphs (a) to (g) above.

"outstanding" means all the 2029 Notes issued other than (i) those which have been redeemed on their
due date or otherwise in accordance with the 2029 Conditions, (ii) those in respect of which claims have
been prescribed under Condition 13 below and (iii) those which have been purchased and cancelled in
accordance with the 2029 Conditions.

"Permitted Security Interest™ means in respect of the Issuer and any of its Subsidiaries:

(@) the Shares Pledges and any other Security Interest granted to the Lenders (as defined below) in
accordance with the Facilities Agreement;

(b) any Security Interest existing on the Issue Date;

(c) any Security Interest granted in the ordinary course of business by a Subsidiary of the Issuer and
securing an asset required for the operations of the relevant Subsidiary, provided that such
Security Interest relates only to the asset acquired by the relevant Subsidiary and is created in
order to secure the financing of the acquisition of such asset;

(d) any Security Interest in relation to a trade receivables securitisation programme;
(e) any Security Interest arising by operation of law;

(f)  any Security Interest or lien arising in respect of taxes or imposed by law or state authorities,
which are being contested in good faith by the relevant member(s) of the Group;
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(9) any Security Interest granted by the members of the Group in the ordinary course of business, in
the form of retention of title, right of retention or other security interest having similar effect in
respect of goods and commaodities and granted to suppliers as security of payment of their price,
provided that such Security Interest is not granted as a result of a default by the relevant member
of the Group in the due performance of their respective contractual obligations;

() any Security Interest granted in the form of a cash collateral in connection with a lease agreement,
to the extent such lease agreement is entered into by the relevant member of the Group on arm's
length basis (or more favourable terms to the Group);

(i) any Security Interest (other than any Security Interest over financial securities and capital rights,
intellectual property rights, goodwill or real estate assets) over or affecting any asset of a company
which becomes a Subsidiary of the Issuer after the Issue Date in relation to a Permitted
Acquisition (as defined below in Condition 8.2), provided that (X) such Security Interest was
existing at the time such company became a Subsidiary of the Issuer and was not granted by a
member of the Group to secure the financing or refinancing of the acquisition of the shares of
such company, (y) the amount secured by such Security Interest does not exceed the acquisition
price of such asset and has not been increased for the purpose of, or since, the acquisition of the
shares of the relevant company and (2) if such Security Interest is not a Permitted Security Interest
under any other paragraph of this definition, a release of such Security Interest is granted within
6 months following the acquisition of the shares of the relevant company;

(1)  any escrow (or equivalent arrangement) granted in connection with a disposal of assets to secure
the rights of the purchaser of such assets under a guarantee or indemnity undertaking, provided
that (x) the escrowed amount under such escrow does not exceed one hundred per cent. (100%)
of the disposal price of such assets and (y) such escrow does not exceed three (3) years or, for any
amount escrowed to secure a tax risk, the duration of the relevant tax statute of limitation;

(k) any escrow (or equivalent arrangement) granted in connection with a Permitted Acquisition
(including in respect of any earn-out and put option); and

()  any Security Interest, other than those permitted under paragraphs (a) to (k) above, securing
Financial Indebtedness and granted over assets which aggregate book value does not exceed at
any time five per cent. (5%) of the Group's consolidated gross assets (actif brut consolidé) as
referred to in the most recent audited annual consolidated financial statements of the Issuer.

"Security Interest" means any mortgage, lien, charge, pledge, privilege, delegation or other form of
security interest (sGreté réelle) including any other encumbrance, or transfer of ownership for security
purposes, over one or more present or future assets.

"Shares Pledges" has the meaning given to it in Condition 4.

"Subsidiary™ means, in relation to any entity at any time, any other person or entity controlled directly
or indirectly by such person or entity within the meaning of Articles L.233-1 and L.233-3 of the French
Code de commerce.

SHARES PLEDGES

Pursuant to a share pledge agreement (contrat de nantissement de comptes de titres financiers) in the
French language to be entered into between the Issuer, the Lenders, the Facility Agent, the
Representative (acting on behalf of the Masse (as defined below) as beneficiary), the representative of
the masse of the holders of 2028 Notes (acting on behalf of the masse of the holders of 2028 Notes (as
defined below) as beneficiary) and the Security Agent on the Issue Date (the "Pledge Agreement"), the
Issuer grants a first ranking pledge over the financial securities accounts (nantissement de comptes-titres
de premier rang) opened in the name of the Issuer in the books of EHTP, Cardinal Edifice, NGE
Fondations, Guintoli, NGE Génie Civil, NGE Infranet and TSO, for the benefit of the Lenders, the
Facility Agent, the Hedging Banks, the Masse and the masse of the holders of 2028 Notes in accordance
with article L.228-77 of the French Code de commerce (the "Shares Pledges™), as more fully described
in the Pledge Agreement.
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Pursuant to the Pledge Agreement and the Intercreditor Agreement (as defined below), the Security
Agent is appointed as agent of the Masse in order to create, manage and enforce the Shares Pledges for
and on behalf of the Masse, it being specified that articles 2488-6 to 2488-12 of the French Code civil
will not apply to the Security Agent.

Subject to the terms of the Intercreditor Agreement (as defined below), the Shares Pledges may only be
enforced in the event of default by the Issuer to pay any amount due under the 2029 Notes.

By acquiring and holding the 2029 Notes, the 2029 Noteholders will be deemed to (i) appoint the
Security Agent in accordance with the Pledge Agreement, (ii) have notice of the provisions of the Pledge
Agreement and (iii) authorise Crédit Lyonnais to execute the Pledge Agreement as Security Agent.

For the purposes of these 2029 Conditions:

"2028 Notes" means the €35,000,000 3.200 per cent. notes due 8 December 2028 issued by the Issuer
on 8 December 2021.

"Cardinal Edifice" means the société par actions simplifiée registered with the Registre du commerce
et des sociétés of Rennes under number 950 033 555.

"EHTP" means the société par actions simplifiée registered with the Registre du commerce et des
sociétés of Tarascon under number 439 987 405.

"Facilities Agreement" means the facilities agreement (contrat de crédits) dated 8 December 2021
entered into between inter alia the Issuer as borrower, Crédit Lyonnais as Facility Agent and the
Lenders.

"Facility Agent" means, as at 8 December 2021, Crédit Lyonnais acting as agent for the Lenders in
accordance with the provisions of the Facilities Agreement.

"Guintoli" means the société par actions simplifiée registered with the Registre du commerce et des
sociétés of Tarascon under number 447 754 086.

"Hedging Banks" means the hedging banks parties to the hedging agreements to be entered into by the
Issuer pursuant to the Facilities Agreement.

"Lenders" means the financial institutions parties to the Facilities Agreement as lenders.

"NGE Fondations" means the société par actions simplifiée registered with the Registre du commerce
et des sociétés of Lyon under number 348 099 987.

"NGE Génie Civil" means the société par actions simplifiée registered with the Registre du commerce
et des sociétés of Tarascon under number 487 469 330.

"NGE Infranet" means the société par actions simplifiée registered with the Registre du commerce et
des sociétés of Tarascon under number 501 241 624.

"Security Agent" means, as at 8 December 2021, Crédit Lyonnais, acting as agent for the beneficiaries
of the Shares Pledges in accordance with the provisions of the Intercreditor Agreement (as defined in
Condition 5).

"TSO™" means the société par actions simplifiée registered with the Registre du commerce et des sociétés
of Meaux under number 747 252 120.

INTERCREDITOR AGREEMENT

Pursuant to an intercreditor agreement (convention intercréanciers) in the French language to be entered
into between the Security Agent, the Facility Agent, the Lenders, the Representative (acting on behalf
of the Masse, as beneficiary of the Shares Pledges) and the representative of the masse of the holders of
2028 Notes (acting on behalf of the masse of the holders of 2028 Notes, as beneficiary of the Shares
Pledges) on the Issue Date (the "Intercreditor Agreement") a pro-rata distribution of the proceeds on
a pari passu basis will be made between the beneficiaries of the Shares Pledges in case of enforcement
of the Shares Pledges.
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Pursuant to the Intercreditor Agreement and as more fully described therein, in the event of (i) the
Facility Agent (acting on behalf of the Lenders and the Hedging Banks), (ii) the Representative (acting
on behalf of the Masse (the decision of the Masse to enforce or not to enforce the Shares Pledges binding
all 2029 Noteholders, including those who did not attend and vote at the relevant General Meeting or
those who voted in a manner contrary to the majority)) or (iii) the representative of the masse of the
holders of 2028 Notes (acting on behalf of the masse of the holders of 2028 Notes (the decision of the
masse of the holders of 2028 Notes to enforce or not to enforce the Shares Pledges binding all holders
of 2028 Notes, including those who did not attend and vote at the relevant General Meeting or those
who voted in a manner contrary to the majority)) request the enforcement of the Shares Pledges, such
enforcement will have to be made by the Security Agent provided that the beneficiaries of the Shares
Pledges requesting such enforcement represents a majority of fifty-one per cent. (51%) of all said
beneficiaries.

In the event the beneficiaries of the Shares Pledges requesting such enforcement represents less than
fifty-one per cent. (51%) of all beneficiaries, the Security Agent will consult the other beneficiaries to
determine whether they wish to accept or refuse the enforcement.

The aforesaid majority of beneficiaries is calculated based on the outstanding amount due by the Issuer
to the Facility Agent and the Lenders under the Facilities Agreement, to the 2029 Noteholders under the
2029 Notes and to the holders of 2028 Notes under the 2028 Notes (the outstanding amount of the
Hedging Banks being excluded).

By acquiring and holding the 2029 Notes, the 2029 Noteholders will be deemed to (i) appoint the
Security Agent in accordance with the Intercreditor Agreement, (ii) have notice of the provisions of the
Intercreditor Agreement and (iii) authorise Crédit Lyonnais to execute the Intercreditor Agreement as
Security Agent.

SUBORDINATION AGREEMENT

A subordination agreement (convention de subordination) in the French language will be entered into
on the Issue Date between inter alia the Issuer, the Lenders, the Representative (acting on behalf of the
Masse), the representative of the masse of the holders of 2028 Notes (acting on behalf of the masse of
the holders of 2028 Notes), the holder of the Simple Bonds and the representative of the masse of the
holders of the Bonds Redeemable in Shares (the "Subordination Agreement"), for the purpose of
defining the terms and conditions under which the payment of amounts due by the Issuer under the
Simple Bonds, the Bonds Redeemable in Shares and any Other Subordinated Debt will be subordinated
to the payment of any amount due under the 2028 Notes, the 2029 Notes and the Facilities Agreement.

Notably and as more fully described therein, the Subordination Agreement provides for (i) the early
redemption or purchase of the Simple Bonds and of the Bonds Redeemable in Shares with the proceeds
received from any Concession Transfer (as defined in Condition 9.4(a)) and (ii) in the event the Simple
Bonds are not redeemed or purchased up to €21,376,955 on 8 December 2022 and up to €15,000,000
on 8 December 2023 with the proceeds received from any Concession Transfer, the redemption or
purchase by the Issuer of the Simple Bonds by CME up to the required amount by way of a share capital
increase subscribed by the shareholders of the Issuer (the "Simple Bonds Put Option™).

By acquiring and holding the 2029 Notes, the 2029 Noteholders will be deemed to have notice of the
provisions of the Subordination Agreement.

"Bonds Redeemable in Shares" means the bonds redeemable in shares (obligations remboursables en
actions) to be issued by the Issuer on 8 December 2021 up to an aggregate nominal amount of
€43,092,421.65 due on 8 December 2031, bearing full capitalised interest at an annual rate of (i) 2% per
annum up to and including 8 December 2022 and (ii) 6% per annum from 9 December 2022, with a
maturity of ten (10) years and to be fully subscribed by FSA, FSB and NGE Management by way of
set-off against the portion of the shareholder's loan held by FSA, FSB and NGE Management.

"CME" means Crédit Mutuel Equity SCR, a société par actions simplifiée registered with the Registre
du commerce et des sociétés of Paris under number 317 586 220.
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7.2
(@)

"FSA" means Financiere Saint Anne, société par actions simplifiée registered with the Registre du
commerce et des sociétés of Paris under number 503 859 241.

"FSB" means Financiére Saint Bénezet, the société par actions simplifiée registered with the Registre
du commerce et des sociétés of Paris under number 529 992 505.

"NGE Management" means the société en commandite par actions registered with the Registre du
commerce et des sociétés of Avignon under number 504 409 657.

"Simple Bonds" means the ordinary subordinated bonds (obligations simples subordonnées) to be
issued by the Issuer on 8 December 2021 up to an aggregate nominal amount of €36,376,955 bearing
full capitalised interest with a maturity of two (2) years (redeemable or callable up to a maximum of
€21,376,955 on 8 December 2022 and up to a maximum of €15,000,000 on 8 December 2023) and to
be fully subscribed by CME by way of set-off against the portion of the shareholder loan held by CME.

"Other Subordinated Debt" means any issue by the Issuer after the Issue Date of debt securities
(including any issue of simple bonds or bonds giving access to capital) or any shareholder loans and/or
advances in shareholder's current account granted to the Issuer after the Issue Date, provided that such
debt securities, shareholder loans and advances in shareholder's current account (x) are fully
subordinated (in principal, interest or any amount related thereto) to the Facilities Agreement, the 2028
Notes and the 2029 Notes under the terms and conditions of the Subordination Agreement, (y) have a
maturity date falling twelve (12) months after the later of (i) the final maturity date of the Facilities
Agreement, (ii) the final maturity date of the 2028 Notes and (iii) the Maturity Date and (z) are
unsecured.

RATE OF INTEREST
Interest Payment Dates

The 2029 Notes will bear interest from, and including, the Issue Date to, but excluding,
8 December 2029 (the "Maturity Date") at a fixed rate of 3.400 per cent. per annum (the "Initial
Interest Rate") (adjusted, as the case may be, pursuant to Condition 7.2 below), payable annually in
arrear on 8 December in each year up to and including the Maturity Date (each an "Interest Payment
Date"). The first Interest Payment Date will be on 8 December 2022 for the period from, and including,
the Issue Date up to, but excluding, 8 December 2022.

Adjustment and Sustainable Compensation Amount
Interest rate adjustment

The Initial Interest Rate applicable to the 2029 Notes will be adjusted as follows in respect of the first
Interest Payment Date following each Valuation Date (as defined in Condition 8.4 below), based on the
information contained in the most recent Sustainable Performance Report (as defined in Condition 8.4
below) delivered by the Issuer as provided in Condition 8.3(c)(ii) below:

(i)  ifthe Issuer has complied with all of the Sustainable Performance Targets (as defined in Condition
8.4 below), then the 2029 Notes will bear interest at the Initial Interest Rate minus 20 basis points;

(i) if the Issuer has complied with two (2) of the Sustainable Performance Targets, then the 2029
Notes will bear interest at the Initial Interest Rate minus 10 basis points;

(iii)  if the Issuer has complied with one (1) of the Sustainable Performance Targets, then the 2029
Notes will bear interest at the Initial Interest Rate; and

(iv) if the Issuer has not complied with any of the Sustainable Performance Targets, then the 2029
Notes will bear interest at the Initial Interest Rate plus 10 basis points.

For the avoidance of doubt, in case of the occurrence of any of the events referred to in subparagraphs
(1), (ii) or (iv) above, the adjustment of the Initial Interest Rate will be applicable to the 2029 Notes from
the first day of the Interest Period in which such event has occurred and for each successive Interest
Period until the next Interest Payment Date where an adjustment pursuant to this Condition 7.2 will
occur. The Calculation Agent shall notify to the Issuer the adjusted interest rate and the resulting amount
of interest due for the relevant Interest Period no later than seven (7) Business Days prior to the Interest
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(b)

Payment Date, it being specified that no adjustment shall be made pursuant to this Condition 7.2(a) for
compliance with the Sustainable Performance Targets prior to the Interest Payment Date falling on
8 December 2023.

If for any reason (x) the performance level against the Sustainable Performance Target 1 and/or the
Sustainable Performance Target 2 and/or the Sustainable Performance Target 3 cannot be calculated, (y)
the Statutory Auditors are not in a position to provide their External Verification Report or (z) the Issuer
is not in a position to provide the Sustainable Performance Report or to include the information required
under Condition 8.4(iv) in its annual report or CSR (corporate and responsability) report (rapport RSE
(responsabilité sociale d'entreprise)):

- in respect of (x) above, the Initial Interest Rate applicable to the 2029 Notes will be adjusted (if
applicable) in accordance with the provisions of sub-paragraphs (ii) to (iv) above of this Condition
7.2(a), as if the Issuer had not complied with one (1), two (2) or three (3) (as applicable) of the
Sustainable Performance Targets;

- in respect of (y) and (z) above, the Initial Interest Rate applicable to the 2029 Notes will be
adjusted (if applicable) in accordance with the provisions of sub-paragraph (iv) above of this
Condition 7.2(a), as if the Issuer had not complied with any of the three (3) Sustainable
Performance Targets; and

- if applicable, the Issuer will pay a Sustainable Compensation Amount as defined and provided
under Condition 7.2(b) below, as if the Issuer had not complied with any of the three (3)
Sustainable Performance Targets.

No adjustment under subparagraphs (i) or (ii) above shall take place as long as an Event of Default has
occurred and is continuing.

For the purposes of these 2029 Conditions:

"Interest Period" means the period from (and including) the Issue Date to (but excluding) the first
Interest Payment Date and each successive period from (and including) an Interest Payment Date to (but
excluding) the next succeeding Interest Payment Date.

Sustainable Compensation Amount

A Sustainable Compensation Amount (as defined below) shall be paid by the Issuer to one or several
Eligible Foundations (as defined below) on the Interest Payment Date immediately succeeding the
determination of such Sustainable Compensation Amount (the "Sustainable Compensation Measure")
if, based on the information contained in the most recent Sustainable Performance Report (as defined in
Condition 8.4 below) delivered by the Issuer as provided in Condition 8.3(c)(ii) below, the Issuer has
not complied with any of the Sustainable Performance Targets.

Where relevant, the 2029 Noteholders will be notified, in accordance with Condition 15, of the
Sustainable Compensation Measure to be implemented or which have been implemented by the Issuer
upon communication of the Sustainable Performance Report.

For the avoidance of doubt, (i) such Sustainable Compensation Amount shall be paid in addition to any
interest rate adjustment in accordance with Condition 7.2(a) above but shall not be added to the amount
of interest payable annually under the 2029 Notes, (ii) no determination of such Sustainable
Compensation Amount shall be made pursuant to this Condition 7.2(b) prior to the Valuation Date
falling on 31 December 2022 and (iii) no payment of such Sustainable Compensation Amount shall be
made pursuant to this Condition 7.2(b) prior to the Interest Payment Date falling on 8 December 2023.

For the purposes of these 2029 Conditions:

"Eligible Foundation" means LADAPT (https://www.ladapt.net/soutenir) and/or Prévention Routiére
(https://www.preventionroutiere.asso.fr/) and/or Biocenys (https://www.biocenys.fr/) and/or CAPTE
(https://www.capte.io/projets/) and/or ONF (https://www.onf.fr/onf), and/or Association des Femmes
Ingénieurs (https:/imvww.femmes-ingenieures.org/) and/or OPE
(https://www.objectifpouremploi.fr/orientation/mixite/) and/or any other similar foundation, non-
governmental organisation or association, (i) enjoying local credibility, (ii) whose field of activity falls
in whole or in part within the environmental, social, and governance themes to which the Issuer's KPIs
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7.3

8.1

pertain, (iii) which, to the best of the Issuer's knowledge, are not subject to sanctions and are not engaged
in an activity or have not committed an act violating any law or regulation seeking the prevention or the
sanctioning of corruption, money laundering and/or terrorist financing and (iv) in respect of which there
is nor will be no conflict of interest with the Group or the Issuer.

"Sustainable Compensation Amount" means an amount equal to 0.10% per annum of the outstanding
principal amount of the 2029 Notes.

Interest payments

Each Note will cease to bear interest from the due date for redemption, unless the Issuer defaults in
payment for its redemption on said date. In such event, interest on such Note shall continue to accrue at
the Initial Interest Rate (adjusted, as the case may be, pursuant to Condition 7.2 above) (both before and
after judgment) until the calendar day (included) on which all sums due in respect of such Note up to
that calendar day are received by or on behalf of the relevant Noteholder.

Interest will be calculated on an Actual/Actual (ICMA) basis. Where interest is to be calculated in
respect of a period of less than one year, it shall be calculated on the basis of the number of days elapsed
in the relevant period, from and including the date from which interest begins to accrue to but excluding
the date on which it falls due, divided by the number of days in such period in which the relevant period
falls (including the first but excluding the last day of such period) i.e. divided by 365 (or by 366 if a
February 29 is included in such period). Where interest is to be calculated in respect of a period which
is more than one year, such interest shall be the aggregate of the interest payable in respect of a full year
plus the interest payable in respect of the remaining period calculated in the manner as aforesaid.

COVENANTS

So long as any of the 2029 Notes is outstanding, the Issuer shall comply with the covenants referred to
in this Condition 8.

Financial Covenants
The Issuer shall procure that as at each Testing Date:
(@) the Net Leverage Ratio is less than 2.50X,

it being specified that the Net Leverage Ratio may be exceeded a maximum of two (2) times
before the Maturity Date,

it being further specified that the Net Leverage Ratio shall never be (i) higher than 3.00x nor (ii)
exceeded in respect of two (2) consecutive Testing Dates,

(b) the Gross Leverage Ratio is less than 5.00x,

it being specified that the Gross Leverage Ratio may be exceeded a maximum of two (2) times
before the Maturity Date,

it being further specified that the Gross Leverage Ratio shall never be (i) higher than 5.50x nor
(ii) exceeded in respect of two (2) consecutive Testing Dates,

(c) the Consolidated Net Cash is higher than (i) €60,000,000 as at the first Testing Date (i.e. being
31 December 2021), (ii) €80,000,000 as at the second Testing Date (i.e. being 31 December 2022)
and (iii) €100,000,000 as at each following Testing Date,

(together, the "Financial Covenants").

The Financial Covenants shall be calculated in accordance with the accounting principles applicable to
the annual consolidated financial statements of the Issuer taking into account IFRS (International
Financial Reporting Standards) rules (including, for the avoidance of doubt, IFRS 16 rule) applicable
as of the Issue Date and tested by reference to the relevant annual consolidated financial statements of
the Issuer.

The Gross Leverage Ratio and the Net Leverage Ratio in respect of a Relevant Period shall be adjusted
on a pro forma basis to include or restate (on a twelve month basis) the EBITDA of any company
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acquired pursuant to a Permitted Acquisition (as defined below in Condition 8.2) during that Relevant
Period (as if it had been a member of the Group since the beginning of the Relevant Period) or the
EBITDA of any member of the Group disposed during that Relevant Period (as if it had ceased to be a
member of the Group since the beginning of the Relevant Period).

For the purposes of these 2029 Conditions:

"Consolidated EBIT" means the " consolidated "current operating income (Résultat opérationnel
courant)" item (or equivalent item) referred to in the most recent audited annual consolidated financial
statements of the Issuer; provided that, with respect to the new entities which shall become part of the
Group, the relevant amounts to be taken into account shall be computed on the basis of the Relevant
Period, whatever the date of their integration.

"Consolidated EBITDA™" means the Consolidated EBIT increased by the "Amortization, depreciation
and provisions net (Dotations nettes aux amortissements et provisions" item and the "Net book value of
disposals of non-current assets (Valeur nette comptable des éléments d'actifs cédés)" item (or equivalent
items), all as referred to in the most recent audited annual consolidated financial statements of the Issuer;
provided that, with respect to the new entities which shall become part of the Group, the relevant
amounts to be taken into account shall be computed on the basis of the Relevant Period, whatever the
date of their integration.

"Consolidated Gross Debt" means (A) the sum of (i) the "Long-term borrowings and loans (Emprunts
et dettes financiéres diverses a long terme)" item, (ii) the "Current Borrowings and loans (Emprunts et
dettes financiéeres courants)" item, (iii) the "Bank overdrafts (Découverts bancaires)" item (including
any securitisation, whether deconsolidating or not), (iv) the "Non-current lease liabilities (Dettes de
location non courantes)" item and (v) the "Current lease liabilities (Dettes de location courantes)" item
(or equivalent items), all as referred to in the most recent audited annual consolidated financial
statements of the Issuer, minus (B) the Subordinated Debts.

"Consolidated Gross Cash" means the "Cash and cash equivalents (Trésorerie et équivalents de
trésorerie)" item referred to in the most recent audited annual consolidated financial statements of the
Issuer.

"Consolidated Net Cash" means the Consolidated Gross Cash minus the "Bank overdrafts (Découverts
bancaires)" item referred to in the most recent audited annual consolidated financial statements of the
Issuer (including any securitisation, whether deconsolidating or not).

"Consolidated Net Debt" means the Consolidated Gross Debt minus the Consolidated Gross Cash.

"Gross Leverage Ratio" means, in respect of any Relevant Period, the ratio of the Consolidated Gross
Debt divided by the Consolidated EBITDA.

"Net Leverage Ratio" means, in respect of any Relevant Period, the ratio of the Consolidated Net Debt
divided by the Consolidated EBITDA.

"Relevant Period" means a period of twelve (12) months ending on or about a Testing Date.

"Subordinated Debts" means the Simple Bonds, the Bonds Redeemable in Shares and, if applicable,
any Other Subordinated Debt.

"Testing Date" means 31 December in each year, the first Testing Date being 31 December 2021.
Limitation on acquisition covenant

The Issuer undertakes that it will not, and will ensure that none of its Subsidiaries will, acquire the shares
of a company or a business or an undertaking other than a Permitted Acquisition.

For the purposes of these 2029 Conditions:

"Line of Business" means any activity in the sector of building and public works, both in France and
internationally.
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"Permitted Acquisition” means the acquisition of the shares of a company or the acquisition of a
business or of an undertaking (or, in each case, any interest in any of them) that complies with the
following criteria:

(i)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

the enterprise value (valeur d'entreprise) of the acquisition does not exceed €30,000,000
individually (it being specified that completion of any such acquisition for an enterprise value
(valeur d'entreprise) in excess of €30,000,000 shall be subject to the prior approval of the Masse)
or €60,000,000 in aggregate (when aggregated with enterprise values (valeurs d'entreprise) of
any Permitted Acquisition made within a same financial year);

no Event of Default (as defined in Condition 12 below) is on-going or would result from such
acquisition;

the level of the Financial Covenants, determined on a pro forma basis taking into account the
contemplated acquisition (i) were complied with as at the last Testing Date immediately preceding
the date of completion of such acquisition, should such acquisition be completed on or before 30
June or (ii) will be complied with as at the next Testing Date immediately following the date of
completion of such acquisition, should such acquisition be completed after 30 June;

if the acquisition is over the shares of a company:

(@) the liability of the shareholders of the company (due to its corporate form) is limited to
their capital contribution;

(b) upon completion of the Permitted Acquisition, either (a) the Issuer or the relevant
Subsidiary holds the control (direct or indirect), within the meaning of Article L.233-3 | of
the French Code de commerce, of such company or (b) the Issuer or the relevant Subsidiary
holds an initial interest in such company together with a call option, allowing the Issuer or
the relevant Subsidiary to gain the control (direct or indirect), within the meaning of Article
L.233-3 | of the French Code de commerce, of the said company should the call option be
exercised; and

(c) the EBITDA of the company (if applicable, on a consolidated basis or aggregated with its
Subsidiaries) calculated over the last twelve (12) months (or, if such information is not
available, on the basis of the latest available annual accounts (if applicable, consolidated
according to the group's consolidation standards)) (the "Target EBITDA"):

(x) s positive for the last financial year immediately preceding the relevant Permitted
Acquisition; or

(y) if negative, does not exceed (1) an individual amount of -€2,000,000 (or its
equivalent in any other currency) and (2) an amount, aggregated with the sum of the
negative EBITDA (calculated over the last twelve (12) months (or, if such
information is not available, on the basis of the last available annual accounts (if
applicable consolidated according to the group's consolidation standards)) of all
Permitted Acquisitions over the shares of companies completed since the Issue Date
and whose EBITDA were negative at the date of their acquisition, of -€5,000,000 (or
its equivalent in any other currency);

the company, the business or the undertaking is engaged in activities that are within, similar or
related to the Line of Business; and

the company, the business or the undertaking is located (or registered in the case of a company)
in a country that is not a Sanctioned Country.

"Sanctioned Country" means any country or territory that is, or whose government is, subject to a
Sanctions regime prohibiting or restricting relations with that country, territory or government.

"Sanctions" means any laws, regulations or other restrictive measures of a mandatory nature enacting
economic, financial or trade sanctions (including, for the avoidance of doubt, any sanctions or measures
relating to any embargo or freeze on funds and economic resources, restrictions on dealings with persons
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or on goods or territories) issued, administered or enforced by the United States of America (including,
without limitation, measures enacted by the Office of Foreign Assets Control of the U.S. Department of
the Treasury (OFAC), the Department of Commerce and the U.S. Department of State), and/or the
United Nations (including the United Nations Security Council), and/or the European Union and/or the
Republic of France and/or the United Kingdom or any other competent authority, including other states,
having the power to impose such sanctions.

Information undertakings

The Issuer shall supply to the Fiscal Agent (copy to the Representative) who will make available to the
2029 Noteholders, in accordance with any applicable law (in particular Regulation (EU) No 596/2014
of the European Parliament and of the Council of 16 April 2014 on market abuse):

(@) assoon as they are available but in any event within one hundred and eighty (180) calendar days
after the end of each financial year of the Issuer, or as applicable, each Principal Subsidiary:

(i)  certified true copies of the audited annual consolidated financial statements of the Issuer
for such financial year;

(if)  certified true copies of the audited annual non-consolidated financial statements of the
Issuer and each Principal Subsidiary for such financial year; and

(iii)  the audit reports with respect thereto (except the Principal Subsidiaries for which a statutory
auditor or an auditor is not required by applicable regulations).

(b) assoon as they are available but in any event within one hundred and twenty (120) calendar days
after the end of the first six-month period of each financial year of the Issuer:

(i)  certified true copies of the unaudited and uncertified semi-annual consolidated financial
statements of the Issuer for such six-month period, and

(i)  certified true copies of the unaudited and uncertified semi-annual non-consolidated
financial statements of the Issuer for such six-month period.

(c) assoon as possible but in any event within one hundred and eighty (180) calendar days after the
end of each financial year of the Issuer:

(i) a compliance certificate, signed by its legal representative and by its auditors, stating
whether or not the Issuer complies with its Financial Covenants and setting out, on a
consolidated basis as of 31 December of the relevant financial year, computations of its
Financial Covenants;

(if)  the Sustainable Performance Report, together with the External Verification Report
referred to in Condition 8.4 below, and for the first time in respect of the Valuation Date
falling on 31 December 2022;

(iii) a compliance certificate, signed by its legal representative and by its auditors, stating any
and all Security Interests over or affecting the shares of any of the Issuer's Subsidiaries;

(iv) if applicable, a compliance certificate, signed by its legal representative, listing the
Principal Subsidiaries detailing their contribution to the total gross consolidated revenues
of the Issuer and the Consolidated EBITDA, each as calculated from the most recent
audited annual consolidated financial statements of the Issuer; and

(v) a compliance certificate, signed by its legal representative, stating whether or not all
acquisitions of shares of companies, businesses and undertakings made during this
financial year, met the criteria of Permitted Acquisition.

Upon receipt of any compliance certificate from the Issuer, the Fiscal Agent shall provide the 2029
Noteholders with such compliance certificate in accordance with Condition 15.

The Fiscal Agent shall have no obligation to read or analyse any information or report delivered to it
under this Condition 8.3 and shall have no obligation to determine whether any such information or
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report complies with the provision of this Condition 8.3 and shall not be deemed to have notice of
anything disclosed therein and shall incur no liability by reason thereof.

For the purposes of these 2029 Conditions:
"Principal Subsidiary" means:

(@) any other Subsidiary of the Issuer whose (i) gross revenues represent more than three per cent.
(3%) of the total gross consolidated revenues of the Group and (ii) EBITDA represents more than
five per cent. (5%) of Consolidated EBITDA, as calculated from the most recent audited annual
consolidated financial statements of the Issuer; and

(b) inthe event that the aggregate amount of gross revenues of all Subsidiaries of the Issuer referred
to in paragraph (a) above represents less than seventy per cent. (70%) of the total gross
consolidated revenues of the Group, all other Subsidiaries of the Issuer taken in descending order
of gross revenues until the aggregate amount of gross revenues of the companies referred to in
paragraphs (a) and (b) represents at least seventy per cent. (70%) of the total gross consolidated
revenues of the Group, as calculated from the most recent audited annual consolidated financial
statements of the Issuer.

A list of the Principal Subsidiaries as at the Issue Date is set out in Schedule 1 to these 2029 Conditions.
Sustainable Performance Targets
The Issuer will, in respect of each Valuation Date:

(i) evaluate in good faith the performance level of KPI 1 against the Sustainable Performance
Targets 1 as at each Valuation Date;

(i)  evaluate in good faith the performance level of KPI 2 against the Sustainable Performance
Targets 2 as at each Valuation Date;

(iii) evaluate in good faith the performance level of KPI 3 against the Sustainable Performance
Targets 3 as at each Valuation Date;

(iv) include in a dedicated section of its annual report or CSR (corporate and responsability) report
(rapport RSE (responsabilité sociale d'entreprise)), as applicable, the valuation made by the
Issuer of the KPIs against the Sustainable Performance Targets;

(v)  prepare a report that will include (x) the valuation made by the Issuer of the KPIs against the
Sustainable Performance Targets, (y) the related impact (including timing of such impact) on the
2029 Notes in terms of adjustment to the Initial Interest Rate and, if applicable, payment of the
Sustainable Compensation Amount and (z) if applicable, the accurate payment of the Sustainable
Compensation Amount due with respect to the relevant previous Interest Payment Date (it being
specified that such payment shall be in addition to any donations otherwise made by the Issuer to
such Eligible Foundation and detailed for each Eligible Foundation) (the "Sustainable
Performance Report™);

(vi) ensure that the Statutory Auditors prepare a verification report confirming the contents of the
Sustainable Performance Report (the "External Verification Report™); and

(vii) deliver the Sustainable Performance Report, together with the External Verification Report, in
accordance with Condition 8.3(c)(ii) to the 2029 Noteholders.

In the event of any change (i) to the calculation methodology of any of the KPIs, (ii) in data due to better
data accessibility and/or (iii) as a result of any Significant Change in the Group's Perimeter, which,
individually or in aggregate, has a significant impact on the levels of any of the Sustainable Performance
Targets and/or the level of any of the KPI baselines, the Sustainable Performance Targets and/or the
KPI baselines may be recalculated in good faith by the Issuer (and, in respect of any event referred to in
(iii) above, on the basis of proforma financial statements taking into account the impact of such event)
to reflect such change, provided that:

(@)  such change has no adverse effect on the interests of the 2029 Noteholders; and
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(b) an independent and well-recognised expert on the relevant KPI has been appointed by the Issuer
(e.g. EcoAct for Green House Gas emissions reduction) and has independently confirmed that the
proposed revision (X) is consistent with the Issuer's strategy and (y) is in line with the initial level
of ambition of the relevant Sustainable Performance Target(s),

as described in "The Group's Sustainable Performance Targets" in this Prospectus.

Any such change will be communicated as soon as reasonably practicable by the Issuer to the Fiscal
Agent (copy to the Representative) who will notify the same to the 2029 Noteholders in accordance with
Condition 15.

Any other changes will be made with the prior approval of the 2029 Noteholders.
For the purposes of these 2029 Conditions:

"Accident Frequency Rate" means the number of accidents with sick leave multiplied by one million
(1,000,000) and divided by the number of worked hours, it being specified that (i) "worked hours" means
the number of full-time equivalent staff excluding temporary staff multiplied by the number of working
hours made every year by a full-time person and (ii) "accidents with sick leave" means the accidents
resulting in a sick leave of at least twenty-four (24) hours, declared and recognised by any competent
authority.

"EcoAct" means the société par actions simplifiée registered with the Registre du commerce et des
sociétés of Paris under number 492 029 475, being an international environmental consultant.

"GHG Protocol Corporate Standard" means the document entitled "The Greenhouse Gas Protocol, A
Corporate Accounting and Reporting Standard (Revised Edition)" published by the World Business
Council for Sustainable Development and the World Resources Institute (as amended and updated as at
the Issue Date).

"Group" means at any time the Issuer and its Subsidiaries
"KPIs" means, together, the KPI 1, the KPI 2 and the KPI 3.

"KPI 1" means the first key performance indicator relating to the reduction of the Accident Frequency
Rate on a worldwide scope, in line with the United Nations Sustainable Development Goals n°3, on
which the Sustainable Performance Targets 1 are based.

"KPI 2" means the second key performance indicator relating to the total GreenHouse Gas emissions
(i.e. absolute GreenHouse Gas emissions) in respect of Scope 1 and Scope 2, on a worldwide scope,
expressed in tons of CO2 equivalent (tCO2eq), calculated by the Issuer, in line with the GHG Protocol,
the EU Environmental Objective 1 — Climate Change Mitigation and United Nations Sustainable
Development Goals n°13 and a well-below 2°C scenario, on which the Sustainable Performance Targets
2 are based.

"KPI 3" means the third key performance indicator relating to the number of women among building
site managers on a worldwide scope, in line with the United Nations Sustainable Development Goals
n°5, on which the Sustainable Performance Targets 3 are based.

"Scope 1" means direct greenhouse gas emissions from sources owned or controlled by the Group, as
defined in the GHG Protocol Corporate Standard, expressed in tons of carbon dioxide equivalent
(tCO2eq).

"Scope 2" means indirect greenhouse gas emissions from the generation of electricity, steam and
heating/cooling purchased from third parties and consumed in the Group's owned or controlled
equipment or operations, as defined in the GHG Protocol Corporate Standard, expressed in tons of
carbon dioxide equivalent (tCO2eq).

"Significant Change in the Group's Perimeter"” means any significant external growth, acquisition or
disposal in excess of ten per cent. (10%) of the total revenue of the Group.

"Statutory Auditors™ means the statutory auditors of the Issuer, being as at the Issue Date Groupe IFEC
and TALENZ ARES AUDIT (formerly AREs X-PERT AUDIT).
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"Sustainable Performance Targets" means, together, the Sustainable Performance Targets 1, the
Sustainable Performance Targets 2 and the Sustainable Performance Targets 3.

"Sustainable Performance Targets 1" means the objectives at the Group's level (including any
significant external growth, acquisition and/or disposal other than a Significant Change in the Group's
Perimeter completed as at the relevant Valuation Date) relating to KPI 1 to be complied with on each
Valuation Date, in line with the United Nations Sustainable Development Goals n°3, being a cumulative
annual reduction against the 2020 baseline of six per cent. (6%) and corresponding:

(i)  onthe Valuation Date falling on 31 December 2022, to an Accident Frequency Rate less than or
equal to 12.06%;

(i) on the Valuation Date falling on 31 December 2023, to an Accident Frequency Rate less than or
equal to 11.34%;

(iii) on the Valuation Date falling on 31 December 2024, to an Accident Frequency Rate less than or
equal to 10.66%;

(iv) on the Valuation Date falling on 31 December 2025, to an Accident Frequency Rate less than or
equal to 10.02%;

(v) onthe Valuation Date falling on 31 December 2026, to an Accident Frequency Rate less than or
equal to 9.42%;

(vi) on the Valuation Date falling on 31 December 2027, to an Accident Frequency Rate less than or
equal to 8.85%; and

(vii) on the Valuation Date falling on 31 December 2028, to an Accident Frequency Rate less than or
equal to 8.32%.

"Sustainable Performance Targets 2" means the objectives at the Group's level (including any
significant external growth, acquisition and/or disposal other than a Significant Change in the Group's
Perimeter completed as at the relevant Valuation Date) relating to KPI 2 to be complied with on each
Valuation Date, being a cumulative annual reduction of the quantity of tons of carbon dioxide equivalent
(tCO2eq) against 2019 baseline of four per cent. (4%), as calculated by the Issuer on the basis of the
methodology in line with the GHG Protocol, the EU Environmental Objective 1 — Climate Change
Mitigation and United Nations Sustainable Development Goals n°13 and a well-below 2°C scenario and
corresponding:

(i)  on the Valuation Date falling on 31 December 2022, to GreenHouse Gas emissions less than or
equal to 162,226 tCO2eq;

(if)  on the Valuation Date falling on 31 December 2023, to GreenHouse Gas emissions less than or
equal to 155,737 tCO2eq;

(iii)  on the Valuation Date falling on 31 December 2024, to GreenHouse Gas emissions less than or
equal to 149,507 tCO2eq;

(iv) on the Valuation Date falling on 31 December 2025, to GreenHouse Gas emissions less than or
equal to 143,527 tCO2eq;

(v) on the Valuation Date falling on 31 December 2026, to GreenHouse Gas emissions less than or
equal to 137,786 tCO2eq;

(vi) on the Valuation Date falling on 31 December 2027, to GreenHouse Gas emissions less than or
equal to 132,274 tCO2eq; and

(vii) on the Valuation Date falling on 31 December 2028, to GreenHouse Gas emissions less than or
equal to 126,983 tCO2eg.

"Sustainable Performance Targets 3" means the objectives at the Group's level (including any
significant external growth, acquisition and/or disposal other than a Significant Change in the Group's
Perimeter completed as at the relevant Valuation Date) relating to KPI 3 to be complied with on each
Valuation Date, in line with the United Nations Sustainable Development Goals n°5, being:
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(i)  on the Valuation Date falling on 31 December 2022, at least two hundred (200) women hired
among building site managers;

(i)  on the Valuation Date falling on 31 December 2023, at least two hundred and twenty-five (225)
women hired among building site managers;

(iii) on the Valuation Date falling on 31 December 2024, at least two hundred and sixty (260) women
hired among building site managers;

(iv) onthe Valuation Date falling on 31 December 2025, at least two hundred and ninety (290) women
hired among building site managers;

(v)  onthe Valuation Date falling on 31 December 2026, at least three hundred and thirty (330) women
hired among building site managers;

(vi) on the Valuation Date falling on 31 December 2027, at least three hundred and eighty (380)
women hired among building site managers; and

(vii) on the Valuation Date falling on 31 December 2028, at least four hundred and thirty (430) women
hired among building site managers.

"Valuation Date" means 31 December of each year until 31 December 2028 (included), the first
Valuation Date being 31 December 2022.

Limitation on distributions of dividends covenant

The Issuer undertakes that its corporate bodies will not make any distribution of dividends, interim
dividends or reserves in any form whatsoever, and that no distribution of dividends, interim dividends,
reserves or premiums in any form whatsoever will be made or paid, except for any such distribution to
all shareholders of the Issuer, in each financial year as from the financial year beginning on 1 January
2022 (inclusive), of dividends from the distributable income of the preceding financial year, subject to
compliance with the following conditions:

(i)  the total cumulative amount of distributions in respect of each financial year does not exceed fifty
(50) per cent. of the consolidated profit attributable to the Group of the previous financial year;

(i)  no Event of Default is on-going or results from the distribution or payment of such dividends;

(iii)  the Fiscal Agent has received for the preceding financial year the compliance certificate referred
to under Condition 8.3(c)(i) and the annual consolidated financial statements of the Issuer referred
to under Condition 8.3(a)(i); and

(iv) the Issuer has supplied to the Fiscal Agent a compliance certificate stating that the level of the
Financial Covenants (determined on a pro forma basis taking into account the contemplated
distribution and any other distribution already made during the relevant financial year) on the
immediately preceding Testing Date is complied with.

Limitation on Financial Indebtedness covenant

The Issuer undertakes that it will not, and shall ensure that none of its Subsidiaries will, incur and
maintain any Financial Indebtedness other than a Permitted Financial Indebtedness.

For the purposes of these 2029 Conditions, "Permitted Financial Indebtedness” means:
(i) any Financial Indebtedness existing as at the Issue Date;

(i)  the Financial Indebtedness under the Facilities Agreement;

(iii)  the 2028 Notes and the 2029 Notes;

(iv) the Subordinated Debts;

(v) any additional medium or long-term Financial Indebtedness (including under any crédit-bail or
lease-back or finance lease), incurred by members of the Group (or maintained following a
Permitted Acquisition) up to a maximum cumulative annual amount not exceeding six point fifty
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9.2
(@)

per cent. (6.50%) of the Group's consolidated revenues (excluding taxes) for the previous
financial year;

(vi) any additional short-term Financial Indebtedness within the meaning of IFRS (International
Financial Reporting Standards) rules, in the ordinary course of business and on customary terms,
for the purpose of financing their respective working capital requirements, provided that:

(@) the total outstanding short-term Financial Indebtedness within the meaning of IFRS
(International Financial Reporting Standards) rules (including the outstanding short-term
Financial Indebtedness existing as at the Issue Date and the uses of the NEU CP
programme, but excluding the uses of the securitisation programme of the Issuer and the
portion at less than one year of medium and long-term Financial Indebtedness) (the "Short-
Term Financial Indebtedness™) does not exceed, at any time, a cumulative amount at
Group level of €150,000,000 (or its equivalent in any other currency); and

(b) the Short-Term Financial Indebtedness is not secured by any security interest, personal
guarantee or other off-balance sheet commitment;

(vii) any additional Financial Indebtedness under the securitisation programme of the Issuer and/or
any other trade receivables securitisation programme, up to a maximum aggregate principal
amount of Financial Indebtedness (excluding interest accrued or to be accrued in respect of such
Financial Indebtedness) of €250,000,000 (increased to €280,000,000 during the period from 1
May to 31 October of each year in accordance with the provisions of the securitisation programme
of the Issuer) (or any equivalent amount in any other currency) at any time;

(viii) any additional Financial Indebtedness in respect of a vendor loan (crédit-vendeur) or any deferred
payment obligation incurred in connection with the acquisition of an asset or the completion of a
Permitted Acquisition;

(ix) any off-balance sheet commitment; and

(x)  any Financial Indebtedness in respect of any loan or credit in any form whatsoever entered into
in the ordinary course of business and on customary terms between members of the Group and
consistent with the corporate interest of the entities concerned.

REDEMPTION AND PURCHASE

The 2029 Notes may not be redeemed otherwise than in accordance with this Condition 9 or with
Conditions 11 and 12 below.

Redemption at maturity

Unless previously redeemed or purchased and cancelled, the 2029 Notes will be redeemed by the Issuer
in full at their Principal Amount (as defined below) on the Maturity Date.

For the purposes of these 2029 Conditions, "Principal Amount” means €100,000 per Note.
Redemption at the option of the Issuer
Early redemption at the Make Whole Redemption Amount

The Issuer will, subject to compliance by the Issuer with all relevant laws, regulations and directives
and having given not less than thirty (30) nor more than forty-five (45) calendar days' notice in
accordance with Condition 15 to the 2029 Noteholders, the Fiscal Agent and the Calculation Agent
(which notice shall be irrevocable), have the option to redeem the 2029 Notes, in whole but not in part,
at any time prior to 8 December 2025 (excluded) (the "Make Whole Redemption Date"), at their Make
Whole Redemption Amount (as defined below).

On the Calculation Date, the Calculation Agent will determine the Make Whole Redemption Rate
applicable on the Make Whole Redemption Date, calculate the Make Whole Redemption Amount and,
as soon as possible and no later than the Business Day immediately following the Calculation Date,
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(b)

deliver a notice to that effect to the Issuer, the Fiscal Agent and the Representative for transmission to
the 2029 Noteholders in accordance with Condition 15.

For the purposes of these 2029 Conditions:

"Make Whole Redemption Amount" means, with respect to each Note, an amount in Euro equal to
the greater of (i) one hundred per cent. (100%) of the Principal Amount of the 2029 Notes so redeemed
and (ii) as determined by the Calculation Agent (rounded to the nearest cent (half a cent being rounded
upwards)), the sum of the then present values on the Make Whole Redemption Date of the Remaining
Scheduled Payments discounted to the Make Whole Redemption Date on an annual basis (Actual /
Actual ICMA) at the Make Whole Redemption Rate plus the Make Whole Redemption Margin,
increased in both cases (i) and (ii) by accrued interest on the Principal Amount of the Note since the last
Interest Payment Date (or, as the case may be, the Issue Date) (included) to, but excluding, the Make
Whole Redemption Date and any Additional Amounts (as defined in Condition 11.2).

"Make Whole Redemption Margin" means +0.50 per cent. per annum.

"Make Whole Redemption Rate" means the rate per annum equal to the average of the four (4)
guotations given by the Reference Dealers of the mid-market annual yield to maturity of the Reference
Benchmark Security on the fourth (4™) Business Day preceding the Make Whole Redemption Date at
11.00 a.m. (Central European time (CET)).

If the Reference Benchmark Security is no longer outstanding, a Similar Security will be chosen by the
Calculation Agent after prior consultation with the Issuer if practicable under the circumstances, at 11.00
a.m. (Central European time (CET)) on the fourth (4") Business Day preceding the Make Whole
Redemption Date, quoted in writing by the Calculation Agent to the Issuer.

"Reference Benchmark Security" means the French government bond (Obligation Assimilable du
Trésor — "OAT") bearing interest at a rate of 0.00 per cent. per annum and maturing on
25 November 2029 with ISIN FR0013451507.

"Reference Dealers" means each of the four (4) banks (that may include Crédit Lyonnais and/or Société
Générale) selected by the Calculation Agent which are primary European government security dealers,
and their respective successors, or market makers in pricing corporate bond issues.

"Remaining Scheduled Payments" means, with respect to each Note, the remaining scheduled
payments of principal and interest relating to the 2029 Notes (except accrued interest on such 2029
Notes since the last Interest Payment Date (included) to, but excluding, the Make Whole Redemption
Date) that would be due from the Make Whole Redemption Date to 8 December 2028, if the Issuer's
option for the redemption at the Make Whole Redemption Amount were not exercised.

"Similar Security" means one or more OAT issued by the French government having an actual or
interpolated maturity comparable with the remaining term of the 2029 Notes that would be utilised, at
the time of selection and in accordance with customary financial practice, in pricing new issues of
corporate debt securities of comparable maturity to the remaining term of the 2029 Notes chosen by the
Calculation Agent.

Early redemption with a flat fee

The Issuer will, subject to compliance by the Issuer with all relevant laws, regulations and directives
and having given not less than thirty (30) nor more than forty-five (45) calendar days' notice in
accordance with Condition 15 to the 2029 Noteholders and the Fiscal Agent (which notice shall be
irrevocable), have the option to redeem the 2029 Notes, in whole but not in part, at any time from
8 December 2025 to 7 December 2028 (both dates inclusive), each at their Principal Amount together
with (i) any accrued and unpaid interest up to the date fixed for redemption (excluded), (ii) any
Additional Amounts (as defined in Condition 11.2) and (iii) a flat fee of:

(i) 3% of the Principal Amount of the Note for any redemption occurring from 8 December 2025 to
7 December 2026 (both dates inclusive);
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(i) 2% of the Principal Amount of the Note for any redemption occurring from 8 December 2026 to
7 December 2027 (both dates inclusive); or

(iii) 1% of the Principal Amount of the Note for any redemption occurring from 8 December 2027 to
7 December 2028 (both dates inclusive).

Residual maturity call option

The Issuer will, subject to compliance by the Issuer with all relevant laws, regulations and directives
and having given not less than thirty (30) nor more than forty-five (45) calendar days' notice in
accordance with Condition 15 to the 2029 Noteholders and the Fiscal Agent (which notice shall be
irrevocable), have the option to redeem the 2029 Notes, in whole but not in part, on any date from
8 December 2028 (included), at their Principal Amount together with any accrued and unpaid interest
up to their effective redemption date (excluded) and any Additional Amounts (as defined in Condition
11.2).

Redemption for taxation reasons

If, by reason of a change in French law or regulation, or any change in the official application or
interpretation of such law, becoming effective after the Issue Date, the Issuer would, on the occasion of
the next payment of principal or interest due in respect of the 2029 Notes, not be able to make such
payment without having to pay additional amounts as specified in Condition 11, the Issuer may at any
time, subject to having given not more than forty-five (45) nor less than thirty (30) calendar days' prior
notice to the Fiscal Agent and to the 2029 Noteholders in accordance with Condition 15 (which notice
shall be irrevocable), redeem all, but not some only, of the 2029 Notes outstanding at their Principal
Amount, together with all interest accrued to the date fixed for redemption, provided that the due date
for redemption of which notice hereunder may be given shall be no earlier than the latest practicable
date on which the Issuer could make payment of principal and/or interest without withholding for French
taxes.

If the Issuer would on the occasion of the next payment of principal or interest in respect of the 2029
Notes be prevented by French law from making payment to the 2029 Noteholders of the full amount
then due and payable, notwithstanding the undertaking to pay additional amounts contained in Condition
11, then the Issuer shall forthwith give notice of such fact to the Fiscal Agent and the Issuer shall, subject
to having given not less than seven (7) calendar days' prior notice to the 2029 Noteholders in accordance
with Condition 15 (which notice shall be irrevocable), redeem all, but not some only, of the 2029 Notes
at their Principal Amount, together with all interest accrued to the date fixed for redemption of which
notice hereunder may be given, provided that the due date for redemption shall be no earlier than the
latest practicable date on which the Issuer could make payment of the full amount of principal and/or
interest payable in respect of the 2029 Notes or, if such date has passed, as soon as practicable thereafter.

Redemption at the option of the 2029 Noteholders following a Change of Control

If at any time while any of the 2029 Notes is outstanding there occurs a Change of Control, each
Noteholder will have the option (a "put option™) to require the Issuer to redeem or, at the Issuer's option,
to procure the purchase of all or part of the 2029 Notes held by such Noteholder(s) on the Optional
Redemption Date (as defined below) at their Principal Amount, together with (or, where purchased,
together with an amount equal to) accrued interest to, but excluding, the Optional Redemption Date (as
defined below).

Promptly upon becoming aware that a Change of Control has occurred, the Issuer shall give notice (a
"Change of Control Notice") to the Fiscal Agent and the 2029 Noteholders in accordance with
Condition 15, specifying the nature of the event and the procedure for exercising the put option.

To exercise a put option, a Noteholder must give notice to the relevant Account Holder, with a copy to
the Fiscal Agent duly completed and signed on its behalf (the "Put Notice™), on any Business Day falling
within the period of forty-five (45) calendar days after a Change of Control Notice is given (the "Put
Period"). The Put Notice shall include instructions for the transfer of such 2029 Notes to the specified
account of the Fiscal Agent for the redemption or purchase of such 2029 Notes.

63



95

The form of the Put Notice shall be available from the Fiscal Agent. A Put Notice once given shall be
irrevocable without the consent of the Issuer.

Payment in respect of such 2029 Notes will be made on the Optional Redemption Date by transfer to
the bank account specified in the Put Notice and opened with a bank in a city in which banks use the
TARGET System (as defined below). The Issuer shall redeem or, at its option, procure the purchase of
the relevant 2029 Notes in respect of which the Put Option has been validly exercised as provided above,
and subject to the transfer of such 2029 Notes to the account of the Fiscal Agent for the account of the
Issuer as described above, on the Optional Redemption Date unless previously redeemed or purchased.

For the purposes of these 2029 Conditions:
A "Change of Control” shall be deemed to have occurred if:

(i) less than fifty point one per cent. (50.01%) of the share capital or voting rights of the Issuer is
held, directly or indirectly, by FSA, FSB, Orion and NGE Management together; or

(ii)  less than eighty per cent. (80%) of the share capital or voting rights of FSA, FSB and/or Orion is
held, directly or indirectly, by the Operational Managers together (except in the event of the death
or exit of a Operational Manager and the sale or transfer of its securities to one or more other
Operational Managers), for any reason whatsoever; or

(iii)  the Issuer ceases to hold directly or indirectly, for any reason whatsoever, at least (x) ninety-five
per cent. (95%) of the share capital and/or voting rights of any of the Principal Subsidiaries
existing as at the Issue Date and (y) with respect to any Subsidiary of the Issuer which becomes a
Principal Subsidiary after the Issue Date, a percentage of the share capital and/or voting rights of
such Principal Subsidiary at least equal to the percentage held by the Issuer on the date when such
Subsidiary became a Principal Subsidiary (except as a result of any Concession Transfer); or

(iv) all or part of the share capital of the Issuer or of any member of the Group is offered to the public
and listed on any French or foreign regulated market or stock exchange; or

(v) all or a substantial part of the Group's fixed assets (actifs immobilisés) is transferred to a third-
party (in one or several transactions), it being specified that this sub-paragraph (v) will not apply
to any Concession Transfer.

"Concession Transfer" means the transfer by NGE Concession, to one or several third parties to the
Group, of all or part of the shares of its subsidiaries carrying concession projects.

"NGE Concession" means the société par actions simplifiée registered with the Registre du commerce
et des sociétés of Tarascon under number 789 270 360.

"Operational Managers" means Alain Joél Rousseau, Gilbert Roux, Francis Chatelain, Antoine
Metzger, Michel Lavedrine, Joél Perelle, Michel Pavoine, Jean Bernadet, Jean-Sébastien Leoni,
Stéphane Pérez-Morillas, Martin Fontaine, Jean-Baptiste Gonnet, Orso Vesperini, Bruno Parent and
Laurent Amar.

"Optional Redemption Date" is the fifth (51") Business Day following the expiration of the Put Period.

"Orion" means the société par actions simplifiée registered with the Registre du commerce et des
sociétés of Aix-en-Provence under number 842 076 184.

Purchases

The Issuer may at any time purchase 2029 Notes (together with rights to interest relating thereto) in the
open market or otherwise (including by way of tender or exchange offer) at any price and on any
condition, subject to compliance with any applicable laws. All 2029 Notes purchased by, or for the
account of, the Issuer may, at its sole discretion, be held or cancelled in accordance with and subject to
any applicable laws and regulations.
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Cancellation

All 2029 Notes which are redeemed or purchased for cancellation by the Issuer pursuant to this
Condition 9 will forthwith be cancelled and accordingly may not be reissued or resold.

PAYMENTS
Method of Payment

Payments of principal, interest and other amounts in respect of the 2029 Notes will be made in euro, by
credit or transfer to an account denominated in euro (or any other account to which euro may be credited
or transferred) specified by the beneficiary with a bank in a city in which banks use the TARGET System
(as defined in Condition 10.2 below). Such payments shall be made for the benefit of the 2029
Noteholders to the Account Holders and all payments made to such Account Holders in favour of 2029
Noteholders will be an effective discharge of the Issuer and the Fiscal Agent, as the case may be, in
respect of such payment.

Payments of principal and interest in respect of the 2029 Notes will be subject in all cases to any tax or
other laws and regulations applicable thereto, but without prejudice to the provisions of Condition 11
below. No commission or expenses shall be charged to the 2029 Noteholders in respect of such
payments.

Payments on Business Days

If any due date for payment of principal, interest or any other amount in respect of any Note is not a
Business Day (as defined below), then the Noteholder shall not be entitled to payment of the amount
due until the next following calendar day which is a Business Day and the Noteholder shall not be
entitled to any interest or other additional sums in respect of such postponed payment.

For the purposes of these 2029 Conditions, "Business Day" means any day, not being a Saturday or a
Sunday, (i) on which foreign exchange markets and commercial banks are open for business in Paris (ii)
on which Euroclear France is operating and (iii) on which the Trans-European Automated Real Time
Gross Settlement Express Transfer (known as TARGET2) system (the "TARGET System™) or any
successor thereto is operating.

Fiscal Agent and Paying Agent
The name and specified office of the initial Fiscal Agent and initial Paying Agent are as follows:

Banque Internationale a Luxembourg, société anonyme
69, route d'Esch
L-2953 Luxembourg
Grand Duchy of Luxembourg

The Issuer reserves the right at any time to vary or terminate the appointment of the Fiscal Agent or the
Paying Agent and/or appoint a substitute Fiscal Agent and additional or other Paying Agents or approve
any change in the office through which the Fiscal Agent or Paying Agent acts, provided that, so long as
any of the 2029 Notes is outstanding, there will at all times be a Fiscal Agent and a Paying Agent having
a specified office in a major European city. Any termination or appointment shall only take effect (other
than in the case of insolvency, when it shall be of immediate effect) after not more than forty-five (45)
nor less than thirty (30) calendar days' notice thereof shall have been given to the 2029 Noteholders by
the Issuer in accordance with Condition 15.

Calculation Agent
The name and specified office of the initial Calculation Agent are as follows:

Aether Financial Services
36, rue de Monceau
75008 Paris
France
agency@aetherfs.com
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The Issuer reserves the right at any time to vary or terminate the appointment of the Calculation Agent
and/or appoint a substitute Calculation Agent or approve any change in the office through which the
Calculation Agent acts, provided that, so long as any of the 2029 Notes is outstanding, there will at all
times be a Calculation Agent having a specified office in a major European city. Any termination or
appointment shall only take effect (other than in the case of insolvency, when it shall be of immediate
effect) after not more than forty-five (45) nor less than thirty (30) calendar days' notice thereof shall
have been given to the 2029 Noteholders by the Issuer in accordance with Condition 15.

The determination of any rate or amount, the obtaining of each quotation and the making of each
determination or calculation by the Calculation Agent shall (in the absence of manifest error) be final
and binding upon all parties. The Calculation Agent shall act as an independent expert for each
guotation, determination or calculation.

TAXATION
Withholding tax

All payments of principal, interest and other revenues by or on behalf of the Issuer in respect of the 2029
Notes shall be made free and clear of, and without withholding or deduction for, any taxes, duties,
assessments or governmental charges of whatever nature (the "Taxes") imposed, levied, collected,
withheld or assessed by or within any jurisdiction, unless such withholding or deduction is required by
law.

Additional Amounts

If, pursuant to French laws or regulations, any payment in respect of any Note become subject to
deduction or withholding in respect of any present or future Taxes imposed by or on behalf of France or
any authority therein or thereof having power to tax, the Issuer shall, to the fullest extent then permitted
by law, pay such additional amounts (the "Additional Amounts™) as may be necessary in order that the
holder of each Note, after such deduction or withholding, will receive the full amount then due and
payable thereon in the absence of such withholding; provided, however, that the Issuer shall not be liable
to pay any such Additional Amounts in respect of any Note to a holder (or beneficial owner (ayant
droit)) who is liable to such Taxes in respect of such Note by reason of his having some connection with
France other than the mere holding of such Note.

Any reference in these 2029 Conditions to principal and/or interest shall be deemed to include any
Additional Amounts which may be payable under this Condition 11.

EVENTS OF DEFAULT

The Representative shall, by notice in writing to the Issuer (copy to the Fiscal Agent), if so instructed
by a Collective Decision, before all continuing event of defaults shall have been cured, cause all, but not
some only, of the 2029 Notes held by the 2029 Noteholders to become immediately due and payable, at
their Principal Amount together with any accrued interest thereon until their actual redemption date if
any of the following events (each an "Event of Default™) shall have occurred and be continuing:

(@)  default by the Issuer in the payment of principal or interest (including any Additional Amounts)
on any of the 2029 Notes, if such default shall not have been cured within fifteen (15) calendar
days thereafter; or

(b)  default by the Issuer in the due performance of any provision of the 2029 Notes other than as
referred in (a) above, if such default shall not have been cured within thirty (30) calendar days
after receipt by the Issuer of written notice of such default; or

(c) (i) any other present or future Financial Indebtedness (other than the Simple Bonds) of the Issuer
or any of its Principal Subsidiaries in excess of €5,000,000 (or its equivalent in any other
currency), whether individually or in the aggregate, becomes (or becomes capable of being
declared), following, where applicable, the expiry of any originally applicable grace period, due
and payable prior to its stated maturity as a result of a default thereunder, or (ii) any such present
or future Financial Indebtedness (other than the Simple Bonds) shall not be paid when due or, as
the case may be, within any originally applicable grace period therefor; or
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(d) the Simple Bonds are not redeemed on their due date in accordance with the provisions of the
terms and conditions of the Simple Bonds, it being agreed that no Event of Default shall occur
under this paragraph during the period from the date of occurrence of a payment default under the
Simple Bonds on the first or second anniversary of the issue date of the Simple Bonds until the
earlier of the following two dates: (i) one hundred and eighty (180) calendar days from the said
default (in case of non-exercise of the Simple Bonds Put Option (as defined in Condition 6) and
(i) twelve (12) Business Days following the notification of the exercise of the Simple Bonds Put
Option by CME in accordance with the provisions of the Simple Bonds Put Option;

(e)  merger, demerger, transfer or cessation of all or substantial part of its business, liquidation or
dissolution of the Issuer, except in the case in which all of or substantially all of the Issuer's assets
are transferred to a legal entity which simultaneously assumes all of the Issuer's debt and liabilities
(including the 2029 Notes) and whose main purpose is the continuation of, and which effectively
continues, the Issuer's activities; or

(f)  to the extent permitted by law, the Issuer or any of its Principal Subsidiaries (i) makes any
proposal for a general moratorium in relation to its debt, or (ii) a resolution is passed or a judgment
is issued for the voluntary liquidation (liquidation amiable), winding-up, dissolution
(dissolution), the judicial liquidation (liquidation judiciaire) or for a judicial transfer of the whole
of the business (cession totale de I'entreprise) of the Issuer, or (iii) the Issuer or any of its Principal
Subsidiaries is subject to any other insolvency or bankruptcy proceedings under any applicable
laws, or (iv) the Issuer or any of its Principal Subsidiaries makes any conveyance, assignment or
other similar arrangement for the benefit of its creditors or enters into a composition with its
creditors; or

(g) the Pledge Agreement or the Intercreditor Agreement not being executed at the Issue Date; or

(n)  the Shares Pledges (as defined in Condition 4) are enforced by their beneficiaries as a result of a
default of the Issuer under the Facilities Agreement (as defined in Condition 4); or

(i) illegality or unenforceability of the Shares Pledges (as defined in Condition 4); or
(i) illegality or unenforceability of the Intercreditor Agreement (as defined in Condition 5); or

(k)  occurrence of any action, legal proceedings or other procedure with any competent court or
authority with respect to the Issuer or any of its Subsidiary which could reasonably be expected
to give rise to a payment of money exceeding individually or in aggregate €15,000,000; default
by the Issuer or any of its Subsidiary in the due performance of any final judgment, arbitral award
or transaction for the payment of money exceeding individually or in aggregate €100,000; or

() the Issuer or any Principal Subsidiary ceases to carry a substantial part of its business (voluntarily
or not) for more than thirty (30) calendar days; or

(m) the Issuer transfers its head office outside France.

For the avoidance of doubt, (i) the occurrence of a Change of Control (as defined and in accordance
with Condition 9.4) will not constitute an Event of Default but a put option as more fully described in
Condition 9.4 and (ii) non-compliance with, or non-calculation of, any of the Sustainable Performance
Targets, non-delivery of the External Verification Report or Sustainable Performance Report and non-
inclusion by the Issuer of the information required under Condition 8.4(iv) in its annual report or CSR
(corporate and responsability) report (rapport RSE (responsabilité sociale d'entreprise)) will not
constitute an Event of Default but will trigger an adjustment of the Initial Interest Rate for the relevant
Sustainable Performance Target, pursuant to the provisions of sub-paragraphs (i), (ii) and (iv) of
Condition 7.2(a) above and if applicable, the payment by the Issuer of a Sustainable Compensation
Amount pursuant to the provisions of Condition 7.2(b) above.
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PRESCRIPTION

Claims against the Issuer for the payment of principal and interest in respect of the 2029 Notes shall
become prescribed ten (10) years (in the case of principal) and five (5) years (in the case of interest)
from the due date for payment thereof.

REPRESENTATION OF THE 2029 NOTEHOLDERS

The 2029 Noteholders will be grouped automatically for the defence of their common interests in a
masse (hereinafter referred to as the "Masse™). The Masse will be governed by the provisions of articles
L.228-46 et seq. of the French Code de commerce, with the exception of Articles L.228-65 1. 1°, 3° and
4° and R.228-69 of the French Code de commerce and the related provisions of the French Code de
commerce, as amended by this Condition.

The Masse will be a separate legal entity and will act in part through a representative (the
"Representative™) and in part through collective decisions of the 2029 Noteholders (the "Collective
Decisions").

The Masse alone, to the exclusion of all individual 2029 Noteholders, shall exercise the common rights,
actions and benefits which may accrue with respect to the 2029 Notes, without prejudice to the rights
that 2029 Noteholders may exercise individually in accordance with, and subject to, the provisions of
these 2029 Conditions.

Representative
The initial Representative shall be:

Aether Financial Services
36, rue de Monceau

75008

Paris

France
agency@aetherfs.com

Represented by its Chairman

The Issuer shall pay to the Representative an amount equal to four hundred euros (€400) (excluding
VVAT) per annum for its services.

All 2029 Noteholders may at all times obtain the names and addresses of the Representative at the
principal office of the Issuer and the specified office of the Paying Agent.

Collective Decisions

Collective Decisions are adopted either in a general meeting (the "General Meeting™) or by unanimous
consent following a written consultation (the "Written Unanimous Decision").

In accordance with Article R.228-71 of the French Code de commerce, the right of each Noteholder to
participate in Collective Decisions will be evidenced by the entries in the books of the relevant Account
Holder of the name of such Noteholder as of 0:00, Paris time, on the second (2"®) Business Day preceding
the date set for the relevant Collective Decision.

The Issuer shall hold a register of the Collective Decisions and shall make it available, upon request, to
any Noteholder.

(@) General Meeting

In accordance with the provisions of Articles L.228-51 and R.228-67 first paragraph of the French
Code de commerce, notice of the date, time, place, agenda and required quorum of any General
Meeting will be published in accordance with Condition 15, not less than ten (10) calendar days
prior to the date of the general meeting on first convocation and not less than five (5) calendar
days prior to the date of the General Meeting on second convocation.

General Meetings may deliberate validly on first convocation only if the 2029 Noteholders present
or represented hold at least one-fifth (1/5) of the principal amount of the 2029 Notes then
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outstanding. On second convocation, no quorum shall be required. The decisions of the General
Meeting shall be taken by a two-third (2/3) majority of votes held by the 2029 Noteholders
attending such General Meeting or represented thereat.

In accordance with Article L.228-61 of the French Code de commerce, each Noteholder has the
right to participate in General Meetings in person, by proxy, by correspondence, by
videoconference, or by any other means of telecommunication allowing the identification of
participating 2029 Noteholders.

Each Noteholder or representative thereof will have the right to consult or make a copy of the text
of the resolutions which will be proposed and of the reports, if any, which will be presented at the
General Meeting, all of which will be available for inspection by the relevant 2029 Noteholders
at the registered office of the Issuer and at any other place specified in the notice of the General
Meeting, during the ten (10) calendar day period preceding the holding of the General Meeting
on first convocation, or during the five (5) calendar day period preceding the holding of the
General Meeting on second convocation.

(b)  Written Unanimous Decision

In accordance with Article L.228-46-1 of the French Code de commerce, Collective Decisions
may also be taken by a Written Unanimous Decision, at the initiative of the Issuer or the
Representative.

Such Written Unanimous Decision shall be signed by or on behalf of all the 2029 Noteholders
without having to comply with formalities and time limits referred to in Condition 14.2(a). Any
Written Unanimous Decision shall, for all purposes, have the same effect as a resolution passed
at a General Meeting of such 2029 Noteholders. Subject to the following sentence, a Written
Unanimous Decision may be contained in one document or in several documents in like form,
each signed by or on behalf of one or more of such 2029 Noteholders. Approval of a Written
Unanimous Resolution may also be given by way of electronic communication allowing the
identification of 2029 Noteholders.

14.3 Notices

15.

16.

Any notice to be given to 2029 Noteholders in accordance with this Condition 14 shall be given in
accordance with Condition 15.

NOTICES

Any notice to the 2029 Noteholders will be duly given if (i) delivered to Euroclear France for so long
as the 2029 Notes are cleared through such clearing system and (ii) published on the website of the
Issuer (www.nge.fr) and so long as the 2029 Notes are admitted to trading on Euronext Paris and the
rules of Euronext Paris so require, on the website of Euronext Paris (www.euronext.fr).

Any notice to the 2029 Noteholders shall be deemed to have been given on the date of such publication
or if published on different dates, on the date of the first publication.

FURTHER ISSUES AND ASSIMILATION

The Issuer may from time to time, without the consent of the 2029 Noteholders, issue further notes to
be assimilated (assimilables) with the 2029 Notes as regards their financial service, provided that such
further notes and the 2029 Notes shall carry identical rights in all respects (or in all respects except for
the issue price and the first payment of interest thereon) and that the terms of such further notes shall
provide for such assimilation.

In the event of such an assimilation, the 2029 Noteholders and the holders of such further notes and will
be grouped together in a single masse for the defence of their common interests. References in these
2029 Conditions to the 2029 Notes include any other notes issued pursuant to this Condition and
assimilated with the 2029 Notes.
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17.

GOVERNING LAW AND JURISDICTION
The 2029 Notes are governed by, and shall be construed in accordance with, the laws of France.

Any dispute arising out of or in connection with the 2029 Notes will be submitted to the competent
courts within the jurisdiction of the Court of Appeal of Paris, subject to any applicable mandatory rules
pertaining to the territorial jurisdiction of French courts.
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Schedule 1 to the Terms and Conditions of the 2029 Notes

List of Principal Subsidiaries as at the Issue Date

Agilis (société par actions simplifiée registered with the Registre du commerce et des sociétés of
Avignon under number 443 222 328).

Cardinal Edifice (société par actions simplifiée registered with the Registre du commerce et des sociétés
of Rennes under number 950 033 555).

EHTP (société par actions simplifiée registered with the Registre du commerce et des sociétés of
Tarascon under number 439 987 405).

Guintoli (société par actions simplifiée registered with the Registre du commerce et des sociétés of
Tarascon under number 447 754 086).

NGE Fondations (société par actions simplifiée registered with the Registre du commerce et des sociétés
of Lyon under number 348 099 987).

NGE Infranet (société par actions simplifiée registered with the Registre du commerce et des sociétés
of Tarascon under number 501 241 624).

NGE Génie Civil (société par actions simplifiée registered with the Registre du commerce et des sociétés
of Tarascon under number 487 469 330).

Siorat (société par actions simplifiée registered with the Registre du commerce et des sociétés of
Tarascon under number 676 820 137).

TSO (société par actions simplifiée registered with the Registre du commerce et des sociétés of Meaux
under number 747 252 120).

TSO Caténaires (société par actions simplifiée registered with the Registre du commerce et des sociétés
of Meaux under number 432 455 764).

71



21

THE GROUP'S SUSTAINABLE PERFORMANCE TARGETS

RATIONALE FOR THE ISSUE OF THE SUSTAINABILITY-LINKED NOTES

Sustainability is not a new topic for NGE, which has published its CSR (Corporate Social
Responsibility) report in May 2021 (see 2020 CSR report:
https://www.nge.fr/app/uploads/2021/06/RAPPORT-RSE-2020-1.pdf). In particular, NGE committed
in 2019 for a more sustainable future with a 4% cumulative annual reduction commitment in Greenhouse
Gas emissions. The Group also committed in 2018 to have at least 200 women among building site
managers by 2022 (compared to 65 in 2018). NGE now aims to go one step further by issuing
Sustainability-Linked Notes that connects its funding with its sustainability-linked objectives. In
connection with the issue of its Sustainability-Linked Notes, and in addition to the two objectives
mentioned above, NGE has also committed to reduce its accident frequency rate. NGE has set ambitious
annual sustainability-linked objectives to cover its three main ESG challenges until maturity of the
Sustainability-Linked Notes.

NGE considers the issue of the Sustainability-Linked Notes described in this Prospectus as a way to (i)
further underline its commitment to the sustainability-linked objectives described above by tying its
funding cost to its performance on ESG Key Performance Indicators (KPIs) that are relevant, core and
material to its business and (ii) further engage stakeholders on the Group's path towards a more
sustainable future.

The Sustainability-Linked Notes are based on the following five core components:
1 Selection of KPlIs;

2 Calibration of Sustainability Performance Targets (SPTs);

3. Specific characteristics of the Sustainability-Linked Notes;

4 Reporting; and

5 Verification.

There can be no assurance by NGE that the Sustainability-Linked Notes will satisfy, whether in whole
or in part, any present of future investors' expectations or requirements with respect to investment criteria
or guidelines with which any of such investors or their respective investments are required to comply
under their own by-laws or other governing rules or portfolio investment mandates.

SELECTION OF KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS (KPIs)

NGE has selected three KPIs that reflect its main ESG challenges and that are already monitored by the
Group:

- Accident Frequency Rate;

- Greenhouse Gas emissions on Scope 1 and Scope 2; and
- Number of women among building site managers.

KPI 1: Accident Frequency Rate

Rationale

Health and safety at work is at the core of NGE's policy, as indicated in its Health & Safety Plan?, which
consists of (i) organisational measures, (ii) measures addressing specific risks and (iii) measures for
health protection, which notably includes an objective to tend towards zero accident.

In this context, NGE is reinforcing its measures to reduce the frequency rate of accidents over time in
its organisation, worldwide.

! Available for investors on demand
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2.2

2.3

This KPI 1 addresses the United Nations Sustainable Development Goals n°3 "Good Health and Well-
being".

Definition

This KPI 1 is defined as the Accident Frequency Rate on a worldwide scope and calculated as follows:

1,000,000

Accident F Rate = Numb idents with sick |
ccident Frequency Rate umber of accidents with sick leave * Number of worked hotrs

Where:

"number of worked hours" means the full-time equivalent staff excluding temporary staff multiplied
by the number of working hours made every year by a full-time person; and

"accidents with sick leave™" means the accidents resulting in a sick leave of at least 24 hours, declared
and recognised by any competent authority.

This definition is aligned with standard FR1 (Frequency Rate 1) KPI.
KPI 2: Greenhouse Gas emissions on Scope 1 and Scope 2
Rationale

The Construction sector represents approximately 38% of total Greenhouse Gas emissions and, as an
important European player, NGE recognises its responsibility to reduce such emissions. The Group has
thus defined Greenhouse Gas emissions reduction as a top priority as indicated in its Environment Plan?
and committed to a 4% cumulative annual reduction, which is aligned with a well-below 2°C climate
change scenario compared to preindustrial temperatures, as outlined in the Paris Agreement (Accord de
Paris sur le climat).

These Greenhouse Gas emissions reduction objectives aim at contributing to the EU Environmental
Obijective 1 "Climate Change Mitigation" and primarily addresses the United Nations Sustainable
Development Goals n°13 "Climate Action".

The approach to calculate NGE's Greenhouse Gas footprint has been made with the assistance of
EcoAct, an international environmental consultant, and is fully aligned with the GHG Protocol
Corporate Standard (as defined in "Terms and Conditions of the 2028 Notes" and "Terms and Conditions
of the 2029 Notes").

Definition

This KPI 2 is defined as total Greenhouse Gas emissions (i.e. absolute Greenhouse Gas emissions) on
Scope 1 and Scope 2 (as defined in "Terms and Conditions of the 2028 Notes" and "Terms and
Conditions of the 2029 Notes"), in alignment with at least a well-below 2°C climate change scenario,
on a worldwide scope.

KPI 3: Number of women among building site managers
Rationale

The Construction sector historically counts a very limited percentage of women, especially among
managers and even more so among building site managers, since most female managers are in
administrative positions. Concerned by this situation and willing to develop gender balance at the core
of its activity, NGE has committed to increasing the number of women specifically among building site
managers. In October 2018, NGE committed to have 200 women among building site managers by 2022
(compared to 42 in 2018). NGE has now decided to go further with an additional annual increase
objective after 2022 of approximately 13.5%?.

This KPI 3 addresses the United Nations Sustainable Development Goals n°5 "Gender Equality".

2 Available for investors on demand
% The percentage increase has been rounded up/down depending on years to have a round-to-ten number of women
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3.1

Definition

This KPI 3 is defined as the number of women among building site managers (excluding temporary
staff), on a worldwide scope.

This KPI 3 is highly relevant to the Construction sector, although it cannot often be benchmarked, as
most peers use a KPI on the percentage of female managers (the latter KPI, which is broadly used, is
less relevant as most female managers are in administrative positions but not on building sites).

To demonstrate its strong engagement, NGE will keep these three KPIs and related Sustainable
Performance Targets unchanged so long as any of the Sustainability-Linked Notes are outstanding,
except in cases of changes defined below.

In the event of any change (i) to the calculation methodology of any of the KPIs, (ii) in data due to better
data accessibility and/or (iii) as a result of any Significant Change in the Group's Perimeter, which,
individually or in aggregate, has a significant impact on the levels of any of the Sustainable Performance
Targets and/or the level of any of the KPI baselines, the Sustainable Performance Targets and/or the
KPI baselines may be recalculated in good faith by the Issuer (and, in respect of any event referred to in
(iii) above, on the basis of proforma financial statements taking into account the impact of such event)
to reflect such change, provided that:

(@)  such change has no adverse effect on the interests of the Noteholders; and

(b) an independent and well-recognised expert on the relevant KPI has been appointed by the Issuer
(e.g. EcoAct for Green House Gas emissions reduction) and has independently confirmed that the
proposed revision (x) is consistent with the Issuer's strategy and (y) is in line with the initial level
of ambition of the relevant Sustainable Performance Target(s).

Any other changes will be made with the prior approval of the holders of the Sustainability-Linked
Notes.

CALIBRATION OF SUSTAINABILITY PERFORMANCE TARGETS (SPTs)

NGE has defined annual Sustainable Performance Targets for each KPI, against which NGE's annual
performance will be evaluated at the Valuation Date (as defined in "Terms and Conditions of the 2028
Notes" and "Terms and Conditions of the 2029 Notes") of each year until maturity, and for the first time
on 31 December 2022.

Sustainable Performance Targets 1 for KPI 1 (Accident Frequency Rate)
Definition

Sustainable Performance Targets 1 have been defined at the Group's level (including any significant
external growth, acquisition and/or disposal other than a Significant Change in the Group's Perimeter
completed as at the relevant Valuation Date) as a 6% cumulative annual reduction against 2020 baseline.

Data history
Data history for NGE since 2018 is provided in the table below.
Ambition level

Sustainable Performance Targets 1 have been defined to be significantly more ambitious than historical
data over the past three years (see table below) and in order to progressively catch up with the sector's
leaders (see graph below).
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2020 20214

Year 2018 2019 (paseline)  (targety 2022 2023 2024 2025 2026 2027 2028

SPT: Accident
Frequency 15.06 16.41 13.65 12.83 <12.06 <11.34 <10.66 <10.02 <9.42 <8.85 <8.32
Rate

Reduction
percentage
compared to
2020

6% >12% >17% >22% >27% >31% >35% >39%

Accident Frequency Rate (FR1)
25,00
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Source: NGE for NGE figures, peers’ websites for peers’ figures

Action plan

The action plan to reach these Sustainable Performance Targets 1 is defined in the Health & Safety Plan®
of NGE and notably includes:

- further development of training for building site staff: managers, works supervisors, sectors heads,
etc. with quarterly follow-up;

- deployment of the "First 5 minutes” plan to accompany all new employees notably on safety at
work measures and teams' cohesion;

- further development of prevention for health and safety: "Quarter-hour prevention™, reviews by
managers (at least once a month), prevention annual programs (e.g. sleep management, risks
related to high temperatures in summer); and

- systematic investigation discussion together with management after each accident with sick leave
of absence or event that could have been serious.

42021 target calculated as a 6% reduction compared to 2020 baseline. For information, 2021 July (observed) is 14.08.
5 Available for investors on demand
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3.2

Year

SPT: Absolute
Greenhouse
Gas emissions
on Scopes 1 &
2 (tons of
CO2-eq)

% annual
reduction vs
previous year

Sustainable Performance Targets 2 for KPI 2 (Greenhouse Gas emissions on Scope 1 and Scope 2)
Definition

Sustainable Performance Targets 2 have been defined at the Group's level (including any significant
external growth, acquisition and/or disposal other than a Significant Change in the Group's Perimeter
completed as at the relevant Valuation Date) as a cumulative annual reduction of four per cent. (4%)
against the 2019 baseline, which is aligned with a well-below 2°C climate change scenario.

The approach to calculate NGE's Greenhouse Gas footprint is defined with the assistance of EcoAct, an
international environmental consultant, and is fully aligned with the GHG Protocol Corporate Standard
Greenhouse Gas (as defined in "Terms and Conditions of the 2028 Notes" and "Terms and Conditions
of the 2029 Notes").

Data history
Data history for NGE since 2018 is provided in the table below.
Ambition level

The level of ambition of Sustainable Performance Targets 2 is assured since NGE has committed to a
4% cumulative annual reduction, which is aligned with a well-below 2°C scenario® (and is even closer
to a 1.5°C scenario’). Sustainable Performance Targets 2 are even more ambitious as they are absolute
(not in intensity) at the same time as NGE plans to have an 7.9% annual growth of its business.

Each Sustainable Performance Targets 2 will be calculated as a function of Greenhouse Gas emissions
on Scope 1 and Scope 2 for the year 2019 (in ton(s) of CO2-equivalent).

2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025 2026 2027
(baseline) (expected)

156,842 183,360 164,416 168,985 162,226 155,737 149,507 143,527 137,786 132,274

-4% -4% -4% -4% -4% -4%

6 Source SBTi: https://sciencebasedtargets.org/resources/files/SBTi-criteria.pdf (see p. 16)
" Source SBTi: https://sciencebasedtargets.org/resources/files/SBTi-criteria.pdf (see p. 16)
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https://sciencebasedtargets.org/resources/files/SBTi-criteria.pdf
https://sciencebasedtargets.org/resources/files/SBTi-criteria.pdf

The graph below shows where NGE stands compared to its peers including sector's leaders:

Peers absolute greenhouse gas emissions in scope 1 and scope 2

(in tons of CO, equivalent)
2500 000

0/0\0 2232 349 VINCI 8 40% s 2018

2000 000
COLAS

1500 000

P EUROVIA,  40% vs 2018

o_o_-o 1189 957
1000 000 =EIFFAGE

FRANCE

-46% vs 2019

vs 2019

319 000 3ga 456 LGE -38% vs 2018
o IQ G 164 416

soie batignoles

m & o o O' O' o O' a ‘3 DEMATHIEL

201 8 2019 2020 12 2&;‘13 2022 2023 2024 2025 2026 2027 2028  Objectif 2030

500 000

Sources:
Peers annual and CSR reports (for Eiffage: see 2021 Climate report)
Spie Batignolles and Demathieu Bard: no commitment yet on GHG emissions reduction

Action plan

The action plan to reach these Sustainable Performance Targets 2 is defined in the Environment Plan®
of NGE and notably includes:

- reducing the energy consumption of NGE's production machines (e.g. idle rate optimisation, eco-
driving training, new energies like electricity or hydrogen);

- reducing the energy consumption of NGE's buildings and industry (e.g. insulation, revamping,
renewable energies, reconstruction); and

- reducing NGE's fleet's emissions (e.g. power station deployment, vehicle allocation grid
optimisation, anticipation of renewal to accelerate full electric vehicles depending on annual
milage).

3.3 Sustainable Performance Targets 3 for KPI 3 (Number of women among building site managers)
Definition

Sustainable Performance Targets 3 have been defined at the Group's level (including any significant
external growth, acquisition and/or disposal other than a Significant Change in the Group's Perimeter
completed as at the relevant Valuation Date) as follows:

- in 2022: at least 200 women among building site managers (in accordance with NGE's
commitment made in October 2018); and

- afterwards: an increase of approximately 13.5% per annum (rounded up/down to have a round-
to-ten number of women) - see table below.

8 Available for investors on demand
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Year

SPT: number
of women
among
building site
managers

Increase
percentage
compared to
2018 baseline

Data history
Data history since 2018 is provided in the table below.

2018 2019°  2020° 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025 2026 2027
(baseline) (expected)
65 89 120 140 >200 >225 >260 >290 >330 > 380

137%  185% 215% >308% >346% >400% > 446% >508% >585%

Ambition level

Annual Sustainable Performance Targets 3 have been ambitiously defined. The target of at least 200
women among building site managers in 2022 remains particularly ambitious, since it requires a net
increase of 80 women (i.e. a 67% net increase) compared to 2021 expected level. In addition, the targeted
increase pace after 2022 (approximately 13.5% per annum) is significantly higher than the targeted
growth of the Group's business (7.9% per annum) and should lead to (i) at least 380 women hired among
building site managers in 2027, thus an increase of more than 585% compared to 2018 and (ii) at least
430 women hired among building site managers in 2028, thus an increase of more than 662% compared
to 2018.

Action plan

The action plan to reach these Sustainable Performance Targets 3 notably includes important recruitment
of women notably among recently graduated students. NGE joined several organisations which promote
civil works among engineering schools. NGE women managers visit lots of engineering schools during
job conferences to deliver enthusiastic messages about their career path. NGE entered into a partnership
with a babycare association to facilitate professional development of working mothers (etc.).

SPECIFIC CHARACTERISTICS OF THE SUSTAINABILITY-LINKED NOTES

The Initial Interest Rate applicable to the Sustainability-Linked Notes will be adjusted as follows in
respect of the first Interest Payment Date following each Valuation Date, based on the information
contained in the most recent Sustainable Performance Report delivered by NGE (all as defined and more
fully described in "Terms and Conditions of the 2028 Notes" and "Terms and Conditions of the 2029
Notes"):

(i) if NGE has complied with all of the Sustainable Performance Targets, then the Sustainability-
Linked Notes will bear interest at the Initial Interest Rate minus 20 basis points;

(i) if NGE has complied with two (2) of the Sustainable Performance Targets, then the Sustainability-
Linked Notes will bear interest at the Initial Interest Rate minus 10 basis points;

(iii)  if NGE has complied with one (1) of the Sustainable Performance Targets, then the Sustainability-
Linked Notes will bear interest at the Initial Interest Rate; and

(iv) if NGE has not complied with any of the Sustainable Performance Targets, then the Sustainability-
Linked Notes will bear interest at the Initial Interest Rate plus 10 basis points.

® The positions included in the definition of "woman in worksite supervisory roles” correspond to a more precise list of functions corresponding to a
field reality. They go beyond the "executive" status of women on site (which was the previously selected criterion). This explains a difference in data
between the figures presented here and those presented in the CSR report.
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An amount equal to 0.10% per annum of the outstanding principal amount of the Sustainability-Linked
Notes (the "Sustainable Compensation Amount") shall also be paid by NGE to one or several Eligible
Foundations (as defined in "Terms and Conditions of the 2028 Notes" and "Terms and Conditions of
the 2029 Notes") if, based on the information contained in the most recent Sustainable Performance
Report (as defined in "Terms and Conditions of the 2028 Notes" and "Terms and Conditions of the 2029
Notes™), NGE has not complied with any of the Sustainable Performance Targets.

If, for any reason, (X) the performance level against the Sustainable Performance Target 1 and/or the
Sustainable Performance Target 2 and/or the Sustainable Performance Target 3 cannot be calculated, (y)
the Statutory Auditors are not in a position to provide their External Verification Report or (z) NGE is
not in a position to provide the Sustainable Performance Report or to include the performance of its
KPIs in its annual report or CSR (corporate and responsability) report (rapport RSE (responsabilité
sociale d'entreprise)):

- in respect of (x) above, the Initial Interest Rate applicable to the Sustainability-Linked Notes will
be adjusted (if applicable) in accordance with the provisions of sub-paragraphs (ii) to (iv) above,
as if NGE had not complied with one (1), two (2) or three (3) (as applicable) of the Sustainable
Performance Targets;

- in respect of (y) and (z) above, the Initial Interest Rate applicable to the Sustainability-Linked
Notes will be adjusted (if applicable) in accordance with the provisions of sub-paragraph (iv)
above, as if the Issuer had not complied with any of the three (3) Sustainable Performance Targets;
and

- if applicable, NGE will pay a Sustainable Compensation Amount to one or several Eligible
Foundations®, as if NGE had not complied with any of the three (3) Sustainable Performance
Targets.

No adjustment under sub-paragraphs (i) or (ii) above shall take place as long as an Event of Default has
occurred and is continuing.

1% This donation must be in addition to possible donations usually made by NGE.
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Sustainability-Linked Notes Mechanism

3/3 SPTs reached IIIIl - 20 bps IIII

Step-down coupon

2/3 SPTs reached l -10 bps I

Step- down coupon

1/3 SPTs reached No coupon variation

+10 bps

Step-up coupon
paid to
investors

0/3 SPTs reached

Reporting

For information purposes only, NGE will include in a dedicated section of its annual report or CSR
(corporate and responsability) report (rapport RSE (responsabilité sociale d'entreprise)), as applicable,
which will be available on NGE's website (www.nge.fr), (i) the valuation made by it of the KPIs against
the Sustainable Performance Targets and (ii) the Sustainable Compensation Amount (if any) paid to the
Eligible Foundations during the previous financial year.

NGE will also prepare a Sustainable Performance Report that will include (x) the valuation made by
NGE of the KPIs against the Sustainable Performance Targets, (y) the related impact (including timing
of such impact) on the Notes in terms of adjustment to the Initial Interest Rate, and, if applicable,
payment of the Sustainable Compensation Amount and (z) if applicable, the accurate payment of the
Sustainable Compensation Amount due with respect to the relevant previous Interest Payment Date (it
being specified that such payment shall be in addition to any donations otherwise made by the Issuer to
such Eligible Foundation and detailed for each Eligible Foundation).

Verification

The Sustainability-Linked Notes will benefit from an annual External Verification Report prepared by
the Statutory Auditors and confirming the contents of the the Sustainable Performance Report
prepared by NGE.
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USE OF PROCEEDS

The estimated net proceeds of the issue of the Notes will amount to €149,175,000.

The net proceeds of the issue of the Notes will be used for (i) general corporate purposes, including for the
financing of possible external growth operations, and (ii) refinancing part of the existing financial indebtedness
of the Group, including the €70,000,000 4.375 per cent. notes issued by the Issuer on 31 July 2014.
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DESCRIPTION OF THE ISSUER

Information on the Issuer

The legal and commercial name of the Issuer is NGE ("NGE" or the "lIssuer").

The Issuer is a société par actions simplifiée, governed by French law, and in particular by the provisions
of the Code de commerce applicable to commercial companies, registered with the Registre du
commerce et des sociétés of Tarascon under number 504 124 801.

It was incorporated on 7 May 2008 for a period of 99 years ending on 6 May 2107, subject to early
dissolution or extension.

As of the date of this Prospectus, the share capital of the Issuer is €47,561,128. As of the Issue Date,
upon completion of the Reorganisation, as defined and further described in the section below, the share
capital of the Issuer will be €37,379,760.

The registered office of the Issuer is at Parc d'activités de Laurade - 13103 Saint Etienne du Gres -
France and its telephone number is +33 (0)4 90 91 60 00. Its postal address is Parc d'activités de Laurade
- BP 22 - 13156 Tarascon Cedex - France.

The Issuer is the holding company of the group comprised of the Issuer and its consolidated subsidiaries
(together the "Group").

The Reorganisation

The Issuer, its main shareholders and investment funds managed by Montefiore Investment (the
"Montefiore Investors™) entered into an investment agreement with several conditions precedent on 5
October 2021 which provides a reorganisation of the share capital and of the management of the Issuer,
which will be implemented on the Issue Date, and the refinancing of a part of the existing financial
indebtedness of the Group, which will be implemented on the Issue Date (the "Reorganisation™).

This investment agreement has been unanimously approved by NGE employee representative
organisations, and forms part of a capital-intensive transaction subject to approval by the French market
competition regulator. It is timed to coincide with the simultaneous withdrawal of Crédit Mutuel Equity
SCR ("CME") after 10 years as an NGE investor.

Under the terms of the agreement, Montefiore Investors will acquire a 28% stake in NGE. On completion
of this change in shareholding structure, the founders, managers and employees of NGE will own 72%
of the company - including a 21% employee holding via the FCPE employee shareholding mutual fund
(an increase from the previous 16.5%) - and Montefiore Investors the remaining 28%, as described in
the below charts:

NGE's capital structure before the Reorganisation
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NGE's capital structure after the Reorganisation

. NGE Nouvel
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NGE

Montefiore Investment, France's leading equity investor in service industry SMEs and midsize
companies, is partnering NGE to support the Group's continued growth (currently averaging 12% year-
on-year). With more than 14,500 employees in 18 countries as of the date of this Prospectus, and annual
revenue of €2.4 billion in 2020, the Group is now France's fourth-largest construction and civil
engineering company. Its broad customer base includes national governments, local authorities and
private project owners, and the Group has recently won a series of significant contracts for optical fibre
networks (Liverpool), underground projects (TELT, the Lyon-Turin Euralpine Tunnel) and concessions
(sole concession holder for the A69 motorway in France). Involving Montefiore Investors as equity
investors will give NGE the resources it needs to accelerate its development, seize new growth
opportunities, and further strengthen its longstanding commitment to social and environmental issues.

As of the date of this Prospectus, the share capital of the Issuer is €47,561,128. As per the Issue Date,
and subject to the prior realisation of several conditions precedent set out in the investment agreement
(including the issuance of the Notes at the latest on the closing date of the Reorganisation, which is
expected to occur on the Issue Date):

- the Issuer will merge by absorption of its parent company Compagnie NGE; the shareholders of
Compagnie NGE (including CME) will receive 3,803,579 new shares of the Issuer but the capital
will remain unchanged due to a subsequent capital reduction of 3,803,579 shares of the Issuer
currently held by the parent company;

- the capital of the Issuer will also be increased by €10,380,768 following the subscription of
1,297,596 new preference shares by the Montefiore Investors subscribed at a price of
€182,999,963.88 (the "Share Capital Increase™) and reduced by €20,562,136 following the
cancellation of 2,570,267 shares held by current shareholders, who will receive €283,015,378.36 in
cash; CME will then no longer be a shareholder of the Issuer but will subscribe to new ordinary
bonds in an amount of €36,376,955 with the capital reduction balance;

- the founders and the managers of the Issuer will subscribe to redeemable bonds in an amount of
€43,092,421.65 with the capital reduction balance; and

- the Issuer will acknowledge the final realisation of the Share Capital Increase right before the
issuance of the Notes.

Upon completion of the Reorganisation, which is expected to occur on the Issue Date, the share capital
of the Issuer will be €37,379,760 and fully paid up.

As of the date of this Prospectus, the founders control exclusively NGE and, upon completion of the
Reorganisation, which is expected to occur on the Issue Date, the founders, the managers and Montefiore
Investors will jointly control NGE (as further described in section 8 below).

History of the Group
1947:  Creation of the earthworks company Guintoli

1988:  Creation of Géotechnique et Travaux Spéciaux (GTS), to develop innovation capacity in soil
reinforcement

1994:  Creation of the Générale Routiere group through the integration of Guintoli and its
subsidiaries, EHTP, hydraulic specialist, and Routiere Morin, a road works company
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2002:

2006:

2008:

2009:

2011:

2012:

2014:
2016:
2017:

2018:
2020:

2021:

Following the transfer of "Road" and "Quarries” activities to Appia (Eiffage group), the
"NGE" Group is created with Guintoli, EHTP and GTS business sectors, "Financiere NGE"
being the financial holding company

Acquisition of GTEC, an electricity company
Creation of PlateForme, a training center for the NGE group

Subsidiarisation of the Earthworks & Urban Infrastructures (Guintoli) and Civil Engineering
(NGE Genie Civil) activities under the NGE company

Creation of Holding NGE (the Issuer), holding company of the Group, renamed NGE in
2011

The A88 highway concession is awarded to the Group
Acquisition of a stake in Siorat (road works)
Acquisition of TPRN (North)

Acquisition of the remaining share capital of Siorat

The share capital of NGE is opened to institutional investors (Fonds Stratégique
d'Investissement-FSI (now Bpifrance Participations) and CM-CIC Capital Finance (now
Credit Mutuel Equity SCR)

Acquisition of TSO (Railway Construction and Maintenance) and its subsidiaries
The A63 highway concession is awarded to the Group

The A150 highway concession is awarded to the Group

GTS takes over some of the Heaven Climber Group (specialist works) activities
Creation of NGE Contracting (international markets)

Creation of NGE Concessions

Acquisition of Cardinal Edifice (building construction)

Creation of NGE Infranet

Acquisition of Dacquin (deep fondations)

Creation of NGE Fondations (merger of GTS and Dacquin company)

Creation of NGE Connect

Creation of NGE Immobilier

Acquisition of Pontiggia

Bpifrance Participations withdrawn from NGE's share capital

Upon the Issue Date, Credit Mutuel Equity SCR shall withdraw from NGE's share capital and
the Montefiore Investors shall invest in NGE share capital

3. Overview of activities

3.1. Presentation of the Group

The Group is a multi-expertise public works group involved in the conception, construction,
management and maintenance of major infrastructures and urban and local projects in France and around
the world. An historic leader in Earthworks & Urban Infrastructures, through Guintoli, the Group has
played an active role in major construction projects in France. NGE is currently ranked fourth® in the
French public works sector. With 13 Multi-expertise regions to provide a local presence close to public-

11 Based on public information
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sector and private-sector customers, NGE coordinates 7 core expertises and public-sector expertise with
a single department in ways that benefit customers and projects, plus a concessions business, which
offers complementary expertise in project funding, makes equity investments, and develops the Group's
concession assets. It also includes a team dedicated to property development.

A strong regional base with 13 regional offices around 6,000 sites
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NGE has a solid financial structure with a net debt over equity ratio below 0.83*2 and stable governance,
led by managers who are also shareholders controlling the Group (see paragraph 9 "Major Shareholders"

below).

In just over 10 years, the Group's workforce has been multiplied by almost 3, from 4,970 employees as
of 31 December 2010 to more than 13,500 employees as of 31 December 2020, and its consolidated

12 Based on top 1,000 clients, representing €1.7bn of revenues; source: NGE
13 On the basis of NGE's 2020 annual consolidated accounts
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3.2.

3.2.1.

3.2.2.

revenue has increased by almost 3, from €903 million as of 31 December 2010 to €2,402 million as of
31 December 2020.

Areas of expertise

To develop a global offering for both its public and private clients, the Group is structured around seven
areas of expertise: Earthworks & Urban Infrastructures, Railway Construction and Maintenance,
Hydraulic & Other Underground Networks, Road Building and Road Equipment, Civil Engineering and
Geotechnical and Safety Contractors and Building Construction (see 5.1 below).

Earthworks & Urban Infrastructures

Earthworks & Urban Infrastructures represented 28% of the revenue of the Group as of
31 December 2020.

As earthworks specialists, Guintoli and its subsidiaries develop the natural terrain to make platforms,
mostly for the following infrastructures: highways (such as the A16, A9, A20, A7 and A89 Balbigny-
Violay highways in France), roads, railways (such as the following high-speed lines (Lignes Grande
Vitesse — LGV): Méditerrannée, Est Européenne Phase 1 and 2, Sud Europe Atlantique), airports,
logistics or industrial (such as platforms for shopping centers).

The Group, through Guintoli and its subsidiaries, is active on the market for public and private projects
with a regional dimension.

The Group also participates in the implementation of urban developments and road works, in particular
on the works of transit in dedicated sites (transport en commun en sites propres) such as trams and high
level of service buses (bus a haut niveau de service). NGE was notably involved for such activities in
Montpellier, Clermont-Ferrand, Bordeaux, Lyon, Grenoble, Nimes, Paris, Metz.

Clients of the Earthworks & Urban Infrastructures activity include notably municipalities,
municipalities' communities, general councils, EDF and SNCF Réseau.

Railway Construction and Maintenance

g3
Railway Construction and Maintenance represented 19% of the revenue of the Group as of
31 December 2020.

With the integration of TSO in 2011, the Group became a major player in railway infrastructures works
in France.

With construction, renewal and maintenance of railways and electrification and reshuffle of catenaries,
TSO and its dedicated subsidiaries work on the national rail network (classic and high-speed lines) and
on urban transport systems (subway, tram). The Group also benefits from the activities of the TSO
subsidiaries specialised in the topography and development of railway software and on the maintenance
and reconstruction of rail locomotives.
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3.24.

Clients of the Railway Construction and Maintenance activity include notably SNCF, RATP, the French
Ministry of transports and Crossrail (London).

Hydraulic & Other Underground Networks
e
\\ A

- —
Hydraulic & Other Underground Networks represented 19% of the revenue of the Group as of
31 December 2020.

The Group, through EHTP and its subsidiaries, implements all types of work related to water: drinking
water pipes, collection and transport of wastewater and networks (water, gas and fluids pressurised,
telephony and optic fiber to serve local communities, agriculture and industry).

The Group also produces equipment such as tanks or pumping and treatment stations.

The Group masters many techniques related to plant and urban engineering, including the removal of
lead pipes or trenchless renovation of non-accessible existing networks.

Clients of the Hydraulic & Other Underground Networks activity include notably municipalities,
municipalities’ communities, developers, EDF and SNCF.

Road Building and Road Equipment

=

Road Building and Road Equipment represented 9% of the revenue of the Group as of
31 December 2020.

The Group, through Siorat and its subsidiaries, develops its stationary on-road activities across France
and installs new facilities on the regional scale (asphalt application workshops and dressing workshops),
notably through the application of asphalt on roads and highways.

Through Agilis and its subsidiaries, the Group is also involved in the following activities:
- equipment of roads and development of urban or peri-urban areas;

- implementation of appropriate devices (such as concrete dividers, metal or mixed runners) to secure
infrastructures;

- achievement of concrete pavement road, airport or rail with the use of extruded concrete;

- highlighting urban and natural sites by the creation of pedestrian or circulated zones, light roads
and biking trails and contributing to the qualitative development of towns and villages; contributing
to the improvement of the sound environment with the design and implementation of noise barriers
(absorbent, reflective, visual, etc.) on all types of supports.

Clients of the Road Building and Road Equipment activity include notably general councils,
municipalities and municipalities' communities, the French State, Groupe ADP and port and airport
authorities.
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Civil Engineering
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Historically present on all types of infrastructure projects (construction of many civil engineering
works), the Group, through NGE Civil Engineering, designs, sizes, builds and operates works using
various materials such as reinforced concrete, wood or metal materials. Its expertise is applied in many
fields such as the construction of wastewater treatment plants, water reservoirs, waterworks and
fishways.

The Group's technical offering also includes Lagarrigue, which specialises in custom prefabrication.
With its mastery of prefabrication processes and high-tech concrete (architectural concrete, concrete
placing self, ultra-high performance concrete (béton a ultra hautes performances or UHPC), fiber-
reinforced ultra-high performance (béton fibré a ultra hautes performances or UHPC)), the Group
participates in large-scale operations, as illustrated with a comprehensive reconstruction of the Lascaux
cave system, complete with 680 wall paintings and 1,500 stone carvings, designed to fit seamlessly into
the landscape.

Clients of the Civil Engineering activity include notably SNCF, Groupe ADP, the General Council of
Indre et Loire, the General Council of VVal de Marne and RATP.

Geotechnical and Safety Contractors

Geotechnical and Safety Contractors represented 7% of the revenue of the Group as of
31 December 2020.

The Group, through NGE Fondations and its subsidiaries, is active on the stabilising of geotechnical
works and the securing of sites. It can optimise and select the most appropriate technics to the
geotechnical context of a particular work with its expertise of soil reinforcement, soil injection, deep
foundations, specific engineering, river and maritime works and site remediation/depollution.

NGE Fondation completes this range of activities with works in rope access.

In September 2012, GTS took over a large part of Heaven Climber group's business activities, bringing
additional techniques to Geotechnical and Safety Contractors. In 2018, GTS and Dacquin were merged
(acquisition by NGE in 2017) to create NGE Fondations.

Clients of the Geotechnical and Safety Contractors activity include notably municipalities and
municipalities' communities, general councils, manufacturers and semi-public companies.
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Building Construction
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Building construction represented 5% of the revenue of the Group as of 31 December 2020.

The Group, through CARDINAL EDIFICE and its subsidiaries, is specialised in offices and commercial
building construction and maintenance. With subsidiaries enjoying each specific expertises, the
company operates in building construction (industrial civil engineering), major buildings projects
(offices and commercial center) and construction of residential buildings and individual houses.

CARDINAL EDIFICE was acquired by NGE in 2016 with the aim of entering the building construction
sector and enjoying a full range of well-balanced expertises in public works and construction.

Furthermore, the integration of the company enabled NGE to expand its ability to manage additional
multi-expertise projects and to develop turnkey solutions for private and public customers by using NGE
regional network.

Clients of the Building construction activity include notably municipalities, municipalities'
communities, RATP, private clients (3F Residences, SNC Tours Albert ...) and real estate promoters.

3.3. Organisation into 4 Divisions
In order to tailor its 7 areas of expertise to the needs and specific features of its different types of clients,
the Group is organised into 4 Divisions, which are composed of all or some of the areas of expertise
described above for the construction of infrastructures (see 5.1 below).
As at 31 December 2020, NGE generates close to 11% of its consolidated revenue abroad. NGE's
objective is to generate 15% of its consolidated revenue outside France in the future, notably through
NGE Contracting and TSO, which has been working on sites all over the world for fifty years.

3.3.1. The Multi-expertise Regions Division
The Multi-expertise Regions Division represented 39% of the revenue of the Group as of
31 December 2020.
With its regional network of branches (more than 90 locations in France) divided into 13 regional
departments, the Group implements a multi-expertise strategy based on one single contact person to
meet the needs of each of its clients.
Each regional director is responsible for all activities in its region, to optimise the implementation of
projects.
All of the 7 areas of expertise are performed in the French regions.
NGE's Multi-expertise Regions Division secures strong and stable long-term revenues: on average®,
77% of the year's revenues is secured as of January 1°.

3.3.2. The Major Projects Division
The Major Projects Division represented 19% of the revenue of the Group as of 31 December 2020.
The Major Projects Division is divided in 2 sectors, Major Works and Financed Projects, and coordinates
all of the Group's expertise for projects worth over €20 million or for particularly complex projects,
which require specific monitoring by a dedicated team, such as construction and widening of highways
or bridges.

 From 2017 to 2021.
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3.3.4.

The Specialised National Subsidiaries Division

The Specialised National Subsidiaries Division represented 31% of the revenue of the Group as of
31 December 2020.

The Specialised National Subsidiaries Division regroups 6 of the Group's principal subsidiaries (notably
TSO, NGE Fondations, Agilis and Cardinal Edifice) and their subsidiaries, which are managed at
national level in their areas of expertise. These subsidiaries are not managed in the Multi-expertise
Regions or Major Projects Divisions, as they do not operate in markets deep enough to justify a presence
in each region. However, they operate throughout France, depending on market opportunities and
projects.

The International Division
The International division represented 11% of the revenue of the Group as of 31 December 2020.

In 2014, NGE created the International Division through NGE Contracting and TSO to manage the 7
areas of expertise of the Group. As of the date of this Prospectus, NGE is present in 17 countries. The
turnover outside France has increased more than threefold and now represent 11% of the group's
revenue. NGE executes major projects outside France, in particular in Uruguay (Ferrocarril Central
Project to modernise the 273 km Montevideo — Paso de los toros line), Cameroon (Nachtigal Dam
Construction) and Egypt (Construction of 10" Ramadan Railway project to link Cairo with the country's
New Capital city and 10" Ramadan City, Replacement contract for the network between Banha and
Port-Said).

International references and presence

Major Rail Projects
international

@ Crossrail (UK) Nachtigal Dam (Cameraon)
® 10th of Ramadan (Egypt) Defensas Ribereiias (Peru)
Viacentral (Uruguay)

—> | Permanent locations
@ Cairady —> | Africa
° ® Dominican Republic
3 L ® Egypt
9 Equator
® Germany
A ° x e @ La Reunion
) o ® Luxembourg
9 ® Mexico
® Republic of Panama
[ @ Saudi Arabia
® UK

@ Ivory Coast
® Morocco
® Senegal

Investment Policy

As of the date of this Prospectus, the Group's fleet, composed of around 7,500 pieces of referenced
equipment/machinery, is owned under full ownership. NGE decided several decades ago to own the
majority of its equipment/machinery to optimise its use, while also maintaining a certain level of leasing
for more flexibility.

The fleet includes more than 1,500 items of heavy machinery such as earthworks equipment (scrap, bull,
leveler, etc.), asphalt plant, drill rigs, locomotives, ballast cleaning machines or wagons, provided by
first class manufacturers such as Caterpillar, Volvo, Liebherr, Mercedes, Sandvick.

NGE has its own mechanical team to maintain its fleet, including almost 300 mechanics around 31
workshops in France.
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5.1

5.2.

Organisational Chart

NGE is very decentralised. As at 31 December 2020, its scope of consolidation comprises 133
companies, including 132 subsidiaries plus the parent company, 113 of which being fully consolidated
and 19 being accounted for using the equity method.

An organisation based on 7 areas of expertise and 4 divisions
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NGE owns 100% of the shares of the subsidiaries listed above. Such subsidiaries own varying
percentages in the share capital of their own subsidiaries, details of which are given on appendix of
consolidated companies to the annual consolidated financial statements of NGE for the fiscal year ended
on 31 December 2020.

Privately Financed Projects (Public Service Delegation, Concessions and Public Private
Partnerships)

Privately Financed Projects regroups project companies that design, construct, operate and maintain
infrastructures. Such projects are privately pre-financed: infrastructures are financed through equity
contributions from the shareholders of the project company and loans from credit institutions.

NGE Concessions is a dedicated structure and team investing in equity on concessions and PPP

(partenariat public-privé) to participate in the construction projects.
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Concession projects by activity

Geographical footprint as at Dec.-20
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6.2

6.3

Trend information
Order book

As at 31 December 2020, NGE's order book was 1.7x (one time) its revenue, and remained stable as at
15t July 2021 (-0.4%).

High strucral level of backlog providing a good visibility

Multi-expertise
regions

2048
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651
Intemational
HRE A TRe 2020 Remaining 2022  Beyond
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Trends in activities

A detailed description of the Group's results for the year ended 31 December 2020 can be found in
Paragraph 11 (Financial information of the Group) of this section.

Medium-term outlook

The Group's outlook and objectives below, which are taken from the Group's overall strategy, are not
intended as forecasts or as estimates of the Group's results. The figures, data, assumptions, estimates
and objectives presented below are subject to unforeseen changes or modifications over the next months,
depending in particular on the evolution of the current health crisis, changes in the economic, financial,
competitive, legal, regulatory, accounting and tax environments, or other factors of which the Group is
unaware of at the date of this prospectus.

In addition, the materialisation of certain risks described in the section entitled "Risk Factors" of this
Prospectus could have a negative impact on the Group's operations, financial position, market position,
results or outlook, and thus jeopardize its ability to achieve the objectives described below.

Furthermore, achieving these objectives presupposes the success of the Group's strategy.

Accordingly, the Group makes no undertaking and gives no guarantee as to the achievement of the
objectives contained in this section.

Outlook for the evolution of the Group's activities and financial objectives

The Group believes that the impact of the continuation of the Covid-19 pandemic on the general
economic context, which remains, as of the date of this Prospectus, difficult to assess, could affect some
of the trends and growth outlook related to certain end markets, although the fundamental trends of the
construction market should not be significantly affected, as demonstrated by the resilience shown by the
Group in 2020.

In this difficult context, over the 2021-2025 period, the Group is aiming to pursue a strategy of profitable
growth in its activities based primarily on (i) continued disciplined growth, (ii) ongoing deployment of
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6.4

its operational excellence program, (iii) continuation of a investment policy for the Group's future
sustainable development and (iv) maintain of a strong entrepreneurial culture.

The Group intends to pursue its growth, relying mainly on strong market trends:

(i)  anincreasing need for new and different infrastructures ($3.7 trillons per year of investments in
infrastructure by 2035 worlwide and a French market CAGR expected at 3-4% over the 2020-
2025 period — source: FNTP-LEK research);

(i)  a new demand for infrastructures adapted to the world of tomorrow, notably on environmental
and digital levels ($2.5 trillons per year of investment in energy infrastructure by 2030 worlwide);

(iii) a need for more efficient infrastructures in urban areas, notably adapted to new transportation
habits (metro, tramways, cycling lanes, etc.) (in France, this public works market CAGR could
reach 8% over the 2020-2025 period — source: FNTP-LEK research); and

(iv) a perpetual change in humans' way of life, implying a constant and frequent renewal of
infrastructures.

The Group aims to achieve five actions to support future growth:
(i)  accelerate the development of the concession activity in France and abroad;
(i)  consolidate the Group's leadership in major projects and strengthen international operations;

(iii) enhance the regional footprint through increasing recurrence and develop new expertise both
organically and with small M&A add-ons;

(iv) increase synergies within the Group and rool-out its multi-expertise model; and
(v) take advantage of expanding markets (railway, telecoms, ecological transition).

The Group is targeting a turnover compound annual growth rate (CAGR) 2020-2025 of 7.9% to reach
€3.515 million during the 2025 financial year (of which M&A is accounted for €245 million).

The Group is also targeting an EBITDA margin consistent with recent fiscal years achievement (range
of 6.9% to 7.4%, primarily through (i) favorable trends of the construction market, (ii) continued
implementation of the plan to improve the Group's performance (Performance Action Plan (PAP)) and
(iii) the continuation of its dynamic pricing policy.

The Group also intends to optimise the allocation of its capital expenditure by pursuing a disciplined
investment policy aimed at maintaining recurring capital expenditure at around 4.5% of its annual
consolidated revenue (including capitalisation of the right of use related to the application of IFRS 16)
over the 2021-2025 period.

The Group also intends to maintain its ratio of net financial debt to EBITDA close to 2x over the 2021-
2025 period.

The Group is also targeting €250 million in revenues derived from external growth operations by 2025.
Profit forecasts or estimates

The forecasts for the year ended 31 December 2021 presented below are based on data, assumptions and
estimates that the Group considers reasonable as at the date of this Prospectus. These data and
assumptions are subject to change or to be modified as a result of uncertainties due to the economic,
financial, accounting, competitive, regulatory and tax environments, among others, or as a result of other
factors of which the Group is unaware of as at the date of this Prospectus. In addition, the materialisation
of certain risks described in "Risk Factors™ in this Prospectus could have an impact on the Group's
operations, financial position, results or outlook, and thus jeopardize its forecasts. Furthermore,
achieving these forecasts presupposes the success of the Group's strategy. Therefore, the Group makes
no undertaking and gives no guarantee as to the achievement of the forecasts contained in this section.
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The forecasts presented below and their underlying assumptions were prepared in accordance with the
provisions of Commission Delegated Regulation (EU) 2019/980 of 14 March 2019 and ESMA's
recommendations on forecasts.

6.4.1 Assumptions

The Group has prepared its forecasts for the year ending 31 December 2021 in accordance with the
accounting methods applied in the Group's consolidated financial statements for the year ended
31 December 2020.

These forecasts are primarily based on the following assumptions for the year ending
31 December 2021:

- internal assumptions: the continued implementation of the Group's strategy as described above;
and

- macro-economic and market assumptions:

(i)  absence of any significant change in the regulatory and fiscal environment existing as at
the date of this Prospectus;

(i)  the absence of material worsening of the Covid-19 crisis which would result in a
strengthening of lockdown measures being in force as at the date of this Prospectus;

(iii) an increasing need for new and different infrastructures linked to a global population
growth and urbanisation;

(iv) a need for more efficient infrastructures in urban areas (less energy-demanding), notably
adapted to new transportation habits (metro, tramways, cycling lanes, etc.);

(v)  anincreasing need to renovate water and electricity networks to reduce losses and improve
energetical and resources efficiency; and

(vi) a perpetual change in humans' way of life, implying a constant and frequent renewal of
infrastructures (electric or hydrogen vehicules driving a need for new networks to charge
batteries, reduction of heat in the heart of metropoles through an increasing need of green
areas, etc.).

6.4.2 Outlook for the financial year ending on 31 December 2021

NGE is well prepared to achieve a turnover of €2.550 million in 2021, leading to positive organic growth
compared to 2020 and 2019. 2021 EBITDA is expected to be close to 7.1% of the turnover.

Confident in the growth of the construction market, NGE has decided to maintain a high level of
investment, totalling approximately €112 million in 2021.

President (Président), other managers and Supervisory Bodies

President (Président), General Managers (Directeurs Généraux), Deputy Chief Executive Officers
(Directeurs Généraux Délégués) and Executive Vice Presidents (Directeurs Généraux Adjoints)

The Issuer is managed by a President (Président).

As of the date of this Prospectus, Prométhée Group, represented by Antoine Metzger is the President
(Président) of the Issuer.

As of the Issue Date, subject to the closing of the Reorganisation, Prométhée Group will resign from its
position and Antoine Metzger will be appointed as President (Président) of the Issuer.

As of the date of this Prospectus, the President (Président) is assisted by Gilbert Roux and Jean Bernadet
as General Managers (Directeurs Généraux), Orso Vesperini and Stephane Perez-Morillas as Deputy
Chief Executive Officers (Directeurs Généraux Délégués) and Jean-Sébastien Leoni and Laurent Amar
as Executive Vice Presidents (Directeurs Généraux Adjoints).As of the Issue Date, subject to the closing
of the Reorganisation, except Gilbert Roux, all the General Managers (Directeurs Généraux), Deputy
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7.3.

Chief Executive Officers (Directeurs Généraux Délégués) and Executive Vice Presidents (Directeurs
Généraux Adjoints) shall be reappointed.

None of the President (Président) or the General Managers (Directeurs Généraux) or Deputy Chief
Executive Officers (Directeurs Généraux Délégués) or Executive Vice Presidents (Directeurs Généraux
Adjoints) performs any significant activity outside the Group.

The President (Président), the General Managers (Directeurs Généraux), the Deputy Chief Executive
Officers (Directeurs Généraux Délégués) and the Executive Vice Presidents (Directeurs Généraux
Adjoints) have their business addresses at the address of the Issuer's registered office.

Executive Committee (Comité Exécutif)

To assist the President (Président), the General Managers (Directeurs Généraux), the Deputy Chief
Executive Officers (Directeurs Généraux Délégués) and the and the Executive Vice Presidents
(Directeurs Généraux Adjoints), a non-statutory Executive Committee (Comité Exécutif non statutaire)
meets monthly to implement the Group's strategy and ensure its operational management. As of the date
of this Prospectus, such non-statutory Executive Committee is composed of:

- the President (Président), the General Managers (Directeurs Généraux), the Deputy Chief
Executive Officers (Directeurs Généraux Délégués) and the Executive Vice Presidents
(Directeurs Généraux Adjoints); and

- Michel Lavedrine, Joél Perelle, Thierry Bodard, Bruno Pavie and Thierry Robert.
After the Issue Date, the non-statutory Executive Committee shall remain unchanged.

No member of the Executive Committee (Comité Exécutif) performs any significant activity outside the
Group.

The members of the Executive Committee (Comité Exécutif) have their business addresses at the address
of the Issuer's registered office.

Strategic Board (Conseil Stratégique)

The Strategic Board (Conseil Stratégique) is a collegial decision-making body set-up to assist the
President (Président), the General Managers (Directeurs Généraux) and the Deputy Chief Executive
Officers (Directeurs Généraux Délégués).

As of the date of this Prospectus, the Strategic Board (Conseil Stratégique) has the power, and sole
responsibility, to:

- discuss, review and adopt the strategic directions and growth areas proposed by the President
(Président) for the Issuer and the companies it controls within the meaning of article L. 233-3 of
the Code de commerce;

- examine the evolution of the activities of the Issuer and the companies it controls within the
meaning of article L. 233-3 of the Code de commerce, in France and abroad;

- adopt or amend the annual budget and business plan of the Issuer and its subsidiaries;
- authorise significant external growths;

- authorise the commitment of the Issuer to public service delegations and public private
partnerships and the response to a binding request for proposal for works/projects with a
significant turnover;

- suggest changes in the share capital;
- convene the shareholders to general meetings; and
- determine the compensation of the main managers other than the corporate officers.

As of the Issue Date, subject to the closing of the Reorganisation, the Strategic Board (Conseil
Stratégique) will have the power, and sole responsibility, to:
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appoint the General Directors and/or Deputy General Directors (and the President (Président) in
designated cases) of the Issuer and dismiss the main corporate officers (President (Président),
President (Président) of the Strategic Board, General Directors and/or Deputy General Directors)
of the Issuer,

appoint and dismiss the statutory auditors of the Issuer and its subsidiaries,

determine the compensation of some members of the Strategic Board (including the
President (Président) of the Strategic Board),

establish and amend any profit-share or incentive plan, stock option plan, savings plan, pension
plan or any other equivalent benefit to the benefit of the employees and/or officers of the Issuer
and its subsidiaries,

close and approve the annual and the half-yearly consolidated accounts of the Issuer, determine
the allocation of profits, authorise the distribution of dividends (including interim dividends),
reserves and any similar or equivalent distribution or payment by the Issuer above a percentage
of its result, approve the annual budget and amend the business plan, including investments,
divestments and financing plans related thereto,

authorise any change in the accounting methods and principles customarily used by the Issuer and
its subsidiaries for the preparation the annual and the half-yearly individual and consolidated
accounts,

authorise the amendment of the articles of association of the Issuer and its subsidiary,
authorise the incorporation of subsidiaries abroad,

authorise the issuance, exchange, reimbursement, conversion, repurchase, cancellation of
securities ("titres") of the Issuer and its subsidiaries and more generally, any changes in their share
capital, equity and quasi-equity,

authorise the transfer of securities (“titres”’) of the Issuer and its subsidiaries to the corporate
mutual fund (“fonds commun de placement d'entreprise”),

authorise the appointment of an auditor in the context of an audit of a subsidiary of the Issuer, the
beginning of an insolvency proceeding, the appointment a trustee and the dissolution of a
subsidiary of the Issuer,

authorise the granting of significant securities (“slretés”) by the Issuer, of significant warranties,
pledges or other securities by the Issuer and its subsidiaries and the subscription by the Issuer and
its subsidiaries of a significant new debt and any interest rate and currency hedging transaction,

authorise significant external growths,

authorise the commitment of the Issuer and its subsidiaries to significant public service
delegations and public private partnerships and the response to a binding request for proposal for
works/projects with a significant turnover,

authorise the Issuer and its subsidiaries to pay, take over, settle, or agree to satisfy a claim,
liability, obligation or proceeding of a significant amount,

approve the related-party agreements (“conventions réglementées”),

authorise any decision which requires the prior approval of the financial lenders of the Issuer and
its subsidiaries, and

authorise any decision relating to the implementation or waiver of any non-competition
undertaking n the employment contract, corporate mandate agreement and/or any other agreement
of any employee or corporate officer of the Issuer and its subsidiaries.
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As of the date of this Prospectus, the members of the Strategic Board (Conseil Stratégique) are:

NAME

FUNCTION IN THE
STRATEGIC BOARD

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES PERFORMED OUTSIDE THE
ISSUER

Alain Joél Rousseau

Chairman of the Strategic Board

Gilbert Roux

Vice-Chairman of the Strategic
Board

Emmanuele Perron

Member of the Strategic Board

President of the Corporate Law Division at Medef

Vice-president of the National Federation of Public Works
(Fédération Nationale des Travaux Publics)

Antoine Metzger

Member of the Strategic Board

Francis Chatelain

Member of the Strategic Board

Michel Lavedrine

Member of the Strategic Board

Michel Pavoine

Member of the Strategic Board

Joél Perelle

Member of the Strategic Board

Crédit Mutuel Equity SCR
represented by Bertrand
Ghez

Member of the Strategic Board

Crédit Mutuel Equity SCRis:

Member of the supervisory board (conseil de surveillance) of
Provence Nature Développement

Member of the board of directors (conseil d'administration) of
Financiére MG3F

Administrator of Média Participations

Member of the board of directors (conseil d'administration) of
Altrad Investment Authority

Member of the supervisory board (conseil de surveillance) of
Groupe Berger

Member of the supervisory committee (comité de surveillance) of
Financiére Intégral

Member and President of the supervisory committee (comité de
surveillance) of Ealis

Bertrand Ghez is:
Permanent Representative of Ugepar

Administrator, member of the board of directors (conseil
d'administration) of Agta Record

Permanent Representative of Crédit Mutuel Equity SCR:

- at the supervisory board (conseil de surveillance) of Provence
Nature Développement

- at the board of directors (conseil d'administration) of Financiere
MG3F

- administrator of Média Participations

- at the board of directors (conseil d'administration) of Altrad
Investment Authority

President of Compagnie Carnot

Crédit Mutuel Equity
represented by Xavier
Blain

Member of the Strategic Board

Crédit Mutuel Equity is:
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Member of the supervisory committee (comité de surveillance) of
Batinvest

Xavier Blain is:

Permanent Representative of Crédit Mutuel Equity at the
monitoring committee (comité de suivi) of Peri Thuras

Member of the Strategic Board | Founder of Casabee

(independent member) Member of the scientific boards of impact funds (Sycomore, Alter

Equity).
Vice-President of the Shift Project on the ecological transition

Genevieve Ferone Creuzet

Member of the Strategic Board | Chartered Accountant, Auditor, Financial Expert

(independent member) Founder and President of JPA International and JPA Consulting

International

. President of JPA Audit, JPA Entreprises and JPA Group
Jacques Potdevin

IFAC - Member of Nominating Committee
Groupe Prévoir — Audit Committee President

Member of the Board of Trustees of the I.V.S.C. - International
Valuation Standards Council

The members of the Strategic Board (Conseil Stratégique) have their business addresses at the address
of the Issuer's registered office.

As of the Issue Date, subject to the closing of the Reorganisation, the composition of the Strategic Board
(Conseil Stratégique) will be amended as follows:

- Prométhée Group, represented by Alain Joél Rousseau will be appointed as Chairman of the
Strategic Board (in replacement of Alain Joél Rousseau personally);

- Emmanuéle Perron will be appointed as independent member of the Strategic Board;

- Jean Bernadet, Orso Vesperini, Stephane Perez-Morillas and Jean-Sébastien Leoni will be
appointed as new members of the Strategic Board;

- 4 new members of the Strategic Board will be appointed by the Montefiore Investors; and

- Crédit Mutuel Equity SCR represented by Bertrand Ghez and Crédit Mutuel Equity represented
by Xavier Blain will both resign.

7.4. Absence of conflict of interest

To the best of the Issuer's knowledge, there is no conflict of interest between the duties to the Issuer of
any of the members of the Executive Board (Directoire), Executive Committee (Comité Exécutif) or
Strategic Board (Conseil Stratégique) of the Issuer and their private interests or other duties.

8. Main Shareholders

As of the date of this Prospectus, the main shareholders of the Issuer are:

NUMBER OF o
SHAREHOLDERS SHARES % OF SHARE CAPITAL
Compagnie NGE 3,803,579 63.98%
Financiére Sainte Anne 1 0.00%
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Financiére Saint Bénezet 1,159,493 19.50%
FCPE NGE Actionnariat 982,057 16,52%
NGE Management 1 0.00%
Crédit Mutuel Equity SCR 1 0.00%
Other shareholders 9 0.00%

TOTAL 5,945,141 100%

As of the date of this Prospectus, the Issuer is controlled solely by its founders, and more specifically
by Alain Joél Rousseau through a chain of majority voting rights.

As of the Issue Date, subject to the closing of the Reorganisation which provides for the merger of
Compagnie NGE by the Issuer, the main shareholders of the Issuer will be:

SHAREHOLDERS NUSﬁiEESOF % OF SHARE CAPITAL
Montefiore Investors 1,297,596 27.77%
FCPE NGE Actionnariat 982,057 21.02%
Financiere Saint Bénezet 927,594 19.85%
Financiere Sainte Anne 736,740 15.77%
NGE Management 494,845 10.59%
Orion 233,629 5.00%
Other shareholders 9 0.00%

TOTAL 4,672,470 100%

As of the Issue Date, subject to the closing of the Reorganisation, the Issuer will be jointly controlled
by the Montefiore Investors, the founders (Financiere Sainte Anne) and the Managers (Financiére Saint
Bénezet, NGE Management and Orion) pursuant to shares with specific voting rights.

Legal and Arbitration Proceedings

Companies of the Group are sometimes engaged in proceedings, arbitrations and claims in the normal
course of their business. The related risks are assessed by NGE and the subsidiaries involved on the
basis of their knowledge of the cases, and provisions are taken in consequence as appropriate.

As of the date of this Prospectus, an arbitration proceeding is ongoing before the International Chamber
of Commerce in relation to a contract in Algeria, with a financial exposure for the Group below 1 million
euros.

In another matter, TSO has received several notifications from the Algerian tax authorities for
corrections or correction proposals for an amount representing, for TSO's share in the concerned
companies, 6 million euros. As at 31 December 2020, one million five hundred thousand euros
(€ 1,500,000) was accrued by the Group in relation to such notifications from the Algerian tax
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10.

11.

authorities. The Group has contested and/or is about to contest the claims and believes that any amount
payable by TSO should be substantially less than the amount claimed by the Algerian tax authorities.

On the basis of its past experience and the analysis of its legal department and advisors, proceedings,
arbitrations and claims involving the Group are reviewed regularly, particularly when new information
becomes available.

Material contracts

There are no material contracts that could result in any member of the Group being under an obligation
or entitlement that is material to the Issuer's ability to meet its obligations to Noteholders in respect of
the Notes being issued.

Financial information of the Group
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STATUTORY AUDITORS’ REPORT ON THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended December 31, 2019

To the Annual General Meeting of NGE

OPINION

In compliance with the engagement entrusted to us by your Annual General Meeting, we have audited the
accompanying consolidated financial statements of NGE for the year ended December 31, 2019. These
financial statements were approved by the President on April 15, 2020 based on information available at that
date regarding the evolving context of Covid-19’s sanitary crisis.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of the assets and liabilities and
of the financial position of the Group as at December 31, 2019 and of the results of its operations for the year
then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards as adopted by the European Union.

The audit opinion expressed above is consistent with our report to the Audit Committee.

BASIS FOR OPINION
Audit Framework

We conducted our audit in accordance with professional standards applicable in France. We believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Statutory Auditors’ Responsibilities for
the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report.

Independence

We conducted our audit engagement in compliance with independence rules applicable to us, for the period
from January 1, 2019 to the date of our report and specifically we did not provide any prohibited non-audit
services referred to in Article 5(1) of Regulation (EU) No 537/2014 or in the French Code of ethics (code de
déontologie) for statutory auditors.

EMPHASIS OF MATTER

We draw attention to the following matter described in :

- Note 3.4 to the consolidated financial statements which sets out the change in accounting method
relating to the application of IFRS 16 “Leases” from January 1st, 2019 ;

- Note 8.18 to the consolidated financial statements which sets out the change in accounting method
relating to the application of IFRS 15 "Revenue from contracts cencluded with customers" from
January 1st, 2019 ;

- Note 7.2 to the consolidated financial statements which sets out the exceptional events of Covid-19.

Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.
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JUSTIFICATION OF ASSESSMENTS - KEY AUDIT MATTERS

In accordance with the requirements of Articles L.823-9 and R.823-7 of the French Commercial Code (code
de commerce) relating to the justification of our assessments, we inform you of the key audit matters relating
to risks of material misstatement that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of
the consolidated financial statements of the current period, as well as how we addressed those risks.

These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole,
closed under the conditions mentioned above, and in forming our opinion thereon. We do not provide a
separate opinion on specific items of the consolidated financial statements.

Evaluation of Goodwill

Risk identified

Goodwill are included in the assets of the Group for a value of € 263 million and constitute a significant value
of the consolidated assets as of December 31, 2019. Note 8.1 of the consolidated financial statements
specifies how the goodwill and the depreciation of fixed assets were calculated:

e impairment testing of the carrying amount of goodwill is performed at least once a year and
whenever there is an indication of loss of value ;

e these recoverable amounts are calculated using the methods described in Appendix 8.1, and
include assumptions and detailed estimates, such as projections of future cash flows according to
the 5-year business plans, the discount rates and the perpetual growth rate.

We considered the assessment of goodwill as a key issue of the audit in that it is sensitive to the estimates
and assumptions made by management and may therefore have a significant impact on the financial
statements.

Audit procedures implemented
Our work has focused primarily on:

e examining the appropriateness and consistency of the accounting policies and methods used;

e examining the documentation produced by management relating to impairment testing and
evaluating whether it is compliant with all applicable standards;

o verifying the appropriateness of the approach used to determine cash generating units, whether
the cash flow projections are reasonable and verifying the different parameters that define the
discount rate applied,;

e comparing projections for previous periods with the corresponding accomplishments to assess
whether goals set in the past were achieved;

e examining whether the growth rate used was reasonable;
e conducting our own sensitivity analyses for changes to the basic assumptions;
o verifying the information given in the appendix to the consolidated financial statements.
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Accounting for Construction Contracts

Risk identified

The Group recognizes income and expenses on construction contracts according to the percentage of
completion method defined by IFRS 15.

For the Group, progress is generally determined based on percentage of physical or cost completion as defined
in Note 8.18.

If the forecast completion shows a deficit, a provision is recognized separately from the project progress,
according to the best estimate of the forecast results including, if applicable, the rights to additional payments
or claims, if they are probable and may be assessed in a reliable way. Provisions for losses on completion are
presented in balance sheet liabilities.

We considered the accounting for construction contracts as a key issue in the audit to the extent that
recognition of revenue and profits is sensitive to estimates and assumptions made by management and may
therefore have a material impact on the financial statements.

Audit procedures implemented
Our work has focused primarily on:

e review of the procedures and specific information systems established by the most important
subsidiaries in terms of their contribution to revenue, and the monitoring of corresponding
expenses;

e broad implementation of digital monitoring mechanisms in the tools used to monitor the execution
of contracts;

e evaluation and testing of the design and implementation of key controls put in place at the Group's
largest subsidiaries;

e based on our experience, conducting an overall assessment of the estimates and assumptions
used to recognize revenue, profits and any potential provisions for loss-making contracts.

e verifying the information given in the appendices to the consolidated financial statements, in
particular to ensure that notes 8.9 and 8.18 provide appropriate information on contract accounting
and the methods used to recognize revenue.

SPECIFIC VERIFICATIONS

We have also performed, in accordance with professional standards applicable in France, the specific
verifications required by laws and regulations of the Group’s information given in the management report of
President closed on April 28, 2020.

Regarding the events that occurred and elements that have been known after the date of financial statements’
closing relating to the effects of Covid-19’s crisis, the management informed us that they will be the subject of
a communication to the Annual General Meeting called to rule on the accounts.

We have no matters to report as to their fair presentation and their consistency with the consolidated financial
statements.
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REPORT ON OTHER LEGAL AND REGULATORY REQUIREMENTS
Appointment of Statutory Auditors

We were appointed as statutory auditors of NGE by legal status Meeting of April,28 2008 for TALENZ ARES
AUDIT, and by the annual general meeting held on July 17, 2008, for Mr Michel Galaine.

As at December 31, 2019, TALENZ ARES AUDIT and Mr Michel Galaine were in the 6th year of total
uninterrupted engagement since NGE became a public interest entity as defined by European rulings.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF MANAGEMENT AND THOSE CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements
in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards as adopted by the European Union and for
such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using
the going concern basis of accounting unless it is expected to liquidate the Company or to cease operations.

The Audit Committee is responsible for monitoring the financial reporting process and the effectiveness of
internal control and risks management systems and where applicable, its internal audit, regarding the
accounting and financial reporting procedures.

The consolidated financial statements were approved by the President.

STATUTORY AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Objectives and audit approach

Our role is to issue a report on the consolidated financial statements. Our objective is to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with professional standards will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
consolidated financial statements.

As specified in Article L.823-10-1 of the French Commercial Code (code de commerce), our statutory audit
does not include assurance on the viability of the Company or the quality of management of the affairs of the
Company.

As part of an audit conducted in accordance with professional standards applicable in France, the statutory
auditor exercises professional judgment throughout the audit and furthermore:

o Identifies and assesses the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, designs and performs audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtains audit evidence considered to be sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for his opinion. The
risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override
of internal control.

e Obtains an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that

are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the internal control.
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e Evaluates the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management in the consolidated financial statements.

e Assesses the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that
may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. This assessment is
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of his audit report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern. If the statutory auditor
concludes that a material uncertainty exists, there is a requirement to draw attention in the audit report
to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are not provided
or inadequate, to modify the opinion expressed therein.

e Evaluates the overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements and assesses whether these
statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

e Obtains sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or
business activities within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. The
statutory auditor is responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the audit of the
consolidated financial statements and for the opinion expressed on these consolidated financial
statements.

Report to the Audit Committee

We submit a report to the Audit Committee which includes in particular a description of the scope of the audit
and the audit program implemented, as well as the results of our audit. We also report, if any, significant
deficiencies in internal control regarding the accounting and financial reporting procedures that we have
identified.

Our report to the Audit Committee includes the risks of material misstatement that, in our professional
judgment, were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period
and which are therefore the key audit matters that we are required to describe in this report.

We also provide the Audit Committee with the declaration provided for in Article 6 of Regulation (EU) N°
537/2014, confirming our independence within the meaning of the rules applicable in France such as they are
set in particular by Articles L.822-10 to L.822-14 of the French Commercial Code (code de commerce) and in
the French Code of Ethics (code de déontologie) for statutory auditors. Where appropriate, we discuss with
the Audit Committee the risks that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and the related
safeguards.

Montpellier and Avignon, April 28, 2020
The Statutory auditors

Michel GALAINE TALENZ ARES AUDIT

Loic TATIBOUET
Statutory auditor Statutory auditor
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Consolidated financial statements

Consolidated income statement

In thousands of euros te 12/31/2018 12/31/2018
Income from operating activities 2,497,881 2,028,293
Crher ncome fromactivites 819 50029 ag3le
Purchases consumad (420106 350,459)
External exper (1

Taxes anag levies

Amortization axpenses

ense from current og 4.077 5,387

OPERATING INCOME FROM ORDINARY ACTIVITIES 68.388 48,322

a anue 2 7% 24%
Cther operating incomeand expenss 521 (21,953
OPERATING INCOME 46,435

(10473

Cost of net financial debt

(10.418)

Other fimnancicl Income and expenses 823 as/
Share Innet income of ossociates 24 24
Tax experse 87 (9618
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Consolidated statement
of comprechensive income

In thousands of euros Note 12/31/2019 12/31/2018
CONSOLIDATED NETINCOME 26,325 28491

Other comprehensive income that may not be recycled subsequently to netincome

= 3 (=92)
Fixed assets revaluation ©.522
axohitemst will not be subsequently reciassified to profitorloss 574 (5.382)
Other comprehensive income thot may be recycled subsequently to netincome

Farr volue chenga on hedc nstrUments g14 132 14)
Transiation adjustmen 758 &1
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6 Consolidated financial statements

Consolidated statement
of financial position

Assets

In thousands of euros 31/2 12/31/2018

Geodwill 81 263,267

Concession Intagllye ossets 82 69

Ctrher ntanginie nssets ]2 1,359

Proparty, plant and aquipment 317,387

Right-of-useof leoced ascets 168,880

Investmentsin associates 14023

Avaoilable-for- = finoncial asssts 4217

Other financiol assets 85 75269 40066

Other non-current assets g6 B.521 10,069
87 1238

NON-CURRENT ASSETS 884,303

Inventories 88 48837

Trades 883,178

Agvance poyments 5499

Cther currentassets 810 205 5668

Current tox ossets 34

Cash ondcash equivaients 811 414,470
CURRENTASSETS 1,558,644 1,261,937

TOTAL A TS 2442948 20421
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2/31/2019

|5 pital 52580
Premiums 22648 ece48
Reszerves 208,097 194 124

Netincame for tl

23393 25479
SHAREHOLDER'S EQUITY 306,718 294,831

Nen-controlling in

6924 8,255

TOTALEQUITY 313,642 301,086

Nen-current debts 813 275625 258,556
Non-currant lease dehis 813 B7.270 44 B35
Non-current pravisions 815-816 85890 79587
De 23 vax hobilties 87 7, 2410

NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES 436,002 386,388

Currentd 74296

38853

Current lzase debts

Bank cverdrafls 811 249333
Current Prowsions 815-816 7562
rd payments on account ¢ 2.8 1572522
Trade poyables 754,078
Ctrer current llabilities B17-81 408622
Currant tox llob 3041
CURRENT LIABILITIES 1,693,301 1,354,663

=EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
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Consolidated financial statements

Consolidated cash
flow statement

The consolidated cash flow statement is presented according to IAS 7 cmended using the indirect method. In accordance
with this methog, netincome from consolidated companies is corrected for the effects of transactions with no impact on
cash, and for income or expense items related to investing and financing flows. Interest and dividends from unconsoli-
dated companies are shown in cash flows from investing and financing, respectively

At December 31, 2019, there were no cosh and cash equivalents that are not available for use.

In thousands of eu Note 12/31/2018 12/31/2018

CONSOLIDATED NETINCOME 26,325 28,491
let amortization; depreciation-and pr 115592

Cther pperating Income and expenses 6519 (1178)

Gaing and o an disposals 4234

ire innet iInc

Dividends collected {Unconsoligat ompanies ond investments under Equity met

NETCASH PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES AFTER TAX

ax a5
NETCASH PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES BEFORETAX

i I Lox payable (a7)
C N WCR from operotions 212 3,698

NET CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Disbursement ed to ocquisitions of property, plant and mentandi

Receipts related to dsposals of property, plont and eguipment and intogicle as 54539
Concession intangicle ossets investments 87 . (2.140)
Isbursements rel 0 AELISITIC af financial assete 5 1049 540

in Group structurs 32U

nsolidated companies ond 150

(12.094)

& In loans and advances granted

Chongs in amaunts due to non-current assets suppiers 8l2 3368 S.024
NETCASH FLOW FROM INVESTMENT ACTIVITIES (125,187) (30,332)
Dividends peid to sharehoders of the parent (12751 (9.980)

Dividende paid to nen-controlling intareets in consolidate 1,414)
Receipts fromnew berrow 50,207
Repeyment of borrowings 4e.113)
Repaymeants of lease debts (£5.008)

NETCASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Impact of exchange rate
CHANGE IN NET CASH
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE BEGINNING OF THE PERIOD 142,994

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE END OF THE PERIOD 165,137
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Consolidated statement

of changes in equity

ATTRIBUABLE TOOWNERS OF NGE

Net

income pich
Shareholder’s
for the

period SquRY

Currency

Number

In thousands of euros ¥
of shares

Reserves Translation
Reserves

Copital Premiums

POSITION AT

NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS

Nat
income
for the
period

Total
nen-controling
interests

Currency
Transiation
Reserves

Reserves

DECEMBER 31, 2017 ©/572:507 52580 22,648 171,287 (912) 24,352 269,955 13,059 (e61)  (376) 12,022 281977
tion of nat
e for the f
e 25,479 25,479 013 ] 28491
sive 10,154 10,154 10,154
=2
(3 10) (1,308) QU
36 336 a5 as 381
BEOVP {1102 1103) (7519 (7519)
POSITION AT
DECEMBER 31, 2018 5572507 52580 22648 194700 (576) 25479 294831 3.858 (616) 3,013 6.255 301,088
Allscation of met
wome for the pericd 25479 y = 3.013 2013} Y 9
Netinceme for the —_— e
932 £6.525
period
Q63) (1.0E3)
Dividhernds a2 800) =800) —
o4d 549 2
n Group T807 84
POSITION AT 6,572,507 52580 22,648 208,124 (27) 23,393 308718 4394 1(403). | 2932 |

DECEMBER 31,2019
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements

Notes to the consolidated
financial statements

The NGE Group's financial stotements ¢t December 231,
2019 set out the activity of the NGE Group over the period
from January 1 to December 31, 2019 were closed by the
president an April 15, 2020.

1. General information

The consolidated financial statements ct December 31,
2018, include NGE and its subsidicries (together known as
«the Group), and the Group share in associates and joint
arrengements.

NGE Heod quarter is located at Saint Etienne du Gras (13)
- Parc d'activités de Laurade.

NGE capital is amounted at December 31, 2019 to
52,580,056 euros.

2. Standards and interpretations
applied

The Group consolidated financial statements for the
periods ended December 31, 2018 and December 31, 2019
were prepared in accordance with IFRS (International
Financial Reporting Standards) applicable at December
31, 2018, as adopted by the European Unien and available
on the website: http://ec.europa.eu/internal_market/
accounting/ias_frhtm. (Reguiation No. 1606/2002 of the
European Council dated July 19, 2002).

The accounting principles retained for the preparation of
the financial statements are based on the standards and
interpretations adopted by the European Union and
mandatory at January 1, 2013

New standards and interpretations with mandatory appli-
cation as of 1 January 2019, cancern:

— IFRS 16 «Leases».
The application of IFRS 16 <Leases» is described in note
3.4. «Change in accounting metnods following the cppli-
cation of IFRS 16 «_eases.

— Other standards with mandatory application as of
1January 2019.
The other standards ond interpretations with manda-
tory application gs of 1 Jenuary 2019 did not have a
significant impact on the cansclidated financial state-
ments as at 31 December 2018. They mainly concern:

« [FRIC 23 tUncertainty over Income Tax Treatmentsy;
The IFRIC 23interpretation supplements the provisions of
IAS 12. Income Taxes, by stipulating the assessment and
accounting methods for uncertainty overincome tax. The
Group has notidentified any significantimpact related to
the implementation of this interpretation on its sharehol-
ders’ equity as at 1 January 2019

» Amendments 1o IFRS 9 «Prepayment features with nega-
tive compensations;

- Amendments to IAS 28 <Long-term interests in 6ss0-
ciotes and joint venturess;

« Amendment to IAS 19 <Employee benefitsy. This amend-
ment applies to plen emendments, curtallments or sett-
lements. It clarifies the fact that an entity must use its
updated actuarial assumptions to assess the cost of
current services and the net interest in respect of defined
benefits.

pRIAT 4,
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O
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« Annual improvements, 2015-2017 cycle. The Group was
not aoffected by the amendments above.

The Group did not early adopt any of the new standards
and interpretations with non-mandatory cpplication as of
1January 2018.

IAS 8

«amendments to |1AS 1 and «Definition of

material;

« amendments to IFRS 3 «Definition of a businesss,

3. Consolidation methods

The Group’s consclidated financial statements are
prepared at December 31, based on the individual finan-
cial statements of the Group's subsidiaries at this date,
restated te comply with the Group's standards

Additions to and withdrawals from the Group's structure
are recognized on the acquisition or disposal date or, for
convenience where the impact is not significant, on the
basis of the last balance sheet prior to the date of acgui-
sition or disposal

The Group uses the following rules

According to the IFRS 10 "Consclidated Financial
Statements” for all aspects related to control and full
consolidation, the concept of control is based on three

criteria

— power over the entity, i.e. the ability to direct the octivities

— exposure to variable returns from the entity, which may
be positive, in the form of dividends or other economic
benefit, or negative; and

— the link between its power over the entity and these
returns, ie the ability to use its power over the entity to
affect the amount of the investor’s returns.

In practice, the Group is considered to contrel the compa
nies in which it directly or indirectly holds the majerity of
the voting rights in Shareholders’ Meetings, on the Board
of Directors or in equivalent governing bodies. These
companies are fully consolidated. To determine control,
the Group conducts an in-depth analysis of governance
and the rights held by the other sharehalders to verify that
they are purely protective rights

As and when required, we also conduct an analysis of the
instruments held by the Group or by third parties (potential
voting rights. dilutive instruments and convertible instru-
ments, amongst others), which if exercised, could change
the type of influence exercised by each of the parties.

In addition to assessing the governance in place with each
partner, for some infrastructure project companies epera

ting under concession agreements or under public-private
partnership contracts in which NGE is not the only equity
investor, NGE may also examine the features of the
subcontracting agreements 1o verify that they do not confer
additional powers that could lead to o situation of controi.

For the most part. these assessments concern building
contracts and operation/maintenance contracts for the
concession structures.

We also carry out an assessment in the event of a specific
event that may have animpaect on the level of control exer-
cised by the Group (change in the breakdown of the entity’s
capital or in its governence;

?«X‘GTC‘SQ ofa dilutive%mAyAU
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12 Notes to the consolidated financial statements

According to IFRS 11 “Joint Arrangements”, joint control is
established when decisions about the relevant activities
require the unecnimous consent of the parties sharing
control.

Joint arrangements are classed into two categories (joint
ventures and joint operations), according to the type of
rights and cobligaticns of each of the parties. This classifi-
cation is determined according to the legal form ond
vehicle used for the project.

— A joint venture is a joint arrangement whereby the
parties (joint venturers) that have joint control of the
arrangement have rights to the net assets of the arran-
gement. Joint ventures are consolidated according to
the equity method.

— A joint operation is a joint arrangement whereby the
parties (joint operators) that have joint control of the
arrangement have rights to the assets, ond obligations
for the liabilities, relating to the arrangement. Each joint
operator must recognize its share of the assets, liabili-
ties, income and expenditure in relation to its interest in
the joint operation.

The majority of our joint arrangements are joint operations
based on the legal form of the vehicle used. such as in
France, where the parties generally estaplish a société en
participation (SEP) (de-facto partnership) as the legal
framework for their operations.

In some situations. where the facts and circumstances
show that a company has been designed to provide
production to the parties, it is reqorded as a joint operation
even where the vehicle’s legal form does not establish
transparency between the joint operators’ assets and
those of the jeint arrangement, In that situation, the parties
have the rights to substantially all of the economic benefits
associated with the company's assets, and will settle its
liokilities. Within the Group, this concerns certain coating
plants.

Acrording to |AS 28 "Investments in associates and joint
ventures” revised. Investments in Associate are compa-
nies on which the Group has a significant influence. They
are consolidated using the Equity method

120

3.2. Intra-group operations

Intra-group asset and liobility or income and expense
operations and transactions between fully consolidated
companies are eliminated in full from the consolidated
finoncial statements.

The gains and losses on assets transactions (buy or sell)
petween a fully consolicated entity and an equity-ac-
counted entity are recorded in consolidoted financial
statement at the percentage of interest not held in the
equity accounted entity.

3.3. Foreign currency transactions
The accounts of foreign subsidiaries are kept in their func-
tional currency.

Balance sheets whose functional currency differs from the
consclidation currency are translated into euros at the
closing rate, except for equity, which is tronslated at histo-
rical cost.

Translation differences on the balance sheet are recorded
as translation adjustments in equity.

The consolidated statement of comprehensive income is
translated using the average rate over the period,

Foreign currency transactions are translated into eures at
the exchange rate in force on the date of the transaction.
Resulting foreign exchange gains and losses are reco-
gnized in foreign exchange profit or loss and presented Iin
other financial income and other financial expensesin the
consoclidated statement of comprehensive income.

Foreign exchange gains and lesses on borrowings deno-
mincted in foreign currency or on derivative foreign
exchange instruments which gualify as net investment
hedges in subsidiaries are recorded as items of other
comprehensive income and presented under translation
reserve.

Geodwill and fair value adjustment resulting from the
acquisition of foreign subsidiories are considered as the
subsidiary’s assets and liabilities and accordingly are
expressed in the subsidiory’s functional currency and
translated at the clesing rate.
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3.4. Change in accounting methods following
the application of IFRS 16 «Leases»

Since 1 January 2019, the Group has applied IFRS 16
(Leasesy according 1o the so-cclled «simplified retrospec-
tiver transition method. The data for the 2018 financial
year, presented for comparison, have nat been adjusted,
in accordonce with the transitory provisions of IFRS 16,
The Group recognises all of its leases in the balance sheet,
with the exception of leases of less than one year or those
for assets with o non-significant unit value as new, which
continue to be recognised as rentin the income statement,
with no impact on the Group's balance sheet.

IFRS ¢«Leases» amends the way in which leases are reco-
gnised by lessees It replaces A5 17 and the interpretations
IFRIC 4. SIC 15 and SIC 27. IFRS 16 imposes a single
accounting method for leases by lessees, impacting the
balance sheet in a similar way to finance leose contracts
as recognised up to 31 December 2018 under IAS 17,
Contracts qualified as finance leases as at 31 December
2018 under IAS 17 were reclassified at 1 Januoary 2018 as
a right-of-use of the assels leased under balance sheet
assets, and lease liabilities under balance sheet liabilities,
without changes to value.

Operating leases are recognised as lease liabilities for the
discounted value of the outstanding rent payments, with
aright-of-use for the underlying asset as a counterparty.
According to the simplified method. the amount of right-
of-use assets is equal to the amount of recognised lease
liability.

In the income statement, the depreciation expense for the
asset and the financial expense related to the debt interest
repiace the lease expense previously entirely recognised
in operating income/expense.

The rights-of-use for leases are depreciated on a straight-
line basis over the term of the leases, and adjusted each
time that the value of the financial lease liability is
reassessed,

The assumptions and estimates made to determine the value
of the rights-of-use of leases and the lease liabilities specifically
concern the setting of discount rates and lease terms.

The lease terms selected generally correspond to the
duration of the fixed term of the lease, notakbly for leases
of equipment and vehicles, and for property leases a
9-year term is generally used. In certain exceptional cases,
notably for emphyteutic leases or construction leases, the
terms often exceed 30 years.

121

To set the discount rate for leases, the residucl term of the
leases is taken into account

Variable rent payments or services related to the contract
are not taken into consideration when setting the amount
of the right-of-use or the lecse liability. They are reco-
gnised in expenses when they occur

A deferred tax is recognised on the difference between
the right-of-use and the lease liability, felling under the
scope of IFRS 16, in a similar way to the previous procedure
for finance leases.

4. Accounting rules and policies

Estimates and assumptions have been made in order to
prepare the financial statements in accordance with IFRS.
These estimates are continually reviewed based on past
experience, as well as other factors that are used in asses-
sing the carrying amount of the assets and liabllities.

4.1, Presentation of the financial statements
The Group presents its financial staterments in accordance
with IAS 1 *Presentation on financial statements”

— the statement of comprehensive income is presented by
type of income and expense in order to best represent
the type of activity carried out by the Group. including
income from disposal of eguipment, which forms part of
the Group's current activities;

— the Group's main performance indicator is income from
operating octivities. It is calculated from operating
income before taking into account estimoted foir value
of share-based poyments, the impact of goodwill
impairment tests ond other operating income and
expenses relating to the Group's non-operating activities
(disposal of activities, acquisition costs);

— net financial income/(loss) presents the Group's cost of
net financial debt and other financial income and
expenses as separate items;

— the consolidated statement of comprehensive income is
determined from the net income on the consolidated
income statement, and presents the other items of
comprehensive income

— the consolidated statement of financial position shows
the breakdown of current and non-current assets and
liabilities.
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14 Notes to the consolidated financial statements

4.2. Significant assessments and estimates
The preparation of the Group's financial statements
requires that the Executive Management maoke use of
assessments, estimates and assumptions that affect the
amounts recognized in the financial statements as assets
and liabilities and income and expenses, as well as the
information provided on contingent liabilities.

The develcpment of factors underlying these estimates
and assumptions, due to the uncertainty involved in such
estimates and assumptions could later generate in @ signi-
ficant adjustment to the amounts recognized in a subse-
quent period,

The use of assessments and estimates is particulerly signi-
ficant in the following areas:

— accounting for contracts recognition of leases (see note
818 tAdditional information on construction leasess).

— post-employment benefits;

— provisions for risks (notably for termination losses and
disputes).

- recoverable amount of intcngible assets ond property,
plant and equipment and notably goadwill;

— deferred tax assets

— fair value of finoncial instruments.

5. Financial risk factors

S.1. Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to changes in interest rates onits
variable-rate debt. In arder to reduce its exposure to
upward movements, the Group may set up optional deri-
vative instruments or interest rate swaps. These deriva-
tives may be qualified as hedging transactions under the
meaning of the IFRS, The Group ensures that the ineffec-
tive portion of these hedges is not material.

Note 814 presents the share of debt subject to interest
rate risks. Any increase in the level of interest rotes would
increase the Group's financing cost, which would lead to a
decrease in its financial income and net income, and may
slow its growth.

122

5.2. Currency risk

The majority of the Group's subsidiaries exercise their acti-
vities in the eurc zone. The Group's exposure to currency
risk is thus limited.

Moreover, costs related to the execution of international
contracts denominated in local currency other than the
euro. are generally paid in this same local currency.
Currency risks mainly concern the timing of cash flows
during the execution of a contract (financing resources or
working capital requirements), as well as translation into
euros of overheads and the profit or loss generated by the
said contract. The Group occasionally implements a
strateqy of hedging all or part of these cash flows in order
to reduce its exposure to currency risk

Assignificant change in exchange rates could nevertheless
affect the Group’s activities and earnings.

5.3. Liquidity risk

Liguigdity risk corresponds to the risk that the Group coes
not have sufficient net financial resources to meet its obli-
Qations and operating expenses.

On February 27 2019, the Group has achieved its trade
receivables securitization program refinancing set up in
Decembper 2013. The Group has increased this progrom
from 100 million of euros to 250 miillion of euros. Struc-
tured for o period of B years this new progrom has quite
a few arrangement that permit to better hondle the
group’s operations specificaticns. Thatresuits in aninstru-
ment with a greater efficiency coupled with financial
conditions upgraded

NGE also has a Negotiable European Commercial Paper
programme of €150 million, unused as at 31 December
2019.

These items are classified under bank overdrafts and
presented in note 811

The Group has asked its banks to set up a Government
Guaranteed Loon for which the terms and conditions cre
provided in item 7.2.

5.4. Tax Risk

Some NGE Group companies were subject to a tax audit
which is ongoing at the financial year closing, for which no
financial risks have been identified.

5.5. Market Risk

The group is not exposed to financial market risk, cash
surpluses being placed on earning accounts or term
accounts.
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5.6. Credit Risk

The risk of non-recovery of account receivables is limited,
because the majority of Group activity is reclized with
operator of puplic service.

5.7. Risk of fluctuation in raw material
Procurement of warks on which the Group operates are
generally affected by a price adjustment clouse backed by
a national index that covers the risk of fluctuation in the
price of raw materials.

QOccasionally, onimportant contracts and notindexed, the
Group may have to use hedging contracts on row mate-
rials which changes in price on markets may be
significant.

6. Scope of consolidation

6.1. Changes in Group structure

The Group changed the consolidation method for Vaglio
Group following an increase in the percentage stake, The latter
is fully consalidated. No cther significant changes tock place
to the scope.

6.2. Scope of consolidation
The list of consclidated companies can be found on
page 38.

7. Subsequent events

7.1. Capital Transactions

On B February 2020, NGE carried out a capital decrease
through the cancellation of treasury shares held by
Bpifrance Participations for €4.4 million. NGE's sharehol-
ders’ equity was reduced from €52580,056 to
€48,200,088 through the cancellation of 5474986 shares.

On B February 2020, in order to finance this capital
decrease, NGE subscribed to a loan backed by its real
estate assets housed within its Fonciere des Alpilles subsi-
diary for €32 6 million.

On & Februory 2020, NGE bought back its own shares
belonging to Bpifronce Participations for the purpose of
transferring them as part of its employee shareholding

123

programme ((NGE Actionnariot Relais 2020» FCPE). Since
that date and up to the closure of the employee sharehol-
ding programme, NGE helds 136,874 of its own shares.

7.2. Exceptional event: Covid 19

The Group's financial statements were prepared on the
basis of the going concern principle. On 11 March 2020, the
Covid-19 epidemic was classified as a global pandemic. A
crisis unit was immedictely set up within NGE. The Group
has focused as a priority on ensuring the heclth and safety
of its employees and contractors on its sites as well as the
operational continuity of its essential activities.

The confinement of the population on a national level
began.an 17 March 2020.

In view of the seriousness of the consequences cf this
health crisis, and faced with the impossibility for NGE to
enforce barrier measures, all of the construction sites in
France were stopped on 17 March 2020 with the exception
of a few emergency sites. Conseguently. around two-thirds
of employees were ploced under the chémage partiel
(partial unemployment) scheme. Internaticnally, our acti-
vity has been reduced by around 50% to date

This situation will lead to a decrease in activity for 2020
for which the figure cannot be reliably estimated to date.
The Group's available cash lines will enable it ta aveid a
short term liquidity risk. This situation may change depen-
ding on the duration of the confinement, and it is impos-
sible to predict all of the conseguences.

Therefore, the Group has asked its banks to set up the
Government Guaranteed Loan (PGE) for a total of €300
million along with a Government guarantee provided by
Bpifrance for 80%. This loan, with an initial term of one year
may, at NGE's request, be transformed into an amorti-
sable loon for a maximum of six years.

The other emergency economic measures voted in March
2020 are also currently being applied within the Group,
notably with deferred loan and finance lease payments,
although it is not possible at this stage to quantify the
elements.

Trade receivables past due mainly concern public recei-
vables and so are not subject to the risk of default.

The Group remains mobilised and attentive as to the chan-
ging situation and will take all oppropriate measures 1o
limit the negative impacts on its results end cash
positicn
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Appendix

8. Appendix

Consolidgated financial statements cre presented in
thousands of euros unless otherwise specified.

8.1. Goodwill and Impairment tests

Business combinations and goodwill
Business combinations are recegnized in accordance with
the provisions of IFRS 3 "Business combinations’ revised.

In accordance with this revised standard, the Group reco-
gnizes the assets acquired and identificble liabilities taken
over at fair value on the date on which control is gained.

Acquisition costs correspond to the fair value, on the
exchange date, of the assets provided, outstending lichi-
lities and/or equity instruments issued in exchange for the
entity acquired. Any price adjustments are measured at
fair value at the end of ecch reporting pericd.

Costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, such
as due diligence fees. are recognized In expenses when
they are incurred.

The acquisition value is attributed by recording the assets
acquired and identifiable liabilities at fair value. except for
assets classified as held-for-sale pursuant to IFRS S
"Nan-current assets held for sale and discontinued
operations”, which are recorded at fair value less cost of
sale.

The positive difference between the acqguisition cost and
the fair vaiue of assets and identifiable liohilities acquired
constitutes goodwill. Where appropriate, goodwill includes
the share of fair value of non-controlling interests in accor-
dance with the full goodwill method.

The Group has twelve months from the acquisition date to
finalize the recognition of operations reloting to the
companies acguired.

In the case of a step business combination, the investment
previously held in the company is valued at the fair value
as at the date of takeover. Any resulting profit or loss is
recognised in «other financicl income or expenses» in profit
or loss.
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In accordance with IAS 27 “Separate financial staternents”
revised, acquisitions or disposals of non-controlling inte-
rests without any change in control are considered to be
trensactions with the Group's shareholders. This approach
results in the difference between the price paid to increase
the percentage interest in an entity already controlled and
the additional share of eguity thereby acquired being
recorded in Group sharehclders’ equity.

Similarly. a reduction in the percentage interest held by the
Group in anentity with no loss of contralis treated from an
accounting standpeint as a transacticn between sharencl-
ders, with no impact on income.

Goodwill relating to fully consolidated subsidiaries is
recorded in assets in the consolidated balance sheet,
under “Goodwill’. Goodwill relating to cempanies consoli-
dated under the equity method is included under
“Investments in equity-accounted companies”.

Badwill is recegnized directly in profit or loss in the year of
acquisition

Impairment of non-financial fixed assets

Assels subject to impairment testing are regrouped into
cash-generating units (CGU) corresponding to groups of
similar assets whose use generates identifiable cash in-flows.

The groups of cash-generating units are:
— the Multi-expertise region:

— the Specialized Nationcl Subsidiaries or o group of inte-
groted subsidicries when these exercise their activity
outside the "Multi-expertise - Regional” organization;

— the Major Projects.

— The recoverable amount of o cash-generating unitis the
higher of the foir value {generally the market price), net
of costs to sell, and the value in use. Volug in use is esti-
mated using the discounted free cash flow method
based on the following two items

— provisional cash flow with zerc debt, i.e.:
» Current operating income + amortization,
+ Change in working capital requirements,
- Investment in new equipment,

- Taxes;
$
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— discount rate {opportunity cost of capital) determined
for each CGU group according 1o its activity and asso-
ciated risk profile.

The use of post-tax rates results in recovercble amounts
that are identical to those obtained by applying pre-tax
rates to pre-tax cash flows.

The assumptions used in these calculations, as in any esti-
mates, include a certain amount of uncertainty and may
therefore be adjusted subsequently during loter periods

If the carrying amount of the cash-generating unitis higher
than the recoverable amount, the cash-generating unit’s
assets are impaired to bring them to their recoverable
amount. Impairment is deducted in priority from goodwill
and recorded in the consolidated statement of compre-
hensive income under other cperating income and
expense.

Cash flows beyond five yeaors are extropolated using a
growth rate estimated at 2%

Goodwill is not amortised, butis subject to animpairment
test at least once a year and every time thal an impair-
ment indicator appears. When impairment is recognised,
the difference between the asset's book value and reco-

Groups of CGU 12/31/2018

Impaiment

verable value is recognised in «Other operating income
and expensesy in profit or loss

All of these flows are discounted using o discount rate of
8.10% corresponding to the Group's weighted average cost
of capital after tax, with the exception of the Building acti-
vity included in the «Specialised national subsidiaries CGU,
where the rate is 10.5%. The latter was subject to impair-
ment of €10 million,

These calculations ore based on a five-year forward plan
prepcred by the regional Management and reviewed by
the Group's Executive Mcnagement and Finance
Department

A reasonably possible change in assumptions for impair
ment tests for each of the groups of CGU would not lead
to animpairment of goodwill. The discount rate fram which
the Group must recegnise goodwill (break-even point) is
9.8% with the exception of the Building activity.

GROUPS OF CGU DISCOUNT RATE

2018 2018

(&} 171\"‘4)" Expertises a1% 70%
Mult-Expertise Mojor Prajects 81% 70%
Speciolist French Subsidiories 81% -105% 70%

Tronslation

Changesin

Other 12/31/2019

Group structure adjustment

Multi-Expeartise Majo 35
Speciolist French Subsigiories (1D.000,
TOTALGOODWILL 273,232 (10,000) = 35 =

Groups of CGU

Impaiment

Changesin Translation Other 12/31/2018

Raegional Multi-Expertises Activities

Group structure adjustment

Projects

Speciolist French Subsidiaries

TOTALGOODWILL

(s)

(@)
| b %
hubillic!lon‘nf the BrasdelaPlaine dam on éunlonAwRES ';"
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Appendix

Concession intangibles assets

In accordance with IFRIC 12 "Service concession arrange-

ments’, the operator can exercise both activities

— construction activity reloted to its design, building and
financing commitments;

— operation and maintenance activities about granted
structures

The granted assets accounting depends on the service
provided payment methed:

= Payment method based on the service used by users:
granted asset is recorded as concession intangibles
assets and evaluated according with IAS 38 "Intangible
asset’. The possible subventions received decrease the
armount recorded as concession intangibles cssets.
Payment method based on a fixed amount due by the
grantor and which is not linked to the service used by
usgers: the granted asset is recorded as other financial
asset and evaluated according with IFRS 9 "Financial
Instruments”

The other financial assets changes are presented in
note 8.5.

ot payment is recorded in accordance with
IFRS 15 "Revenue from contracts with customers”

FY 2019

Changes

Gross amounts 12/31/2018 in Group

12/31/2018 Increases Other ;3172018
movements
S 827 5827
258 2 BE 536
CONCESSION
INTANGIBLE 5.369 (211) (e6) 5.001
ASSETS
Other intangibles assets

Other intengibles asset mainly include patents, licenses
and IT softwore, as well as fixed-term quarrying rights.

Other acquired intangible assets are recorded In the
balence sheet at acquisition cost less, where appropriate,
amortization an gregote impairment losses.

aa

Quarrying rights are amortized over the period of excava-
tion (the ratio of tonnage excavated during the fiscal year
to the quarry’s total estimated excavation capacity over
the operating period)

Other intangible assets are amortized on a straight-line
basis over their useful life.

Other
movements

Translation

& 12/31/2019
adjustment

Increases  Decreases

structure

Changes
in Group
structure

ar rights 3,498 (1) 43
1149 (13)
aCyonane, 12 138 1154
sonaccount
4,665 (19) 1,828 (143) 4002 = 10,336

Other
movements

Transiation

3 12/31/2019
adjustment LU=

Decrecses

e s. pot kar rights 25 (4) 62 46) 31126
& ] S = 18 9 7949
AMORTIZATION AND PROVISIONS 3308 (@ €40 Qas) 129 - 3,926

Shanges Other Translati
12/31/2018 in Group Decreases 2 FUnSrion 12/31/2019
movements  adjustment
structure
d similar rights 281 (13) 3 8.879 568
A0 35 7) AR7
construction and ” FV“’;?FAU*
S 19 1 \ S 1154
dvances and poyments on oecornt ) 'a)
NET AMOUNTS 1,359 (18) 1,188 A 3,873 § 8,410 %
i o 0
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FY 2018

Concession intangible assets

12/31/2017

Changes
in Group

structure

Increases

Decrecses

QOther
movements

Translation
adjustment

12/31/2018

Concessicn iniangib: 2,140 5.627
AMortzaton conces Dlaassots 58 23 58
CONCESSION INTANGIBLE ASSETS - 2,082 - (23) = 5,369

Other intangibles assets

Gross amounts 12/31/2017

Changes
: g

in Group
structure

Increases

Decreases

Other
movements

Translation
adjustment

12/31/2018

Concessicns, patents and smitor rights 2,286l

246

(885)

Cther mtungible assets 1470 0) 34 (11) 5] 1149
| _ ‘lII)llL:I s urder construction and 371 @ 19 19
advancas ond payments cnoccount

GROSS AMOUNTS 5,202 (247) 399 (6986) 106 1 4,665

Amortization and provisions

Changes
In Group
structure

Decraases

Other

movements

Translation
adjustment

12/31/2018

Concessions. patents and semilar rights 2.5%2 1 482 (B58) 100 2517
Cther mtongibie os 870 78 Al (8) 5 789
AMORTIZATION AND PROVISIONS 3282 79 sa23 (e&4q) 106 - 3,308

Net amounts

Changes
in Group
structure

Increases

Decreases

Other
movements

Translation
adjustment

12/31/2018

smilor rights 768 (1361 380
BO0 {7) =60
Sron aeharond 371 @7 13 i
yyments on cccount
NET AMOUNTS 1.840 (a26) (124) (32) - - 1359

X

Trcmformnﬂm ofa tudqd gpmlng yaund lhto synﬂfolle gr "’ AR ES
tl‘n ,munr:lpulny of Le P
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Property, plant and equipment

Property, plantand equipment are recorded ot acquisition
or production cost less aggregate depreciation and any
impairment losses

Assets are subject to depreciation determined according
to the cctual useful life of the goads. The depreciable baose
is the purchase cost less, where appropriate, the final resi-
dual value of the goads. The residual value is the amount
the Group would currently receive if the asset was already
in the condition (age and wear) expected at the end of its
useful life

The main useful lives cdopted are:
Buildings .......... o i 15 - 40 years

Public works equipment .......... .3-10 years

Transportation @QUIDMENT ... v 3 = D YEArs
Railway equipment 8 - 30 years
FIEBRGs: viiiiassmimaimuiinmminmismmeso=19'years

Office furniture and equipment ... w3 -10years

Contracts gualified as finance leases as at 31 December
2018 accoerding to IAS 17, were reclassified on L Januory
2019 as right-of-use of assets lecsed in balance sheet
assets without changes to value. The net value of these
finance leases amounted to £125 millien at 1 January
2019; they are presented in detail in note 8.3 below.

Changes
Gross amounts 12/31/2018 in Group
structure

e

Pavement rehabilitation on the A20 motorway in Corréze

Right-of-use of leased assets

Since 1 January 2018, the Group has applied IFRS 16
tLeases» according to the so-called «simplified retrospec-
tiver transition method, described in nate 34, The data for
the 2018 financial year, presented for comparison. have
not been adjusted, in accordance with the transitory provi
sions of IFRS 18

The values recorded as at 12/31/2018 are the values for
the finance leases restated according to IAS7 and the
impacts of the first application of IFRS 16 at 1 January
2012 are presented in th
methodss amounting to

column «Changes in accounting

f T lati
Increases  Decreases Fair value Pane utron 12/31/2019
adjustment

GROSS AMOUNTS 287425 1.714

Changes
Amortization and provisions 12/31/2018 inGroup
structure

38.454 (6.118) . 5 356,472

Translation

Increases Decreases Fair value
adjustment

AMORTIZATION AND PROVISIONS 161571 =

o

31718 (s,968) S a7 187,592

Chuﬂges Translation
Net amounts 12/31/2018 in Group Decreases Fair value 12/31/2019
adjustment
structure
Right-of-use of fixed assets 3916 2 848) 20T 6 zl
3 3 2 : L 3 QBT 4 U
Right-6f-use of mousbla ¢ : 121928 1714 9,585 1=by L4 EHEAN (272) CJ%N?::‘;!U *O
NET AMOUNTS 125,854 1714 6736 (180) 34,992, (266).% 168,880 o)
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Property, plant and equipment
FY 2013

Chongesin

Other Translation

Gross amounts 12/31/2018 Brolp s tichice Increcses  Decreases movements: adjustment 12/31/2018
Land 11,591 10338 17

Builoings 51142 1,401

Irdus 9484

ial rrachinery and equipment

GROSS AMOUNTS 12,820 90,231 (34,419) (2,873) as2 597,087
Amortization and provisions Grou::::tar'l%:i;: Decreases Ve 3:::; ;:::;I::": 12/31/2018
Land (83) A86 802
Builgings 9.2¢ 21 0 8
Irdustrial v ment 5 134
Lthor tanc ea (1= S4b) 4
AMORTIZATION AND PROVISIONS (288) 67,333 (26,892) 15 156
Net amounts 12/31/2018 Grou;::tarzgcf:r": Increcses  Decreases move::\i; ::;::gl(:::: 12/31/2018
Lesnd 10,421 &Ry 53) 17 44,500

Buildings 422 @ 42547

] c 157447
2 735 2300 87 S443

ang van 73 15825 L 8,103) 2 15356

NET AMOUNTS 13,108 22 898 (7.522) (3.888) 897 317,387

FY 2018

Chongesin
Gross amounts 9

Increases
Group structure

Other
movements

Translation

12/31/2018
adjustment

Dacreases

18833 (P.129) a
3
GROSS AMOUNTS 781585 (24.210) 104,317
Amortization and provisions 12/31/2017 Changesin . cqe

Group structure

Land (1050

(174 (9452) =
(44.327) 1,203 1,226 819,796
Decreases Other Tmneaton 12/31/2018
mavements odjustment

hinery

and equipment

Other tangi

AMORTIZATION AND PROVISIONS

Ve (1SS aT

Changesin

A m
Net amounts Group structure

(24) 3l BR 712

(15,318)

(38.169)

Translation
adjustment

ther
movements

Decreases 12/31/2018

d equipmeant

18853

NETAMOUNTS

403,547 (25,680)

129

{i72) (945 2

(1658

, S
" T-neisax., ) 548 TA@E"ZARES



22 Appendix

Y n ass Tt
Investments in companies in which the Group exercises
significant influence (associates) are valued using the
equity method: they are initially recorded at acquisition
cost including, where appropricte, any goodwill relecsed.

Their carrying cmount is then adjusted to take changes in
the Group share of the net assets of these companies into
account.

When the equity-accounted net position become negative,
shares of negatives positions are presented as Current
provisions except when the Group is committed to recopi-
talise or has clready fund this entity.

Change over the fiscal year is shown in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income (Share in netincome
of associates)

Impairment losses are recorded in profit and loss and the
corresponding associates carrying omount is decreased.

Equity attribuable

12/31/2018 Operating Not Shareinnaet

Dota on 0 100% basis Hevends income income Bty % income 9, owners
of the parent
Arenc 86 = (5) (2 5 7% { 1
Q’:}(:T:\F’Ju La Maintenance Des Engins 160 2 as 1057 o @ 182
Aude Recyclage 28 L7% 5
Bergerac Matérioux et Valorisation 941 118 78 289 25% 20 2
Calcaires Du Bitarrols 5529 (1e8) «50) 1525 S0% (125) 63
Corréze Enrobés S.059 a5 72 290 43% 31 62
Gronulots de l'est 3.228 (732) 1369 Si2 35% 479 179
ILA Catala Développament 1,588 29 )] 25 28% = 10
luS:\Gru‘A'Y\N'ugEﬂ'é'(‘l - 1) @ = =0% - 2
Les Corrieres des Puys 1743 26 20 237 30% (&) 71
LesEnergiesdeLaCité 153 (409) 60) (54) 30% as) (16)
MTC 525 18 9 S0% S 23
NGE Autorautes - (18) (1207) 10% (121 3080
PER 8447 536 420 P.a8E Pe% )| 595
PortAdhoc 10.296 302 (338) S 16% (58) 8,405
SAPAG 4 (18) (73) 33% 24) (329)
SLE 719 27 9 39% 7 493
Societé des Enrotes Clermantols £da4e 143 120 239
Jaumont Finances 10074 (724) (52N
TOTAL 54,988 (778) (3s8)
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Operating
income

12/31/2018

Data on a 100% basis Revenue

Net

income

Equity %interest

Equity attribuable
toowners
of the parent

Shareinnet
income

LesCarrieres

Les Energles da La - (>}

T’“t'. : 36

NGE Auterot 32103 % a7

peR 2 84

Port Adhot 7475 10747 28 5.509

SAPAG

B =33
s CIBrmantais 1 43 27) 371
Jaur Finances 5154 1o S ( 2534
TOTAL 54,167 {10.428) (6.433) (2,885)

is as follows:

Change in investments ina
Netamounts

AT 12/31/2017 8,376

Netincame f; (

2 B85

S50
a2
Chonges in group structure 3107
Chengein consehdoton methoao (383

AT 12/31/2018 7953

Net income for the geriod 2019 74
Dividends paid T

copital 25
Chengsin group structure (50)
Changein consolidation method

AT 12/31/2019

131
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Appendix

Non-current financial assets mainly include available-for-
sale assets and receivables from investments, as well as
deposit guarantees, loans and other financial
receivables

Available-for-sale assets:

Available-for-sale assets include the Group's equity invest-
mentsin nen-consolidated companies. They are measured
at fair value on the balance sheet date. Where their fair
value cannot be reliably determined, they are recognized
at acguisition cost. Factors taken into consideration to
determine impairment are a reduction in the share of
equity held and a significant and prolonged deterioration
in expected profitability.

FY 2018

Gross amounts

Chonges in

In
Group structure

12/31/2018

Changes in the fair volue of available-for-sale investments
are recognized in profit and loss. in accordance with IFRS
9 "Financial instruments”

Loans, deposits:

Loans and deposits are recognized at amortized cost
Where applicatle. they may be subject to an impairment
provision. The impairment corresponds to the difference
between the cerrying amount and the recoverable amount
and is recognized in profit or loss. The provision may be
reversed if there is a favourable change in the recoverable
amount

Other
movemeants

Translation

Decreases
adjustment

creases 12/31/2019

Changesin

12/31/2018 Group structure

In

g 5 24779
45853 208 es 81057
68,392 1,223 23 105,836

Other
movements

Translation

adjustment 12/31/2019

creases Decreases

ther fimancio

PROVISIONS

Changesin In

300

creases Decreases Orher Araneetion 12/31/2019

Group structure

movements adjustment

2227 13 2323 { {4,401 - 24217
ther financiol asssts 40 6 3 0 300} 23 75.269
NETAMOUNTS 62,343 49113 (8,514) (4,701) 23 99,486

FY 2018

Chonges in
Gross amounts 8

12/31/2017 Group structure

Increases

Other
movements

Translation

Decreases 12/31/2018

adjustment

4383 (S)
(616 2 8
GROSS AMOUNTS 74,252 3768 63,813 (73.445) s) 8
Provisions 12/31/2017 Lhange ) Increases Decreases oty T'n‘mslc:tlon 12/31/2018
Group structure movements adjustment

ilable-fo

ther firan

PROVISIONS

asset

6,673

Changes in

Net amounts 12/31/2017

Increases

Other Transiation

Decreases 12/31/2018

Group structure

movements adjustment

(:3‘;":"'1:.’1"\'07-’1; : b(» 0962 5 ) ‘\Q\AEAU*
NET AMOUNTS 65,579 3769 63.814 (72.821) ) D 8 \\‘o%ez..us OO
~ Z
O
S TALENZ ARgg =
AUDIT @
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Summary of assets related to
concessions and PPPs

12/31/2019 12/31/2018

Avmloble-for-sale nssets - Concessions and PPPs 17069 7815
Cther finonciol assets - Concessions-and PPPs 70186 36707
Investments in associates 11182 8444
TOTALFINANCIAL ASSETS - 98.438 52,966

CONCESSIONS AND PPPS

Other non-current assets include 1ex receivables due in
more than one year. These are notably research tax
credits

In cccordance with IAS 12 *Income taxes”, deferred taxa-
tion is recognized on the differences between the carrying
amounts ond the values for tax purposes of asset and
licbility items. They arise:

- from temporary differences that occur when the
carrying amount of an asset or liability differs from its
value for tax purposes. They are either:

« sources of future taxation (deferred tax liabilities)- these
include mainly income whose taxation is deferred;

- sources of future deductions (deferred tax ossets):
these cancern mainly termporary non-deductible tax
provisions:

— tax loss carry forwards (deferred tax assets). Deferred
tax assets are recognized where it is likely that the
company will be able to recover them due to the exis-
tence of a taxable profit expected ouring future periods.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at
each balance sheet dote and reduced when itis nolonger
likely that sufficient taxable profit will be available to enable
the benefit from this deferred tax as set to be used in full
orin part. Unrecognized deferred tox assets are assessed
at each balance sheet date and recognized to the extent
that it becomes likely that a future profit will encble them
to be recovered.

Deferred tax balances are determined based on the each
company's tex situation or of the global result for entities
included in the scope of the tax integration and cre
presented in asset or liobilities according to the net posi-
tion by fiscal entity

The Saint-Flour (15) bypass road

Deferred taxes are recognized at the tax rate applicable
expected on the pericd during the asset will be realized
and the liability paid based on tax rate adopted at the
closing date. Thus, the theoretical income tax rate used for
preparing the consaclidated financial statements was
34.43% for 201€, which is the ordinary tax rate for French
subsidiaries with revenue in excess of €250 million. At
Decemnber 31, 2019, the temporarily differences and carry
back losses are recognised with rate voted by National
Assembly according to the following schedule

2020 ... 30.0% + Contrioution 3.3% be oware 32.02%
2021 ... ..275% + Contribution 3.3% be aware 2841%

2022 end beyond ...25% + Contribution 3.3% be aware 25.83%

Reconciliation between the effective
income tax expense and the
theoretical expense

12/31/2019

12/31/2018

Censolidoted n ome 26,325 28451
Incorma tox axpen (8.€18) (1822)
Pre-tox netincome 35,943 30323
Thearetical taxrate in force 3443% 34.45%
Theoretical tax expense 12,378 10,440
Bormonent differoncas (Z0E) 9972)
DTA rot recognized 507 Bep
Share in netincome of asscciotes 26 292
lTaxrate differences (2.284) @53)
Omers 2
Effective taxexpense 9,618 1832

EFFECTIVE TAXRATE
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Appendix

Income tax expense

12/31/2018 12/31/2018

“urrent toxes B8.361 2524
Deferrad taxes 32857 992)
TOTAL 9,618 1,832

Deferred taxes allocation

FY 2019

Net
balonce at

January 1,
2018

15100

Recognizedin
net income

Transiation
adjustment
and other

Recognized in
otheritems of
comprehensive
income

BALANCE AT 12/31/2018

Balance
before
offsetting

Recognized
directlyin
Equity

Offsetting by

fiscal sphere {

Assets
(Liabilities)
net tax

11110 ) 16
IFC provisions
DEFERRED TAX ASSETS 34 (54.505) 1.238

(&2
167)

Financial Instruments 440 394
DEFERRED TAXLIABILITIES (56,696) 33 (22) (a8) (a,992) (61,723) 54,505 (7.217)
NET TAX ASSETS

¢ 2 2 =
(LIABILITIES) (a84) (3,257) 12 528 (2,780) (5980) (5,280)

BALANCE AT12/31/2018

FY 2018

Net
balance at
January 1,

2018

Recognizedin
netincome

Translation
adjustment
and other

Recognizedin
otheritems of
comprehensive
income

Balance
before
offsetting

Recognized
directlyin
Equity

Offsetting by
fiscal sphere

Assets
(Liabilities)
net tax

emparary differences 1 L3
Pravigions 10,218 (r20) 1,349 263
Tax [osses 5.055, ~44)
|FC provisions (5035) {56 307
DEFERRED TAXASSETS (1,240) (5.4686) 307 31 (54,285) 1,827
Fixed ossets 582 5863 5683
Provisions 4 1483 (7
Intongikle 8 2d
Financia 324) 56 (167
Financiol Instruments 300 50 A4
DEFERRED TAXLIABILITIES (60,143) 2,229 6,857 (5.639) (2 (56.696) 54,285 (2.410)
et 2,437 992 1391 (5.332) al (483) - (483)
%;\V\\ATA(/*
2 [g)
3 o)
S %
S TALENZ ARgg =
AUDIT @
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Inventories are valued at acquisition or production cost by company or at their net realizable value, if this is lower at each

balance sheet date.

Translation
adjustment

12/31/2019

iation

Raw materials and supglies

42,082

otal depreciotion and impairment

INVENTO

(188)

Changes in Translation

12/31/2017 Brotibstrachine Variation odiustinent 12/31/2018
Raw materials and supgles 28751 (3.14%) 25,587 B3 51,255
Totel deprecietion ond impairment el 729 (173)
INVENTORIES 27.847 (3.145) 26.316 63 51080

Trade receivables are recorded at the origin at their
nominal value, and are reassessed at amortised cost,
less impairment far risk of non-payment. at each closing
date.

The Group applies the simplified model as defined in IFRS
9 and records impairment of its trade receivables corres-
ponding to the expected credit loss ot maturity.

At 31 December 2018, reclassifications took place, and this
change in method is described in note 818 ¢Additional
information en construction contracts».

12/31/2018 12/31/2018

Trade recaivaples - gross amount 822465 765,484

7

Impaimant (928 (8.4953)

NETAMOUNTS 883.178 756.989

The schedule of trade receivables breaks down as follows

Non yet due ¢30days »120 days
Trade recevables ot 12/31/2012 883178 626344 6.447 £8.481 £2413 18776 110707
[rade receivables gt 12/31/2018 756,989 538,598 73838 19,635 13273 /7849

135



28

Appendix

12/31/2012 12/31/2018

134538 108E57
Socidl charge recenvable 4013 3 >
Ctrer recavacles 59427 49,228
Prepoid expensas 7588 4442
OTHER CURRENT ASSETS 205,566 165,949

Cash and cash equivalents include bank current accounts
and cesh equivalents corresponding to short-term invest-
ments with negligible risk of a change in value. Cash equi-
valents comprise in particular term accounts, earning
accounts and deposit certificates with original maturities
of less than three monthe.

Marketable securities are valued at fair value in accor-
dance with IFRS 9 "Financial instruments”. Changes in fair
value are recerded in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income,

Bank overdrafts are excluded from cash and presented in
current berrowings.

12/31/2019

Net cash includes an amount in foreign currency (mainly
US Dollar and British Pound) as 48.0 million of euros at
December 31, 2019. This one amounted to 34.0 million of
euros ot december 31, 2018.

12/31/2018 12/31/2018

Iwestments 10855

Cosh 403815 e71879
Cosh and cash equivalents 414 470 273,387
Bonk overdraft (including (@46433) e
secuntization)

Bank overdrofts (249.333) (130.393)
NETCASH 165,137 142,994

Provided by
operating
activitios

Changes in group
structure and
other

Non-current
assetsuppliers

12/31/2018

Inveniories a8 897 141)
E—— 883178 6547
Ctrer 212.065 179272 @29194) (3.598)
ASSETS 1144141 987341 (145.518) - {11,280)
Trads payables 754072 693,526 3,365 au3s
Cther liatilities 5686144 443,365

1.320.216 1,136,891

EQUIREMENT)/ SURPLUS

149,550

AL
tﬂlucmig Cameroun

opet e
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Borrowings are initially recorded ot the cost corresponding
to the fair value of the amount received, net of issue costs,
After theinitial recognition, the borrowings are assessed at
amortised cost, using the effective interest rate methoed
which takes into account all issue costs and discounts or
repayment premiums

Lease liabilities

The application of IFRS 16 «Leases* described in note 3.4,
led the Group to recognise a liability in respect of leases of
€35 million at 1 January 2019, and €48 million at 31
December 2019

Finance lease liopilities presented at 31 December 2018
were reclassified at 1 January 2013 as lease liabilities for
their same value of €66 million. The financial exy
related to this debt are recorded in financial expenses in
«cost of financicl debts.

oenses

12/31/20189
Non-c

1-Syears

»Syeors

Financial debt and financing flows in the Cash Flow
Statement

In accordance with IAS 7 amendment «Cash flow state-
ments» and to allow the cross-referencing between cash
flows from finencing activities and changes in financial debt
presented in the balance sheet, information on the changes
inliabilities is presented by separating cash flows and flows
with no cashimpact.

As part of the Corporate Locn signed in December 2017,
the securitisation contract signed in December 2018 and
the Euro PP bond, the Group committed to complying with
certain centractually-defined financial covenants. As at 31
December 2018, the ratios to be complied with are as
follows:

—Gross gearing ratio: less than 4.70

~Net gearing ratio: less than 2.5

—Net cash at least equal to €80 M

As at 31 December 2019, these ratios are complied with

12/31/2018

Non-current
Current

1-Syears >Syears

Bank barraw 12 295
Leose debts 81416 5854
Cther borrowing! 440 3423 2605 L3584 1,264
GROSSDEBT 13149 322,140 20,755 74,873 292,515 11,875 379,264
Net cash

290,907

288847 51123

125,633

Cash flow

g

Other
Variations

Translation
Adjustment

Changesin

Syl 12/31/2019
roup structure

Fair value

Ot I {aTs 284 ( B.467
379,264 3744 17277 34,706 36,817 (263) 456,044
sted ts the first-time applcation of IFRS 16 6m 1 Joruary described in note 3.4
CHANGES WITHOUT CASH FLOW IMPACT
12/31/2017 Cash flow Changesin Fair volue Other Translation 1./, /2014
group structure Variations Adjustment

(10.423)
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Appendix

The Group uses derivative instruments such as forward
currency contracts and interest rate swaps to hedge
against interest rate risks and commodities variations.
These derivative instruments are recognized at fair value.

At December 31, 2019, fair value includes creditrisk or the
entity's own risk pursuant to IFRS 13 "Fair value measure-
ment’; these risks are estimated based on cbservable
market data

All geins and losses due to changes in the foir value of
derivatives that are not classified as hedging instruments
are recognized directly in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income.

The fair value of forward currency contracts is calculated
by reference to quoted prices for contracts with similar
maturity profiles. The fair value of interest rate swaps is
determined by reference to market values of similar
instruments.

According with IFRS 9 "Financial instruments’, the hedge
classification determine its accounting treatment:

~ fair value hedges: a hedge of the exposure to changes
in fair value of a recognised asset or liability or an unre-
cognised firm commitment that is attributable to a
particular risk and cou'd affect profit or loss. The hedging
instrument profit or loss is accounted by net result

12/31/2018
Financial assets and liabilities

Amortized
cost

Carrying

Fairvalue
throught other
comprehensive
income

— cash flow hedges : a hedge of the exposure to variability
in cash flows that is attributable to a parteular risk asso-
ciated of a recognised gsset or liability or o highly
probable forecast transaction, or an unrecognised firm
commitment. The portion of the gain or loss on the
hedging instrument that is determined to be an effective
hedge shall be recognised in other comprenensive
income; any remaining profit or loss on the hedging
instrument is recognised in net result.

— hedges of a net investment in a foreign operation cre
accounting in the same waoy as cash flow hedges.

Interest rate hedges:

Derivative instruments authorized to hedge debt are swaps
or options taken out with leading banking institutions. In
terms of interest rate hedging contracts at December 31,
2019, the total amount of gross borrowings subject to
uncapped interest rate risk was 198 million of euros,
compared with 1675 million of eurcs at December 31,2018,

At December 31, 2013, at constant debt and taking into
account interest rate derivatives in the portofolio at that
date, ¢ 25 basis point rise in variable will not have a signifi-
cantimpact on the annual financial expenses by reason to
the financing with a rate floor E3M and a level of E3M on
-0.38% ot december 31,2018,

METHOD FOR CALCULATING FAIR VALUE

Level 2
Mode! using
observoble

market doto

Level 3

Model using
non-observable
data

Fair value A
Quoted market
through
priceonan
netresult s
active market

Available-far-sales financial assets 24217 24,217 24,217
Cther financio 75.269 75,0649
Group debtors 7.23P 7232
Cash ond cash equivalents 414,470 414 470
Trades 83178 283178
TOTAL ASSETS 1,404 366 1380149 - 24217 - - 24217
Barrowing and ather findrcing 454888 454898
Current accounts 2,351 2351
orivatives 1146 L1406 146
Baork ocveraratte 249333 249333
Trade poyable 754077 754070
TOTAL LIABILITIES 1,461,800 1460,654 1,146 - - 1,146 -
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12/31/2018
Financial assets and liabilities

Carrying Amortized

ameount

Fair value
throught other
comprehensive
income

METHOD FOR CALCULATING FAIR VALUE

Level 2
Model using
observable
market doto

Level 3
Model using
non-observable

Fair valua Level L
Quoted market
through

2 priceonan
netresult
active market

989

1,092,854

23785 ez2.277

1.278
Bark overdrafts K
rade poyable 593,626
TOTAL LIABILITIES 1,210,578 1,209,300 1,278 - - 1278 -

The value of interest rate hedging instruments is presented os follows:

Fair value ot 12/31/2018

Non-current

Assets

Notional
omount

Current
Liabllities

Non-current
Liabilities

Current
Assets

Non-current
Asse

214,368

Notional
amount

Current Current

Assots

qe rate hedaing

Swap commadity indi

TOTAL INTERESTRATEHEDGING

Provisions are recognized when the Group has a present
obligation towards a third party (leqal or constructive)
resulting from a past event, and when it is probable that
an outflow of resources representing econcmic benefits
will be necessary to extinguish the obligation and that the
amount of the obligation can be reliably estimated

Non-current provisions include mgcinly the share ct over
one year of:

— Provisions for litigation and disputes: these provisions
are designed to cover litigation, disputes and uncertain
future events arising from the Group’s activities;

139

3564
80,674

- Provisions for redevelopment of guarries, renewal and
restoration These involve the costs of rett Nr\img Jarry

operating sites to a prior state;

- End-of-career payments (see Note 8.16)

Current provisions are pravisions directly linked to the
normal operations cycle for the less than one-year share.
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Changesin Translation

12/31/2018 Increases Decreases group structure Adjustment 12/31/2019

or ret 28,872 140 12

2,200

255
Cther v s for non-curre =60
NON-CURRENT PROVISIONS 3120 267 85.890
Provis for retirment payments (~Lyecr) 1779
Provisions fordisputes and Itig 5,275 279 (=2/0) 5783
CURRENT PROVISIONS 6110 3158 (1,705) = - 75862
TOTAL PROVISIONS 85.697 33,541 3120 267 93.452

12/31/2017

Increases

Translation
Adjustment

Changesin

Decreases
group structure

Other provisians for non-curren rges = ¢ 0 (o

NON-CURR 390464 8,575 (16,543) (3.059) 149
Pro entp 0 1=0)

Pro s for disputes and ) 63 (710 118

CURRENT PROVISIONS 2656 4,235 (201) 1us

TOTAL PROVISIONS

(2,941)

Commitments in respect of defined-benefit retirement
schemes are provisioned in the balance sheet. They are
determined using the projected unit credit method based
on actuarial valuations carried out at each annual closing
date.

The assumptions used for the actuarial calculations of the
defined-benefit retirement are reviewed annually.

Net liabilities reveluations for defined benefits schemes
are accounted for under Other comprehensive income;
including mainly actuarial gain and loss due to change in
actuarial hypothesis and adjustments linked to

experience.

140

(17,444)

For defined-benefit schemes financed through external
management (pension funds or insurance contracts), the
excess or shortfall in the fair value of assets compared to
the present value of obligations is recognized in assets or
licbilities.

Under IAS 19 "Employee benefits’, expenses accounted
within the Operating Income include service costs and any
change, reduction or liguidation of schemes. Impacts of
dediscounting of actuarial debt and interestincome from
assets are accounted for under Other Financial Expenses
and Income: Interest income from hedging are computed
using the discounted rate used for Defined benefit
schemes,

S
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IAS19R IAS18R
Assumptions

Discourt rate {includ 90% 160%
Rat: ory incre 2.55% 255%

Change in commitment
Cornmitment ot the beginning of the per 31,772 308l6
1873 3139
2 27
536 as8
140 (LOBES)
Aztuanal los: qons) on the commitment 1723 859
Benefite paid (BSS) =2,461)
COMMITMENT AT THE END OF PERIOD 35201 31772

Change in ossets

Fair voluz of ossets ot the beginning of tha pariod

tincome as

Actuarial airs (lasses) onthe o

Acussitions / Depogols

VALUE OF ASSETS AT THE END OF PERIOD 2110 2,065

Expense for the period Optical fibre connection In Bordeaux (33)

aver the period 1873 3139

ans wjstment 12 =¥ 4

<t A% az0

EXPENSE (INCOME) 2376 3586
Other Items of comprehensive Income

Stock of actuorial adjustrent on OC| of the begnning of the e ok

od

Actuarial losses (gains) ganerated on commitm L1723 292
Tl

LOSSES (GAINS) RECOGNIZED IN OTHER COMPREHENSIVE 5138 3415

INCOME

Change in provision

1atthe beginning of the p

(12) (@7)
Actuarial cdpu ts genorotos .723)
Acqusitiors / Depos {140)
Bonefits paid directly by the employer BSS 2275
PROVISION AT THE END OF THE PERICD (33.081) (29.707)
Sensitivity
Discount rate
Commitment with an inc £ +0.255 33507
Expense with an incredse of +0.25% 2,285 2188
Commitment with a dec 35,895 32581
Expense with o d soof -0.2¢ 3418 3301

: Vousscir manufatturing plant OO
SO0 . ', inLimoges<Fourches (77) %0
f T —4

' 18] 8 TALENZAREs
MAINE /% AUDIT @

) %’o'%m‘((&&
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12/31/2018

91849

NCes 10 siant cartnerchips

G iabilities 1 22764
OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES 408822 343,008
( b vl infermation on consiruction contro a =X0g)

The Group recognises income and expenses on construc-
tion cantracts according to the percertage of completion
method cefined by IFRS 15 tRevenue from contracts with
customersy,

For the Group, progress is generally determined based on
percentage of physical or cost completion.

If the forecast completion shows a deficit, a provision is
recognis according
to the best estimate of the forecost results including, if
applicable, the rights to additional payments or claims, if
they are probable and may be assessed in areliable way.
Provisions for |os
sheet licbilities (note Provisions).

d separately from the project progre

nbalance

es on completion are presentec
F

Trade receivables represent an unconditional rignt for the
Group toreceive cash from the customers, when the qoods
and services promised in the contract have been supplied.

Controct assets represent the right, for the Group, to obtain
acounterparty in exchenge for gqoods or services provided
to customers, when this right depends on factors other than
time; this may e inveices to be established and guarantee

holdbacks.

Contract liabilities represent the Group's obligations to
provide ¢ customer with goods or services for which a coun-
terparty has been received from the customer; this may be
advances received cnd deferred income,

Change in accounting method for the recognition of
contract liabilities

In application of IFRS 15 on the recognition of liobilities for
construction contracts, for each individual contract. the
work invoiced in advance was offset by the controct assets
(trade receivables).

Thus. the consolidated balance sheet at 31 December 2018
was restated as follows:

A 3 o Change in
g:zg:;:;: EEance Ré 5,0';3 accounting 2018 Restated
P method
rode recevables 870,029 (113,040) 55,989
s A =
79770 20,587 100.357

srecoived

rert lichilties aA78,

Impacts on the Detall
of Other Current

Change in
accounting 2018 Restated

Liobilities Reported method
Amounts frac s
45,249
yeustomers
ome 9977
56226

LIABILITIES

Change in

Iy ts on Cont| t 2018
i selik o e accounting 2018 Restated

Assets and Liabilities Reported

7525

Controct Labilites

I'he consolidated balance sheet at 12/31/2019 includes the
following items
Contract Assels 219026 178925

241676 15

Controct Liabilities
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The Group grants ond receives guarantees as portof these
contracts. The amount of guarantees given below mainly
includes guarantees on works contracts, issued by financial
institutions or insurance companies

In millions of euros 12/31/2019 12/31/2018
Heldback 371 235
Fiot-rote 120

co 180 ag
Payment quarantea 139 105
Criarry rehdbilitotion 8 7
Sutimission guarantes 8 7
Market suraties 132 129

Supplier guaranteas 7

Siir 1
GUARANTEES GIVEN 139 139

The order backlog at 31 December 2013 cmounted to €4.1
hillion, up 3% compared to the Group's order backlog at 31
December 2018.

unt of incon

actsinresps

12/31/2018 12/31/201
> edon con tion s a07881 2028

Development of Réguillon street
inVilleurbanne (69)

In millions of euros 12/31/2019

Multi~
expertise
major
projects

Ragional
multi-expertises
octivities

Specialist
french International  Eliminations
Subsidiaries

Multl-
expertise
major
projects

Regional
multi-expertises
activities

Specialist
french International  Eliminations
Subsidiaries

vities 863 674 280 2028
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Appendix

Recognition of other income from activities gathers
together mainly equioment sales, studies and fees.

Other Income from activities include olse financial revenue
from NGE Concessions activities

12/31/2019 12/31/2018

¢

Inco

OTHER INCOME FROM ORDINARY
ACTIVITIES

12/31/2018 12/31/2018
5 g 421100 301,844

145700

B23024

TERNAL EXPENSES

1249824

This item comprises the unusual other operating income
and expense, that the Group presents separately in the
profitand loss, in order to facilit
mance understanding

ate the operational perfor-

That includes notably, charges and provision regarding risk
or litigation which t 3 C
ficant materiality regarding the current Group activity.
Those charges and provisions reached 8.3 million of euros
in 2019

e a particular character and ¢

This item comprises following spercific operations

- FCPE

In accordance with the authorisation granted by the
Partners’ General Meeting on 25 June 2013, NGE
purchased 162,946 class A shares and transferred the
said shares to the eNGE Actionnariat Relais 2019» FCPE
approved by the AMF an 16 May 2019 Employees bene-
fited from a discount on the share price and an additio-
nal contribution. The related expense is presented in
Other cperating income and expenses.

— Goodwill impairment
The impairment test lead to record an impairment
amounted to 10 millions of euros on the “Specialized
National Subsidiaries” CGU

Other

OTHER OPERATING INCOME

AND EXPENSE (21,953) (5.824)

12/31/2018 12/31/2018

85 B2

8.523)

aht 3598 (3.197)

COST OF NET FINANCIAL DEBT (10.418) (9.657)

12/31/2018 12/31/2018

Ircome from equity interests 150 443
Other financial income ond exper 487
Exehe (785,
or FINANCI {

AND EXPENSES as) Je

12/31/2018 12/31/2018

N3 68.390 48 322

q income from ordinary

N aorecictionand amortizatiorn 105045 76183

Ne 4972 B.175

EBITDA 178,412 130,880
Share capital

At December 31, 2019, share capital is composed of
6.572,507 shares fully paid of 8 euros per nominal value
and is amounted to 52 580 05E euros.

Given the cepital decrease on B February 2020, descrioed
in note 71, shareholders’ equity comprises 6.025,011
shares with o par value of €8 each, amounting to
€48,200,088.
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Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share are caolculated by dividing the
income attrioutable to holders of ordinary shares in the
parent company by the weighted average number of outs-
tanding ordinary shares during the pericd.

For giluted earnings per share, the income attributable to
holders of ordinary shares in the parent company and the
weighted average number of outstanding shares cre
adjusted for the impact of all potentially dilutive equity
instruments. There no dilutive instruments at
Decembper 31, 2019,

IS

B,572507

nares

eguity instrume:
EARNINGS PER SHARE (EUROS)
(A/T)

DILUTED EARNINGS PER SHARE
(EUROS) (A/E)

©)
s{e)

(") Given the capital decrease

12/31/2019

In millions of euros Receivables (debts)

Income (expense)

f6February 2020 desar

Receivables (debts)

5,025,011 6,572 507
388 388
3,88 3.ee

bedinnote 71

12/31/2018

Income (expense)

Concessions and PEPs

Total

In millions of euros 12/31/2019 12/31/2018
Con arantoes 828 6ol
Cther suraties 312 299
TOTAL COMMITMENTS GIVEN 1.147
f)‘er‘*s. ts, quarontses ond sur 187
TOTAL COMMITMENTS HELD 187

12/31/2018 018
2023

2.200

Sanior monogement

3804
2048

gernent

12/31/2018 12/31/2018

Grose compensation 386,065 387132
C
197161
r ns 15,361 I 25
Retirement payments 1873 3139
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Appendix

List of consolidated companies

Form

12/31/2019

Interest

12/31/2018

% Interest

NGE E’I’G g Q'{&}‘*ﬁ ﬁiﬁizﬁ:;dj-sleés SAS 504124 BOLODO2S Parent 100 Parent 100
RHETRSIARD, gjl\gglgggsemc BAS 4123233050008 ccnsolin:.(i)ué i .:mmuafﬁ{c"é 100
AGILS SansOLETHOR el SAS 4432203280025 onotiel 100 ey 100
ABEAELRITATION ;JZ‘B.’IFOQ(‘;;\!‘K;?ETISIE?‘JS{G Dd5~ GRES Sh | SeRLIZSBIOUAIG consdidz:‘;av Ry coﬁsolldzlt}c'—‘q SQ
ANGEL TCSE;I;E:“'FQE;’IE?:?‘EK’QDGS- GRES 26% BI378208800018 consoiidz;;l; 100 -:D<solldz‘;;g 100
Qz;ﬁ?:%s:mcmsi s SN ATEANE BU-GRES sas  B1376720200014 . S o £
ARENABE 3105 SAINT-ETIENNE -DL-GRES sAS ©5391344300014 LMY g

ARTES izgf{r‘;f:é?ﬂr'r‘g;:ﬁ?: SARL 438395 07100030 cov\soﬂdz:"elnl; 100 (> grws.ohdgr';z 100
'?AESYESNF;DNUC:; e ;:Iar;;d‘A;:('_ ités Corialis TGV - = e ety

X E e Evoriste Galoie SAS 8113421460006 Mty 1718 ik 1718

ENGINS MOBILES 71210 MONTCHANIN

AUDEAGREGATS e e sas soas3mizroo02e bl 8 e 98
AIDEBETON it i B AN SAS 35394395400027 . ot & o 38
AUDERECYCLAGE SIS Mantorgest SAS  798494'62100013 sy wH Wil
AXEl2 }igﬁ%‘i‘fgg gc";'j sas sagisoesgoo0 . FUlK O n';:‘l‘l 50
BARAZER TP Bty e Rine SAS 95060729400041 ponininnton B s 100
BEPOLLTION B Te SANT BemiaiN: DES PRES SAS M13ISI0400057 e 109 concoiamey 190
aim?git(; - z‘:’e&r{usﬂumu:iu Zlde Camp Récel i sy - Eoyoity o Equity -

ERIAUX £ s28 SARL 8127204150005 s 25 ok 25

VALORISATION 24106 BERGERAC

o . B e SCCV. 852279388000 il 100

BROUTINTP B0 HARNES SAS 7881883490009 el 199 oopiamey 100

58600 SALSES-LE- )

BICAROE sasovbeiRe e ses swrassraoccol Bl sa B so
DIJONNAIS 18105 SANT ETENNE.BU-GRES SAS 7885883SBO00I0 il & sy &
CARDINALEDIFICE 28 Sreecnals sAs 950033855 00026 . Pl il (N 100
BOULEON 5105 SAINT-ETENE-BU-GRES 545 4387050520005 bl 100 oy 100
CAZAL ]815;7[;‘\ :ZSLCE:SW’:‘-OJ;L HERS SAS  B1321188400027 ccn-;c!ldzrelrlz: 100 cor suliu::ujc‘: 100
CORREZEENROBES o TMeEst SARL 400002 218 00018 e 43 et 23
EGENIE s aipee [ ewad®  sas waossemeeonoce [ERIEHIIINEOE . coicme. 100
ESYERAI ﬁi@zgfd“m‘ A= hiesdetity. ETN 54517 W@m% coﬁsond;ggc\gﬁ)“AEAU*o
R ses cxmearanscoces TR W\ 8 we G
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Form

12/31/2018

Method

% Interest

12/31/2018

9200, vaiedes Cousts Fully Fully
il 27100 VAL-DE-REUIL S4S RIS09SIS200018 K anten S0 coneolidated =0
Porc d'octivitss de Lourade 2 3 Fully Fully &
EXIER 13103 SAINT-ETIENNE-DU-GRES BAS (43345304590015 . B o Niited S0 oncolivatea d
FONCIERE DES Parc d'octivitss de Lauradae GAG - 45 s Fully Fully
ALPILLES 13103 SAINT-ETIENNE-DU-GRES SA% JOL0BSSL00036 B iiter 00 solidated 08
e 12, rue Euganae Freyssiret < - ABS 250 T Fully Fully
FRASCA 77500 CHELLES e consolidated 0 consolidated 10
- s Parcdoctivites de Laurade rychp v Fuily
RHRRAEIA 13103 SAINT-ETIENNE-DU-GRES SAS 8528644040001 o solidated e
- Chemindu Corpe de Garde - 29 NOBIS Fully Fully
PE 77500 CHELLES SAS 48328818300015 FERETiiried L) — Ly
GARLABAN Parc d'activités de - - a Fully Fully
FINANCES 13103 SAINT-ET elwe -DU-GRES SAS 8341783840003 hngninated R
Route Oasis - Ruen'3-n'6 SA  Rescosablanca Ful Eull
GENERALE ROUTIERE  Quiartier Oosis - Dasis Sud aedroil S s el el 100
20420 CASABLANCA marecain s = gl s .
o - 38/44, rue Jean Marmoz T NG 173 298 000 Fully Fully
GIRERAIL 78E00 MAISONS-LAFFITTE SNC  AI317323800044 o < olidated 50! ¢ onsolidated -
Parc d'Activités du Peuras Fully Fully
EE teed - cAC ” = o011 Full
GME ENROBES jggi?)y'cai' :\; Peuras SAs @43gsgsosooon oLt 5 b 100
) Porcd'Activités du Peuras Full =ul
GMS ENRUBES 498 Avenue du Deuras SAS AS20233030002L <enaE SR oo 54
28210 TULLING consolidated consolidoted
e i B Chomin Borcror = Eguity Equity
S D ) o e} 7! -
CRANULATS DE L'EST a7412 BRAS PANGM SAS 800730672 00020 Methad 35 Methad 35
=1y Parc d'octivités de Laurade i A = Vet Fully Fully
SUINTOLI 13103 SAINT-ETIENNE-DU-GRES SAS 44775408600018 L Sidoied 1081 sesoiidated 100
= Fully
{ L O "L I\ 3 (=] ) e} o f e
HOLDING MAUR 11250 COUFFQULENS sAs 4lBseesosooOl o cok 35 35
Y 7 Parcd'octivités de Laurade e = Fully Fully
e S =TIENNE-DU-GRES SAS 43853862800013  nsniigated 100 onsoligated. oy
A actv vites de Lourade =13 . Fully Fully
HOLDING TRRN 13103 SAINT-ETIENNE-DU-GRES SAS GISEBFIO6R00016 consolidated 100 consolidated 100
ILACATALA Hitel de Ville - Boulevard du 14 Jullet ™ Equity Equity
DEVELORPEMENT 65420 LE BARCARES SEMEE' SEELO0R RIS Method = Methed =8
Ecart Saint Hubert Ful Eauit
JAUMONT FINANCES  Malancaurt-la-Mentagne SAS BOL4BS 352 00020 ST anes ey eegs
57360 AMNEVILLE consolidated lethed
ek La Chompagne a Fully Fully
LACHAMPENOISE 54270 SAINT-CYR-LES-CHAMPAGNES Sas 9070139380008 FEEESHE 5 ———— e
PR | P Pare d'activités de Laurade ~ - Fully Fully
LAPLANEZERDS2E 13163 SaINT-ETIENNE-DU-GRES SAS 8238273570008  neinatad 00 ycolidoted 100
LASAGNE 26 Rue Aristide Boudicaul " = 597 000 Equity . .
AMENAGEMENT 11100 NARBONNE SAS "e3EBIZRET 0N Method £
- Parc d'octivi de Laurads s = iy Fully Fully
AR 13103 SAINT-ETIENNE-DU-GRES 545 SIS0PTEPIOCOI  jnyidared 190 concoidarea 108
Ploce dela Républious T Fully Fully
i )
EAGARRIEHE 12300 FlrM| S . deotrnThvuogly consolidated o consolidated els
LE CHENE ZAde iz Landell= - 5.rue des Echonges & 031 Fully Fully X
CONSTRUCTIONS S6200 LA GACILLY BAS -3BBIIR 8RS U0 B St tad 00 onsolidated e
LES CARRIERESDES o0 . S . e Ecuity > Eqquity 3
PUNS 63230 SAINT-PIERRE-LE-CHASTEL SAS  AE8 725995 00010 et 30 N 30
CLES DE SAINT Parc d'activitas de Laurads i 7 = Fully Fully >
13103 SAINT-ETIENNE-DU-GRES =Cl 7RSI BERA002S: B eoidited 9 onsolidated S5
LES ENERGIESDELA  Cheminde lo Laletie AR BAABGLABH Ecuity 30 Equity g
aTE 65000 TARBES i Method =" Method o oo »
= - - S ”‘Y N‘ ,..
LES UANTS DE Zone Industrialie cu Havre Sondolille & 5 O001E c’.\ Equity. S +
UESTUAIRE (LSE) 76430 SAINT-ROMAIN-DE-COLBOSC SABL  SAANDSEERCP)S TN Mehe®
LS50 Locomie SAS

18100 BRIVE-LA-GAILLARDE
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Appendix

Form

12/31/2018

Method

% Interest

12/31/2018

% Interest

LOSANGE 9200 Voie uets SRR Fully y
EXPLOITATION 27100 VAL-DE-REUIL S4S  BAlEeAISS000I8 K Nnten S0 concolidated =0
= Rue des Queyries S s Fully Fully
HERR 33100 ECRDEAUX SAS 433B8ASI00002S. B Nated 8 oneolidatad i
MAINTENANCE
TARBES 30, avenue de Larrieu B SRR 3 Eauity = Equity ~
CONTOLRNEMENT 310B1 TOULAQUSE Cadey 1 583 \WESASBSES 0004 Methad 50 Method S0
MTC)
% - Rue des Verrptieres - Zi des Dunes — T v oy Fully Fully
PARMIL S2100 CALAIS PAy SEMBSUSSOOCLA consalidated 109 consolidated Ay
i Le Villoge " PEvSEe - - Fully ; Fully ”
p q 445 O s :
WiNeRY 11250 COUFFOULENS S Oy OO e 5 consolidatad 29
Burjuman Business tower Fully Fully
G Dukal - .
MEDRAIL g;B[:\T'E‘TAE) oA consolidatad 50" consoligoted 50
MENUISERIE LesRocheligs = Fully Fully
Te}
CARDINAL 35330 MAURE-DE-BRETAGNE SiD SendueRtSuans consolidated el consolisated —
—— 38/24 rus Jean Mermoe T e - =~ Fully Fully ~
TR 8800 MAISONS-LAFFITTE Spaly e BOSIUACOI consolidated 50 consolidated iy
_ 12, rue Eugsne Freyasine: e e 5 Fully 3 Fully ;
fRE 77500 CHELLES RRY M2 INOIUAY consolidated g consolidated 14
AR Parcdactivites de Laurade y = S SR Fully Fully
MISTRALFINANCES 153103 SAINT-ETIENNE-DU-GRES SAS  BIRIBISIZO00  noaidated 0 oncolidated 199
MONESTIER Parcd'octivitze de Lourods BN 34 =21 OO01 Fully Fully
FINANCES 13103 SANT-ETIENNE-DU-GRES SAS  BSAIPABAI000U o idaied 00/ ¢ oestiidates 109
- Domeine de Sabre o = Fully Fully
MULLER T S B4 2 3 i ’
FULLERTE 57420 COIN-LES-CUVRY SAS 4775423800037 | pn didited 00 orsondated 100
Parc d'octivités de Laurado A Equity Equity
oF ] ) -G 'y + CAG °) 52 Y 101 )
NGE AUTORQUTES 13103 SAINT-ETIENNE-DU-GRES SAS 8341620010004 Mathod 10 Method )
Parc d'octivités de Laurade o a Fully Fully
GE oG S > SAS 2 20 G i
NGECONCESSIONS 13153 SAINT-ETIENNE-DU- SAS 7892703800007 . idniad 00 solidoted 100
Centre doffoires Edouard Vil ol Fully
GECO G e de C : 570009000 :
NGE CONTRACTING «722:03 SAI;‘glerwr SAS 78957000900017 onealaee 100 Saheaiidatad 100
NGF CONTRACTING Calle 75 No 2- 53, te o ciutdad Bogald i 55 = Fully
(COLOMBIE) BOGOTA 543 it censolidated E
ABIDIAN MARCORY BIETRY, Zene 4 =
NGE CONTRACTING el : - i Fully Fully
(COTE DIVOIRD) podorericecssie SAS  BOIBBSETTS sncnidted 100 onsoiiated 80
NGE CONTRACTING 1428 Gireunvalacion Durangs 20 & o S Fully Fully
(URLIGLIAY) MONTEVIGEQ e 217550230011 consolidated 000 orsaiinated 100
NGE CONTRACTING Rufoa Tower, Al Mesna Street G = Fully Fully
LLC RPOHA SARL CRrio/2a722 consolidated BB conselidated 88
NGE ENERGIES Parc d'oc tivite: Lourads 2 Rt : Fully Eully R
NOUVELLES 13103 SAINT-ETIENNE-DU-GRES SAS  SIBIBOIBOUON peqisared 00 sneolidated 100
o t 2 29 rue des Tches = " eberer Fully Fully
NGEFCNDATIONS 59800 SAINT-PRIEST SAS 3MBOR99B700029 nsolidated 90 onsolidated e
Fo e o Parc doctivitss de Laurads A EESANTY o12 Fully Fully
el 13103 SAINT-ETIENNE-DU-GRES SAS '48748933000012 . idated 100, onsolidoted o
GEINERA Parc d'activités de Laurads < N1 24165, = Fully 1 Fully
HOEINFRANER: 13103 SAINT-ETIENNE-DU-GRES SAS  S0124182400045 e siidated 00 solidated 00
Shaikh Abduliah Al Angari Stract ol st £t
NGESAUDIARABIA Al Worsed District - P.O. Box 61295 LLC "d[';f; Iy ey GZ:“G"; 54 . col u',& 54
RIYADH 11565 o 3 ' i
Route de lo Baronne Full Eul
NICOLD ZAStEsteve SAS 408 82275700022 S é’ 1t dmez 100
05640 SAINT-JEANNET LES PLANS SRR ik
12 rue Eugenae Freyssinet o S el Ful Fully
erERay 77500 CHELLES SAS 7ABTRIEE30007 o pidtiedT A e consoidoed R A U
Rus Jules Vedrines (A SR = \(39" 29 o
QLICHON Zone Industrielle de Keryado SAS 865500052 00010 Ze Noacoi d‘n§~ 100 (@]
Ag (Y

S6100 LORIENT
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12/31/2019 12/31/2018
Company Heod office Form Method
= 4, rue des Freres Lumigres 51 B3 AT 0D Equlty Fquity
PER 69230 MEYZIEU SARL 42108307400023 Method 215 Method 21,5
= 22 bis, rue de Romainville &5 T Fully o Fully 5
RS 03300 CUSSET SAS  AOSEB8S7I00013 Fo i sidkted 53 foncolidated 25
Chemindu Corps de Fuil Eul
PEVERAIL Zone Industriele SNC 4325485600001 o0 o0 é o) tc_‘(‘j 50
77500 CHELLES SEARDICHE AR
e < Porc dioctivités de Laurade 5 AD 5A1 Fully Fully
PLATEFORME 13103 SAINT-ETIENNE-OU SARL.  A4384273100014 Bocnated 100 - cpiicnmaa 109
CASABLANCA - Siaxs
&A;g:ﬂoa ME Zonz Industrielie Sapino - Lot 854 SARL RCSQZ{;;;{\,”'L“ ol F;’;‘: o 'dFlLQ\d\, 100
e 50240 NOUACEUR 7 cansolidate consolidate
14, avenue de |'Opera B ’ Eguity Equity -
ORT-4 78 0014 27
PORT-ADHOC 75001 PARIS SAS 478 872843 0O0L Method 1546 Mathisd 63
s Ploire Villalbe Bosse z o Fully Fully
0SSO GAS 49 00 X
POSROED 11090 VILLALBE $49 ‘BBLBE0 3900036 B i 3 onevlidated 2
. o rem China lnsurance Group Bullding - S 455 Fully Fully o
RAESOURSELIMITED 141 Des Veeux Road Central i, SREASS consolidated 200 consolidated oy
HONG KONG
= Parcd'octivités de Lavrade cAe  E01E08IEA 000 Fully Fully
GRS 13103 SAINT-ETIENNE-DU-GRES SAS SO1B9BISA0A0S o oidnted 100" osoiidoted K
9, rue Sully Prud'hommes Fully Fully
Y. 277 =] =)
ROCS Zj'/r:;o“‘ PORT SAS 35227243500080 .o ook BOOK o 100
SABLIERES DE BRAM  Lisu-dit Le Pigneé e LSRN ot Fuily ; Fully S
Les) 11290 MONTREAL SAS  S2LIDISOTOR0RL gdidated  ®%° consolidoted 55
T Routs ¢ Opoul 0S =l
S rECRELA Sorratde la Traverse sas se4zoasospoode . Fulk o G 50
=1 o) 00 SALSES-LE-CHATEAL consotdate consohdated
295, rue Fontfillol - ZAC Les Codaux R A i Fully Fully
SAGE S RAIL 21370 SAINT-SULBICE SAS 532596418 00022 EBneol s 100 ctnsoiitAted 100
Rue du Marechal de Lattre de Tussigny b = Ecuity 3 Equity
SAPAG 59170 CROIX S4S  79316534100017 Meathod 332 Mathod 332
= Route d'opoul i Fully
c SALANQUE A e T e SCI 47945 5 2 2 = -
i 66600 SALES-LE-CHATEAU SCl 4780824500038 K itad A
s 295, rue Fontfillol Lot B - ZAC Les Codoux 2 N Fully Fully
| 0 1 749 93 a 1 : I
RS 81370 SAINT-SULRICE SEI 745835904 00021 |\ enlidated 90 oneolidated o
Contra daffaires Edouard Vil Full Fully
SDBE 20, rue de Caumartin SAS  41992120000038 g A FO0s ,) 100
25009 PARIS consatidated conselidatsd
= = Ear: d'o vits s ; < = Fully 7?uli\y P
=GAUT ; SAS 51308782 3
SEGANT 13103 SAINT-ETIENNE-DL-GRES SAR SISORTIEN000S Fewesiied 00 rcoinrza 10
730, rue cie la Calatiére Ful Eully
SEHB Z10uest SAS 799786486 00015 S c"' L t‘g 801
G100 VEYZIAT consolidate concolidate:
= ¢ Ligu-dit La Periere = Fully Fully
SRFOT SAS g :
SERFOTES 49170 SAINT-GERMAIN-DES-PRES A 4d2A8a 112000, consolidated 100 consolidoted 10Q
Le Griffolot e s Fully Fully
S SAS 42403 0002 5
ek 13270 USSAC SAS 42403405800020  nqiidated 25 solidoted i
12, rue Eugéne Freyssiret - PP oo Fully Fully
| Y 5 = 100038
) SIFEL 77500 CHELLES 545 385 04503100035 enRolEaNA g _ onsolidat=d 100
Le Griffolet o < Fully Fully
5 38201 205 1
el 19270 LISSAC SAS ~67882013700064 |\ idved 00" snsolidowea 10
Péle Industriel Toul Europe - Secteur B Full =ull
SLOTP 610, rus Marie Marvingt sSas 329 70277300030 S ; 106 | Jr‘y 100
54200 TOUL consolidate consolidated
% Parc doctivitse de Laurade il AR RN ARG Eully Eully
ENP =, 753 & 2
ST 13103 SAINT-ETIENNE-DU-GRES SAS 7531588660008 Consoidaret=—— 1% consolidnted 00
Avenue de Pagrot A Ryl "'{‘!’f-\\ Eul ro‘bw e "U*
50C Lisudit Magudas SAS 449335924 00013 N Y O, S 100 )

33150 SANT-MEDARD-EN-JALLES

=)
ansptated
'

£

2 XOnsolidote
N0 o

O,
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Appendix

12/31/2019 12/31/2018
Company ad office Form Method
SoCAl 11400 | ARECEQE-LAURAGAIS SAS  3B2184 21500010 Fully 100 Pully 100
consolidgated concolidatad

e St e IS Porcd'Activités au Peuras =
E:;z—fr;:;fém[vo-f 498, avenue du Pouros SAS 8083030440001 ___ . F;‘"; i - d":_"‘/ 35

NRUBEO O &S 38210 TULLINS CoNsolioate: Consaligatsa
SOCIETES DES O ) =
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STATUTORY AUDITORS’ REPORT ON THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended December 31, 2020

To the Annual General Meeting of NGE

OPINION

In compliance with the engagement entrusted to us by your Annual General Meeting, we have audited the
accompanying consolidated financial statements of NGE for the year ended December 31, 2020.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of the assets and liabilities and
of the financial position of the Group as at December 31, 2020 and of the results of its operations for the year
then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards as adopted by the European Union.

The audit opinion expressed above is consistent with our report to the Audit Committee.

BASIS FOR OPINION
Audit Framework

We conducted our audit in accordance with professional standards applicable in France. We believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Statutory Auditors’ Responsibilities for
the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report.

Independence

We conducted our audit engagement in compliance with independence rules provided for by the French
Commercial Code and by the French Code of ethics for statutory auditors, for the period from January 1, 2020
to the date of issue of our report and in particular we have not provided services prohibited by Article 5 (1) of
Regulation (EU) No 537/2014.

JUSTIFICATION OF ASSESSMENTS - KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Due to the global crisis related to the Covid-19 pandemic, the financial statements of this period have been
prepared and audited under specific conditions. Indeed, this crisis and the exceptional measures taken in the
context of the state of sanitary emergency have had numerous consequences for companies, particularly on
their operations and their financing, and have led to greater uncertainties on their future prospects. Those
measures, such as travel restrictions and remote working, have also had an impact on the companies' internal
organization and the performance of the audits.

It is in this complex and evolving context that, in accordance with the requirements of Articles L.823-9 and
R.823-7 of the French Commercial Code (code de commerce) relating to the justification of our assessments,
we inform you of the key audit matters relating to risks of material misstatement that, in our professional
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period,
as well as how we addressed those risks.

These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole,

and in forming our opinion thereon. We do not provide a separate opinion on specific items of the consolidated
financial statements.
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Evaluation of Goodwill

Risk identified

Goodwill are included in the assets of the Group for a value of € 258 million and constitute a significant value
of the consolidated assets as of December 31, 2020. Note 8.1 of the consolidated financial statements
specifies how the goodwill and the depreciation of fixed assets were calculated:

impairment testing of the carrying amount of goodwill is performed at least once a year and
whenever there is an indication of loss of value ;

these recoverable amounts are calculated using the methods described in Appendix 8.1, and
include assumptions and detailed estimates, such as projections of future cash flows according to
the 5-year business plans, the discount rates and the perpetual growth rate.

We considered the assessment of goodwill as a key issue of the audit in that it is sensitive to the estimates
and assumptions made by management and may therefore have a significant impact on the financial

statements.

Audit procedures implemented

Our work has focused primarily on:

examining the appropriateness and consistency of the accounting policies and methods used;

examining the documentation produced by management relating to impairment testing and
evaluating whether it is compliant with all applicable standards;

verifying the appropriateness of the approach used to determine cash generating units, whether
the cash flow projections are reasonable and verifying the different parameters that define the
discount rate applied,;

comparing projections for previous periods with the corresponding accomplishments to assess
whether goals set in the past were achieved;

examining whether the growth rate used was reasonable;
conducting our own sensitivity analyses for changes to the basic assumptions;
verifying the information given in the appendix to the consolidated financial statements.
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Accounting for Construction Contracts

Risk identified

The Group recognizes income and expenses on construction contracts according to the percentage of
completion method defined by IFRS 15.

For the Group, progress is generally determined based on percentage of physical or cost completion as defined
in Note 8.18.

If the forecast completion shows a deficit, a provision is recognized separately from the project progress,
according to the best estimate of the forecast results including, if applicable, the rights to additional payments
or claims, if they are probable and may be assessed in a reliable way. Provisions for losses on completion are
presented in balance sheet liabilities.

We considered the accounting for construction contracts as a key issue in the audit to the extent that
recognition of revenue and profits is sensitive to estimates and assumptions made by management and may
therefore have a material impact on the financial statements.

Audit procedures implemented
Our work has focused primarily on:

e review of the procedures and specific information systems established by the most important
subsidiaries in terms of their contribution to revenue, and the monitoring of corresponding
expenses;

e broad implementation of digital monitoring mechanisms in the tools used to monitor the execution
of contracts;

e evaluation and testing of the design and implementation of key controls put in place at the Group's
largest subsidiaries;

e based on our experience, conducting an overall assessment of the estimates and assumptions
used to recognize revenue, profits and any potential provisions for loss-making contracts.

e verifying the information given in the appendices to the consolidated financial statements, in
particular to ensure that notes 8.9 and 8.18 provide appropriate information on contract accounting
and the methods used to recognize revenue.

SPECIFIC VERIFICATIONS

As required by law we have also verified in accordance with professional standards applicable in France the
information pertaining to the Group presented in the management report of President.

We have no matters to report as to their fair presentation and their consistency with the consolidated financial
statements.

REPORT ON OTHER LEGAL AND REGULATORY REQUIREMENTS

Format of the presentation of the consolidated financial statements intended to be included in the annual
financial report

In accordance with Article 222-3, Il of the AMF General Regulation, the Company’s management informed us
of its decision to postpone the presentation of the consolidated financial statements in compliance with the
European single electronic format as defined in the European Delegated Regulation No 2019/815 of 17
December 2018 to years beginning on or after January 1st, 2021. Therefore, this report does not include a
conclusion on the compliance with this format of the presentation of the consolidated financial statements
intended to be included in the annual financial report mentioned in Article L. 451-1-2, | of the French Monetary
and Financial Code (code monétaire et financier).”
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Appointment of Statutory Auditors

We were appointed as statutory auditors of NGE by legal status of April,28 2008 for TALENZ ARES AUDIT,
and by the annual general meeting held on June 24, 2020, for IFEC.

As at December 31, 2020, TALENZ ARES AUDIT was in the 12th year of total uninterrupted engagement and
IFEC in the 15t year of which respectively seven and one year since NGE became a public interest entity as
defined by European rulings.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF MANAGEMENT AND THOSE CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements
in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards as adopted by the European Union and for
such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using
the going concern basis of accounting unless it is expected to liquidate the Company or to cease operations.

The Audit Committee is responsible for monitoring the financial reporting process and the effectiveness of
internal control and risks management systems and where applicable, its internal audit, regarding the
accounting and financial reporting procedures.

The consolidated financial statements were approved by the President.

STATUTORY AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Objectives and audit approach

Our role is to issue a report on the consolidated financial statements. Our objective is to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with professional standards will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
consolidated financial statements.

As specified in Article L.823-10-1 of the French Commercial Code (code de commerce), our statutory audit
does not include assurance on the viability of the Company or the quality of management of the affairs of the
Company.

As part of an audit conducted in accordance with professional standards applicable in France, the statutory
auditor exercises professional judgment throughout the audit and furthermore:

o Identifies and assesses the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, designs and performs audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtains audit evidence considered to be sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for his opinion. The
risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override
of internal control.

e Obtains an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that

are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the internal control.
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e Evaluates the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management in the consolidated financial statements.

e Assesses the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that
may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. This assessment is
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of his audit report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern. If the statutory auditor
concludes that a material uncertainty exists, there is a requirement to draw attention in the audit report
to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are not provided
or inadequate, to modify the opinion expressed therein.

e Evaluates the overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements and assesses whether these
statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

e Obtains sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or
business activities within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. The
statutory auditor is responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the audit of the
consolidated financial statements and for the opinion expressed on these consolidated financial
statements.

Report to the Audit Committee

We submit a report to the Audit Committee which includes in particular a description of the scope of the audit
and the audit program implemented, as well as the results of our audit. We also report, if any, significant
deficiencies in internal control regarding the accounting and financial reporting procedures that we have
identified.

Our report to the Audit Committee includes the risks of material misstatement that, in our professional
judgment, were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period
and which are therefore the key audit matters that we are required to describe in this report.

We also provide the Audit Committee with the declaration provided for in Article 6 of Regulation (EU) N°
537/2014, confirming our independence within the meaning of the rules applicable in France such as they are
set in particular by Articles L.822-10 to L.822-14 of the French Commercial Code (code de commerce) and in
the French Code of Ethics (code de déontologie) for statutory auditors. Where appropriate, we discuss with
the Audit Committee the risks that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and the related
safeguards.

Montpellier and Avignon, May 17, 2021
The Statutory auditors

INSTITUT FIDUCIAIRE

D’EXPERTISE COMPTABLE TALENZ ARES AUDIT
Xavier GALAINE Loic TATIBOUET
Statutory auditor Statutory auditor

158



We are the New
Generations of
Entreprencurs

Consolidated financial statements 2020




160






4

Consolidated financial statements

Consolidated income statement

In thousands of euros Note 12/31/2020 12/31/2019

Income from operating activities

2,401,528 2,497881

Cther ncome fromactivites 819

Purchases consumad

Per sts 829
Externcl expenses 820
Taxesang levies

Amaortization axpen

% of revenue 3% e7%

=21 (11,496 (21953)

44208 46,435

Income from cashan: 55

Gross borrowing cos! 1455 (10.473)

Cost of net financial debt (11.4186) (10.418)

other financial Income and expences 823 (284 (Ltag)

Sharg innet income of ossociotes g4 175 a
Tax expense 87 (2,984
NETINCOME 2e.6886

Attribuoble toowners of the pore

Non-contraliing in

EARNING PER SHARE ATTRIBUABLETO COMPANY SHAREHOLDERS

jc par share - Basic

share - Dilut
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Consolidated statement
of comprehensive income

In thousands of euros Note 12/31/2020 12/31/2019
CONSOLIDATED NET INCOME 22,686 26,325

Other comprehensive income that may not be recycled subsequently to netincome

Actuarial odjustments g16 (1,709’ 1L723)

Fixed assets revaluatio /678

orloss (3,359 574

Taxon ite:

Fair volue chenge on hedr nstruments 514 599 132
Transiation edjustment 752

Camprehensive income attribucble 1o owrers

Compreharsive Incoma attribuchla o non-control ing Nt

020. no share of other iterns of comprehensive income for assocotes and jsint venturesis recognised according to the eguity method
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6 Consolidated financial statements

Consolidated statement
of financial position

12/31/2019
Geodwill 81 257726
Concession Intaglbie ossets az 4747
Other maongible nssets 82 9.27]
Proparty, plant ar quiprnant 32465t
185702

Avoilable-for-sc Hasssts 26448
Cther financiol assets 85 75732
Other non-current assets €6 2257 €521
Defarrod tax os 86 1829 1228

NON-CURRENT ASSETS 883,857 884,303

Inventories 88 58768
Trades 89-8I18 866,184
AvanceE payments 21.957
Crtrer currentassets 810 245578 205,566
Current tax ossets 4312 34
Cosh ond cosh equivaients el 716830 414,470

CURRENT ASSETS 1911629 1,558,644
TOTAL ASSETS
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Premiums ere48
Raserves 213808 208,097
Netincame for the gerind 19,760
SHAREHOLDER'S EQUITY 281,328 306,718
Non-controlling inte 7690 6,824
TOTALEQUITY 289,019 313,642
Nen-current debts 813 241230 275,625
Nen-current lecse debis 813 83229 B7.270
Non-current pravisions 815-816 87513 BEE90
Deferrea tax liobilties 8.7 11387 Aal?
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES 403388 436,002
Currert detts 813 346,372 74.296
Currant lease debts 813 40.281 3B.853
Barik overdrafts 811 253947 249333
Current Provwsions 815-816 8658l sbe
Acvances and payments on account recesved 2.8 1729521 157522
Trade poyables 849 868 754072
Cther current labilities 817-818 420866
Currant tox llob 3472
CURRENT LIABILITIES 2,103,108 1,693,301
AL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 2,785,486 2,442,946
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Consolidated financial statements

Consolidated cash
flow statement

In thousands of euros te 12/31/2020 12/31/2019
CONSOLIDATED NETINCOME 22,686 26,325
Net amortization, depreciation ond provisio 115.592

3206

24 (175
Jnconsolidated companies ond in ents urder Equity methed) _ (100 “7,’_;:“
NETCASHPROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES AFTER TAX 134,512 139,408
ax expence (included dafer red Toxes) 87 9984 9618
NETCASH PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES BEFORETAX 144 496 149,028
Crionge of tax poyable (7018, 6938)

operohions

ge in WCR froer

111640

NETCASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 249117 159,648
Disbursements related 1o ocquisitions of property, plant and eguipment and intagitle essets BP-83 (81537 (S2.060)
Raceipts reloted to disposois of property, piont and 2quipment ant INtoginie 0ssats 15182 5459

Isoursements relotsa to acquisitions of financia 85 (4,907 (1L043)

25in Group structurs (1874 .21

{Unconsolidated companies 1= urder Equity rmethad) 204 150

W 0ans o dvances granted 32026
WONEE N aMounts due o NON-CUrfent ASsets suppisrs 812 436 3,365
NETCASH FLOW FROM INVESTMENT ACTIVITIES (111,522) (125,197)

eholders of the parent

ontrolling interests in conso

egsury shares

Receipts fror W borrowings 813 31060

Rapaymaeant of Berrawind 513 BEY95S6 (54 035)

Ropayments of loa

870 (332
162,250 (12,300)

(2.099 (8)

CHANGE IN NET CASH 2977486 22143

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE BEGINNING OF THE PERIOD 165,137 142,994

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE END OF THE PERIOD . 462,883 165,137

166



Consolidated statement
of changes in equity

ATTRIBUABLE TOOWNERS OF NGE NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS

Kl Currency "_(::: Total Currency hc;":: Total

In thousands of euros SRS Capital Premiums Reserves Tronslation .. Shoreholder’s Reserves Tronslation > _  hon-controking
of shares forthe for the 1
Reserves 3 equity Reserves X Interests
period period

POSITION AT
DECEMBER 31,2018 °572.507 52580 22,648 194700 (s76) 25479 294,831 3,858 (618) 3,013 6,255 301,086
Allecation of net

ome for the period esars (P5,479) 301 (2013

Dividende { (3316 3
FOMUONAY €572,507 62580 22,648 208,124 (27) 23,393 306,718 4,394  (403) 2932 6924 313642

DECEMBER 31,2019

Allccatior

19760 12,760 2,926 2926

171 2171
oy n 1 662
(1145) a. (114
ROTIONAT 5,970,171 47761 - 214508  (700) 19760 281329 5155  (392) 2,926 7690 289,018

DECEMBER 31, 2020
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Notes to the cor financial

Notes to the consolidated

financial statements

The financial statements of the NGE Group at 31 December
2020 detailing the activity of the NGE Group over the
period from 1 Jonuary 2020 to 31 Decernber 2020 were
approved by the Chairman on 29 April 2021

1. General information and key facts

1.1. General information

The consolideted financial statements at 31 December
2020 include NGE and its subsidiaries (together, the
"Group’). and the Group's share of associates or jointly
controlled entities.

The NGE Group's head office is located in Saint Etienne du
Grés (Bouches-du-Rhéne) - Parc d'activités de Laurade.

The capital of NGE SAS stands at €47781,368 at 31
December 2020.

1.2. Key facts

* Health crisis

2020 is marked by the start of the Covid-19 epidemic,
classified as o global pandemic on 11 March 2020. The first
nationwide lockdown began on 17 March 2020,

All of NGE's projects in France were shut down on 17 March
2020, with the exception of a few emergency projects. The
Group prioritised the health and safety of its employees
and workers onits sites as well as business continuity of its
essential activities. As a result, up to twao thirds of French
employees were placed on particl unemployment between
17 March ond 11 May 2020.

The second lockdown in metropolitan France from 30
October 2020 to 15 December 2020 did not impact the
Group's activity thanks to use of preventative measures.

168

Conservative measures were taken ds soon as the pande-
mic occurred to preserve the Group's liquidity, in particular
the cancellation of dividends and the postponement of
share buyback-related transactions. The Group reinforced
its liquidity line with ¢ €200 million State-Guarenteed Loan
issued on 30 June 2020.

The Group's financial performance indicaters have not
been moedified, as the effects of the pandemic cannot be
isoloted ond ore distributed throughout the consolidated
income statement, Under-activity led to a decrease in
revenue and additional costs impacted the Operating
Income from ordinary activities, in particular the costs of
shutdowns and project restarts, capital costs of eguip-
ment, employee safety-related costs and personnel costs
net of partial unemployment compensation.

* Capital transactions

On B February 2020, NGE carried out a €4.4 million
copital reduction by cancelling shares held by Bpifrance
Participations. The share capital of NGE was therefore
reduced from €52,580,056 to €48,200,088 through the
concellation of 5474986 shares

On B February 2020, NGE bought back 136,874 of its own
shares from Bpifrance Participations with a view to trans-
ferring themn to its employee shareholding programme
(FCPE “NGE Actionnariat Relais 2020").

The FCPE 2020 programme ended on 1S December
2020 NGE transferred 111.844 shares to the FCPE "NGE
Actionnariat Relais 2020". The balance of treasury shares
not transferred to the FCPE, ie. 25030 shares, were
deducted from shareholders ‘equity. They were cancelled
on 8 February 2021.
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* New funding

On B February 2020, in order to finance the capital reduc-
tion described above, NGE took out a €32 6 million loan
backed by the property portfolio within its subsidiary
Fonciére des Alpilles,

Faced with the crisis, the Group has strengthened its liqui-
dity line with a €200 million State-Guaronteed Loan issued
on 30 June 2020, subscribed through its usual banking
pool. Inaddition, given the Group's high level of liguidity, the
€100 million revolving credit facility was not used in the
second half of 2020 and was still available ot 31 December
2020.

NGE also used its €42 .3 million of its investment credit line
to finance its investments in project equipment

2. Standards and interpretations applied

The Group's consolidated financial statements for the
periods ended 31 December 2020 and 31 December 2018,
are prepared in accordance with the EU Regulation No.
1606/2002 of 19 July 2002, and comply with IFRS
(International Financial Reperting Standards) standards
and interpretations as adopted by the European Union at
31 December 2020 and availoble on the website: http://
ec europa eu/finance/company-reporting/ifrs-financial-
statements/index_frhtm.

The accounting principles used at 31 December 2020 are
the same as those used for the consolidated financial
statements at 31 December 2018, with the exception of
the standards and interpretations adopted by the
European Union and applicable on a mandatory basis
from 1 January 2620

The Group has not applied the single electronic reporting
format os defined by EU Delegated Regulation No.
2019/815 of 17 December 2018, applicable to fiscal years
beginning on or after 1 Jonuary 2021
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The new standards and interpretations applicable, on a
mandatory basis, from 1 January 2020. concern:

«amendments to IFRS 3 "Business combinctions -
Definition of an activity”;

- amendments to IAS 1 and IAS 8 "Definition of the term
‘material™;

amendments to references to the conceptual framework
in IFRS standards;

amerdments ta IFRS S and IFRS 7 "Reform of benchmark
interest rates”;

interpretation of IFRS IC relating to the assessment of the
effective terms of leases and the depreciation of fixtures
and fittings: The Group is aware of the IFRS IC decisions,
published on 16 December 2019, on the assessment of
lease terms for contracts that are renewacble by tacit
agreement or with no contractual end date. The IFRS IC
confirms the need te determine the effective period,
taking an economic view beyond the legal characteristics.
The contracts concerned are mainly property leases. In
addition, IFRS IC has also confirmed that the depreciation
period for non -relocatable fixtures should not exceed the
lease term.

These standards and interpretations, applicable on a
mandatory basis, as of 1 January 2020 hove no impaoct
on the censolidated financial statements at 31 December
2020

- amendments to IFRS 16 “Leases - Rental arrangements
related to Covic-19" approved by the EU on 12 October
2020; its impact is not material on the consalidated
financial statemente—sSacember 202%,99“
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements

2.2. Standards and interpretations adopted
by the IASB but not applicable as of

31 December 2020

The Group did not anticipate any of the new standards and
interpretations whose cpplication is not mandatory on
1 January 2020

- amendments to IAS 1 "Presentation of financial state-
ments - Clossification of liabilities as current and
nen-current liabilities”:

-amendments to IAS 37 “Provisions, Contingent
Liabilities and Contingent Assets - Onerous contracts,
notion of costs directly related to the contract”;

- amendments to IAS 16 "Property, plant and equipment
Recognition of revenue generated before
commissioning’;

-amendments to IFRS 3 "Business combinations
- References to the conceptual framework’;

- annual impravements from IFRS Cycle 2018-2020:

« amendments o IFRS 3, IAS 39, IFRS 7. IFRS 4, and IFRS
16 "Reform of reference rates - phase 2°

3. Consolidation methods

3.1. Consolidation scope and methods
The Group’s consclideted financial statements are
prepared at 31 December on the basis of the individual
financial statements of the Group’s subsidiaries at that
date, restated to comply with Group standards

Entries into, and deconsolidations from, the conselidation
scope are carried out on the acquisition or disposal date,
or far convenience reasons if their impact is not significant,
on the basis of the last consolidated balonce sheet date
prior to the acquisition or disposal.

The rules adopted by the Group are os follows:

According to the provisions of IFRS 10 “Consolidated
Financial Statements”, for all aspects relating to control
and consolidation procedures under the full consolidation
method. the nation of control of an entity is defined on the
basis of three criteria:
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— Power over the entity, i.e. the ability to direct the activities
that have the greatest impact on its profitability;

— Exposure to the entity’s variable returns, which may be
positive, in the form of dividends or other economic
benefits, or negative;

— And the link between power and these returns, i.e. the
ability to exercise power over the entity to influence the
returns obtained.

In practice, companies in which the Group directly or indi-
rectly holds the majerity of voting rights at Shareholders’
Meetings, on the Board of Directors or within the equiva-
lent management body. giving it the power to govern their
operating and financial policies, are generally considered
to be controlled and fully consolidated. To determine
control, the Group performs an in-depth analysis of the
governance established and an analysis of the rights held
by the other shareholders in order to verify their purely
protective nature.

When necessary. an analysis of the instruments held by
the Group or third parties (potential voting rights, dilutive
instruments, convertitle instruments, etc,) which, if exer-
cised, could change the type of influence exercised by each
party. is also performed.

For certain infrastructure project companies operating
under concession or under public-private partnership
contracts in which NGE is not the only equity investor, in
addition to the governance analysis estoblished with each
partner, the Group may need to study the terms of its
sub-contrecting contracts in arder to verify that they do
not confer additional powers likely to lead to a situation of
control.

This most often concerns construction contracts and
operation/maintenance contracts for concession
facilities.

An analysis is carried out in the event of a specific event
likely to have an impact on the level of control exercised by
the Group (change in the distrioution of the share capital
of an entity, its governance, exercise of a dilutive financiol
instrument, etc.).




According te the provisicns of the standard IFRS 11 “Joint
Arrangements” joint control is established when decisions
concerning the entity’s pregominant activities require the
unanimous consent of the parties sharing control.

Partnerships are classified into two categories (joint
ventures and joint operations) according to the nature of
the rights end obligations held by each of the parties. This
classification is generally established by the legal form of
the legal vehicle used for the project.

— A joint ventureis a partnership in which the parties (joint
partners) that exercise joint control over the entity have
rights to the net assets of the entity. Joint ventures are
ceonsolidated using the equity methed.

— A joint operation is a partnership in which the parties
(co-partners) have direct rights to the assets and direct
obligations for the liabilities of the entity. Each co-partner
must reccgnise its share of assets, licbilities, income and
expenses in relation to its stake in the joint operation.

Most of the Group's partnerships correspond to joint acti-
vities by virtue of the legal form of the legal structures
used, s in France, where the porties generally use the
"société en participation” (SEP) to contract their joint
operational activities.

In some cases, where the facts and circumstances
demanstrate that a company's activities have been
designed to provide output to the parties. the nature of
the jcint cperation Is determined even where the legal
form of the legal vehicle does not establish transparency
between the assets of the co-partners ond the
partnership. This indicates that the parties are entitled, in
substance, to substantially all of the economic benefits
associated with the company's assets and that they will
settle its liokilities. Within the Group, this applies in parti-
cular to certain asphalt plants.

According to the provisions of IAS 28 "Investments in
Associates and Joint Ventures” os revised, associates are
entities over which the Group exercises significant
influence. They are consolidated using the equity method.
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3.2. Intra-group transactions

Intercompany transactions and transactions of assets and
liabilities, income and expenses between fully consolidated
companies are eliminated in full in the consalidated
accounts.

Geins and losses orising from asset-related transactions
(purchase - sale) between a fully consolidated entity and
an equity-accounted entity are only recognised in the
financial statements to the extent of the percentage in the
equity-accounted entity held outside the Group.

3.3. Transactions in foreign currencies
The financial statements of foreign subsidiaries are kept
in their functianal currency.

The balance sheets, whose functional currency is different
from the consclidation currency, are translated into euros
at the closing rate, with the exception of equity. which is
translated at historical cost.

Balance sheet translation differences are recorded as
translation adjustments in shareholders’ equity.

The consolidated income statement is translated at the
average rate for the period.

Transoctions in foreign currencies are transloted into euros
at the exchange rate prevailing on the Ltransaction date,
The resulting foreign exchange gains and losses are reco-
gnised in foreign exchange income and presented in other
financial income and expenses in the consolidated income
statement,

Foreign exchange gains and lesses on borrowings deno-
minated in foreign currencies or on foreign exchange deri-
vatives quelifying as netinvestment hedges of subsidiaries
are recorded in ather comprehensive income and shown
in the translation reserve.

Goodwill and fair velue odjustments arising from the
acquisition of foreign subsidiaries are considerad os assets
and liabilities of the subsidiary and are therefare expressed
in the functional currency of the subsidiary and translated
at the closing rate.
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4. Accounting rules and policies

To prepare the financial statements in accordance with
IFRS, some estimates and assumptions have been made,
These estimates are assessed on an ongeing basis on
the basis of past experience, as well as other factors that
form the basis of the assessments of the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities,

4.1. Presentation of the financial statements
The Group presents its financial statements in occordance
with IAS 1 “Presentaticn of the financial statements”.

— The statement of comprehensive income is presented
by type of income and expense in order to best repre-
sent the Group’s business activity, including the net
income from the sale of equipment that is part of the
Group's current business activity.

The Group’s main performance indicator is cperating
income from orainary activities. It is determined on the
basis of operating income before taking into account the
estimated fair volue of share-bosed payments, the
impact of impairment tests on goodwill and other opera-
ting income and expenses related to the Group's
non-cperating activities (disposal of activities, acquisi-
tion costs);

— Net financial income/(tcss) separately presents the cost
of the Group's financial debt and ather financial income
and expenses;

— The consalidated statement of comprehensive income is
derived from the nat income in the consolidated state-
ment of income and details other comprehensive income;

—The consolidated statement of financial position
presents a breckdown of current and non-current assets
and liabilities.

4.2. Significant judgements and estimates
The preparction of the Group's financial statements
requires the use of judgements, estimates and assump-
tions that have an impact on the amounts recognised in
the financial statements as assets and liabilities, income
and expenses, as well as the information provided on
contingent liabilities.

The outcome of the transactions underlying these esti-
mates and assumptions could potenticlly generate, due to
the uncertainty associated with them, asignificant adjust-

The use of judgements and estimates is particularly

important in the following areas:

— Accounting for construction contracts;

— Valuation of post-empioyment benefits;

— Valuation of provisions for risks (in particular for losses
on completion, for disputes);

— Measurement of the recoverable amount of intangible
assets and property, plant end equipment and in parti-
culor of goodwill;

- Valuation of deferred tax assets:

— Measurement of the fair value of financial instruments;

- Valuation of leases.

5. Financial risk factors

Context of the health crisis:

NGE has endeavoured to meet its contractual obligations
and. os at 31 December 2020, has not identified any signi-
ficant events such as contract terminations, penalties for
late performance, disputes with customers or suppliers
that could have a material impact on the financial
statements

The Group has not changed its financial perfarmance indi-
cators; the effects of the pandemic are reflected by a
decrease in revenue or in additional costs that cannot be
isolated and are distributed throughout the consolidated
income statement.

S.1. Interest rate risks

The Group is exposed to changes in interest rates on its
variable-rote debt. In order to limit its exposure to the risk
of upward movements, the Group may use options or inte-
rest rate swaps. These derivatives may be qualified as
hedging transactions within the meaning of IFRS. The
Group ensures that the ineffective portion of the hedges
is not material.

Note 814 presents the portion of debt subject to interest
rate risk.

Any increase in the level of interest rates would increase
the cost of the Group's financing, which would lead to a
reduction in its net financial income/(loss) and net income
and could slow its growth.

5.2. Exchange rate risks

As most of the Group's subsidiaries operate in the euro
zone. the Group's expasure to exchange rate risks is limited.
In addition, the costs related to the performance of inter-
national contracts denominated in @ local currency other
than the euro are gz “paid in lholgﬁar}%

ment to the amounts recognised in o subsequent period. currency. .§{° 0%
o

S TALENZ ARgs e

AUDIT @

%%pa ae““‘P
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Foreign exchange risks mainly concern cash flow
mismatches during the performance of a contract (finan-
cing of resources or working capital reguirements), as well
as the conversion inte euros of overhead expenses and
income generated by the said contract. From time to time,
the Group implements a strategy to hedge all or part of
these cash flows in order to reduce its exposure to
exchange rate risks.

However, o significant change in exchiange rates could
nonetheless impact the Group's activities and netincome.

5.3. Liquidity risk
Liguidity risk is the risk thot the Group may not have suffi-
cient net financial resources to meet its obligations and
operating expenses.

The Group has a €250 million trade receivables securiti-
sation programme, renewed in 2019 for a term of six years,
a €100 million revolving credit facility. not used at 31
December 2020 and dlso a €150 million Negoticble
European Commercial Poper pregramme, unused ot 31
December 2020

These items are classified as bank overdrafts and
presented in Note 8.11.

Faced with the health crisis. the Group has strengthened
its liquidity line with €200 million State-Guaranteed Loan
issued on 30 June 2020, subscribed through its usual
banking pool. This State-Guaranteed Loan is classified as
current financial debt and presented in note 8.13.

5.4. Tax risk

The tax audits of certain Group companies were comple-
ted in 2020

No tax auditis currently underway.

5.5. Market risk

The Group is not exposed to equity market risk, as surplus
cash is invested in interest-bearing accounts or term
deposits.

5.6. Credit risk

The risk of non-recovery of trade receivables is limited,
given that the Group conducts more than two-thirds ofits
business octivity with public entities.
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5.7. Commodity price fluctuation risk

The warks contracts on which the Group operates are
generally subject to a price adjustment clause backed by
anational index which hedges the risk of fluctuations in the
price of raw materials.

From time to time, in the context of large and non-revi-
sable contracts, the Group may be required 10 use raw
materials price hedging contracts for supplies for which
there are significant price fluctuations on the world
markets.

6. Scope of consolidation

6.1. Change in the scope of consolidation

On 28 January 2020, the Group completed the acquisition
of S2F NETWORK, designer of the SMART sclution, based
in Le Havre. integrated into the Group under the nome NGE
CONNECT, Tne acquisition cost was €0.2 million,

The Group also took control of the Pontiggio group, which
includes Public Warks companies in Alsace. during the
second half of 2020. The acquisition cost was €4.2 million.
In accordance with the acquisition method, the acquisition
cost must be allocated to the assets acquired, and to the
licbilities and the contingent liabilities assumed. The allo-
cation of fair values t¢ the assets and liabilities and identi-
fiaple contingent liabllities was completed on a provisional
basis at 31 December 2020 The fair value of the assets
and licbilities acguired, determined provisionally, is €(0.5)
million.

The Group sold the financial assets of La Planeze ond
Valserhéne.

6.2. Scope of consolidation
The list of consoliduted companies is attached en page 38.

7. Subsequent events

The Group did not recard any events after the balance
sheet date between 31 December 2020 and the date
when the Chairman approved the financial statements
on 28 April 2021
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8. Appendix

The Group's consclidated financial statements cre
presented in thousands of euros without decimal places,
unless otherwise specified.

Rounding differences may lead to non-material differences
in the totals shown in the tables.

8.1. Goodwill and Impairment tesis

Business combinations and goodwill

Business combinations are accounted for in accordance
with the provisions of |[FRS 3 "Business combinations” as
amended.

In application of this revised standerd, the Group reco-
gnises ct fair value, at the dates when control is assumed,
the assets acquired and the identifiable liabilities assumed.

The acquisition cost corresponds to the fair value, at the
date of the exchange, of the assets delivered, the liabilities
incurred and/or the equity instruments issued in exchange
for the acquired entity. Any price adjustments are
measured at their fair value at each balance sheet date.

As from the date of acquisition, any subsequent change in
this fair value. resulting frem events subsequent to the
acquisition of control, is recognised in income.

Costs directly attributable to the acquisition, such as due
diligence fees. are recognised in “Other operating
expenses’ when they are incurred.

The ocquisition value is allocated by recognising the assets
acquired and the identifiable liabilities at their fair value,
with the exception of ossets classified as held for sale
under IFRS 5 “Non-current assets held for sale and
discontinued operations’, which are recognised at their fair
value less their cost to sell

The positive difference between the acguisition cost and
the fair value of the assets and identifiable liabilities
acquired constitutes goodwill. Where applicable. goodwill
includes the fair value share of non-controlling interests
using the full goodwill method.

The Group has twelve months from the acquisition date to
finalise the accounting of transactions relating to the
acguired companies.

In the case of a business combination carried out in stages,
the investment previously held in the company is valued at
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fair value on the date control is assumed Any resulting
gainorloss is recognised in income under "Other financial
income and expenses”.

In accordance with IAS 27 “Separate Financial Staterments’,
acquisitions or disposals of nan-controlling interests,
without change of control, are considered as transactions
with the Group's sharenclders. Under this appreach, the
difference between the price paid to increase the percen-
tage interest in the entities already controlled and the
additional share of equity thus acquired is recorded in the
Group's shareholders' equity.

Similarly, o decrease in the percentage of the Group's inte-
restin an entity that remains controlled is treated from an
accounting perspective as g transaction between
shareholders, with no impact on income.

Goodwill relating to fully consolidated subsidiaries is
recorded as on asset in the consolidated balance sheet
under “Goodwill’. Goodwill relating te companies consoli-
dated under the equity method is included under
“Investments in associates’.

Negative goodwill is recognised directly in income under
"Other financialincome” in the year of acquisition.

Goodwillimpairment tests

In accordance with IAS 36 “Impairment of assets’, goodwill
and other non-financial assets of cash-generating units
(CGUs) were tested for impairment.

If the carrying omount of the cash-generating unit exceeds
the recoverable amount, the assets of the cash-generating
unit are written down to their recoverable amount. The
impairment s firstallocated to goodwill and recerded inthe
consolidated income statement under "Other operating
income and expenses’,

CGUs are determined based on operational reporting and
correspond to homogeneous groups of assets whose use
generates identifiable cash inflows. The CGU groups are:

- Regional Multi-Expertise Activities;

- National Speciclised Subsidiaries or a group of
consolidated subsidiaries when they carry out their
activity outside the "Regional Multi-Expertise Activities”

organisation;

- Major Projects.




The recoverable amount of a cash-generating unit is the
higher of its foir value (genermly the market price). net of
disposal costs, and its value in use. Value in use is estimated
using the discounted free cash flow method before tax
(Operating income + depreciation and emortisation +/-
Change in working capital requirements - Renewal
investments).

The assumptions used for these calculations, like any
estimate, are subject to uncertainty and are therefore
likely to be adjusted in subsequent periads.

Model parameters applied to cash flow
projections

Growth rate and discount rate

Cash flows beyond the five-year period are extrapolated
with an estimated growth rate of 2.0%.

All cash flows are discounted using a discount rate of B 4%
corresponding to the Group's weighted average cost of
capital after tax, with the exception of the Building
Construction business activity, which is included in the
"Specialist French Subsidiaries” CGU group, for which the

Groups of CGU

12/31/2019

Impaiment
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rate used is 109%. The |otter was subject to on impairment
of £10.3 million

These calculations are bosed on a five-year provisional
plan prepared by the CGU's management and reviewed
by the Group's Executive Management Team and Finance
Department.

Interest rate sensitivity

A reasonably possible change in the assumptions relating
to the impairment tests performed for each of the groups
of CGUs weuld not lead to an impairment charge on
goodwill. The discount rate ot which the Group is expec-
ted to recognise an impairment (breakeven point) is 10 4%
with the excepticn of the Building Construction business
activity.

GROUPS OF CGU

DISCOUNT RATE

R el Mult-Experbises 84% a1s
A

Multi-Expertise Mojor Prajects BA%

Specialist French Subsidicries 84% -105% 81% -105%

Changesin Tronslation

Group structure

adjustment

giorol Multi-Expertises Activities 4792 @ 70,535
Multi-Expertis 8)
Speciolist Frenck (10 3}
TOTALGOODWILL (10,323) 4,792 @) (@)

Impaiment

Tronslation
adjustment

Changesin
Group structure

Abigjaon - Ivary Coast
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(10,000) - 35 =

)

263,267
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Intangible Assets arising from concessions
According to the provisions of IFRIC 12 “Service concession
agreements’, the concessionaire may be reguired to carry
out adual activity:

- a construction activity in respect of its obligations to
design, build and finance new infrastructure that it
hands over te the grantor;

- an operation and maintenance activity of the concession
assets.

The recognition of the concession asset deperds on the
remuneration method for the service provided:

when the remuneration is based on the consumption of
the service by users: the concession asset is recognised
under ‘Intangible Assets” arising from concessions and
measured in accordance with 1AS 38 *Intangible assets’,
The eamount of any subsidies received is deducted from
the value of the Intangible assets arising from
concessions,

when the remuneration is based on a fixed amount owed
by the grantor unrelated to the consumption of the
service by users: the concession asset is recognised in
“Other financial assets” and measured in accordance
with the provisions of IFRS @ “Financial Instruments”
The change in these assets is presented in Note 8.5.

i

The remuneration of the concession assetis recognised in
accordance with IFRS 15 “Revenue from contracts with
customers”.

Other intangible Assets

Other intangible assets mainly include patents, licenses
and computer software, as well as quarrying rights with a
fixed term

Other intangible assets acquired are recorded in the
consolidated balonce sheet at their acquisition cost, less
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses.

Quarrying rights cre amertised as and when extraction is
carried out (tonnages extracted during the fiscal year
compared to the total estimated extraction capacity of the
quarry over its operating life).

Other intangible assets are amortised on a straight-line
basis over their useful life
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FY 2020

Other

12/31/2019 ncreases 12/31/2020
movements

(_‘il ession intangihs s.827 S84 5898
assots
Amartizohon
concassion intangitie 536 590 9 1155
assets
CONCESSION
INTANGIBLE 5.091 (590) 240 4741
ASSETS

FY 2018

Other
movements

12/31/2018

12/31/2019

concession intangicle
assets
CONCESSION
INTANGIBLE
ASSETS

258 2Ll (S13)

5,369 (211) (88)

536

5,091




18

Intangible assets
FY 2020

Changes Other  Translation

Gross amounts 12/31/2019 inGroup Increases  Decrecses 12/31/2020
movements  adjustment

structure

Lis4

2,570 (1542 2615
a

GROSS AMOUNTS 10.335 1192 3.009 (847) (275) (3) 13911

o poyments on cccount

< o P « Oth Trans! A
Amortization and provisions 12/31/2019 inGroup Increases ”» o .rar\ gHien 12/31/2020
Rt movements  adjustment

Concessions, patants and senilar rights 2126 (250) (1) 3,758
Cther ntang 799 (BS) 282
AMORTIZATION AND PROVISIONS 3928 - (317) (@) [¢V] 4,640

Changes
in Group
structure

QOther  Translation
movements adjustment

12/31/2020

misar rights

95
35.

2BlS

(@) 9,271

Changes

2 Oth T Iati ——
12/31/2018 inGroup Increases  Decreases ol ransiation - 42/31/2019
structure movements adjustment

ikor rights a8l (15) {279) 3 4,569

320 587

Inteng ction rid 19 1135 1154
avan C accoaunt

NET AMOUNTS 1,359 (18) 1,189 3 3,873 - 6,410

= - ! =
Ringroad - Eordsaux g w Al NZARES

(5]

*

177
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Property, plant and equipment
Property, plantand equipment cre recorded at their acqui-
sition or preduction cost, less accumulated depreciation and
any impairment losses
The assets are subject to depreciation schedules determined
according to the actual useful life of the asset. The depre-
ciable base corresponds to the cost of purchase less the final
residual value of the asset. The amount of the residual value
is the amount that the Group would currently receive if the
asset was already in the age and weor and tear congiitions
expected at the end of its useful life.
The main useful lives used are:
BUIEiNGS ssmwmsascnamamssmmsns
Public works equipmMent.........uiwi i 3 10 10 years
Transport @qQUIPMENt.. . a3 103 yOArs
8 to 30 years
5to 19 years old
e 31010 years

15to 40 years

Railway equipment
Fixtures....axews X
Office furniture ond equipment....

Right of use of leased assets

Since L january 2018, the Group has applied IFRS 16 "Leases”,
The Group recognises all of its leases on the consclidated
balance sheet, with the exception of leases with a duration of
less than twelve months or those relating to assets with an
insignificant unit value cs new. which are still recognised as
lease rentals in the consolidated income statement with no
impact on the Group's consclidated balance sheet.
Operating leases are recognised as lease liabilities for the
present value of the lease rentals still to be paid in exchange

Right of use of leased assets
FY 2020

Gross amounts 12/31/2019

Changes in

for nights to use the underlying asset. Under the simplified
method, the amount of rights of use is equcl to the amount of
the lease licbility recognised

In the consolidated income statement, the depreciation
expense of the asset and the financial expense of the interest
on the liability repiace the lecse expense previously reco-
gnised entirely in operating income.

Rights of use of leases are amortised on a straight-line basis
over the term of the leases: they are adjusted each time the
value of the lease financial debt is revalued.

The cssumptions and estimates made to determine the value
of lease rights of use and lease liabilities relate in particular to
the determination of discount rates end lease terms.

The lease terms used generally correspond 1o the term of the
firm contract, in perticular for equipment ond vehicle leoses,
and for real estate leases, a period of nine years is most often
used. In saome exceptional cases, particularly in the context of
long-termleases or building lecses, the terms are longer than
30 years.

To determine the discount rate for lease liabilities. the residual
term of the leases was tcken into account

Varicble lease rentals or contract-related services are not
taken into account in determining the amount of the right of
use or the cmount of lease liabilities. They are recognised as
expenses when they are incurred,

A deferred tax is recognised on the difference between the
right of use assets and the lease liabiities, falling within the
scope of IFRS 16.

Decreases Other  Translation 15,4, /5050

Increases
Movements

Group structure

adjustment

1206 (9.7 28,449
Right-of-use of movob 5 2712 3. (7.515) ) 328736
GROSS AMOUNTS 338,655 3918 33,798 (17.269) s (918) 358,185

12/31/2019

Changesin
Group structure

Other
Movements

Translation

2/31/202
adjustment j/auEses

11 4954 ) 11432
158077 28,279 (.103) (201} 181052
AMORTIZATION AND PROVISIONS 169,778 - 34,243 (11,317) i (217) 192,484

12/31/2019

Changes in
Group structure

Other
Movements

Translation

> (311902
adjustment 12/31/2020

1208

Right-of-use of movahle

NET AMOUNTS

FY 2018

Neot amounts

Cha
inGroup
structure

(1,413)
(5,952)

212

3,918

anges
Increases

> o of me¢
NETAMOUNTS

Rig

6.736
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Y el

Gross amounts

12/31/2019

Proger% plant and equipment

Changes
inGroup
structure

Increases

Decrecses

Other

movements

Translation
adjustment

21

12/31/2020

justrial machnery and oquis
Other tangit 140,977 Q67 18724 16 506) 705 (399 44 569
oL} 18,356 10,538 ) (8.839) n 15736

GROSS AMOUNTS 615803 2.032 88,098 (68,457) 162 (2.765) 631.874

Changes
in Group
structure

12/31/2019

Decreoses

Other
movements

Translation
adjustment

I I machinery ond equipment 4 (5
Other tangib s 6541 21772 (s180) 176 105} 94194
AMORTIZATION AND PROVISIONS 298,416 = 65.273 (s1.339) (4.158) (974) 307219

Net amounts

Changes
inGroup
structure

Increases

QOther
movements

Translation
adjustment

et under consiruction
1Fixed assets

ng

oaym

NET AMOUNTS

FY 2018

Netamounts

2,032

Changes
inGroup
structure

12/31/2018

20.825

Increases

(18,118)

Decreaoses

Other
movements

(1.791)

Transiation
adjustment

12/31/2019

44,800

Land 25,10
Bliidings E07 o5 42547
2321 157447
54437
e 8103) 2 12,356
292,004 13,108 22,808 (7,622) (3,888) 697 317,387
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Investments in companies over which the Group exercises
significant influence (associates) are valued using the
equity method: they are initiclly recognised at acquisition
costincluding, where applicable, the goodwill created.

Their carrying amount s then adjusted to take into account
changes in the Group's share of the net assets of these
companies.

When the net position of an equity-accounted company
becocmes negative, the shares of net positions cre
presented in ‘Current provisions' unless the Group has
committed to recapitalise or has already invested funds in
this company.

The change over the fiscal year is shown in the consoli-
dated income statement ("Share in net income of
associates”’).

Impairment losses resulting from impairment tests on
equity-accounted investments are recognised through net
income and deducted from the carrying amount of the
corresponding investments.

FY 2020

12/31/2020 R Operating
Dataon o 100% bosis i income

Calenires Du Biterrois 5158 154) ) 298 50% (115) 2848
8093 501 cog 43% 218 a72

4247 20 (114 35% {40) 140

MEHR a,549] 711 as0 758 28% 104 Li03
NGE Autoroutes - 24) (1939) N3 (194) 2,896
PER 7868& 361 369 een 85 (53]
18560 1289 3 B% 38 8539

- {i2) 83) 33% (22) (20)

SLE 32 39% 12 si2
Société des Enrchés Clermaontois 130 33% 43 414
Various 22 42 407
TOTAL 3,346 (392) 17s 15,526
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FY 2019

12/31/2018 Rovente
Data on 0 100% basis y income income

Operating Net Shors net Equity attribuable

Equity % interest to owners
of the parent

income

19 ‘ 7

Clarmentais

Change in investrnents in associates is as follows:

Net amounts

AT 12/31/2018 7.953

Netincome fort riod 2019 14
Dividends poid

Chongs in copita

Chonge in group structure

Chongg in zonsolidaton method

AT 12/31/2019 14.023

eriod 2020
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Non-current financial assets mainly include assets avai-
lable for sale and receivables related to investments, as
well as guarantee deposits, loans and other financial
receivables

Assets available for sale

Assets available for sale include the Group's equity invest-
mentsin nen-consolidated companies. They are measured
at fair value at the balance sheet date. If their fair value
cannot be reliably determined, they are recognised at their
acguisition cost. The factars considered to determine an
impairment loss are the decrease in the share of equity
held and a significant and prolonged detericration in
expected profitability.

FY 2020

Gross amounts

Chongesin

12/31/2019
el Group structure

Increases

Changes in the fair value of assets available for sale cre
recognised in net income, in accordance with IFRS 9
“Financial Instruments”

Loans, deposits

Loons and deposits are recognised at ecmortised cost. If
necessary, a provision for impairment may be made.
Impcirment is the difference between the net carrying
amount and the recoverable amount and is recagnised in
income under “Other financial income and expenses”. A
provisicn reversal may be madein the event of a favourable
change in the recaverable omount

S

Other
movements

Translation

12/31/202
adjustment / 9

Decreoses

5200 2241 26.766
& fimanciot as 3 (4C.372 AS.7C8 (L =) 2058 (24B) 75,735
GROSS AMOUNTS (40,367) 50,908 (14,709) 1,080 (246) 102,501

Changes in

Provisions
Group structure

Incregses

Other
movamaents

Translation

adjustment 12/31/2020

Decreases

Available o B
Otker financial asssts 78 =
PROVISIONS 6,349 1 &6 < = 320
Net amounts Changesin Increacises Other Traﬁ-flc:tion

Group structure movements adjustment
Avolloble-to 2421 S 5144 (1841 (976 25,448
Ctrer financial assets 75289 (40,373 45708 (RAR2) 158 (24F) 75732
NETAMOUNTS 99,486 (40.368) 50,852 (8,623) 1,080 (248) 102,180
FY 2019
Gross amounts 12/31/2018 Gmus::rz%:z:: Increases Decreases moveg:::: Qr::::::’::: 12/31/2019
Avoiloble-for-sa 1 623 (5,997) (4,401) 24,779
Ct inancicl ossets 36780 23
GROSS AMOUNTS 49,413 (8,514) (a,701) 23

Changesin

Other Translation

Efvisions Group structure DEcr ey movements adjustment A A
Avoiloble~fa a6z oo See2
Ctrer financia 5787 5787
PROVISIONS 6,049 - 300 - - - 6,349

Changes in

Net amounts
2 Group structure

Avolloble-far-sc

I

Increases

Other
movements

Transiation

dicjustment 12/31/2019

Decreases

er financ

a

NET AMOUNTS

G
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Summary of assets related to
concessions and PPPs

12/31/2020 12/31/2019

Avaloble-for-sale ossets - Concessions and PPPs 18531 17069
Cther finonciol assets - Con s:and PPPs 45,807 70186
Investrments in associates 11429 11183
TOTALFINANCIAL ASSETS - 75,567 98,438

CONCESSIONS AND PPPS

Other non-current assets include tex receivables due in
more than one year. These include research and spon-
sorship tax credits that are not chargeable and not
refundable in 2020.

The Group calculates its income taxes in accordance with
the tox laws in force in the countries where the income is
taxcble.

In accordance with IAS 12 "Income Taxes', deferred taxes
are recognised on the differences between the carrying
amounts and the tax values of assets and liabilities. They
result from:

—Temporary differences arising when the carrying
amount of an asset or liability is different from its tax
value. They are either:

« sources of future toxes (deferred tax liabllities): these
are mainly income for which toxation is deferred.

« sources of future deductions (deferred tax ossets):
mainly provisions tempoerarily non-deductible for tax
purposes;

- Tox loss carryforwards (deferred tax assets), Deferred
tax assets are recognised if it is probable that the
Company may recover them through the expectation of
a toxable profitin future fiscal years

The carrying amount of deferred tax assetsis reviewed at
each balance sheet daote and reduced to the extent that it
is no longer probable that a sufficient taxable profit will be
available to allow the use of all or part of this deferred tax
asset Unrecognised deferred tax assets are assessed at
each balance sheet date and are recognised to the extent
that it becomes probable that future profits will be avai-
lable to recover them.

25
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Deferred tax bolances are determined on the basis of the
tax position of each entity or the overall income of the enti-
ties included in the tax consolidation scope. and are
presented as assets or liobilities in the consclidated
balance sheet based on their net position by tax entity.

Deferred taxes are valued at the tox rates expected to
apply over the period during which the asset will be
realised and the liability paid on the basis of the tax rates
adopted on the balance sheet date

Thus, the theoretical tax rate used to prepare the conso-
lidated financial statements for 2020 is 32.023 %, the
comman law tax rate for French subsidiaries whose
revenue is greater than €250 million.

The rates used at 31 December 2020 for the recognition
of taxes on temporary differences and tax loss
carryforwards of French entities. taking inte account the
reversal schedule, are as follows:

2021 .
2022 and beyond

e 28.41%

2583%

Reconciliation between the effective
income tax expense and the
theoretical expense

12/31/2020

12/31/2019

Consolidated met income 22,686
Ircome tox expenses (S284)
Pre-tox net income 32,870
Theoretical taxrate in force 3z.02%
Theoretical tax expense 10,482
Parmanent differoncas 2,992
DTA rot recognized 110

Share in ret income of asso

oy rate differences
Effective tax expense,
EFFECTIVE TAXRATE
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Income tax expense

12/21/2020 12/21/2019

“rrant toyes S 108 5361

Deferrad taxes 876 3.257

TOTAL 9,984 9618

Deferred taxes allocation
FY 2020

Net Recognized In
balance at

Translation
adjustment
ond other

other [tems of
comprehensive
income

Recognized In
January 1, netincome

2020

ry differ

Recognized
directlyin
Equity

BALANCE AT 12/31/2020

Assets
(Liabilities)
net tax

Bolance
before
of fsetting

Offsetting by
fiscal sphere

SECLT=TIaR0 11,476 (548) 525 143 11,496
DEFERRED TAX ASSETS (11,408) (110) (@01 623 43,948 (a2.119) 1829
Fisxed assets 71 (560
Provisions B 265 1996
Intongibic 20 30
Financio (100 =9 @D
Financial Instruments 394 164 558
DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES (61,723) 10,532 336 (2,295) (356) (53,506) 42119  (11,387)

NET TAX ASSETS (5.980) (876) (3,196)

(9.558) (9,558)

(LIABILITIES)

FY 2019

Net Transiation Recognized in

balance at  Recognizedin S0y other Items of
adjustment

January1, netincome i comprehensive
- and other

2019 Income

Recognized
directlyin
Equity

BALANCE AT 12/31/2019

Assets
(Liabilities)
net tax

Baolance
before
offsetting

Offsetting by
fiscal sphere

DEFERRED TAX ASSETS (3,289) 34 574 55,744 (54,505) 1,238
Fixed ossets 1,317
1 30
57) B (8}
Financial Instrument 440 A6) 394
DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES (56,896) 33 (22) (48) (4992)  (61,723) 54505  (7217)
RS IARESSELS (a84) (2.257) 12 528 (2,780) (5,980) - (5,880

(LIABILITIES)
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Inventories are valued at their acquisition or production cost by the Company or at their net realisable value if itis lower

at ecch balance sheet date

Changesin

Translation

12/31/2019 . Variation 3
Group structure adjustment
Raw materialsand supolies 490882 8% 8071 (327) 55,211
otal depreciotion and iImpairment (185) (20) s2 (143)

INVENTOR!

Changes in

12/31/2018 .
Group structure

Tronslation

Variat .
bl adjustment

Haw materials and supolies

Totol depreciction ond impairment (175)

(10) (185)

INVENTORIES 51,080 1.034 (3.339) 121 48.897

Trade receivables are initiclly recorded at their nominal

12/31/2020 12/31/2019

value and, at each balance sheet date, trade receivables Trade recaivables - gross amount 876,742 892,465
are valued at amortised cost. net of mpairment losses due Impaiment (10558) (8.287)
to non-recovery risks. NET AMOUNTS 866,184 863,178

The Group applies the simplified model as defined in IFRS
9. and records an impairment of its trade receivables
corresponding 1o the expected credit loss at maturity.

The schedule of trade receivables breaks down as follows

Non yet due 90420days »120 days
866,184 82075 34.371 2054 15,751 1020L3
883178 826344 76.447 28481 228413 18776 110707
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12/31/2020 12/31/2019

Stote 144,615 134538
S charge receivable 4522 4013
Ctrer recavooles 89,170 59427
Prepoit expenses e7ern 588
OTHER CURRENT ASSETS 245578 205,566

Cash and cash equivalents include bank current accounts
and cesh equivalents corresponding to short-terminvest-
ments subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.
Cash equivalents consist mainly of term deposits, inte-
rest-bearing accounts and certificates of deposit with an
original maturity of no more than three months.

Marketable securities are measured at fair value in accor-
dance with IFRS 9 "Financial Instruments”. Changes in fair
value are recognised in the consolidated income
statement.

Bank overdrafts are excluded from cash and cash equiva-
lents and presented under current financicl borrowings.

12/31/2020

e s 3 s
et DR

="

Link Read South Haguenau

Net cash and cash equivalents include an amount in
foreign currencies (mainly British pounds and US dollars)
representing €487 million at 31 December 2020, versus
€48.0 million at 31 December 2019

12/31/2020 12/31/2019
Ir s 161313 10,855

Cost 585517 a3 615
718,830 414,470

=532.947) 333)

Bank overdrafts (253,947) (248,333)
NETCASH 462.883 165,137

Provided by

Changes in group

Non-current
structure ond

12/31/2019
assetsuppliers

operating
activities

=6./68 483897 7857
B6K184 883178 P2635
Cther aszets BB7535 065 (64.588)
ASSETS 1,190,487 1144141 (48,908) =
Trade poyables BA 754072 101,540 436
Other datilities 600,386 S66.144 53008
LIABILITIES 1.450,254 1320216 160.548 436 (30,246)
WORKING CAPITAL (REQUIREMENT)/ SURPLUS 259,767 176,075 111,640 436 (28,385)

Borrowings are initially recorded at cost, which corresponds
to the fair value of the amount received, net of issue costs
After initial recognition. borrowings are measured at
amortised cost, using the effective interest rate method,
which takes into account all issue costs and any discount
or redemption premium.

Lease liabilities
In accordance with IFRS 18 ‘“Legses’, the Group measures
lecse liabilities based on the present value of the lease

rentals remaining due to the lessor, including, where appli-
cable, the exercise price of o purchase option if the lessee is
reasonably certain to exercise this option

The liability may be revalued in the event of a revision of the
lease term, a modification related to the assessment of
whether or not the option may be exercised, and revision of
the rates or indices on which rentals are based

he finoncial fees relating to this liability are recorded in
financial expenses under the heading “Cost of financial
debt’”. %593 AU,,,O
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Financial debt and financing flows from the Cash
Flow Statement

In accordance with the |AS 7 Amendment "Statement of
Cash Flows” and in order to allow a link between cash flows
from financing octivities and changes in borrowings
presented in the consolidated balance sheet, infarmation
on changes in liabilities is presented by separating cash
flows from non-cash flows.

Financial covenants

As partof the Corporate Credit and the Euro PP bond issue.
the Group has undertaken 1o comply with certain contrac-
tually-defined financial ratios.

In the context of Covid-19, and the State-Guaranteed Loan,
the Group obtcined the agreement of the lenders to waive

12/31/2020

Non-currer

1-Syears

118

» Syears

29

the case of default for non-compliance with the gro
ratio and, consequently, to waive the early repayment of the
sums due. This waiver was granted by the lenders on 17
December 2020.

At 31 December 2020, the following ratios must be complied
with

- Net leverage ratio: less than 2.5,

- Net cash at least equal to €60 miliion,

At 31 December 2020,

s were met

The Euro PP bond, maturing on the 31 July 2021 has been
reclossified as “Current loans and borrowings” The Group
has initiated a request to holders for a one-year extension
of this deadline.

12/31/2019

Non-current
Current
1-5S years

»Syears

218746 20,733 72,770
4,499

C or 170 L1745 440 B.468
GROSS DEBT 386.753 279227 25.232 691,211 113,149 456.044
Netecash 452883 165137
NETDEBT 228328 290,807
aw. fixac-rote debt 41956 12,100 266959 71585 95,507 20,7¢ 288

aw. flooting-rote debit 244797 424253 41564 125633 -

CHANGES WITHOUT CASH FLOW IMPACT

12/31/2018 Cash flow gmu::;’r'ﬁ::r‘: Foir value vgm?‘:::; Z;}:::::L‘:‘: 12/31/2020

Suaranted Loon 201,221 5000 coe22L
Convertitle bona @ Q4 71180
272463 35.074 2 QGE (217g ({25) 308,265

08123 40,15C 3,653 246 (568) 103610

3 6467 12719 (18831 599 56 75) 1915

456,044

12/31/2018

209,890

Cash flow
group structure

691211

Change in
accounting
methods

Other
Variations

Translation
Adjustment

Changesin 12/31/2019

34,706
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30 AppendIx

The Group uses derivative instruments such as forward
foreign exchange contracts and interest rate swaps to
hedge against the risks associated with interest rates and
commodity index swaps. These derivative instruments are
recognised at their fair value.

At 31 December 2020, the fair volue takes into account the
credit risk or the entity's own risk in accordance with IFRS
13 *Fair value measurement” These risks are estimated on
the basis of observable market data.

All gains and losses arising from chonges in the fair value
of derivatives that do not qualify as hedging instruments
are recognised directly in the consolidated income
statement.

The fair value of forward foreign exchange contracts is
calculated by reference to current prices for contracts with
similar maturity profiles. The fair value of interest rate
swaps is determined by reference to market values of
similar instruments,

In accordance with IFRS 8 “Financial instruments”, the
clossificotion of hedges determines its accounting
treatment:

— Fair value hedges hedge exposure to changes in the feir
value of arecognised asset or liability, or a firm commit-
ment (except for currency risk), which is attributable to a
particular risk and which could offect net income. The
gain or less on the hedging instrument is recognised
through netincome;

Fair value

— Cash flow hedges hedge exposure to changes in cash
flows that are attributable either to a particular risk
associoted with a recognised asset or liability, or to @
highly probable future transaction or currency riskon o
firm cemmitment. The portion of the gain or loss on the
hedging instrument thatis considered effective is reco-
gnised in other comprehensive income; the residual gain
or loss on the hedging instrument is recognised in net
income;

— Hedges of a net investment in ¢ foreign cperation are
recognised in the same way as cash flow hedges.

Interest rate risk hedging:

The derivative instruments used to hedge borrowings are
swap contracts or options entered into with leading financiol
institutions. With regard to the interest rate hedgingcontrocts
existing at 31 December 2020, the total gross borrowings
subject to an uncapped interest rate risk (including securiti-
sation and excluding the State-Guaranteed Loan) amounted
to €234 S million compared to €128 million at 31 December
2013

Atconstantborrowings at 31 December 2020 and taking into
account the interest rate derivatives in the portfolio at that
date, a 25 basis point increase in variable rates would not
have a significant impact on the annual financial expenses
due to a floor on 3-month Euribor rates, and o 3-month
Euribor level of -0.545 gs of 31 December 2020.

METHOD FOR CALCULATING FAIR VALUE

Levell Level 2 Level 3

Fair value

:_2/31/?020 o Carrying Amortized throughtother through Cucmfi market Model using Model using

inancial assets and liabilities cost comprehensive 5 priceonan cbservable non-observable
income Bothasnit active market market data data

Avoiloble-for-: 26,448 26,448 25,448

Ctrer financicl a 75,732 75,732

Group oen 9.547 9547

Cash ond cosh equivalents 716,850 716 830

Tra 886184 856184

TOTAL ASSETS 1684741 1,668,293 - 26,448 - . 26,448

Borrowing ond other financing 889,467 689467

Current gccounts 8366

Derivatives 745 745 1.74% kR\AT Als,

Bank averdratts 253847 253947 \‘o‘o' & )

Trode poyable 849868 842868 - %

TOTAL LIABILITIES 1.803.383 1801648 1,745 = l.@ TALENZARES :?‘

AupT &
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Fair value

12/31/2018 Carrying Amortized throughtother
Financial assets and liabilities amount cost comprehensive
income

Fair valua
through
netresult

31

METHOD FOR CALCULATING FAIR VALUE

Levell

Quoted market
priceonan
active market

Level 2
Medel using
observable
market doto

Level 3

Model using
non-observable
data

ondcashaqul

Trodes 883178 BB3178
TOTAL ASSETS 1.404.366

454,898

- 24.217

24.217

1146 45
}ijrt cverdrat
rade poyable 754,07 754072
TOTAL LIABILITIES 1,461 800 1460854 1,146 - - 1,148 -

The value of interest rate hedging instruments is presented

Non-current Current

Falrvalue at12/31/2020 Risers P

Non-current
Liabilities

Current
Liabilities

Notional
amount

Non-current Current

onal
amount

TOTAL INTEREST RATEHEDGING
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32 AppendIx

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a current
obligation towards a third party (legal or implicit) resuiting
from a past event, and when itis probable that an outflow of
resources representing economic benefits will be required to
settle the obligation, which can be reliobly estimated
Non-current provisions mainly include the portion at more
than one year of:
- Provisions for disputes and litigation: these provisions are
intended to cover disputes, litigations and foreseeable
contingencies of the Group’s business cctivities;

FY 2020

12/31/2018

Incr

- Provisions for quarry redevelopment. renewal and
restoration. This Is the cost to restore operating quarry
sites;

- End of career payments.

Details of provisions for end of career payments are

presented in Note 8.16.

Current provisions correspond to provisions directly linked to
the normal operating cycle for the porticn due in less than
one year,

Translation
Adjustment

Changesin

eases Decreases 12/31/2020

group structure

Praovisions for retirernent poyments 2558 494 38)

Pravisians for quorry redeveloprmer 380

Provisians for disputes and |tigations 714 158

Cth ns for non-current charges (370) 387 277
NON-CURRENT PROVISIONS 18,692 (17,875) 1,039 (233) 87513
Provisions for retirment poyments ( Joly) 1.801 {779 1901
Provisians for disputes and litigations (-lyear) 5783 1310 {313 6780
CURRENT PROVISIONS 7862 3aun (2.092) " = 8681
TOTAL PROVISIONS 83452 21,903 (19,967) 1,039 (233) 96,194

FY 2019

12/31/2018

sions for retirement poyments

Increases

Translation
Adjustment

Changesin

= (217
group structure le/aleos

Decreoses

Provisicns

quorry redevelaprment f

Pravisicns for dispuies and liigations (F7.088) 880 255 49,971
ar nen-cu S0 260

NON-CURRENT PROVISIONS 30,383 (27.486) 3.120 267 85,890

Pravisians for retirment payments o 835 779 779

Provisians for disputes and Itigatio 5,275 379 5783

CURRENT PROVISIONS 6,110 3,188 " = 7862

TOTAL DES PROVISIONS

(29,171)

Provisions for defined benefit pension plens are recognised
in the consolidated balance sheet. They are determined
using the projected unit credit method on the basis of
actuerial valuations carried out at each annual balance
sheet date

The actuarial calculation assumpticns for defined-benefit
pension cbligations are reviewed annually

The impact of the revaluation of the net defined-benefit
pensicn ligbility is recognised in other comprehensive
income. It mainly includes the actuarial gains and losses
on the commitment resulting from the effects of changes
in actuarial assumpticns and experience-reloted
adjustments,

190

For defined-benefit plans financed under external
management (pension funds or insurance contracts), the
excess or shortfall of the fair volue of the assets over the
present value of the Obl«gODOf‘\S IS FC‘COngCd in assets or
licbilities

In occordance with the provisions of |AS 18 ‘Employee
Benefits’, the expense recognised in operating income
from ordinary activities includes the cost of services
rendered cs well cs the effects of any plan modification,
reduction or liquidatigs retion impagd)

on the actuarial lig GJ}?’\ * 'Co/b cerest g&Fome on pl«:moo
assets are rcccg Zd in othdyayongdl.income and %

=
S
2
*
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IASISR IASISR

Assumptions

Dis

count rate {including inflation)

Rate of salary increase

Change in commitment

mitment ot the begnning of the period

at expense

Azquizitions / Disg

Actuarial losses (gains) on the commitment

Benefits paid (1.562) (855)
COMMITMENT AT THE END OF PERICD 38,408 35201
Change in assets

Fair volue of ossets ot the begnning of the period 2110 2,065
Interestincome 33 45
Actuzarial gains ses) on the osset

Acquisitio

5 / Disposals

VALUE OF ASSETS AT THE END OF PERIOD 2143 2110

Expense for the period - —
Fibre deployment Bordeaux

Service cost over the pericd 2,283

Tronslatio

Net cost of intereat 221 471

EXPENSE (INCOME) 2574 2376

Other items of comprehensive income

% of actuerial adjustment on CCl ot the beginning of the

TSR 5138 3415
Actuariol losses (gains) generated on commitment 1709 1723
:.NOCSOSPE‘IE(GAINS) RECOGNIZED IN OTHER COMPREHENSIVE 6.047 5138
Change in provision

Praovisian ot the begnning of the periad (33.091) (23,7073
(Expense) / Income (2.574) (2.364)
v:"”w\”"“""‘IJU‘:'”F'” 39 "'l.:)
Actuarial odjustments generated (1709) (L723)
Acguisitions / Dsposols 434) (140}
Beriefits poid directly by the employer 1562 855
PROVISION AT THE END OF THE PERIOD (36,266) (33,081)
Sensitivity T

Discount rate

Commitment with an

Expense with an increase

Cammitment withadec

Salary increase rate

Commitm

Exp

v ith an oy

e with an inc

itf

Cammitrmer vadec

Lxpense witha
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34 Appendix

12/31/2019

scurity 97811 49
Tax payobles 194185
Contract iabilities 88,023 86.409

Loans ang aovances to sient cartnerships

8,368

OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES

The Group recognises income and expenses relating to
construction contracts using the percentage of completion
method defined by IFRS 15 "Revenue from contracts with
customers”

For the Group, progress is generally determined on the
basis of a percentage of completion or a percentage of
completion by costs,

In the event that the forecast at the end of the project shows
a loss, a provision is recognised independently of the
progress of the project, based on the best estimate of the
projected net income including, where applicable. additional
revenue rights or claims, insofar os they are probable and
can be relicbly measured. Provisions for losses on comple-
tion are presented as liabilities on the consclidated balonce
sheet

Trade receivables represent an unconditional rignt for the
Group to receive cash from the customer, when the goods
or services promised in the contract have been provided

Contract assets represent the right, for the Group, to obtain
aconsideration in exchange for goads or services provided
to the customer, when this right depends on other factors
than the passage of time, in particular, inveices 1o be
prepared and holdoacks,

Contract liabilities represent the Group's obligations to
provide goods or services to a customer for which conside-
ration has been received from the customer. These include
advances received cnd deferred income,

The consaolidated balance sheet at 31 December 2020
includes the following items:
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12/31/2020 12/31/2018
Controct Assets 274368 219026
Controct Liabilities 277543 241676
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Under these contracts, the Group gronts and receives
guarontees. The amount of guarantees given below mainly
includes works contract guarontees issued by financial
institutions or insurance companies

In millions of euros 12/31/2020 12/31/2019
Heldback 354 371
74
180
e 39
5 B8
Sutimission guarontes
Market suraties 145

Supplier guaraniees

GUARANTEES RECEIVED

The order book at 31 December 2020 amounted to
€4 0 billion and stood at €4 1 billion at 31 December 2019

2 40152

12/31/2020 12/31/2019
3 25

In millions of euros 12/31/2020
Reglonal - :—Lil.;le Specialist
multi-expertises P freanch International  Eliminations

activities sl Subsidiaries
projects

Operating iIncorme from orainary octivities 3

In millions of euros 12/31/2019
Regional Mu'_“- Speclalist
2 PRI expertl;e . » t
multi-expertises french International  Eliminations

Totet major £l st
activities Jo Subsidiaries
projects

vities 1.011 417 BO7 eee 2497
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Other Income from activities recognised includes equip-
ment scles, studies and royalties

Other Income from activities also includes the portion of
financial income related to NGE Concessions

12/31/2020 12/31/20:

equip t

OTHER INCOME FROM ORDINARY ACTIVITIES

12/31/2020 12/31/2019

482 37 421100

Suncontracting

142714
590,802
1195887

1,249.824

This itern includes other unusual and infrequent incorne
and expenses that the Group presents separately in its
consolidated income statement to facilitate understanding
of current operating performance.
These include expenses and provisions relating to risks or
disputes that are specific and material in relation to the
Group’s ordinary business.
This item also includes the
tronsactions:
- FCPE:
Pursuant to the Chairman’s decision dated 8 February
2020, octing in accordance with the cuthorisation
granted to him by the Shareholders' Meeting dated 6
February 2020, NGE transferred 111.844 A Shares to
the FCPE NGE Actionnariat
Employees received a matching contribution. The related
expense is presented in "Other operating income and
expenses”;
- Goodwillimpairment
Impairment tests led to the recognition of animpairment
lass of €103 million on the *Specialised National
Subsidiories” CGU

12/31/2020 12/31/2019

FCPE (L0586

following

specific

(3,886}

< 0N pre-acquisition works

willimpairment losses

OTHER OPERATING INCOME

)
AND EXPENSE (11,496)

(21,953)
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12/31/2020 12/31/2019
cashand cast e =

(7415) 68

I eb! {4.040 3

te Qsing or cleb S
COSTOFNETFINANCIALDEBT 11,416) (10,418)

o e

12/31/2020 12/31/2019
100

150

Ircome

equity in

r financial

nange differances

OTHER FINANCI
AND EXPENSES

NCOME (294) (148)

12/31/2020 12/31/2019
cincry o1 30

Operdting incomie fram ore

0

ivitie

Net ction and omertzation 110308 105,043
Nat bock value of di 10,147

EBITDA 176.156 178 412
Share capital

It should be noted that by decisions of 26 March 2020, 3
July 2020 and 28 September 2020, the Chairman used
the delegation granted to him and repurchased 15,500,
17240 and 22,100 Class A ordinary shares, respectively,
with a par value of €8 each, belonging to the FCPE NGE
ACTIONNARIAT, to cancel them.

At 31 Decembier 2020, the share capital was composed of
5.970.171 fully paid-up shares, including 25.030 treasury
shares, each with a par value of €8 and amounting to
€47761,368

On 8 February 2021, the 25,030 treasury shares were
concelled.

At the balance sheet date, the share copitel was composed
of 5,945 141 shares and amounted to €47561 12




Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the
income attributable to orcinary sharenclders of the parent
entity by the weighted averoge number of ordinary shares
outstanding during the period.

For the colculation of diluted earnings per share, the
income attrioutable to ordinary snarenclders of the parent
entity as well as the weighted cverage number of shares
outstanding are adjusted for the effects of all potential
dilutive equity instruments. There were no dilutive instru
ments at 31 December 2020.

12/31/2020

In millions of eur:

Receivables (debts)

37

12/31/2020 12/31/2019

1978
5,945 141 BO025011
; 5,845 141 B 02511
theo! cal eguity instruments (a)
EARNINGS PER SHARE (EUROS)
332 g
(AIQ) R
DILUTED EARNINGS PER SHARE
(EUROS) (A/E) 9aE 980
12/31/2019

Income (expense) Receivables (deb Income (expense)

In millions of euros 12/31/2020 12/31/2019
alz 528
39 319

8

TOTAL COMMITMENTS HELD 188 187

12/31/2019

12/31/2020

Sanior imanngement 261

ement

Cther manag nt 7404

7.048
AVERAGE WORKFORCE 13754 13,052

PERSONAL COSTS

Ratiremant payments
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List of consolidated companies

12/31/2020 12/31/2019
Company Method % interest
Pare doctivités de Laurads iz
NGE e SRt SAS 504124 80100028 Parent 100 Parent 100
- ZANMallode Fully Fully
TP
ARSI 24100 SERGERAC consolidated ve2 consclidoted 154
e 245 Allee du Sroceo - ZA fo Cigaliére |V Fully Fully
AGS 84250 LETHCR consolidated 4L consolidated 140
g ” Pare d'octivités de Laurade Fully Fully
ALBEAT i | 5
ALBEAERPLOTATION 13103 SAINT- NNE-DU-GRES consolidated 52 . orsolidatsd 50
o Parzd'aetivi » Laurade X Fully Fully
ANGEL 13103 SAINT-F NNE-DU-GRES consolldated s prsolidoneg 100
ANTARES Parc d'actiy tés de Laurade - Fully 100 Fully a0
PARTICIPATIONS 13103 SAINT-ETIENNE-DU-GRES consolidated consolidot=a 10
S = Ecuity Equity i
A N, 3
RENAEBD Method el Methog 1730
e ARANE P Fully Fully
ARIES OCNTRELLIER SERL FIRS9RORON080 consolidated 2 consolidatad 160
ATELIER POUR LA Parc diActivités Coriolis ik
MAINTENANCE DE Rus Everisie Galols SAS 811342 14600016 s 1718 1718
ENGINS MOBILE 71210 MONTCHANIN ekl
i oo = Cheminde la Counette Pt Fully Fully
. Al {~ CAC 04 =~ 13700 -

AJDE AGREGATS 11500 LASTOURS SAS 30463B13700024 1 noritated OB St 36
u Ton ZA Botipéle BAR HESGAA SR BERY Fully = Fully 4
SHRRERETEN 11300 ST-MARTIN-DE-VIL EREGLAN SAS 353843354 00027 nichidated 35 consoligarad 98
AUDERECYCLAGE  RHLI3 Montorgeul 545 79849462] 00013 Eauity 1733 Equity 1733

1000 CARCASSONNE Methad Met heet
X 12 Piace cu Falais = I Fully Fully
| sag = = 098 o 5 -
ERELE 81000 ALENCON SAS  S31915088000I0  heqlidated 0 ancolidated Bl
o ZA de Restavy - Rue Jean Brite - o Fully Fully
ARATE] ; S 35 Q2 000 1
B BIP SB6 240 DLOUAY R e 00 oneolidatad 09
BERENGIER Liay-ciit La Periére " " B Fuily. ¥ Fully
( 49170 SAINT-GERMAIN-DES - PRES SAS  A1I3BISINA00057 o solidated 0 oncofidated P
uls Armana Zi de Camp Raoel it B
] SARL  ©127204150001S M ‘:"’ 25 R 25
24106 BERGERAC el Bigehed
BRIGNOLES LIBERTE Parc d'activités de Laurade arens =5 878 AEE ABO Fully Fully
Lotz DL-GRES SCCv 85227935500014 consolidated 100 consolidated 100
SErr e e Fully Fully
§ SAS Q s 3 00~ 1
BROUTANTE B2440 HARNES SAS  789188:34900029 consolidazed 1oa conselidated 100
CALCAIRES Routs d'Opoul - Sarrat de la troverse o % Fully Fully
CATALANS 66600 SALSES-LE-CHATEAU SAS  781BS190000018  (oqidated 50 onsolidated 9
CaLTAIRES DU Lizudit Gorrigus de Bayssan K A - Equity Equity .
BITERROIS 34500 BEZERS SA%  RlAZLSSEOnON Mathod A Mathod 50,
CALCAIRES DU Parc dactivites de Laurade . 782 5 =2 (0010 Fully Eully
DIJONNAIS 13103 SAINT-£TIENNE-DU-GRES SAS 7BESSBISBO0N0 . hidated 74 consolidated 0
S e Zongz Artisanala PR R TS, : Fully < Eully .
CARDINA C o ek C 033555 0002 : -
SAHDINAL EDFICR 35330 MERNEL 2% SR0UREROR0008 consolidated 102 consolidated 140
CARRIERE DE Parc d'octivites de Laurada NS prar 050 GAOA- Fully 3 Fully
BAYSSAN 13103 SAINT-ETIENNE-OU SAS 1383802000043 | o idated 00" snsolidare 100
CARRIERE DE Parc d'octivitas de Laurade e A0 TOEES BOOIE Fully
BOULBON 13103 SAINT-ETIENNE-DU-GRES SAS AS8798282000IS | o idated 2 99
8Zons da Cardong RS Fully Fully
AZAL =4 s = GAS 3132 27 .
cazal 11410 SALLES-5UR-UHERS SAS JITCUSBA00027 Fosilidated 100" onsolidated 100
s <t 21 Tulle Est S RARIE Suity cquity
CORREZEENROBES 4 WICESt SARL 400002 I8 00016 ol 43 ey 43
- Zeng Artisanals = = Fully
" : Zong f 5 872860 % 25 Y = -
BRNIEL 35330 MERINEL SAS B79B60Z1L00025 ) honiated 100
- 7.rue de Sélestot 5 48 553000012 Fully = e
FORKCIH 63180 HOREOURG-WIHR SAS 4BBA49BSI000012  ninarad B T
505 rue Fontfillol Lot B - ZAC - Az
EGENIE b CranH IO ERE D ed e Cade SAS 44DBSE29E 00022 :
EEVER AL 62 Ahmed Afif St - Media City Sa sas17

A

A
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12/31/2020

12/31/2019

Method % interest

Pare doctivitss de Laurads

Fully Fully

33100 BORDEAUX

B 13103 SAINT-ETIENNE-DU-GRES SRS A4 0n DO | o] 00 onsolidated el
EXTER 13103 SAINT-ETIENNE-DU-GRES SAS 4534530450008 o siccied 0 oo 50
K 8155 SAINT-ETIENNE-DU-GRES SAS 4010653200098 o sistied 190 cogignue 100
FRASCA ]I:;f;f\'j"f_)?r?_rc  — SAS 572082858000 (i()ns:jhiz:f(: 10 [l )".Hnlld?rtl‘\'\j 10D,
FUTURARENA Y i el SAS BI2B044040001 oncyimen % cocoidone 999
FVF S.:I;E;[Ii‘r::_LUE.E‘:E_: Sl 545 482 ng lﬁ?‘ 0oe1S CO"SD*IJE:‘Q‘I{; [Dn ':3"‘50"1’;\;; 100
PRANCES. o AN e EANE-DU-GRES sas ssavsssacoos bl ea B 100
marocom
BB ;géi‘:‘\"‘ ;:‘A:‘\'ii::\??r:qle,;::i—r: e (I(}l\:‘ﬂ‘i"]('::ﬂ(: = 0 V"‘A)“llv:ﬁl—‘»yl SR
CHIEENROBES :é\;‘; '—l’{eJ\j(l’iﬁ e e rc-nsoihg:i?‘z P [: :we.nlin;:lj(\; 54
GMS ENROBES G e G Ape i PRl SAS 48202930300021 .. . 1::”;'; Sl ,:"“”), 54
GRANULATS DE LEST SIC[:;:’S'L'E’:J‘;‘@O“ SAS 800730673 00020 Mif:(';; 35 \]qu'y} 35
HOLOING MAUR N2S0 COUFFOULENS sas 412 598 306 00011 COY‘QU!GZ‘:‘Q“; 35 CD"‘COllO: ‘|\<); 35
SRR fﬁbf i 1;;«3:“1:?5 GRES e SicHSOOUe msmzi'ﬁ e con:chd:t‘lg 100
DEVELOPPEMENT 684201t BARCARES. ! sewop gaoezzazoools el = A0 e
IAUMONT FINANCES 23 582N ST LAMONTAGHE SAS SOI4BS36200000 bl 8885 ) 898S
KASTONETHI ity i, PN SAS  BOI72780100020 ... Fdl 100 - -
LACHARRENOISE L3 00CRalR . o eHAMBABNES 263 07 GILSIR000N, cn’msu‘ldz:‘z B ,;mm:.vs;biyl 99
Lacis El(jjgn“l\:l & TIENNE-[ILI-GRES 545  S1302782100018 cnn:mldcl::‘;; 100 cmgz_\lmr:w:,"—g 100
LAGARRIGUE ol sas agsesolszoomz o Pl 0 AN 100
: E::E:Sr TIONS i’:‘:J ‘2{7'5"35 TSR i m— mnsa.c?:ﬂ; 1ol .
o :,53:‘ER:'5 63230 SAINT-PIERRE-LE-CHASTEL SAS  4B872593500010 e 30 30
N T.:J()dj:.;\hrjl[‘: {JIZN':L”:,:’JVHC&; Sl ErSeraBEL00ES, consmd:::; 1od -:o."schdatcg 100
ws smcowor s mn  w
AR emeesloniie  on suseeoos DRGNS 0
L& 19100 BAVE-LA- GAILLARDE S REIEOIRAScONi wwgﬁ\&‘m Aty e
G - 2587 V. It =0 b
EXPLOTTATION E7100 VAL DE-REVL 545 83126615600033 b, %o
LeETP Rue des Queyries SAS 433689 51000025 5 oy M'"E C o LENZ ARgs m
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12/31/2020 12/31/2019

Method % Interest

Company

30 ovenus ds Larrieu

Equity

Equity

31081 TOULOUSE Cedex 1 e e 2ot Method R Methad K
,IARM” h ?’;i’\‘d(;.?:;i:;‘::;crc: S SAS EIC 185025 OCOLA fr)’\sf)‘l‘j(’::‘:’(‘; loo C ‘.'N‘()llu:l‘:ﬂ\‘yi 100
DOLATRUN - 8880 RECUSHEM SA5 3781703680003 Gl 2a : .
MAYRI anri"';T} IFFOULENS A3, BUSERIRAIIN0IE consa‘mzt‘ejldv 93 . mc.clmz::«: 89
MEDRAI gi‘é“:"’"ﬁ‘v}\%—;:i"&ii PRIRSR TR SA (C"\SD“C‘-Z:‘Q"(; S0 CD"‘SO"C‘;::‘C‘ 50
[LA,AEASS:IC:,E\TEIE I:izzith'ﬁ\lf;bDL -BRETAGNE 585 ROReDRanS D0 consnlvdzz;lc\; 100 cy‘-;clld’c:xu‘c‘,: 169
METRICRAIL SBE00 A ONS-LAREI TE SARL 4536530700036 il 9 corsondoton 50
visE Toociiies SAS 4326231300088 o inicl 190 iy 190
MISTRALFINANCES o008 ;;"P:T“ET‘:EN:'E”’;J S SAS  Bl21895I200013 . d:“e"é 100 4 d;“:'g 100
KSEEEEER TSGIFOZ; g:\nrirtefﬁéﬁihcmadj GRES SA=  Badledaonou COHSU‘GE:J;Z 100 o 50[,0::;; 0
MULLERTR g?;%‘:‘:ﬁ::i iark?'f—oCL,\'R\‘ SAS 447754235000%7 (‘(}l\sdl(lt"l::ﬁl(: 100 cor .\::lm:u?x 100
NGE CONNECT IDadse T et e 585 5326159100020 . Ul 100 = -
NGECONTRACTING 50, 7US 82 Caumartn sas 7ags7oonsoony . Fuly O oty 100
?:?;ﬁ,g;’;T‘SACPNG TRl ﬂ“(,\' . 84S 02985845 cor\sdidzlt‘ci'é 160 ‘:aﬂ:ohd;‘l‘\‘l:z 100
NGE CONTRACTING AN MAS{??Y BIETRY:Zoned o . Fully Fully ;
(CCTE DIVOIRE) A‘:’,IDJ:;JG Seloreaite SR 2018632578 consolidated 100 cnsoiidated 100
A sa  owseomsool  phed 00 gy 100
[JS-:[ CONTRACTING g;’:z Tawer, Al Meena Street SARL CRo/24722 Lm‘smmlj:.ne\l:‘ 598 : ‘y‘(’om:?‘:lg 696
:i’i[ CONTRACTING 1331'505::!@& t Place, Landen EG 2HE SARL 10056562 cgngquz‘g; 100 :Tc‘n"d::!g’ 160
NGEFONDATIONS — Zoiuedesthebes sas 3agpssesycooes o Pl oa T 100
NGEGENIECHIL i:l();‘ ;if\hr: '('j: ;1&]:;113,14& S “s7dpaaaeuon <onso‘ldzt'€?§ Lo consolidoted 100
NGE INERANET f;’md _};\'K, A SAS 50124162400045 aZ?Q'é oo c::clz 100
OLICHON Bueles Vol Eiachenes SAS RE550005200010 Conwmz;‘;'g
pzR gg'if;é‘:,’E:,'E"E'U LUmieres SARL 421063074 00023
pASS 23:5326;‘:_;"” il SAS 4015289710003 /
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ad office

12/31/2020

12/31/2019
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T Chemindu Corps de Garde e Fully Fully
PEVEIAL 77500 CHELLES 2 consoligated = solidated S0
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LATE-FOR ¢ 43642 731 0001 . :
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12/31/2020 12/31/2019
Company Form Method % Interest % Interest
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2.2

SUBSCRIPTION AND SALE

Placement Agreement

Pursuant to a placement agreement dated 6 December 2021 entered into between Crédit Lyonnais and
Société Générale (the "Joint Lead Managers") and the Issuer (the "Placement Agreement"), the Joint
Lead Managers have jointly and severally agreed with the Issuer, subject to satisfaction of certain
conditions, to procure subscription and payment for, failing which, to subscribe the Notes at an issue
price equal to 100 per cent. of their principal amount, less the commissions agreed between the Issuer
and the Joint Lead Managers. The Placement Agreement entitles, in certain circumstances, the Joint
Lead Managers to terminate it prior to payment being made to the Issuer. The Issuer has agreed to
indemnify the Joint Lead Managers against certain liabilities in connection with the offer and sale of the
Notes.

Selling Restrictions
General

Each Joint Lead Manager has agreed to observe all applicable laws and regulations in each jurisdiction
in or from which it may acquire, offer, sell or deliver Notes or have in its possession or distribute this
Prospectus or any other offering material relating to the Notes.

No action has been or will be taken by the Joint Lead Managers in any country or jurisdiction that would
permit a public offering of the Notes, or the possession or distribution of this Prospectus or any other
offering material relating to the Notes, in any country or jurisdiction where action for that purpose is
required. Accordingly, the Notes may not be offered or sold, directly or indirectly, and neither this
Prospectus nor any document, advertisement or other offering material relating to the Notes may be
distributed in or from, or published in, any country or jurisdiction except under circumstances that will
result in compliance with any applicable laws and regulations and will not impose any obligations on
the Issuer.

European Economic Area
Prohibition of sales to EEA Retail Investors

Each Joint Lead Manager has represented and agreed that it has not offered, sold or otherwise made
available and will not offer, sell or otherwise make available any Notes to any retail investor in the
European Economic Area (the "EEA™).

For the purposes of this provision:
(@) the expression "retail investor" means a person who is one (or more) of the following:

(i)  a retail client as defined in point (11) of Article 4(1) of Directive 2014/65/EU of the
European Parliament and of the Council of 15 May 2014 on markets in financial
instruments, as amended ("MiFID I1"); and/or

(if)  a customer within the meaning of the Directive 2016/97/EU of the European Parliament
and of the Council of 20 January 2016 on insurance distribution, as amended (the
"Insurance Distribution Directive™), where that customer would not qualify as a
professional client as defined in point (10) of Article 4(1) of MiFID II; and/or

(iii) not a qualified investor as defined in Regulation (EU) 2017/1129 of the European
Parliament and of the Council of 14 June 2017 on the prospectus to be published when
securities are offered to the public or admitted to trading on a regulated market, as amended
(the "Prospectus Regulation™); and

(b) the expression "offer" includes the communication in any form and by any means of sufficient
information on the terms of the offer and the Notes to be offered so as to enable an investor to
decide to purchase or subscribe the Notes.
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France

Each Joint Lead Manager has represented and agreed that it has not offered or sold and will not offer or
sell, directly or indirectly, any Notes in the Republic of France, and has not distributed or caused to be
distributed and will not distribute or cause to be distributed in the Republic of France, this Prospectus
or any other offering material relating to the Notes, except to qualified investors (investisseurs qualifiés),
as defined in, and in accordance with, the Prospectus Regulation and Article L.411-2° of the French
Code monétaire et financier.

United Kingdom
Prohibition of sales to UK Retail Investors

Each Joint Lead Manager has represented and agreed that it has not offered, sold or otherwise made
available and will not offer, sell or otherwise make available any Notes to any retail investor in the
United Kingdom.

For the purposes of this provision:
(@)  the expression "retail investor" means a person who is one (or more) of the following:

(i) a retail client, as defined in point (8) of Article 2 of Regulation (EU) No 2017/565, as
amended, as it forms part of domestic law by virtue of the European Union (Withdrawal)
Act 2018 ("EUWA"); and/or

(i)  acustomer within the meaning of the provisions of the Financial Services and Markets Act
2000, as amended ("FSMA") and any rules or regulations made under the FSMA to
implement the Insurance Distribution Directive, where that customer would not qualify as
a professional client, as defined in point (8) of Article 2(1) of Regulation (EU) No 600/2014
as it forms part of domestic law by virtue of the EUWA; and/or

(iii)  not a qualified investor as defined in Article 2 of the Prospectus Regulation as it forms part
of domestic law by virtue of the EUWA,; and

(b) the expression "offer" includes the communication in any form and by any means of sufficient
information on the terms of the offer and the Notes to be offered so as to enable an investor to
decide to purchase or subscribe the Notes.

Other United Kingdom regulatory restrictions
Each Joint Lead Manager has represented and agreed that:

(i) it has only communicated or caused to be communicated and will only communicate or cause to
be communicated an invitation or inducement to engage in investment activity (within the
meaning of section 21 of the FSMA received by it in connection with the issue or sale of the Notes
in circumstances in which section 21(1) of the FSMA does not apply to the Issuer; and

(i) it has complied and will comply with all applicable provisions of the FSMA with respect to
anything done by it in relation to the Notes in, from or otherwise involving the United Kingdom.

United States

The Notes have not been and will not be registered under the U.S. Securities Act of 1933, as amended
(the "Securities Act") and may not be offered or sold, directly or indirectly, within the United States or
to, or for the account or benefit of, U.S. persons (as defined Regulation S under the Securities Act
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("Regulation S™)) except pursuant to an exemption from, or a transaction not subject to, the registration
requirements of the Securities Act.

The Notes are only being offered and sold outside of the United States in offshore transactions, in
accordance with Regulation S. Terms used in this paragraph have the meaning given to them by
Regulation S.

In addition, until forty (40) calendar days after the commencement of the offering of the Notes, an offer
or sale of Notes within the United States by any dealer (whether or not participating in the offering) may
violate the registration requirements of the Securities Act.

Legality of purchase

Neither the Issuer, the Joint Lead Managers nor any of their respective affiliates has or assumes
responsibility for the lawfulness of the subscription or acquisition of the Notes by a prospective investor
in the Notes, whether under the laws of the jurisdiction of its incorporation or the jurisdiction in which
it operates (if different), or for compliance by that prospective investor with any law, regulation or
regulatory policy applicable to it.
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GENERAL INFORMATION

The AMF has approved this Prospectus under approval number no. 21-518 on 6 December 2021. The
Prospectus has been approved by the AMF, as competent authority under the Prospectus Regulation.
The AMF only approves this Prospectus as meeting the standards of completeness, comprehensibility
and consistency imposed by the Prospectus Regulation. Such approval should not be considered as an
endorsement of the Issuer and of the quality of the Notes that are the subject of this Prospectus. Investors
should make their own assessment as to the suitability of investing in the Notes. This Prospectus is valid
until the date on which the Notes will be admitted to trading on Euronext Paris. The obligation to
supplement the Prospectus in the event of significant new factors, material mistakes or material
inaccuracies does not apply when the Prospectus is no longer valid.

The 2028 Notes have been accepted for clearance through Euroclear France, Clearstream, Luxembourg
and Euroclear with the Common Code number 241709353. The International Securities Identification
Number (ISIN) for the 2028 Notes is FR0014006W81. The Financial Instrument Short Name (FISN)
for the 2028 Notes is NGE/3.2 Bd 20281208 Sr. The Classification of Financial Instrument (CFI) code
for the 2028 Notes is DBFNFB.

The 2029 Notes have been accepted for clearance through Euroclear France, Clearstream, Luxembourg
and Euroclear with the Common Code number 241709388. The International Securities Identification
Number (ISIN) for the 2029 Notes is FRO014006WAS5. The Financial Instrument Short Name (FISN)
for the 2029 Notes is NGE/3.4 Bd 20291208 Sr. The Classification of Financial Instrument (CFI) code
for the 2029 Notes is DBFNFB.

The address of Euroclear France is 66, rue de la Victoire, 75009 Paris, France. The address of
Clearstream, Luxembourg is 42, avenue John Fitzgerald Kennedy, L-1855 Luxembourg, Grand Duchy
of Luxembourg. The address of Euroclear is 1, boulevard du Roi Albert I, 1210 Bruxelles, Belgium.

Application has been made for the Notes to be admitted to trading on Euronext Paris as from the Issue
Date. The total expenses related to the admission to trading of the 2028 Notes are estimated to €7,630
and the total expenses related to the admission to trading of the 2029 Notes are estimated to €9,175
(including AMF and Euronext Paris fees).

The Issuer's Legal Entity Identifier (LEI) is 969500B2FUJ5DH6396809.

The issue of the Notes was decided by the President (Président) of the Issuer on 24 November 2021,
upon prior unanimous decision of the shareholders of the Issuer dated 8 November 2021.

The statutory auditors of the Issuer for the period covered by the historical financial information are
IFEC and TALENZ ARES AUDIT (formerly AREs X-PERT Audit). They have audited and rendered
unqualified audit reports on the financial statements of the Issuer for each of the financial years ended
31 December 2019 and 31 December 2020. IFEC belongs to the Compagnie Régionale des
Commissaires aux Comptes of Versailles and TALENZ ARES AUDIT (formerly AREs X-PERT Audit)
belongs to the Compagnie Régionale des Commissaires aux Comptes of Nimes.

The yield of the 2028 Notes, as calculated at the Issue Date, on the basis of the issue price of the
2028 Notes and depending on the achievement of the Sustainable Performance Targets at each VValuation
Date in accordance with Condition 7.2 of the Terms and Conditions of the 2028 Notes, would be:

- 3.200 per cent. per annum, assuming that no interest step-up or step-down is applied (i.e., the
2028 Notes bear interest at the Initial Interest Rate until the Maturity Date);

- comprised between 3.000 per cent. per annum (if all of the Sustainable Performance Targets are
complied with and an interest step-down of 20 basis points is applied at each Interest Payment
Date from 8 December 2023 until the Maturity Date) and 3.300 per cent. per annum (if none of
the Sustainable Performance Target are complied with and an interest step-up of 10 basis points
is applied at each Interest Payment Date from 8 December 2023 until the Maturity Date).

It is not an indication of future yield.
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The yield of the 2029 Notes, as calculated at the Issue Date, on the basis of the issue price of the
2029 Notes and depending on the achievement of the Sustainable Performance Targets at each Valuation
Date in accordance with Condition 7.2 of the Terms and Conditions of the 2029 Notes, would be:

- 3.400 per cent. per annum, assuming that no interest step-up or step-down is applied (i.e., the
2029 Notes bear interest at the Initial Interest Rate until the Maturity Date);

- comprised between 3.200 per cent. per annum (if all of the Sustainable Performance Targets are
complied with and an interest step-down of 20 basis points is applied at each Interest Payment
Date from 8 December 2023 until the Maturity Date) and 3.500 per cent. per annum (if none of
the Sustainable Performance Target are complied with and an interest step-up of 10 basis points
is applied at each Interest Payment Date from 8 December 2023 until the Maturity Date).

It is not an indication of future yield.

Investors shall take into consideration such yields very carefully given the uncertainty of occurrence of
an interest step-down or an interest step-up.

Save for any fees payable to the Joint Lead Managers, as far as the Issuer is aware, no person involved
in the offer of the Notes has an interest, including conflicting ones, that is material to the issue of the
Notes.

Save as disclosed in this Prospectus, there has been no significant change in the financial performance
and/or financial position of the Issuer or the Group since 31 December 2020.

Save as disclosed in this Prospectus, there has been no material adverse change in the prospects of the
Issuer or the Group since 31 December 2020.

Save as disclosed in this Prospectus, neither the Issuer, nor any of its Subsidiaries, is or has been involved
in any governmental, legal or arbitration proceedings (including any such proceedings which are
pending or threatened of which the Issuer is aware), which may have, or have had in the past twelve
(12) months, significant effects on the Issuer and/or the Group's financial position or profitability.

In this Prospectus, unless otherwise specified, references to a "Member State" are references to a
Member State of the European Economic Area, references to "EUR" or "euro™ or "€" are to the single
currency introduced at the start of the third stage of European Economic and Monetary Union pursuant
to the Treaty establishing the European Community, as amended.

This Prospectus contains forward-looking statements. All statements other than statements of historical
facts included in this Prospectus, including, without limitation, those regarding the Issuer's financial
position, business strategy, plans and objectives of management for future operations, are forward-
looking statements. Such forward-looking statements involve known and unknown risks, uncertainties
and other factors which may cause the actual results, performance or achievements of the Issuer, or
industry results, to be materially different from any future results, performance or achievements
expressed or implied by such forward-looking statements. Such forward-looking statements are based
on numerous assumptions regarding the Issuer's present and future business strategies and the
environment in which the Issuer will operate in the future. The Issuer expressly disclaims any obligation
or undertaking to release publicly any updates or revisions to any forward-looking statement contained
herein to reflect any change in the Issuer's expectations with regard thereto or any change in events,
conditions or circumstances on which any such statement is based.

The Joint Lead Managers and their affiliates have engaged, and may in the future engage, in investment
banking and/or commercial banking transactions with, and may perform services for, the Issuer and its
affiliates in the ordinary course of business. In addition, in the ordinary course of their business
activities, the Joint Lead Managers and their affiliates may make or hold a broad array of investments
and actively trade debt and equity securities (or related derivative securities) and financial instruments
(including bank loans) for their own account and for the accounts of their customers. Such investments
and securities activities may involve securities and/or instruments of the Issuer or Issuer's affiliates. The
Joint Lead Managers and their affiliates may also make investment recommendations and/or publish or
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16.

express independent research views in respect of such securities or financial instruments and may hold,
or recommend to clients that they acquire, long and/or short positions in such securities and instruments.

So long as any of the Notes are outstanding, copies of:

(i)  this Prospectus together with any supplement to this Prospectus;
(it)  the Fiscal Agency Agreement;

(iii)  the Pledge Agreement;

(iv) the Intercreditor Agreement;

(v) the statuts (by-laws) of the Issuer; and

(vi) any reports, letters, and other documents, valuations and statements prepared by any expert at the
Issuer's request any part of which is included or referred to in this Prospectus;

will be obtainable, free of charge, at the specified office for the time being of the Issuer during normal
business hours. This Prospectus together with any supplement to this Prospectus are or will also be
available on the website of the AMF (www.amf-france.org). The documents listed in (i), (iii), (iv), (v)
and (vi) above are also available on the website of the Issuer (www.nge.fr).

The website of the Issuer is (www.nge.fr). The information on such website and on any other website
included in this Prospectus do not form part of this Prospectus and has not been scrutinised or approved
by the AMF.
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PERSON RESPONSIBLE FOR THE INFORMATION CONTAINED IN THE PROSPECTUS

I hereby certify that the information contained in this Prospectus is, to the best of my knowledge, in accordance
with the facts and contains no omission likely to affect its import.

NGE
Parc d'activité de la Laurade
13103 Saint-Etienne-du-Grés
France

Duly represented by:
Jean-Sébastien Leoni
Executive Vice President (Directeur Général Adjoint)

Dated 6 December 2021

AUTORITE
DES MARCHES FINANCIERS

AIXIF

This Prospectus has been approved by the AMF, in its capacity as competent authority under Regulation (EU)
2017/1129. The AMF has approved this Prospectus after having verified that the information it contains is
complete, coherent and comprehensible within the meaning of Regulation (EU) 2017/1129.

This approval is not a favourable opinion on the Issuer and on the quality of the Notes described in this
Prospectus. Investors should make their own assessment of the opportunity to invest in such Notes.

This Prospectus has been approved on 6 December 2021 and is valid until the date of admission of the Notes
to trading on Euronext Paris and shall, during this period and in accordance with the provisions of Article 23
of Regulation (EU) 2017/1129, be completed by a supplement to the Prospectus in the event of new material
facts or substantial errors or inaccuracies.

This Prospectus obtained the following approval number: 21-518.
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